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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
GOVERNOR'S OFFICE
HARRISBURG

CHARLES B. ZOGBY December 12, 2011
SECRETARY
OFFICE OF THE BUDGET

To the Honorable Governor, Lieutenant Governor, Members of the General Assembly, and Citizens of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

We are pleased to present this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. The Office of the Budget, Office of Comptroller Operations,
prepared this report, which includes the Basic Financial Statements, pursuant to the power vested in the Governor under
Section 701 of the Administrative Code and delegated to the Secretary of the Budget by Executive Order No. 1984-3, dated
October 11, 1984.

The Basic Financial Statements were prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)
as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). We believe the financial statements are fairly
stated in all material respects and that they are presented in a manner designed to fairly report the Commonwealth’s
financial position, results of operations, and changes in net assets/fund balances. All disclosures necessary to enable the
Governor, the members of the General Assembly, the public, and the financial community to fully understand the
Commonwealth’s operations and financial affairs have been included. Responsibility for the completeness and fairness of
the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Office of the Budget, Office of
Comptroller Operations. The Commonwealth relies on its comprehensive framework of internal control in the preparation
of basic financial statements. The Commonwealth has established a cost-effective system of internal controls that is
however, subject to inherent limitations. As is in any system of internal controls, there is reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance as to the effectiveness of the internal control system.

The Commonwealth’s June 30, 2011 Basic Financial Statements have been jointly audited by the Department of
the Auditor General and KPMG LLP, an independent public accounting firm. The independent auditors’ opinion is included
in the beginning of the Financial Section of this CAFR. The auditors’ opinion provides a reasonable basis for users to rely on
the information included in the Basic Financial Statements.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), which precedes the June 30, 2011 Basic Financial Statements,
provides an overview of the Commonwealth’s financial position and activities thus helping readers to understand the
government-wide statements. This section immediately follows the auditors’ opinion. In addition to the MD&A and Basic
Financial Statements, this CAFR includes: budgetary comparison schedules; combining fund financial statements;
supporting schedules; certain narrative information describing individual funds; and statistical tables presenting financial
trends, revenue capacity, debt capacity, demographic and economic information, capital asset and operating information
about the Commonwealth.

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

Pennsylvania, also known as the Keystone State, is one of only four Commonwealths in the United States.
Pennsylvania earns the title of Commonwealth as a result of its organization by the common consent of the people during
colonial times.
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The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania provides a wide range of services to enhance the quality of life for its 12.7
million citizens. The Commonwealth divides these essential services into seven broad program categories, consisting of
direction and supportive services, protection of persons and property, health and human services, public education,
economic development, transportation, and recreation and cultural enrichment. This programmatic approach enables
Pennsylvania to effectively serve its citizens.

The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, aside from the defined primary state government, is also accountable for a
number of legally-separate component unit organizations. The major component units in Pennsylvania include the
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission, the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency, the Pennsylvania Higher Education
Assistance Agency, the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority, and the State System of Higher Education.
Although the Commonwealth does not directly control or operate these component unit organizations, it is still accountable
for them, and therefore includes them in the Commonwealth’s financial reporting entity and reports them separately
within its government-wide financial statements.

Pennsylvania government has three distinct branches: the legislative branch, the judicial branch, and the executive
branch. The legislative branch, comprised of the Senate and House of Representatives, develops and passes the
Commonwealth’s laws. The judicial branch, made up of the Pennsylvania Supreme Court as well as other specialized courts,
serves the Commonwealth by interpreting the laws put in place by the legislative branch. The executive branch, consisting
of the elected Governor, Auditor General, Attorney General, State Treasurer, and other appointed entities, works to
enforce the laws established by the legislative branch. With these three branches of the Pennsylvania state government, an
effective system of checks and balances is created. The Commonwealth’s principal leadership and organization charts at
June 30, 2011 are incorporated immediately following this letter.

GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY BASIS

The General Fund, the Commonwealth’s largest operating fund, may be used to assess Pennsylvania’s financial
position and activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. It accounts for all revenues and other receipts that are not
required by law to be accounted for or deposited in other special funds, and reflects a significant portion of Commonwealth
expenditures. Tax revenues, principally personal and corporate income, and sales and use taxes, constitute approximately
86.3 percent of the non-Federal General Fund budgetary basis revenues. General Fund expenditures are reported in the
following functional assignments, along with the related percentage of non-Federal expenditures: direction and supportive
services (3.62), protection of persons and property (12.81), health and human services (38.63), public education (39.18),
recreation and cultural enrichment (.86), economic development (1.42), transportation (.01) and transfers to debt service
funds (3.47) for all obligations except those incurred for highway or other special revenue fund purposes.

BUDGET ADOPTION AND LEGAL COMPLIANCE
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

A discussion of the Commonwealth’s annual budget process is included as Required Supplementary Information
(RSI) immediately following the Notes to the Financial Statements. The legally adopted budget provides statutory control
over spending. Under Commonwealth law, expenditures cannot exceed amounts appropriated. Budgetary control is
exercised by specific, line-item appropriations. The Budgetary Comparison Schedule, included as RSI, provides original
budget, final budget and actual budgetary results for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

BUDGETARY BASIS FUND BALANCE INCREASE/(DECREASE)
FIVE MOST RECENT FISCAL YEARS

The following table shows the General Fund’s year end unreserved/undesignated balance and increases or
decreases on a budgetary basis at the end of the five most recent fiscal years (amounts in millions):
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General Fund-Budgetary Basis
Unreserved/Undesignated Balance
Increase/(Decrease) Last Five Fiscal Years at June 30

Fiscal Year Balance/(Deficit) % Increase/(Decrease)
2011 S 11,0729 1,366.8
2010 (revised) (293.9) 1,731.5
2009 (revised (2,025.4) (2,610.7)
2008 (revised) 585.3 54.4
2007 530.9 8.7

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, total General Fund revenues and other sources exceeded expenditures
and other uses by $1,366.8 and, at June 30, 2011, the Commonwealth reported an unreserved/undesignated balance
(budgetary basis) of $1,072.9 in the General Fund. This compares to a budgetary basis balance of $(293.9) (revised) at June
30, 2010. The budgetary basis results for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 include revenue collections totaling
$53,993.6, less appropriation authorizations totaling $52,720.5, plus other net financing sources totaling $93.7. Included in
the $52,720.5 appropriation authorizations are $25.1 of state supplemental appropriation reductions and $603.6 in Federal
supplemental appropriation additions authorized during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 (amounts in millions).

ECONOMIC CONDITION

The Commonwealth’s economic performance is largely dependent upon job growth. Heavy job losses that
occurred during 2009 and 2010 have abated and the Commonwealth economy generated approximately 54,000 net new
non-agricultural jobs during fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. Pennsylvania’s unemployment rate has traditionally been
equal to or below the national average following the diversification of the Commonwealth economy in the 1980’s and
1990’s and during the most recent fiscal year, the Commonwealth unemployment rate was 7.6 percent while the national
unemployment rate was 9.2 percent. The Commonwealth’s year-over-year rate of growth in employment averaged 1.1
percent while the broader U.S. economy was just 0.6 percent. Larger sectors adding jobs in Pennsylvania included: health
care, wholesale trade and administrative services, manufacturing and mining. Significant job losses were experienced in the
governmental sector. Pennsylvania has weathered the bursting of the housing bubble better than most other states. The
Commonwealth ranks 29" in the country in loans in foreclosure and 40™ in the nation in terms of new loan foreclosures
initiated in 2010. Further, while home prices had been failing dramatically throughout the nation, home price appreciation
in Pennsylvania has essentially stalled from 2007 to 2010.

Pennsylvania based energy and mining firms historically led the nation during much of the past two centuries
before falling on hard times in the 1980s. Escalating oil and natural gas prices have contributed to increased exploration for
new energy reserves. While mining activity has declined significantly within the Commonwealth, the emergence of the
Marcellus Shale natural gas reserves under much of Pennsylvania is leading to a resurgence in the industry. The Marcellus
Shale natural gas field could be the second-largest natural gas field in the world and producers are spending billions in the
Commonwealth to increase production. Over 1,000 drilling permits have been granted in Pennsylvania in 2010, more than
double the rate approved in 2008. Estimated job creation tied to the expanded natural gas industry is forecast to add
upwards of 200,000 jobs and more than $18 billion in output to the state economy by the end of the decade.

LONG TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING

Each year, the Governor’'s Executive Budget includes estimates of total revenues, available balances carried
forward and expenditures for all Commonwealth funds for one budget year and four subsequent fiscal years. These multi-
year projections illustrate expected revenue and spending changes, which inform the state’s policy makers about the status
of the Commonwealth’s budget. Based on the enacted budget for the 2011-2012 fiscal year, the Commonwealth expects to
receive General Fund revenues and transfers of $27.336 billion and to spend $27.331 billion from the Commonwealth’s
General Fund. The chart on the next page presents a five year summary of projected revenue and expenditures for the
General Fund.
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GENERAL FUND
(Amounts in thousands)

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16
Beginning balancCe .......ccceeveveeeeveveeeeieeeeeeeeeeree e S 586,087 S 3,694 S 2,683 S 4,877 S 3,367
REVENUES.....oiiiiiiii ittt s 27,945,058 29,127,281 29,811,182 30,450,329 31,200,578
AJUSEMENTS ..o (1,195,000) (1,215,000) (1,235,000) (1,255,000) (1,275,000)
Funds available.........cooviriiieninceee e 27,336,145 27,915,975 28,578,865 29,200,206 29,928,945
Total state expenditures 27,331,219 27,915,398 28,572,362 29,195,716 29,924,469
Preliminary balance......c..cocveveieninienicniciecncseeeeeee 4,926 3,577 6,503 4,490 4,476
Less transfer to Budget Stabilization Reserve Fund.......... (1,232) (894) (1,626) (1,123) (1,119)
Ending balance........cccocovveiiinicinincieceeseeeeeee S 3,694 S 2,683 S 4,877 S 3,367 S 3,357

*Includes refunds, lapses and adjustments to beginning balances.

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

The CAFR will be submitted to the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada
(GFOA) to determine its eligibility for the GFOA’s Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting. The
GFOA awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania for
its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. This represents the twenty-
fifth consecutive year the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania has received this award.

To merit a certificate of achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, which conforms to GFOA standards and satisfies both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. A certificate of achievement is valid for a period of one year only.
We believe the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania as of and for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2011 conforms to the GFOA’s award criteria.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

We wish to express our appreciation to the staff of the Office of the Budget, Office of Comptroller Operations and
Commonwealth agencies whose time and dedicated effort made this report possible and, at the same time, to reaffirm our
commitment to you to maintain the highest standards of accountability in financial reporting to the citizens of the
Commonwealth.

Sincerely,
W DL 9 / Couns- Mevia Kietd
3 .
Charles B. Zogby Peter J. Tartlin Anna Maria Kiehl, CPA
Secretary Executive Deputy Secretary Chief Accounting Officer
Office of the Budget Office of the Budget Office of the Budget
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KPMG LLP

; Suite 1000
Department of the Auditor General 20 North Third Street

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania PO Box 1190
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17120-0018 Harrisburg, PA 17108-1190

Report of Independent Auditors

The Honorable Tom Corbett, Governor
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

We have jointly audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component
units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (the Commonwealth), as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the Commonwealth’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Commonwealth’s management. Our responsibility is to express
opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We did not jointly audit the financial statements of the Tobacco Settlement Fund, a major
Special Revenue Fund, the Tuition Payment Fund, a major Enterprise Fund, and certain
discretely presented component units, which represent 99 percent of total assets, 99
percent of total net assets and 99 percent of total revenues of the aggregate discretely
presented component units. We also did not jointly audit 99 percent of the total assets, 99
percent of total net assets and 96 percent of the total additions of the Pension and Other
Employee Benefit Trust Funds and 100 percent of the total assets, 100 percent of the total
net assets, and 100 percent of the total additions of the Private Purpose Trust Fund,
which, in total comprises 86 percent of total assets, 96 percent of total net assets and 73
percent of total additions/revenues of the aggregate remaining fund information opinion
unit. The financial statements of the Tobacco Settlement Fund, Tuition Payment Fund,
the discretely presented component units, and the Pension and Other Employee Benefit
and Private Purpose Trust Funds were audited by other auditors, including KPMG LLP
and the Department of the Auditor General acting separately, whose reports thereon have
been furnished to us, and our opinions, insofar as they relate to the amounts included for
the Tobacco Settlement Fund, Tuition Payment Fund, the discretely presented component
units, and the Pension and Other Employee Benefit and Private Purpose Trust Funds, are
based solely on the reports of the other auditors.
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The Honorable Tom Corbett

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting
as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Commonwealth’s
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors provide
a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial
statements referred to previously present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania as of June 30, 2011,
and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof
for the year then ended in conformity with US generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note N to the financial statements, the Pennsylvania Turnpike
Commission, a discretely presented component unit, has committed to making significant
payments under a Lease and Funding Agreement as required under the terms of Act 44 of
2007. The Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission’s ability to make such payments is
dependent on its continuing ability to issue bonds to fund such payments and ultimately
to raise tolls sufficient to repay its bonded debt.

As disclosed in Notes A and B to the financial statements, the Commonwealth adopted
the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 54, “Fund
Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions,” effective July 1, 2010.

Management’s discussion and analysis, schedules of funding progress and employer
contributions of other postemployment benefit plans, and budgetary comparison
information on pages 18 through 41 and 154 through 160 are not a required part of the
basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures,
which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we
did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.
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The Honorable Tom Corbett

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania’s basic financial
statements. The introductory section, combining non-major fund and component unit
financial statements, budgetary comparison schedules for budgeted non-major special
revenue funds, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and
are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining non-major fund
and component unit financial statements and budgetary comparison schedules for
budgeted non-major special revenue funds have been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied by us and the other auditors in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in
our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, are fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The
introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied by us and the other auditors in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

%%@f' KPM o P

December 12, 2011
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS June 30, 2011

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania’s Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR) is presented as Required Supplementary Information and provides a review and analysis of the
Commonwealth’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 and a comparison to the prior fiscal year. The
MD&A should be reviewed in conjunction with the Letter of Transmittal, which begins on page 6 of this report, and with the
Commonwealth’s financial statements, which follow.

Executive Summary
Government-wide Financial Statements at-a-glance

Net Assets — Governmental activities net assets totaled $24.3 billion at June 30, 2011, compared to $23.5 billion at June 30,
2010. This represents a year over year increase of $0.8 billion during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, following a prior
fiscal year over year increase in net assets of $0.3 billion. For business-type activities, overall net assets were negative $1.5
billion at June 30, 2011, representing a year over year decrease of $0.3 billion during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011,
compared to negative net assets of $1.2 billion at June 30, 2010. On a combined basis, Total Net Assets for Governmental
Activities and Business-Type Activities were $22.8 billion at June 30, 2011, representing an increase of $0.5 billion during the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

General Obligation Bonds — During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, total general obligation bond indebtedness decreased
by nearly $56 million ($667 million in additions and $723 million in reductions) from $10.5 billion at June 30, 2010 to $10.4
billion at June 30, 2011. Total governmental activities liabilities, including the aforementioned decrease in general obligation
bond indebtedness of nearly $56 million, decreased by $0.7 billion during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

Fund Financial Statements at-a-glance

Governmental Funds — Total Fund Balances — Were $5.992 billion at June 30, 2011 compared to $6.351 billion at June 30,
2010, for a year over year decrease of $0.359 billion. The Commonwealth implemented the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board’s Statement No. 54 (GASB 54) effective July 1, 2010. Total fund balances for all governmental fund types
previously reported at June 30, 2010 did not change; however, fund balance totals by fund type did change, in offsetting
amounts, as of July 1, 2010 as further disclosed in Note B to the Financial Statements.

General Fund — Fund Balance — Was $284.8 million as previously reported at June 30, 2010, was increased by $280.4 million
as a result of implementing the aforementioned GASB 54, for increased and restated fund balance of $565.2 million as of July
1, 2010. At June 30, 2011, total reported fund balance for the General Fund amounted to $1,621.4 million compared to
$565.2 million, as restated as of July 1, 2010, for a year- over-year increase of $1,056.2 million.

Overview and discussion of basic financial statements

The Financial Section of the CAFR consists of several parts: the Independent Auditors’ Report, Management’s Discussion and
Analysis, Basic Financial Statements (BFS), Required Supplementary Information, Combining Financial Statements, and
Statistical Section. The BFS includes two sets of statements that present different views of the Commonwealth — the
government-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements. The Notes to the Financial Statements present
additional details and clarification regarding the information presented in these statements.

Government-wide financial statements

Government-wide financial statements portray the Commonwealth’s overall financial position (Statement of Net Assets) at
June 30, 2011 and its aggregate revenues and expenses (Statement of Activities) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. The
Statement of Net Assets presents the assets, liabilities, and net assets for the Commonwealth as a whole. The Statement of
Activities presents, by function or program, the expenses, offsetting revenues, and changes in net assets. Both statements
classify amounts by Governmental Activities, Business-Type Activities, and Component Units. The component units are
organizations that are legally separate from the Commonwealth’s primary government. Information related to component
units is not included in the MD&A. Each component unit is identified and described in Note A — Summary of Significant
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS June 30, 2011

Accounting Policies, Financial Reporting Entity. Audited financial statements for component units are available through the
Commonwealth Chief Accounting Officer.

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. This basis of accounting is similar to the basis used by most business entities and recognizes
revenues and expenses when they occur, regardless of when related cash is received or paid.

Fund financial statements — governmental funds

Funds are groups of related accounts that are used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. The Commonwealth uses fund accounting to demonstrate compliance with finance related legal
requirements. The Commonwealth’s Funds are categorized as governmental funds, proprietary funds or fiduciary funds.
Further discussion of these categories is in Note A — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — to the financial statements.
Fund financial statements differ from government-wide financial statements in a few ways:

1) While the government-wide statements focus on the government taken as a whole, the fund statements reveal more
detailed, fund-specific information for major governmental and proprietary funds, and for aggregated, non-major fund
information.

2) Unlike the aggregated columns for governmental and business-type activities in government-wide statements, the fund
statements report individual funds which are established by state law and used to account for specific, mandated
activities. Two examples of specific funds are the Motor License Fund, a special revenue fund where gasoline taxes and
motor vehicle registration fees are collected and used to repair and build highways, and the Unemployment
Compensation Fund, an enterprise fund, used to collect amounts from employers and employees to pay for
unemployment compensation benefits to unemployed workers.

3) The government-wide statements use the full accrual basis of accounting. In the fund statements, governmental funds
use the modified accrual basis of accounting and current financial resources measurement focus; whereas the
proprietary funds and fiduciary funds use the accrual basis of accounting and economic resources measurement focus.

Government-wide financial statement analysis

The following presents condensed financial statement information from the Statement of Net Assets (amounts in billions):

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2011 2010 Change 2011 2010 Change 2011 2010 Change

Assets:

Cash and investments $10.7 S (06) $52 S 46 S 06 $153 $153 § -

Capital assets (net)...... . 28.6 1.7 0.1 0.1 - 30.4 28.7 1.7

All other assets.......ccoceeververenene . 7.9 (1.0) 1.5 1.6 (0.1) 8.4 9.5 (1.1)
Total assets. 47.2 0.1 6.8 6.3 0.5 54.1 53.5 0.6
Liabilities:

Accounts payable........ccc........ 5.6 5.9 (0.3) 0.8 0.9 (0.1) 6.4 6.8 (0.4)
All other current liabilities.... 3.5 4.2 (0.7) 4.9 4.1 0.8 8.4 8.3 0.1
Total current liabilities............... 9.1 10.1 (1.0) 5.7 5.0 0.7 14.8 15.1 (0.3)

Bonds payable 9.7 9.8 (0.1) - - - 9.7 9.8 (0.1)
All other long-term liabilities 4.2 3.8 0.4 2.6 2.5 0.1 6.8 6.3 0.5
Total long-term liabilities........... 13.9 13.6 0.3 2.6 2.5 0.1 16.5 16.1 0.4
Total Liabilities.......coeeeersuensarannnas 23.0 23.7 (0.7) 8.3 7.5 0.8 313 31.2 0.1
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt................. 25.4 24.1 1.3 0.1 0.1 - 255 24.2 1.3
Restricted.....ccoveeeevvecveecreerennne 3.3 4.3 (1.0) 0.7 0.6 0.1 4.0 4.9 (0.9)
DEfiCiti e (4.4) (4.9) 0.5 (2.3) (1.9) (0.4) (6.7) (6.8) 0.1
Total net assets......ccvveeereereernennes $243 S$235 S 038 S(15) $(1.2) $ (03) S228 S$223 S 0.5
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Changes in assets and liabilities

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, total governmental activities cash and investments decreased by over $611
million, including the effects of a smaller Treasury Department securities lending program (a nearly $218 million decrease in
securities lending obligations). The current fiscal year cash and investments decrease follows a $340 million increase during
the prior fiscal year. Total investments for the governmental and business type activities, excluding the State Employees’
Retirement System, the Public School Employees’ Retirement System and all other fiduciary funds, which are not included in
the government wide Statement of Net Assets, amounted to $13.9 billion and total cash balances were over $1.3 billion at
June 30, 2011. Reported investments decreased by $257 million in comparison to prior fiscal year balances (514.2 billion); the
year over year change in reported investments was nearly flat when the year over year decrease in the Treasury
Department’s securities lending program (a $218 million decrease in securities lending obligations is included). Reported
cash balances increased to $1.3 billion, by over $227 million, from $1.1 billion reported at June 30, 2010; almost all of this
increase is primarily attributable to the reported $330 million increase in cash by the Unemployment Compensation Fund,
offset by a $96 million decrease in the General Fund and a $17 million decrease in all nonmajor funds. The net capital assets
increase of nearly $1.7 billion follows a $1.9 billion increase in the prior fiscal year. The current fiscal year increase in capital
assets, net, consists of: 1) an expansion of, and improvements to, the Commonwealth’s reported highway and bridge
infrastructure assets during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 (additions of over $2,307 million), an increase in buildings
(additions of over $199 million) and increases in other depreciable/amortizable general capital assets (additions of $222
million), amounting to $2,729 million; 2) net additions of land, highway right of way, and projects ‘in process’ of $67 million;
less 3) asset retirements (571 million) and less 4) net current fiscal year depreciation/amortization expense of $1,313 million.

Governmental activities accounts payable and accrued liabilities balances decreased by $0.3 billion primarily due to lower
reported accounts payable balances within the General Fund (a $250 million decrease) and other funds (5200 million),
partially offset by increases in other funds. All other governmental activities current liabilities decreased by $0.7 billion,
primarily due to a $218 million decrease in securities lending obligations, due to a smaller year over year Treasury
Department securities lending program, a $174 million decrease in amounts due to the Federal government (following a $176
million increase in the prior fiscal year), lower year over year General Fund and nonmajor funds amounts due to political
subdivisions for a variety of agencies (5122 million and $35 million, respectively), a $133 million decrease in tax refunds
payable, a $12 million decrease in year over year ‘other’ liabilities, partially offset by a $65 million increase in year over year
unearned revenues and a $33 million increase in year over year compensated absences liability.

Governmental activities noncurrent liabilities increased by $0.3 billion, due primarily to a $392 million increase in other
postemployment benefit obligations and a $91 million increase in self insurance liabilities, and a $32 million increase in
‘other’ liabilities, partially offset by a $59 million decrease in general obligation bonds payable, a $53 million decrease in
compensated absences liability, and a $33 million decrease in pollution remediation obligations.

Year over year changes in business-type activities assets (S0.5 billion increase) and liabilities (50.8 billion increase) resulted in
a net decrease in net assets of $0.3 billion. Total assets increased because reported cash and investments increased by $581
million year over year primarily due to a $340 million increase in the Unemployment Compensation Trust Fund cash balance
(offset by a $9 million decrease in other Unemployment Compensation cash balances), a $161 million increase in Tuition
Payment Fund cash and investments and a net increase of $91 million in other funds. Among other reported assets, the
Unemployment Compensation Fund reported lower accounts receivable balances (a $77 million decrease), the State Stores
Fund reported lower inventory balances (a $39 million decrease) and total reported loans receivable balances decreased by
$39 million, partially offset by a reported unemployment taxes receivable increase of $39 million. Total liabilities increased
primarily because of a higher amount advanced from the Federal government to the Unemployment Compensation Fund (a
$825 million increase year over year) and a higher year over year tuition benefits liability reported by the Tuition Payment
Fund (a $71 million increase), partially offset by lower year over year securities lending obligations, due to the relatively
smaller Treasury Department securities lending program (a $61 million decrease), and a smaller year over year State Workers
Insurance Fund insurance loss liability (a $44 million decrease).

Overall changes in net assets
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the overall financial position (net assets) of the Commonwealth, including both

governmental and business-type activities, increased $0.5 billion, or 2.24 percent of total beginning net assets of $22.3
billion. For governmental activities, the net increase in net assets was $0.8 billion or 3.40 percent of beginning net assets of
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$23.5 billion. The current fiscal year increase in governmental activities net assets ($0.8 billion) represents a $0.5 billion
increase from the prior fiscal year increase of $0.3 billion. The current fiscal year increase in Governmental Activities net
assets represents an improvement in the Commonwealth’s overall financial position when compared to the prior fiscal year
ended June 30, 2010.

The current fiscal year $0.3 billion decrease in total net assets for business-type activities follows a $1.8 billion decrease
during the prior fiscal year. The current fiscal year decrease is almost entirely attributable to a net assets decrease of $537
million in the Unemployment Compensation Fund, partially offset by a $128 million increase in the Tuition Payment Fund and
a $47 million increase in the State Lottery Fund.

The following presents condensed, financial statement information from the Statement of Activities (amounts in billions):

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2011 2010 Change 2011 2010 Change 2011 2010 Change
Revenues:
Program revenues:

Charges for sales and services......... $ 41 S 39 $02 $ 78 $73 S$ 05 $119 S$112 S 07

Operating grants and contributions  26.1 25.7 0.4 4.8 4.9 (0.1) 30.9 30.6 0.3

Capital grants and contributions..... 0.2 - 0.2 - - - 0.2 - 0.2
Total program revenues..........cceeeeesnnes 30.4 29.6 0.8 12.6 12.2 0.4 43.0 41.8 1.2
General revenues:

Taxes and investment income........... 29.8 28.3 1.5 - - - 29.8 28.3 1.5
Total general revenues..........coeeeesennncnes 29.8 28.3 1.5 - - - 29.8 28.3 1.5
Total revenues 60.2 57.9 23 12.6 12.2 04 72.8 70.1 2.7
Expenses:

Governmental activities:

Direction and supportive services... 2.1 2.0 0.1 - - - 2.1 2.0 0.1

Protection of persons and property. 5.4 5.6 (0.2) - - - 5.4 5.6 (0.2)

Public education......cceeecevirrrenennnn. 14.8 14.4 0.4 - - - 14.8 14.4 0.4

Health and human services 30.3 28.2 2.1 - - - 30.3 28.2 2.1

Economic development..........cccceuenee. 1.6 1.6 - - - - 1.6 1.6 -

Transportation......ccceeeeceeeeeeevenenenn. 45 5.0 (0.5) - - - 45 5.0 (0.5)

Recreation and cultural enrichment 0.5 0.6 (0.1) - - - 0.5 0.6 (0.1)

INterest.....covvvenncncncccccen 0.4 0.4 - - - - 0.4 0.4 -
Business-type activities:

State lottery - - - 3.2 3.1 0.1 3.2 3.1 0.1

Unemployment compensation.......... - - - 7.4 8.7 (1.3) 7.4 8.7 (1.3)

Liquor control.......cceeeeveceenenene - - - 1.5 1.5 - 1.5 1.5 -

Workers' compensation.. - - - 0.3 0. - 0.3 0.3 -

Tuition payment.......cccecevveeveeveenenennens - - - 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.3 0.2 0.1
Total expenses 59.6 57.8 1.8 12.7 13.8 (1.1) 72.3 71.6 0.7
Excess/(deficiency) before

transfers 0.6 0.1 0.5 (0.1) (1.6) 1.5 0.5 (1.5) 2.0
Transfers.... . 0.2 0.2 - (0.2) (0.2) - - - -
Increase (decrease) in net assets 0.8 0.3 S 05 (0.3) (1.8) $ 15 0.5 (1.5) $ 2.0
Net assets, beginning 23.5 23.2 (1.2) 0.6 22.3 23.8
Net assets, ending $243 $235 $ (1.5) $(1.2) $228 $223

In the above table, the previously-reported amounts for Business-Type Activities during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010
for ‘Charges for sales and services’ revenues and ‘Unemployment compensation’ expenses have each been reduced by $3
billion, from $10.3 billion and $11.7 billion, respectively, to $7.3 billion and $8.7 billion due to a reclassification to conform
with current fiscal year reported amounts.
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Changes in revenues and expenses for governmental activities

The following chart provides a year over year comparison of governmental activities revenues and transfers:

Governmental Activities Revenues and Transfers Year Over Year Comparison
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For governmental activities, general revenues — taxes — increased by over $1,418 million, net, during the fiscal year, largely as
a result of increases in reported General Fund tax revenues of over $1,239 million, an increase in gaming tax revenues ($108
million), and an increase in Motor License Fund tax revenues ($47 million). General revenues — investment income —
amounted to $52 million during the current fiscal year, representing a year over year increase in investment income of over
$37 million, even though year over year investment balances were nearly flat.

General Fund tax revenues increased as follows: personal income ($356 million), corporation ($325 million), sales and use
(5275 million), public utility realty and Medical managed care gross receipts ($127 million, combined), inheritance ($85
million), table games ($68 million), partially offset by a decrease in realty transfer taxes (514 million). Almost all of the

increases resulted from higher overall economic activity during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 in comparison to the prior
fiscal year.

Operating grants and contributions, which largely represents Federal participation in specific General Fund and other
programs, increased by over $450 million, net, during the fiscal year primarily because of higher year over year Federal
revenues ($1,370 million) associated with expenditures for Medical Assistance and other types of health and human services
expenditures and higher Federal revenues for education expenditures (5421 million), partially offset by significantly lower
Federal revenues (over $550 million) for transportation expenditures and lower Federal revenues ($312 million) for
protection of persons and property expenditures. Revenues from the Federal American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009 (ARRA) amounted to $4.3 billion; representing a year over year increase in ARRA revenues of $0.4 billion (amount for
prior fiscal year was $3.9 billion). Also, revenues from the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (PTC), a discretely presented
component unit, decreased by $450 million (from $900 million during the prior fiscal year to $450 million during the current
fiscal year). These revenues were received under the provisions of Act 44 of 2007 and the related Lease and Funding
Agreement between the PTC and Commonwealth primary government (primarily the Department of Transportation).
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The following chart provides a year over year comparison of governmental activities expenses:

 Governmental Activfties Expenses Year Over Year Comparison
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For governmental activities, total expenses increased by $1.8 billion (2.97 percent) largely due to significant increases in
expenses for health and human services ($2,067 million), education ($343 million), direction and supportive services ($102

million), and interest ($45 million), partially offset by decreases in expenses for transportation ($485 million), protection of
persons and property ($298 million) and recreation and cultural enrichment (568 million)

The following chart presents governmental activities revenues compared to expenses for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011:
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Changes in revenues and expenses for business-type activities

During the current fiscal year, total business-type activities expenses exceeded total revenues by nearly $116 million.
Including net transfers to other funds of $240 million ($166 million transferred from other funds and $406 million transferred
to other funds), the net decrease in net assets was $356 million during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. During the prior
fiscal year, total expenses were $1.6 billion higher than revenues. Including the effects of prior fiscal year net transfers to
other funds of over $218 million, business-type activities net assets decreased by $1.8 billion during the prior fiscal year. The
primary reasons for the overall year over year difference in the net decrease in net assets of $1,469 million were: a $1,288
million smaller decrease in reported net assets of the Unemployment Compensation Fund and a $62 million larger increase in
reported net assets of the Tuition Payment Fund and a $69 million improvement in reported net assets of the State Lottery
Fund.

Operating grants and contributions for business-type activities decreased year over year by nearly $564 million due almost
entirely to a $566 million decrease in Federal revenues ($4,351 million during the current fiscal year and $4,917 million
during the prior fiscal year) for extended and other benefits in the Unemployment Compensation Fund, partially offset by a
$128 million year over year increase in investment income.

Overall, expenses for business-type activities decreased by nearly $1.1 billion, based on decreased expenses of nearly $1.3
billion for extended and other benefits in the Unemployment Compensation Fund, partially offset by net increases/decreases
(net increase of $0.2 billion) among other business-type activities expenses during the current fiscal year.

General Fund — economic factors during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the rate of growth for both the national and state economies was considerably
more subdued than originally projected. Real gross domestic product for the national economy was projected to be 2.8
percent for the fiscal year at the time of enactment for the fiscal year 2011 budget. Final figures for real gross domestic
product for the national economy resulted in 1.8 percent growth for the full fiscal year. Unemployment rates remained at
elevated levels both nationally and within Pennsylvania as the Commonwealth economy added 54,000 net new jobs during
the fiscal year. Despite the subdued nature of the economic recovery, the Commonwealth’s revenues and receipts
benefitted from the mild uptick in the national economy experienced during a portion of fiscal year 2011. General Fund
revenues of the Commonwealth were above the certified estimate by $785.5 million or 2.9 percent during fiscal year 2011,
the first time that revenues exceeded the certified estimate since fiscal year 2008.

General Fund — budgetary basis — comparison between original budget and final budget

The Budgetary Comparison Schedule for the General Fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 is presented immediately
following the Notes to the Financial Statements. In the Final Budget, State Program revenues were adjusted to include
revenues received by fiscal year-end (but not included in the Commonwealth’s official revenue estimate), in an amount equal
to 2010-11 supplemental appropriations passed on June 30, 2011 by Act 1-A.

Final budgeted Federal Program revenues and expenditures were $618 million higher than the original budget, primarily due
to increases of $445 million in public education and $157 million in health and human services. The public education increase
is attributable to $387 million in new Education Jobs Funds and an increase of $55 million in Elementary and Secondary
Education Act Title 1 funds. The health and human service increase is the result of higher medical assistance earnings.

General Fund — budgetary basis — comparison between final budgeted and actual results

Actual budgetary State Program revenues were $811 million more than the final budgeted State Program revenues. The $811
million increase is primarily due to higher taxes, net of refunds, of $774 million. The $774 million increase in tax revenue is
attributable to an additional $245 million in total corporation taxes, $253 million in sales and use taxes and $311 million in
personal income taxes offset by slight reductions in other tax categories. Actual Federal revenues and corresponding
expenditures were $1,102 million lower than budgeted due to the expiration of $815 million of expected, appropriated
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) funds which the Federal government never awarded to state agencies
along with additional reductions for the following agencies: Public Welfare, $84 million; Health, $61 million; Community and
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Economic Development, $43 million; Emergency Management Agency, $37 million; Education, $27 million; and all other
affected agencies, $35 million.

Measurement focus and basis of accounting — governmental funds

The General Fund and special revenue, debt service and capital projects fund types are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this measurement focus, only current assets
and current liabilities are normally included on the balance sheet. Operating statements for these fund types present
increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net
current assets. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, governmental funds recognize revenue in the fiscal year that
it becomes susceptible to accrual (both measurable and available) to pay current fiscal year liabilities. Grant revenues,
including Federal government grant revenues, are recognized when earned and available. Revenue recognition from most
other sources occurs at receipt. Recognition of expenditures generally occurs in the fiscal year the goods or services are
received and the related fund liability is incurred. Debt service expenditures for principal and interest on general long-term
obligations are recognized when due. Prepaid items and inventory purchases are reported as current fiscal year
expenditures, rather than allocating a portion of related cost to the fiscal year when the items are actually used.

Discussion of individual funds, balances and transactions

General Fund

The General Fund, the Commonwealth’s largest fund,
accounts for over 85 percent of the total governmental
fund type revenues and other financial sources and nearly
82 percent of the total governmental fund type
expenditures and other financing uses. The General Fund
collects over 86 percent of the total tax revenues and is
the primary funding source for most Commonwealth
agencies. The charts depicted on this page present a
comparison of the major types of revenues and
expenditures reported in the General Fund. Taxes and
intergovernmental revenues represent the largest sources
of revenue, while health and human services and
education represent the largest outflows or expenditures.

General Fund Tax Revenues

The largest significant source of tax revenues -- net of refunds -- ($25,884 in total) is Personal Income Tax (PIT). Reported PIT
(59,802) accounts for nearly 38 percent of all tax revenues reported. Sales tax, which represents a tax on various items
purchased by consumers, is the second largest category. Reported sales tax ($8,248) accounts for nearly 32 percent of all tax
revenues reported. Corporation taxes, which represent different taxes (including the Corporate Net Income Tax and the
Capital Stock/Foreign Franchise Tax) on various corporations, is the third largest category. Reported corporation taxes
(54,628) accounts for nearly 18 percent of all tax revenues reported. These three tax categories represent the
Commonwealth’s largest own-source revenues. Although not available for the current fiscal year, prior fiscal year statistical
information for these three tax categories is presented in the Revenue Capacity portion of the Statistical Section (amounts in
millions).
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Public
education

Corporation 28%
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Health and
human services
58%

General Fund Expenditures

The General Fund reported total expenditures of $50,598 and total other financing uses of $1,023 during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2011. Expenditures for health and human services ($29,861) accounted for 59 percent of all General Fund
expenditures. The second largest category, public education, accounts for 28 percent ($14,198) of the reported
expenditures. Of the public education expenditures, over 93 percent ($13,245) are reported by the Department of Education.
The chart shown on the right, above, reports the percentages expended in each category (amounts in millions).

Comparative Financial Statements for the General Fund

Condensed comparative General Fund balance sheets at June 30, 2011 and 2010 are as follows (amounts in millions):
Increase (Decrease)

2011 2010 Amount Percent
Assets:
Cash and iNVESTMENTS....ccouvveireeieececerreeses e S 4,841 S 3,221 S 1,620 50%
Receivables, net............. 3,770 3,493 277 8%
Due from other funds/governments/advances/other... 2,228 3,123 (895) -29%
Total assets S 10,839 S 9,837 S 1,002 10%
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and tax refunds payable S 4,956 S 5,348 S (392) -7%
Securities lending obligations......cceeeceeveevevenenineenenne 10 23 (13) -57%
Due to other funds/governments/advances/other........ 1,973 1,992 (19) -1%
UNEArNed rEVENUE.........coveveeecteteere ettt eeeeeeenens 2,279 2,189 90 4%
Total liabilities 9,218 9,552 (334) -3%
Fund Balance:
Total fund balance 1,621 285 1,336 469%
Total liabilities and fund balance S 10,839 S 9,837 S 1,002
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In accordance with new fund type definitions, per GASB 54, effective July 1, 2010, the following amounts that represent the
balances of those funds that were previously considered Special Revenue funds are included as part of the General Fund
amounts provided above as of June 30, 2011:

Assets: 2011
Cash and iNVESTMENTS.......cccuveeureeetreeteeree e S 330
ReECEIVADIES, NEL.....ccveeeeereeeecr s 13
Due from other funds/governments/advances/other... 66

Total assets S 409

Liabilities:

Accounts payable...... s S 76
Securities lending obligations......cccccvevveveeereccseeeenene, 10
Due to other funds/governments/advances/other........ 6

Total liabilities 92

Fund Balance:

Total fund balance 317

Total liabilities and fund balance $ 409

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, cash and investments increased by $1,620 million (50 percent) compared to the
prior fiscal year; a significant portion of this increase was caused by an excess of revenues and other financing sources over
expenditures and other financing uses, amounting to $1,056 million, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. In addition,
$330 million of the year over year increase was caused by the aforementioned implementation of GASB 54 as of July 1, 2010.

Net receivables increased by $277 million due primarily to an increase in accounts receivable for: 1) $643 million for the
Department of Public Welfare (DPW) which was almost entirely offset by $632 million for: a $329 million decrease in
amounts due from the Federal government (representing its participation in the higher amounts receivable) and a $302
million increase in unearned (unavailable) revenues. Therefore, the $632 million portion of the $643 million increase in
accounts receivable was completely offset by either a reduction in other assets or increased liabilities and had no net effect
on reported revenues, expenditures or fund balance. The $643 million increase (which provided a net $11 million decrease in
expenditures) consists primarily of amounts receivable from third parties (third party liability)(5288 million), Medicaid Drug
Rebates (5281 million), amounts due from individuals ($19 million), amounts due from nursing homes ($17 million), first-time
amounts owed by pharmacists (514 million), amounts owed to DPW facilities ($13 million), Supplemental Drug Rebates ($7
million) and first-time quality care assessments ($4 million); 2) $72 million for a new item which reduced expenditures for
active employee healthcare benefits; and 3) $13 million for amounts related to former separate funds newly reported as part
of the General Fund as of June 30, 2011. The combined year over year increase in accounts receivable of $728 million was
partially offset by decreases in taxes receivable of over $455 million.

Amounts due from other funds/governments and advances decreased by $895 million, net, due primarily to 1) a $917 million
net decrease in amounts due from the Federal government. Of the $917 million decrease, $743 million of the decrease is
attributable to DPW as follows: 1) the aforementioned $329 million decrease (the Federal portion of accounts receivable)
which was more than offset by $353 million of higher year over year drawdowns/amounts receivable from the Federal
government and lower year over year accrued Federal revenues of $767 million as of June 30, 2011. Other state agencies
reported lower amounts due from the Federal government as follows: Education (559 million), Military and Veterans Affairs
(554 million), Community and Economic Development (540 million), Labor and Industry ($10 million), Environmental
Protection ($6 million) and Emergency Management ($4 million); 2) reported advances decreased due to the repayment,
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, of a $14 million advance the General Fund to another funds and the elimination of
an $8.3 million advance because of the newer parts of the General Fund; and 3) amounts due from other funds decreased by
over $10 million from the prior fiscal year. Partially offsetting the aggregate $949 million decrease is a net increase in
amounts due from the Federal government related to the administration of the unemployment compensation benefits
program ($56 million).

Year over year accounts payable decreased by over $257 million and tax refunds payable decreased by $135 million (total
year over year decrease of $392 million). Amounts due to political subdivisions decreased by $122 million while the
unclaimed property liability increased by nearly $70 million and amounts due to other funds/component units/pension trust
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funds increased by over $28 million. Unearned revenues increased by $90 million, as unavailable revenues increased by $33
million and unearned revenues increased by $57 million.

Total reported fund balance of $1,621 million at June 30, 2011 includes amounts which were formerly reported as part of
Special Revenue funds, amounting to $280 million at June 30, 2010 and $317 million at June 30, 2011. The previously
reported General Fund fund balance included fund balance reservations of $1,719 million and an unreserved/undesignated
deficit of $1,434 million at June 30, 2010. No fund balance designations were reported at June 30, 2010. At June 30, 2011,
the General Fund fund balance is reported using the newer, prescribed categories as follows: Nonspendable: $123 million,
Spendable, Restricted: $756 million and Spendable, Committed: $1,063 million and Unassigned deficit: $321 million. No
fund balance assignments were reported at June 30, 2011.

Condensed, comparative, General Fund change statements for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 follow
(amounts in millions):

Revenues:
Taxes, net of refunds

Personal income........cceeeveveerecreceeenrenene.
Sales and use.......
Corporation......
Inheritance....
Cigarette............
Realty transfer..

Total taxes, net of refunds........ccevevevenn.
Intergovernmental........cccceeveunene
Charges for sales and services....

Licenses/fees/investment and other income.............

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Direction and supportive services...........
Protection of persons and property...
Health and human services.................

Public education......ccceeveeeeceeceececeereeeceecre e
Recreation and cultural enrichment...........cccoeueenen.

Economic development.........cccceeveenenes
Transportation........c........
Capital outlay.............
Other expenditures....

Total expenditures

Revenues over expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):

TranSTers iNu. e

Transfers OUt.... e
Net other financing uses

Net change in fund balance

Increase (Decrease)

Fund balance, beginning

Net effect of newer fund type definitions

Fund balance, ending

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

WWW.pa.gov

2011 2010 Amount Percent
S 9,802 9,241 S 561 6%
8,248 7,946 302 4%
4,628 4,135 493 12%
777 733 44 6%
1,084 1,068 16 1%
280 294 (14) -5%
69 - 69 100%
996 868 128 15%
25,884 24,285 1,599 7%
23,598 21,847 1,751 8%
1,438 985 453 46%
694 829 (135) -16%
51,614 47,946 3,668 8%
837 1,033 (196) -19%
4,162 4,126 36 1%
29,861 27,447 2,414 9%
14,198 13,814 384 3%
244 291 (47) -16%
962 1,025 (63) -6%
48 59 (11) -19%
286 70 216 309%
- 1 (1) -100%
50,598 47,866 2,732 6%
1,016 80 936 -1170%
1,063 739 324 44%
(1,023) (1,049) 26 -2%
40 (310) 350 113%
1,056 (230) 1,286
285 515 (230)
280 - 280
S 1,621 285 $ 1,336
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In accordance with new fund type definitions effective July 1, 2010, the following amounts are included as part of the General
Fund amounts provided above as of June 30, 2011:

2011
Revenues:

Intergovernmental........ccoecvecneninennienneseeeeseeeine S 343

Licenses/fees/investment and other income............. 34
Total revenues 377
Expenditures:

Protection of persons and property......ccecveveeerennens 13

Health and human services........ccoceeeeeeenrecrcreceenenne, 539

Economic development.........cocceeeeeeeeeneeececeeecieeeenens 22
Total expenditures 574
Revenues under expenditures (197)
Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers iNu e 234
Net change in fund balance 37
Fund balance, beginning 280
Fund balance, ending S 317

Total reported General Fund revenues increased by $3,668 million (7.65 percent) during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

General Fund tax revenues increased overall by $1,599 million (6.58 percent) during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. This
overall increase is attributable to all tax types except Realty Transfer taxes, which decreased by $14 million when compared
to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. Personal Income Taxes (PIT) increased due to higher taxable income for individuals.
Tax collections during the fiscal year, before adding net tax accrual and subtracting tax refunds/credits, increased as follows:
employer PIT amounts withheld and remitted increased by 2 percent, quarterly (estimated) remittances increased 16 percent
and annual (accompanying tax returns filed) remittances increased by over 11 percent. Corporation taxes increased by $493
million, an increase of 11.92 percent, due primarily to increasing corporation profits and due to one-time revenues of $176
million; both of these factors increased year over year reported Corporate Net Income taxes. Reported Sales and Use Tax
revenues increased by $302 million when compared to the prior fiscal year due to increases in taxable purchases as well as
changes which accelerated remittances of Sales taxes withheld. Reported ‘Other’ taxes increased by $128 million, net, over
the prior fiscal year due primarily to increases in the Department of Revenue’s Enhanced Revenue Collection program ($79
million), increased liquor taxes ($11 million), partially offset by decreases due to the end of the Tax Amnesty Program ($15
million). Also, ‘Other’ taxes increased by $23 million due to a year over year increase in Medicaid Managed Care Gross
Receipts Tax. Finally, ‘Other’ taxes increased by $30 million due to a current fiscal year reclassification.

Intergovernmental revenues increased by $1.7 billion, net, resulting primarily from non-ARRA Federal participation (51,376
million) as follows: a $1,264 million increase related to significantly higher year over year expenditures ($2,414 million higher)
for Department of Public Welfare medical assistance and other types of health and human services expenditures; a $337
million increase for Education programs; partially offset by $80 million decreases in such non-ARRA Federal participation for
both Department of Community and Economic Development and Department of Environmental Protection and a $65 million
decrease for Department of Military and Veterans Affairs. For ARRA Federal participation ($267 million): a $145 million
increase for Department of Public Welfare medical Assistance and other types of health and human services expenditures, an
$111 million increase for Education programs, a $35 million increase for the Department of Environmental Protection and a
$17 million increase for the Department of Military and Veterans Affairs; partially offset by a $27 million decrease for higher
education and a $14 million decrease for the Department of Community and Economic Development.

Charges for sales and services revenues increased by $453 million, net, from the prior fiscal year due primarily to:
Department of Public Welfare (5418 million increase, net) for first-year quality care assessments (5538 million), accrued
revenues (564 million), intergovernmental transfer ($30 million) and SPBP (S$12 million), partially offset by lower capitation
managed care assessments ($170 million), lower net nursing home assessments ($52 million) and lower net hospital
assessments ($4 million); $152 million related to prior year active employee healthcare expenditures; $42 million of recurring
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payroll-related revenues and $17 million of sales of state property. These net increases (5629 million) were partially offset by
lower revenue accruals as of June 30, 2011 ($166 million) and lower lease payments ($10 million) for the current fiscal year.

Combined licenses/fees/investment and other revenues decreased by $135 million, net, primarily due to: 1) prior fiscal year
one-time licenses/fees revenues for Table Game Authorization Fees, amounting to $165 million, partially offset by current
fiscal year net increases of $22 million; 2) an increase for investment income of $8 million: and 3) net decreases for ‘other’
revenues of $33 million. These net decreases (5168 million) were partially offset by amounts newly reported as part of the
General Fund of $34 million.

Total General Fund expenditures increased by 5.7 percent during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, by over $2.7 billion.

Reported expenditures for health and human services expenditures increased by $2,414 million, due primarily to higher
aggregate need for medical assistance, and income and/or cash grant assistance to individuals ($3,279 million). Of this
increase, expenditures for Food Stamps increased by $308 million. The $3,279 million increase was partially offset by a $889
million decrease in year over year accrued expenditures. Expenditures for the Pharmaceutical Assistance Contract for the
Elderly (PACE) program, which are newly reported as part of the General Fund, amounted to $243 million. Expenditures for
the administration of the unemployment compensation benefits program increased by $41 million. Labor and Industry
expenditures decreased by $209 million, primarily due to a current fiscal year reclassification from this category to capital
outlay.

Public education expenditures increased by $384 million, net, due primarily to new Federally-funded (non-ARRA) basic
education expenditures of $387 million, partially offset by a reduction in state-funded basic education expenditures of $140
million for a net year over year increase in basic education subsidies of $247 million; increased ARRA Federally-funded
expenditures of $129 million; increased public school employee retirement (employer share) of $57 million; and increased
expenditures for food and nutrition programs of $23 million. These increases (5456 million) were partially offset by a net
decrease in accrued expenditures (5109 million) as of June 30 and net expenditure increases in a variety of programs ($81
million). In addition, higher education subsidies decreased by nearly $44 million.

Capital outlay expenditures increased by $216 million, based on year over year capital asset acquisition increases at state
agencies as follows: Labor and Industry ($224 million), Pennsylvania Judiciary (526 million), Public Welfare (516 million) and
Revenue (510 million). These increases were partially offset by decreases in numerous other state agencies amounting to $60
million.

Direction and supportive services expenditures decreased by $196 million, on a net basis, due primarily to a $158 million
increase in expenditures for active employee healthcare in the prior fiscal year did not recur during the current fiscal year, a
separate current fiscal year expenditure decrease of $72 million for active employee healthcare. These two decreases were
partially offset a $25 million increase in expenditures related to annuitant healthcare during the current fiscal year.

Protection of persons and property expenditures increased by $36 million, on a net basis, primarily because of higher
expenditures for state agencies as follows: Corrections -- personnel ($50 million), contracted services (550 million) and other
net increases ($9 million); Environmental Protection — increases in grants and subsidies (548 million), and net increases in
personnel and other expenditures ($7 million), partially offset by lower accrued expenditures ($10 million); Emergency
Management—increases in grants and subsidies (531 million); Insurance -- net increases for contracted services ($10
million), increases for accrued expenditures ($10 million) and net increases for grants and subsidies ($6 million); amounts
newly reported as part of the General Fund ($13 million); Executive Offices — higher accrued expenditures ($27 million),
partially offset by decreases in grants and subsidies (514 million); and an other increase of $8 million. These net increases
(5245 million) were partially offset by expenditure decreases for the Department of Military and Veterans Affairs — lower
accrued expenditures (over $111 million), Labor and Industry — lower accrued expenditures (528 million) and lower grants
and subsidies (511 million); the Pennsylvania Judiciary (over $35 million); and Department of State —a net decrease in
accrued expenditures (518 million) and net decreases in grants and subsidies ($5 million).

Reported Transfers to the General Fund increased by $324 million primarily because of a $244 million increase in Transfers
from the Tobacco Settlement Fund, a $200 million increase from the State Lottery Fund to the PACE program (now financially
reported as part of the General Fund), a $6 million transfer from the Unemployment Compensation Fund, a S5 million
transfer from the Emergency Medical Services Operating Fund, and a $4 million transfer from the Small Business First Fund,
offset by a $102.4 million decrease from the MCARE Fund, a $10.1 million decrease from the Keystone Recreation, Park and
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Conservation Fund, a $9.7 million decrease from the Gaming Fund, a $17.7 million decrease from the Oil and Gas Lease Fund
and a net $4.9 million increase from several other funds during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

Reported Transfers from the General Fund decreased by $26 million, net, primarily because of a $46.4 million decrease to the
Community College Capital Fund, a $6 million decrease to the Educational Assistance Program Fund, a $2.8 million decrease
to the Vocational Rehabilitation Fund, a $5.2 million decrease to the Motor License Fund, partially offset by a $42.3 million
increase to debt service funds, and a net $7.9 million decrease to several other funds during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2011.

The overall increase in fund balance, over $1 billion during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, represents a significant year
over-year improvement, when compared to the prior fiscal year decrease in total fund balance of $230 million.

Motor License Fund

Condensed, comparative, financial statement information for the Motor License Fund is as follows (amounts in millions):

2011 2010 Increase (Decrease)
Description Amount Percent Amount Amount Percent
Cash and iNVesStMeNtS......ccoeeeeereeveeveeneenens S 1,830 79% S 2,253 S (423) -19%
Other assets 482 21% 526 (44) -8%
Total assets $ 2,312 100% S 2,779 S (467) -17%
Accounts payable.....cooeeerererennes v S 596 74% S 664 S (68) -10%
Securities lending obligations 68 8% 147 (79) -54%
Other liabilities.....cocvveececereeeeeese e 145 18% 307 (162) -53%
Total liabilities 809 100% 1,118 (309) -28%
Total fund balance 1,503 100% 1,661 (158) -10%
Total liabilities and fund balance........... $ 2,312 100% S 2,779 _$ (467) -17%
Tax revenues............ S 2,093 42% S 2,046 S 47 2%
Licenses and fees....... 899 18% 851 48 6%
Intergovernmental 1,791 36% 2,650 (859) -32%
Other revenues........ccceeveeereveeeeeeeseeeeeeenens 235 5% 241 (6) -2%
Total revenues 5,018 100% 5,788 (770) -13%
Direction and supportive services............ 51 1% 62 (112) -18%
Protection of persons and property.......... 669 13% 648 21 3%
Transportation.......eeeeveneceseveesecneeenes 1,840 36% 2,373 (533) -22%
Capital outlay...cceveeeceeeeeeeeese e 2,549 50% 2,503 46 2%
Other expenditures.......ccoeeeveeereeereerennennns 4 0% 4 - 0%
Total expenditures 5,113 100% 5,590 (477) -9%
Net transfers oUt......cccoeeeeveeeiceceeeeene (63) 100% (47) (16) 34%
Net change in fund balances................. $ (158) S 151 S (309)

Overall, total revenues decreased by $770 million during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011; this represents a 13 percent
decrease from the prior fiscal year. The most significant factor was an $859 million decrease in intergovernmental revenues,
where current fiscal year payments received from the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (PTC) under Act 44 of 2007
decreased by $300 million. Federal revenues (and Transportation expenditures) decreased by $191 million due to the current
fiscal year elimination of previously-reported (in prior fiscal years) Federal pass-through grant amounts to political
subdivisions. In addition, Federal revenues (and Transportation expenditures) decreased by the return of $176 million in
Federal revenues received on projects that did not result in construction and were subsequently converted to state-only
projects during the current fiscal year. Since the amount returned was paid from the Highway and Safety Improvements
appropriation, other construction projects were reduced by $108 million to maintain a positive appropriation balance. In
addition, Federal reimbursement for work performed under the Federal American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009
(ARRA) decreased by $30 million as the ARRA program is ending. Partially offsetting the intergovernmental revenues
decrease are increases in tax revenues and licenses and fees. The $47 million increase in tax revenues resulted from higher
gasoline and diesel fuel consumption. The $48 million increase in licenses and fees revenues reflects an increase that has not
occurred since the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. The increase is comprised of $32 million for vehicle registrations, $5
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million from the Apportioned Registration Program (related to certain large vehicles involved in interstate transportation)
and $6 million in special hauling permits and reimbursements attributable to Marcellus Shale activity during the current fiscal
year.

Overall, total expenditures decreased by $477 million during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011; this represents a 9 percent
decrease from the prior fiscal year. The combination of year over year changes in capital outlay (546 million increase) and
transportation ($533 million decrease) expenditures accounts for nearly all of the decrease in expenditures. Transportation
expenditures decreased due to the aforementioned elimination of $191 million of previously-reported (in prior fiscal years)
Federal pass-through grant amounts to political subdivisions and the aforementioned return of $176 million in Federal
revenues reimbursements. Other decreases in construction expenditures (5174 million) were the combined result of projects
finishing work under the ARRA program and of the financial limitation on continuing projects in the Highway Construction
appropriation, which was heavily affected by the return of Federal reimbursements. Also, lower current fiscal year
reimbursements from the Bridge Project Bonds in the Capital Facilities Fund decreased expenditures by $78 million as
projects slated for this money slowed down. These decreases were partially offset by a $133 million increase in the Expanded
Maintenance Highway and Bridge appropriation expenditures (which are funded by the payments from PTC under Act 44 of
2007) and a $63 million increase in maintenance expenditures funded by increased tax revenues received in the year fiscal
year. The increase of $21 million in protection of persons and property expenditures is a combination of an $11 million
increase in reimbursements to State Police General Government Operations in the General Fund for higher personnel costs
and a $9 million increase in costs for safety administration and reimbursements to other states under the Apportionment
Renewal Program. The decrease of $11 million in direction and supportive services expenditures was due to the discontinued
participation in the New York Clearinghouse for International Fuel Tax Agreement funding.

Net transfers to other Funds increased by $16 million due primarily to the increase in Capital Bridge Debt Service payments of
$10 million for the additional bridge bond issuance during the current fiscal year under the Capital Bridge Act of 2008-2009.
Also, a one-time transfer in of $5.1 million for interest earned on a short-term loan made to the General Fund was reported
during the prior fiscal year and did not recur during the current fiscal year.

The $423 million decrease in cash and investments is a result of several factors. First, amounts previously accumulating from
PTC payments received were spent ($319 million) Also, total expenditures exceeded total revenues (before transfers) during
the current fiscal year by $95 million; securities valuation slightly declined since June 30, 2010, by $19.7 million; and Other
assets decreased by $44 million because receivables for ARRA and other Federally-reimbursable projects decreased.
Accounts payable decreased by $68 million, primarily as a result of decreases in expenditures for ARRA-qualifying projects
(565 million). The $162 million decrease in other liabilities is mainly a result of $176 million being returned during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2011, to the Federal government for Federal reimbursements; a similar return for the prior fiscal year
was only $1 million. This was offset by $14 million in other liabilities, a combination of an increase in vehicle sales tax
collections due to the General Fund (Department of Revenue) and an increase in payables due to political subdivisions.
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Tobacco Settlement Fund

Condensed, comparative, financial statement information for the Tobacco Settlement Fund is as follows (amounts in

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
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millions):
2011 2010 Increase (Decrease)
Description Amount Percent Amount Amount Percent
Cash and investments.........ccceeverereenennen. S 572 73% S 1,026 §$ (454) -44%
Other @SSetS. ..o 213 27% 288 (75) -26%
Total assets 785 100% S 1,314 S (529) -40%
Accounts payable......ceeereeeeiennne S 152 45% §$ 239 S (87) -36%
Securities lending obligations................... 12 4% 30 (18) -60%
Other liabilities....ccoevevevececciceeeceeeenn 169 51% 218 (49) -22%
Total liabilities 333 100% 487 (154) -32%
Total fund balance 452 100% 827 (375) -45%
Total liabilities and fund balance........... 785 100% S 1314 S (529) -40%
Intergovernmental........ccocceevveereceeeernrenennne. S 170 28% S 192 (22) -11%
Investmentincome.... 29 5% 82 (53) 65%
Other revenues........ccceeveeeveveeereerereeeeeesenens 418 67% 434 (16) -4%
Total revenues 617 100% 708 (91) -13%
Protection of persons and property.......... 103 18% 157 (54) -34%
Health and human services 474 81% 549 (75) -14%
Economic development........cccceeveevrreernenenn 3 1% 3 - 0%
Total expenditures 580 100% 709 (129) -18%
Net transfers oUt.......cccceeeveeeiccccecieceiene 412 100% (199) (213) 107%
Net change in fund balances 375 S (200) _$ (175)

The year over year decrease in cash and investments of $454 million is due primarily to a statutory transfer of $121 million
from the Health Endowment Account for Long Term Hope within the Tobacco Settlement Fund to the General Fund, statutory
transfers totaling $265 million from the Tobacco Settlement Account within the Tobacco Settlement Fund and additional
transfers of $26 million to the General Fund, and a $18 million year over year decrease in the size of the Treasury
Department’s securities lending program. Other assets decreased by $75 million primarily due to 1) the discontinuation of
the Adult Basic health insurance program formerly financed by the Community Health Reinvestment program, decreasing
amounts receivable (and related unearned revenues) ($37 million decrease), 2) a decrease in investment sales proceeds
receivable of $12 million, and 3) changes in disputed payments from the tobacco product manufacturers participating in the
Master Settlement Agreement (MSA) resulting in a decrease of $7 million in the MSA receivable (and related unearned
revenues) as of June 30, 2011. The accounts payable year over year decrease of $87 million is largely due to a decrease in
accrued program expenditures related to a reduction in amounts appropriated during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.
Year over year securities lending obligations decreased by $18 million due to the decrease in the Treasury Department’s
securities lending program. Other liabilities decreased by $49 million due primarily to the aforementioned decreases in
unearned revenues of $37 million and $7 million as of June 30, 2011.

During the current fiscal year, intergovernmental revenues decreased $22 million due to a reduction in accrued Federal
revenues for the Medical Assistance Uncompensated Care program. Investment income decreased by $53 million due largely
to lower amounts invested in and earnings of the Health Endowment Account for Long Term Hope and the Tobacco
Settlement Account as of and during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. Other revenues decreased by $ 15 million largely
due to the reduction in revenues received from the MSA agreement. Year over year expenditures decreased by $128 million
primarily due to the aforementioned decrease in amounts appropriated during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.
Transfers out to the General Fund increased by $213 million due primarily to current fiscal year statutory transfers (Act 46)
requiring the Tobacco Settlement Fund to transfer $387 million to the General Fund in comparison to $167 million
transferred during the prior fiscal year based on Act 50 of 2009.
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Measurement focus and basis of accounting — proprietary funds

The enterprise funds and internal service funds (proprietary funds) are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this measurement focus, all assets and liabilities associated with the
operations of these fund types are included on the statement of net assets. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues
are recognized in the fiscal year earned, and expenses are recognized in the fiscal year incurred. Enterprise funds that report
loan, insurance and tuition payment programs report most revenues as operating revenues; non-operating revenues are
reported for other programs and include grant revenues and all investment income. Four enterprise funds are reported as
major funds and are discussed.

Unemployment Compensation Fund

Condensed, comparative, financial statement information for the Unemployment Compensation Fund is as follows (amounts

in millions):
2011 2010 Increase (Decrease)
Description Amount Percent Amount Amount Percent
Cash and investments......cccccovvveverereneenne S 1,178 59% S 849 S 329 39%
Unemployment assessments receivable.. 587 29% 548 39 7%
Other aSSetS .. 232 12% 323 (91) -28%
Total assets 1,997 100% 1,720 277 16%
Accounts payable 169 4% 180 (12) -6%
Other [iabilitieS...ccieeeeeeceeeececeeceeeenee, 3.848 96% 3.023 825 27%
Total liabilities 4,017 100% 3,203 814 25%
Total net assets S  (2,020) 100% S (1,483) _$ (537) 36%
Sales and Services.....cueveveeneevineieneeenes S 2.569 100% $ 2.002 $ 567 28%
Other reVENUES......ccveeeeeeeececececeectececreaens 10 0% 1 9 900%
Total operating revenues.........cocerceveunnes 2,579 100% 2,003 576 29%
Costof sales and services.......cccoceeeveveenenee 7.461 100% 8.741 (1.280) -15%
Total operating eXpenses........cocecveesesnens 7,461 100% 8,741 (1,280) -15%
Operating loss (4,882) (6,738) 1,856 -28%
Nonoperating revenues.........c.cceeeseseenns 4,351 4,917 (566) -12%
Loss before transfers (531) (1,821) 1,290 -71%
Transfers (6) (4) (2) 50%
Decrease in net assets........oeeeresncsinnes 537 $ (1,825) _$ 1,288

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, total assets increased by $277 million, primarily due to a $329 million increase in
funds available in the Pennsylvania Unemployment Compensation Trust Fund (UC Trust Fund). Amounts due from employers
increased by $39 million and several other amounts receivable decreased by a net amount of $91 million as of June 30, 2011.
The advance from the Federal government increased by $826 million during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

Year over year reported Charges for Sales and Services increased by $567 million primarily as revenues from taxes increased
by $513 million. The January 1, 2010 employer/employee rate increases are reported for the full fiscal year ended June 30,
2011. (The employee withholding tax rate increased on January 1, 2010, to 0.08 percent, from 0.06 percent. Also, the
additional contributions factor (part of the employer contribution tax rate) increased as well on January 1, 2010, to 0.65
percent, from 0.25 percent (as of January 2009)). Year over year reported Nonoperating Revenues, primarily Federal funding,
decreased by $566 million, primarily as Federal Additional UC (additional 25 dollars in weekly benefits) ended in December,
2010 ($808 million decrease) and Extended UC Federal funding decreased by $133 million, partially offset by increases in
Federal funding for Extended Benefits (5283 million) during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 and a net increase in accrued
Federal revenues ($80 million) as of June 30, 2011.

Year over year reported Cost of Sales and Services expenses decreased by $1,280 million, as UC benefits (Commonwealth-
financed) decreased by $777 million, ARRA Federal Additional UC benefits decreased by $405 million, Extended UC
(Federally-funded) decreased by $218 million and a combination of other benefits decreased by $250 million, partially offset
as ARRA Extended Benefits increased by $142 million, Extended benefits (combination of Commonwealth and Federally-
funded) increased by $137 million, ARRA Extended UC benefits increased by $91 million.
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State Workers’ Insurance Fund (December 31, 2010)

Condensed, comparative, financial statement information for the State Workers’ Insurance Fund (SWIF) is as follows
(amounts in millions):

2010 2009 Increase (Decrease)
Description Amount Percent Amount Amount Percent
Cash and short-term investments.............. S 287 16% S 261 S 26 10%
Long-term investments.... 80% 1,500 (60) -4%
Other aSSetS....oonneierirse e 4% 75 (6) -8%
Total assets 100% 1,836 (40) -2%
Securities lending obligations................... 193 11% 174 19 11%
Unearned revenUE.........cccceveeveeeeeeerveeeerennens 68 4% 80 (12) -15%
Insurance loss liability.....ccoevirereeeennen. 1,510 82% 1,554 (44) -3%
Other liabilities....ccoveeceeereceeeeeeceee 60 3% 61 (1) -2%
Total liabilities 1,831 100% 1,869 (38) -2%
Net assets S (35) 100% _S (33) _$ (2) -6%
Sales and ServiCeS... e S 174 106% S 223 S (49) -22%
Provision for uncollectible accounts....... (10) -6% (19) 9 47%
Total operating revenues.........cccocerenneee 164 100% 205 (41) -20%
Costof sales and services........cccceeereevennnee. 285 100% 314 (29) -9%
Total operating expenses..........ceceeeeusenes 285 100% 314 (29) -9%
Operating loss 121 (109) (12) 11%
Investment income.......cccoeevevcevceeceeseeeeenee, 131 91 40 44%
(Investment expense).... (12) (5) (7) 140%
Net nonoperating revenue...... 119 86 33 38%
Decrease in net assets.....cccceveererreeerenne S (2) S (23) _$ 21

During calendar year 2010, reported year over year insurance premium revenues (sales and services) decreased from $223
million to $174 million, as private insurance carriers continue to increase their share of the workers compensation market
During 2010 new applications decreased by 8 percent from 2009 (6,885 vs. 7,523) and renewal applications decreased 12
percent (22,927 vs. 25,947). Applications for SWIF coverage are expected to continue to decrease. Cash and short-term
investments increased by 10 percent as the Treasury Department’s securities lending program similarly increased between
2009 and 2010. Long-term investments decreased by $60 million as a result of investment sales in excess of investment
purchases to finance operations. Other assets include decreases in receivables that resulted from the decline in revenues.
During 2010, SWIF continued to recognize significant reductions in insurance loss liability/reserves as a result of the
Compromise and Release Initiative, which enabled SWIF to identify claims that meet requirements for settlement. The
settled claims decreased from 1,304 in 2009 to 1,129 in 2010. The loss reserves associated with these settled claims helped
reduce the insurance loss liability by $44 million in 2010 and $81 million in 2009. Net nonoperating revenue increased by $33
million primarily due to increases in both investment income earned during 2010 and investment valuations as of December
31, 2010.
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State Lottery Fund

Condensed, comparative, financial statement information for the State Lottery Fund is as follows (amounts in millions):

2011 2010 Increase (Decrease)
Description Amount Percent Amount Amount Percent
Cash and short-term investments....... v S 251 81% S 225 S 26 12%
Long-term investments.........c.cccueueuene 12 4% 3 9 300%
Other assSetS ..o 48 15% 42 6 14%
Total assets 311 100% 270 41 15%
Accounts payable.....veeeienecneceneee. 398 93% 405 (7) -2%
Securities lending obligations................... 3 1% 5 (2) -40%
Other liabilitieS...cccoivevereiereeseereeeeene 28 6% 26 2 8%
Total liabilities 429 100% 436 (7) -2%
Net assets 118 100% _$ (166) _S$ 48 29%
Sales and ServiCes...niineriereeseennen S 3,207 100% S 3,053 S 154 5%
Total operating revenues........cceceeeeennnes 3,207 100% 3,053 154 5%
Costof sales and Services........ccoceveveeruenene 3,037 96% 2,960 77 3%
Other EXPeNSES.....ceeeerereriereeeerireeseesereenens 119 4% 119 - 0%
Total operating expenses........cceceeeeennnes 3,156 100% 3,079 77 3%
Operating income (10SS).....cccceeererernenens 51 (26) 77 296%
Nonoperating revenues........ccoeeesnssnsanes 119 115 4 3%
Income before transfers.......ccceceeevuerecnne 170 89 81 91%
Transfers in 166 177 (11) -6%
Transfers out.... 288 (287) (1) 0%
Transfers, net 122 (110) (12) -11%
Increase (decrease) in net assets.......... $ 48 S (21) _$ 69

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the net year over year increase in overall gross sales ($154 million) was primarily
attributable to increased Instant Game sales of (5173 million) and increased certain online sales (5138 million). The increases
in online sales were the result of Mega Millions/Megaplier drawings ($85 million) and Match 6 drawings ($53 million). The
increase in sales was a result of the Lottery increasing the retailer network, increasing the amount and size of the sales
equipment within retailers. Those sales increases (5311 million) were partially offset by decreases in online sales of
Powerball/Powerplay drawings (599 million) because of smaller jackpots caused by players winning Powerball jackpots more
frequently and the retirement of Super 7 drawings (542 million) during June 2010.

The $9 million increase in long-term Investments was the result of purchasing annuities from several insurance companies in
1999 and 2000 and subsequently receiving stocks when the insurance companies converted from a mutual form of ownership
to a stock insurance corporation.

Reported current fiscal year cost of sales expenses include: Lottery prize payments of $1,915 million, program benefits for
older Pennsylvanians of $915 million and Lottery administration expenses of $207 million. Reported prior fiscal year cost of
sales expenses include: Lottery prize payments of $1,836 million, program benefits of $903 million and Lottery
administration expenses of $221 million. Year over year changes in expenses are: prize payments increased by $79 million,
program benefits increased by $12 million and administration expenses decreased by $14 million.

Reported transfers to the State Lottery Fund decreased by $11 million because of decreased transfers from the Gaming Fund.
Reported transfers from the State Lottery Fund increased by $1 million as transfers to the Public Transportation Trust Fund
increased ($88 million during the current fiscal year vs. $87 million during the prior fiscal year) and transfers to the
Pharmaceutical Assistance Contract for the Elderly (PACE) program remained the same year over year. ($200 million in both
the current and prior fiscal years).

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 36 Governor's Office of the Budget
WWW.pa.gov www.budget.state.pa.us



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS June 30, 2011

Tuition Payment Fund

Condensed, comparative, financial statement information for the Tuition Payment Fund is as follows (amounts in millions):

2011 2010 Increase (Decrease)
Description Amount Percent Amount Amount Percent
Cash and short-term investments.............. S 294 19% S 323 S (29) -9%
Long-term investments 1,224 80% 1,034 190 18%
Other assetS ..o 15 1% 4 11 275%
Total assets 1,533 100% 1,361 172 13%
Securities lending obligations................... 136 8% 184 (48) -26%
Tuition benefits payable......cccoeevvievenrennee. 1,401 90% 1,330 71 5%
Other liabilitieS...ccoceviveveneereeseereeceene 27 2% 6 21 350%
Total liabilities 1,564 100% 1,520 44 3%
Net assets S (31) 100% S (159) S 128 81%
Sales and services.....ccouevevenen. 165 100% S 157 S 8 5%
Total operating revenues 165 100% 157 8 5%
Costof sales and services........cccceeevereeuenee 252 100% 232 20 9%
Total operating expenses.........cocereeveanens 252 100% 232 20 9%
Operating loss (87) (75) (12) 16%
Nonoperating revenues 215 140 75 54%
Increase in net assets......ccceeeeererncsncnnnns 128 S 65 $ 63

Total operating revenues of the PA 529 Guaranteed Savings Plan (GSP) during the fiscal year ended 2011 were $7.8 million
more than the total operating revenues during the prior fiscal year. Greater GSP enrollment produced increases in program
fees of $1.9 million and increased tuition credit purchases of $5.8 million accounted for the year over year change in
operating revenues.

The total operating expenses of the PA 529 GSP during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 were $20 million more than the
total operating expenses during the prior fiscal year due to an increase in Tuition Benefits expense as more participants used
accounts during the current fiscal year. Tuition benefit expense increased to $235.9 million during the current fiscal year from
$214.8 million during the prior fiscal year. Withdrawals to pay for higher education expenses increased to $164.9 million
(qualified withdrawals) during the current fiscal year from $153.6 million during the prior fiscal year as 15,120 beneficiaries
used 339,647 credits during the current fiscal year compared to 14,462 beneficiaries using 332,989 credits during the prior
fiscal year.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 nonoperating revenues were $214.9 million, which were $74.9 million more than
the prior fiscal year. This increase is primarily attributable to a year over year increase in investment income of $77.7 million.
The increase in investment income resulted from improved economic conditions and the allocation changes of investments
over the prior fiscal year.

Capital asset activity during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011

Throughout the fiscal year, Commonwealth agencies acquire or construct capital assets. In governmental fund financial
statements, expenditures for capital assets are typically reported as capital outlay. Funding for a significant portion of capital
asset acquisition is provided by proceeds of general obligation bonds issued; such proceeds are generally accounted for in the
capital projects funds in the governmental fund financial statements as an other financing source. In the government-wide
statements, bond proceeds are reported as additions to long-term bond liabilities and completed project expenditures and
construction in progress at fiscal year-end are reported as part of general capital assets. Construction in progress for
Department of General Services (public works) and Department of Transportation (highway and bridge) projects at June 30,
2011 amounted to $0.8 and $2.8 billion, respectively. Authorized but unissued general obligation bonds at June 30, 2011
totaled $87.2 billion.

General capital assets of the Commonwealth are those used in the performance of specific governmental functions during
more than one fiscal year. Capital assets of the proprietary funds are reported in both proprietary fund financial statements
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and in government-wide financial statements. Fiduciary fund capital assets are reported in fiduciary fund financial
statements; fiduciary funds are not included in government-wide statements. General capital assets as of June 30, 2011
amounted to $30.3 billion at actual or estimated historical cost, net of accumulated depreciation of $17.2 billion. In the
government-wide statements, depreciation expense for all capital assets is reported to recognize the cost of “using up”
capital assets over their estimated useful lives. This treatment differs from reporting capital outlay as ‘current expenditures’
by governmental fund types. Highway and bridge infrastructure assets are typically funded with Motor License Fund taxes,
license and registration fees and Federal revenues. The Motor License Fund reports transportation and capital outlay
expenditures in its financial statements; a portion of such expenditures is reported as additions to capital assets in
government-wide financial statements. Depreciation of highway and bridge infrastructure assets is not related to the quality
or relative value of these assets; rather, it is a specific accounting treatment to recognize the cost of “using up” the assets
over long periods of time (25 years for highways and 50 years for bridges.) Depreciation is an allocation of an asset’s cost
over its estimated useful life and is reported in the government-wide financial statements. Note E to the financial statements
provides more information on capital asset activities during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

Long-term debt activity during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011

The constitution of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania permits the incurrence of debt, without approval of the electorate,
for capital projects specifically authorized in a capital budget. Capital project debt outstanding cannot exceed one and three
quarters (1.75) times the average of the annual tax revenues deposited in all funds during the previous five fiscal years. The
certified constitutional debt limit at August 31, 2011 was $58.16 billion. Outstanding capital project debt at August 31,
2011 amounted to $8.52 billion, for a remaining legal debt margin of $49.64 billion. In addition to constitutionally authorized
capital project debt, the Commonwealth may incur debt for electorate-approved programs, such as economic revitalization,
land and water development, water facilities restoration, and certain environmental initiatives; and for special purposes
approved by the General Assembly, such as disaster relief.

Total general obligation bond indebtedness outstanding at June 30, 2011 was $10.443 billion. Total debt service fund
transfers paid from General Fund and Motor License Fund appropriations to make principal and interest payments to
bondholders during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 amounted to $974.9 million and $59.3 million, respectively. The table
that follows shows total outstanding long-term indebtedness for general obligation bonds at the end of the eight most recent
fiscal years (expressed in billions).

Outstanding

At June 30 Bond Indebtedness
2004 S 7.225
2005 7.151
2006 7.658
2007 8.246
2008 8.632
2009 9.150
2010 10.499
2011 10.443

Note K to the financial statements provides more specific details on long-term debt balances and activity during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2011.

Debt administration — fiscal year ending June 30, 2012

During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012, the Office of the Budget currently plans general obligation bond issuances,
excluding refundings, amounting to $1,214 million, an increase of $564 million when compared to actual bond issuances of
$650 million, which did not include any refunding issuances, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. This plan reflects the
need to make continued investments in the Commonwealth’s capital infrastructure, local capital projects and mass
transportation infrastructure. Additionally, a significant portion of the projected issuances for the 2012 fiscal yearis
attributable to the construction of three new prisons, each containing 2,000 plus beds, as well as the construction of the new
Family Court Building in Philadelphia. Debt principal retirements of $702.2 million are currently planned for the fiscal year
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ending June 30, 2012. As disclosed in Note R to the financial statements, the Commonwealth issued $811.6 million of general
obligation bonds during October 2011.

The Commonwealth continues to evaluate refunding opportunities for its outstanding bonds to reduce interest costs. The
aforementioned October 2011 bond issuance refunded $161.6 million of outstanding bonds and will produce $20.2 million of
interest savings over the remaining life of those bonds. As market conditions provide additional opportunities, the
Commonwealth may pursue additional refundings.

In addition to general obligation bonds, the Commonwealth may issue tax anticipation notes to meet operating cash needs
during certain months of the fiscal year. Tax anticipation notes may be issued only for the General Fund and the Motor
License Fund. They may not exceed 20 percent of the funds’ estimated revenues for the fiscal year and must mature during
the fiscal year in which they were issued. Cash shortages may occur during the fiscal year because tax receipts, unlike cash
disbursements, are concentrated in the last four months of the fiscal year. The Commonwealth has not issued any such notes
through November 2011 and does not intend to issue any such notes for the General Fund during the fiscal year ending June
30, 2012.

In October 2011, in connection with the Commonwealth’s issuance of its First Series of 2011 and First Refunding Series of
2011 General Obligation Bonds, Moody’s Investors Service affirmed the Commonwealth’s bond rating of Aal with a
‘negative’ outlook. Similarly, Fitch Ratings affirmed the Commonwealth’s bond rating of AA+ with a ‘negative’ outlook and
Standard and Poors also affirmed the Commonwealth’s bond rating of AA with a ‘stable’ outlook. There were no debt
limitations, restrictions or commitments during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 that may affect the Commonwealth’s
plans during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012.
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American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA)

In February 2009, the Federal American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA) was passed and signed into law.
Among other things, the ARRA increased Federal participation in specific, targeted programs to increase economic growth
and create new jobs. Through June 30, 2011, cumulatively, the ARRA, also known as the ‘Recovery Act’ or ‘Federal Stimulus’,
financed over $15.4 billion of qualifying Commonwealth program costs since the enactment date of February 17, 2009. Of the
$7.1 billion in ARRA funding during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, a variety of General Fund programs participated in
ARRA funding ($3.9 billion), the Unemployment Compensation Fund participated in over $2.6 billion of ARRA funding, the
Motor License Fund participated in $442 million and four other individual funds participated in $19.6 million in ARRA funding
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. Also, the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority, included in the
Commonwealth’s financial reporting entity as a legally-separate, discretely presented component unit, participated in $104
million of ARRA funding during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. ARRA funding during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2010
and 2009, respectively, amounted to $6.9 billion and $1.3 billion.

General Fund fiscal year 2011-2012 budget

The enacted 2011-2012 General Fund budget is $27.1 billion, an increase of $1.89 billion or 7.5 percent. However, after
accounting for the nearly $3.1 billion in non-recurring 2010-2011 ARRA State Fiscal Stabilization and Enhanced Medical
Assistance Percentage funds, the General Fund budget is decreased from $28.3 billion to $27.1 billion, a reduction of $1.17
billion or 4.1 percent. The 2011-2012 budget does not raise taxes. The 2011-2012 budget restarts the multi-year phase-out of
the Capital Stock and Franchise Tax which was suspended in 2009-2010, providing more than $70 million in tax relief. This
phase-out continues until the tax is eliminated in 2014. The 2011-2012 budget continues the redirection to the General Fund
of $44 million in moving violation surcharges authorized under the Catastrophic Loss Benefits Fund which had been deposited
in the Medical Care Availability Reduction of Error Fund. This redirection also occurred in 2009-2010 and 2010-2011.

The 2011-2012 General Fund budget eliminates 66 appropriation line items cutting $822 million in annual spending and
reducing funding for an additional 226 appropriations. Administrative spending is reduced by 4 percent and about 1,000
positions are eliminated. In addition, the Basic Education Funding subsidy is reset to nearly the 2008-2009 level, the last fiscal
year before federal stimulus funds were available. This results in an average annual increase of 3 percent in Basic Education
funding over the last 10 fiscal years. Although there are many reductions in the enacted 2011-2012 budget, total funding
increases for the Department of Corrections and the Board of Probation and Parole and provides funding to maintain State
Police trooper strength on highways and in the community.

General Fund fiscal year 2011-2012 revenue collections

During the four months ended October 31, 2011 General Fund revenue collections amounted to $7.655 billion, which were
$282 million, or 3.6 percent, below the Official Revenue Estimate. Fiscal year to date revenue collections were $84 million
more than prior fiscal year revenues collected during the same period ($7.571 billion), an increase of 1.1 percent. The
Pennsylvania Revenue Department’s October 2011 Monthly Revenue Report is publicly available, on a monthly basis, at:
http://www.portal.state.pa.us/portal/server.pt/community/monthly revenue reports

Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions

In June 2011 the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued a proposed accounting and financial reporting
standard for pensions in an Exposure Draft entitled “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — an amendment of
GASB Statement No. 27 “.

In its current form as an Exposure Draft, the GASB’s proposal would require pension obligation reporting on the
commonwealth’s financial statements and result in the recording of the employer’s proportionate share of any unfunded
pension obligations and/or assets on the Commonwealth’s entity-wide, Statement of Net Assets. Additionally, the proposal
in its current form would result in the Commonwealth recognizing pension expense based on specific actuarial parameters.
As currently presented, the Exposure Draft would impact the Commonwealth’s financial reporting no sooner than the Fiscal
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Year ending June 30, 2014. The Commonwealth plans to continue providing feedback to GASB, as requested, and will analyze
the potential financial reporting impact on the Commonwealth entity.

As described in Note | of the accompanying basic financial statements of the Commonwealth, Pennsylvania’s two largest
public employee pension plans are the State Employees Retirement System (SERS) and the Public School Employees
Retirement System (PSERS). Note | in this report includes a description of the current plan and funding policy for each of the
retirement plans along with the actual contribution rates for the past three years.

Both the SERS and the PSERS include a considerable amount of actuarial data within the Actuarial Sections of their
Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports (CAFR). For further information, see the following reports:

The SERS CAFR is available at http://www.sers.state.pa.us/publications/general/cafr.htm.
The PSERS CAFR is available at http://www.psers.state.pa.us/publications/general/cafr.htm.

Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission Lease and Funding Agreement Obligations

As further described in Note N to the Basic Financial Statements, the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (PTC), a discretely
presented component unit, is required to remit specified amounts to the PA Department of Transportation (DOT) based on
the terms of a 2007 Lease and Funding Agreement between the PTC and certain Commonwealth state agencies, including
DOT. The PTC has remitted all indicated payments to DOT; such payments are deposited in the Motor License Fund and the
Public Transportation Trust Fund. Through June 30, 2011, the PTC has remitted payments amounting to $1.65 billion to the
Motor License Fund and has remitted payments amounting to $1.30 billion to the Public Transportation Trust Fund, for total
payments of $2.95 billion from the PTC to the Commonwealth through June 30, 2011. Scheduled annual PTC payments to
DOT amount to $450 million through 2057, when the Lease and Funding Agreement terminates.

In its separately-issued and publicly-available financial statements as of and for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2011, the PTC’s
Management’s Discussion and Analysis provides that it has made all indicated Lease and Funding Agreement payments and
plans to continue to do so for the foreseeable future. The PTC has financed its payments to date through a combination of
increased toll rates and increased borrowing, in accordance with the Lease and Funding Agreement. The PTC’s Note 6 to its
financial statements (‘Debt’) provides extensive disclosure of its borrowings, including borrowings made to finance PTC
remittances to DOT. The PTC’s audited financial statements as of May 31, 2011 are available within the PTC Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report at: http://www.paturnpike.com/geninfo/comprehensivereport.aspx. The PTC uses May 31 as its
fiscal year end.

Management’s discussion and analysis is intended to enhance the reader’s understanding of the basic financial statements,
which immediately follow. This supplementary information should be read in conjunction with the government-wide
financial statements, the fund financial statements and the notes to financial statements.
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Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2011

(Amounts in thousands)

Primary Government

ASSETS
Current assets:
CaSH—NOTE D...covueiiiiieeite et e e e e eane
Cash with fiscal agents
Temporary investments—NOte D........cooevviiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeiee e,
Receivables (net):
TAXES—NOLE G et
Unemployment assessments....
ACCOUNTS....ccuniieiiiieiieeeanee,

Due from pension trust funds—Note H...........ccccoooiiiiiiiiiiiieiineee.
Due from primary government—Note H...........cccooeviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinees
Due from component units—Note H
Due from Federal government..........ccooeuueiieiiineeiiiieeeeiiee e
Due from political SUDIVISIONS............veiiiiiiiiiiiieeeie e
Due from other governments
101V 01 (o] o PPN
Prepaid and deferred eXpenSES........c..uveviiiieeiiiiieeiiieeeeiie e
Other assets........cceeveevveuiiineeens

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Long-term investments—NOte D..........ccccoevvieeiiiiieeiiiiiieeeeeeeeiees
Receivables (net):
TAXES—NOLE Gt
Interest 0N NOtes and 10ANS..........coveviiuiiiieee e
LOANS—NOLE G..oeveeeeiiee ettt
Due from component units—Note H............cccooeviieeiiiiieiiiiiieeeeis
Non-depreciable capital assets—Note E:

CONSLIUCLION IN PrOGIESS...cvuuiiitieeeeeiieeeeeee e e e e e e e e e e et e e e eeens
Depreciable or amortizable capital assets—Note E:
Land imProVEMENTES. ........iiiiiiieeiie et e e e
Buildings and building improvements.
Machinery and equipment..
Turnpike infrastructure......
Highway infrastructure...
Bridge infrastructure....
Waterway infrastructure. .
INFrastruCtUre-0tNer. ... ...
Library DOOKS. .......ooeiiiiei e
Other capital assets
Intangible assets
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization.......................
Net depreciable or amortizable capital assets
(@] 43 LT Tl £ SRR
Total NON-CUITENT ASSETS.......ceeeiiiieieieeee e e eeeees

TOTAL ASSETS ..ottt

- The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. -

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
WWW.pa.gov

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units

$ 155,305 $ 24,507 $ 179,812 $ 2,185,418
- 1,171,682 1,171,682 -

9,136,620 1,314,156 10,450,776 2,472,605
1,917,160 - 1,917,160 -

- 587,172 587,172 -

956,305 143,499 1,099,804 200,223
6,530 14,407 20,937 8,914

- 22,807 22,807 121,581

7,117 52,910 60,027 1,378,219

427 - 427 953

5,353 10,877 16,230 -
111,554 - 111,554 61,162
7,898 10 7,908 -

_ - - 8,046

10,472 801 11,273 62
2,379,568 88,580 2,468,148 37,684
16,069 15,529 31,598 -

615 30,719 31,334 -
104,694 265,864 370,558 36,106

- 2,336 2,336 16,840

9,019 21,362 30,381 183,833
14,824,706 3,767,218 18,591,924 6,711,646
803,008 2,676,351 3,479,359 2,454,641
1,205,778 - 1,205,778 -

- - - 16,433

74,524 239,438 313,962 14,996,654
74,663 - 74,663 -
2,513,630 323 2,513,953 380,211
3,537,141 2,886 3,540,027 1,444,762
657,335 - 657,335 364,340
6,524,800 48,096 6,572,896 4,415,452
1,026,423 141,233 1,167,656 1,187,192

- - - 6,041,749
22,801,439 - 22,801,439 -
10,137,372 - 10,137,372 -
23,158 - 23,158 -
179,184 - 179,184 -

- - - 84,330

- - - 337

113,109 12,688 125,797 34,791
(17,231,871) (121,161) (17,353,032) (5,832,776)
24,230,949 80,856 24,311,805 6,295,415
- - - 603,642
32,439,693 2,999,854 35,439,547 26,191,758
$ 47,264,399 $ 6,767,072 $ 54,031,471 $ 32,903,404
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Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2011

(Amounts in thousands)

Primary Government

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.............cocuvieiiiiiiieiiiiineennnn,
Investment purchases payable..........cccooieiiiiiieiiiiiieec e,
Tax refunds payable................
Tuition benefits payable—Note F.
Securities lending obligations......
Internal balances—NOte H..........cooiiiiiiiiiiieiii e
Due to pension trust funds—Note H...........cociiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e,
Due to primary government—Note H
Due to component units—Note H...
Due to political subdivisions........
Due to other gOVEINMENTS........cuvuuiiiee et
INterest PaYabIe. ... .coouu e
Unearned revenue.......
Notes payable—Note J.
General obligation bonds payable—Note K. .
Bonds payable—Note K............oeiiiiiiiiiiiieeiiie e
Revenue bonds payable—Note K.........coooiviiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeiie e
Capital lease/installment purchase obligations—Note K.
Self insurance liabilities—NoOte M..........coviiiiiiiiiiiii e
Compensated absence liability—Notes F, K.........cooovviiiiiiiiiiiieiiinnn,
Insurance 10ss liability-Note F..........coovviiiiiiiiiiieeiiii e,
Other financing obligations—Note J...........cooeiviiiiiiiiiiiieie e
Other postemployment benefit obligations—Note J.
Pollution remediation obligations—Note K............cccoeeeiiiiieiiinneeennnn,
Other liabilitieS-NOE K........ccciiiiiiiiiiiiiee e

Total current abilitieS. .........coviiiiiriii e

Noncurrent liabilities:
Tuition benefits payable—Note F............coeiiiiiieiiiiiieeeiceeeee e,
Due to primary government—Note H...........ccoeveeiiiiiieiiiiiieeeiieeeee,
UNEANEd FEVENUE.......ceiiiieeieieee it e e e e e e e e e eeeeeas
Student loan auction rate security bonds payable—Note J...............
Insurance loss liability—Note F..........cccoooeiviiiiiiiiieeiiineeee,
Notes payable—Note J..........ccoeeveeviiinnnes
General obligation bonds payable—Note K. .
Bonds payable—Note K...........oeiiiiiiiiiiiiieiii e
Revenue bonds payable—Note K.........coooiuiviiiiiiiiiiiineeciie e
Capital lease/installment purchase obligations—Note K.
Other financing obligations—Note J..............cccvuveeeee.
Compensated absence liability—Note F, K..
Self insurance liabilities—Note M..........cooiiiiiiiiiiiii s
Other postemployment benefit obligations—Note I.........................
Pollution remediation obligations—Note K
Other liabilitiesS—NOte K........uuuiiiiiiieiiii e
Total non-current liabilities. ..........coouuuiiiiiriii e

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS—Note C
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt...................ccocoennnneen
Restricted for:
General government OPerations...........oceevevueererueeeeeiieeeeriieeeennnnns
Health-related programs
Transportation................ .
Capital PrOJECES. ... eeiri i eeeie e e e e
(D1 o] 1= Y o PR
Unemployment/worker's compensation.... .
Environmental and conservation programs...........cceeeeevueevennneeennns
Economic development............coeeivueeiiiiie e e
Gaming licensing/regulation..............cccceeeiiiiieeiiieeec e,
Correctional industries and procurement

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
WWW.pa.gov

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units

$ 5,474,940 $ 841,872 6,316,812 $ 544,069
24,196 23,407 47,603 -
624,166 - 624,166 -

- 189,878 189,878 -

183,811 346,231 530,042 26,134
(108,644) 108,989 345 -
28,450 655 29,105 -

- - - 11,204

10,636 - 10,636 62
1,276,534 8,113 1,284,647 2,268
30,168 3,849,773 3,879,941 17
172,367 - 172,367 221,936
116,845 78,217 195,062 96,420

- - - 220,988

702,145 - 702,145 -

- - - 41,260

- - - 562,096

- - - 3,441

147,222 5,021 152,243 4,900
160,997 7,357 168,354 12,166

- 253,964 253,964 -

- - - 1,965

- - - 52,762

15,905 - 15,905 -
161,219 41,186 202,405 325,212
9,020,957 5,754,663 14,775,620 2,126,900
- 1,211,044 1,211,044 -

- - - 74,663

- - - 5,075

- - - 6,052,338

- 1,256,161 1,256,161 -

- - - 2,790,551
9,741,045 - 9,741,045 -
- - - 844,030

- - - 14,245,304

26,907 - 26,907 60,727
67,500 - 67,500 125,717
588,111 27,775 615,886 114,021
825,682 34,074 859,756 39,026
1,336,829 47,782 1,384,611 744,889
219,926 - 219,926 -
1,184,142 - 1,184,142 896,353
13,990,142 2,576,836 16,566,978 25,992,694
23,011,099 8,331,499 31,342,598 28,119,594
25,352,588 84,065 25,436,653 2,058,824
672,834 - 672,834 -
61,785 2,323 64,108 5,663
1,000,129 118,938 1,119,067 -
- - - 2,959,267

- - - 442,631

367,006 - 367,006 -
331,102 - 331,102 -

- 304,767 304,767 62,597

720,578 - 720,578 -
62,868 - 62,868 -
51,926 144,834 196,760 -

- - - 802,106

40,078 94,985 135,063 652,528
(4,407,594) (2,314,339) (6,721,933) (2,199,806)
$ 24,253,300 $  (1,564,427) 22,688,873 $ 4,783,810
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Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

(Amounts in thousands) Net (Expense) Revenue and
Program Revenues Changes in Net Assets
Charges for Operating Capital Primary Government
Sales and Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type Component
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Units
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Primary government:
Governmental activities:

Direction and SUPPOrtive SErVICES.........ccvvvveeeeeeeeeeeeeennn. $ 2,052,743 $ 252,572 $ 70,870 $ - $ (1,729,301) $ - $ (1,729,301) $ -
Protection of persons and property..........cccceeeeeeevueeeeenn. 5,384,710 1,034,481 1,219,493 100,787 (3,029,949) - (3,029,949) -
Public education......................... . 14,864,360 14,928 3,373,079 - (11,476,353) - (11,476,353) -
Health and human services 30,388,529 1,597,599 18,448,325 4,609 (10,337,996) - (10,337,996) -
Economic development.........cccoveviieieiiineeeiiiiee e 1,598,596 11,812 698,642 - (888,142) - (888,142) -
Transportation . 4,465,639 976,705 2,202,896 115,799 (1,170,239) - (1,170,239) -
Recreation and cultural enrichment.............ccccoevevvneennn.. 491,082 181,373 57,807 - (251,902) - (251,902) -
INEEIEST...en e 440,428 - - - (440,428) - (440,428) -
Total governmental activities............ccceeevvvueiinennn, 59,686,087 4,069,470 26,071,112 221,195 (29,324,310) - (29,324,310) -
Business-type activities:
StAte [OtEIY..eeeiieieeeeeee et e e 3,155,903 3,206,933 118,922 - - 169,952 169,952 -
State workers' insurance. . 306,318 173,571 131,159 - - (1,588) (1,588) -
TUItION PAYMENT.....iieieeeee e 259,069 165,157 221,969 - - 128,057 128,057 -
Unemployment compensation..............c.ueeeeeeviieeeeevineeens 7,460,707 2,579,252 4,350,769 - - (530,686) (530,686) -
Liquor control..........ccceeveeeeeennnnnne 1,504,517 1,586,394 259 - - 82,136 82,136 -
Economic development and other... . 23,635 24,449 35,398 - - 36,212 36,212 -
Total business-type activities..............cccocevveevnnnees 12,710,149 7,735,756 4,858,476 - - (115,917) (115,917) -
Total primary governmeNt..........ccccuvevrerreeeiereeeeeeeeessenennens $ 72,396,236 $ 11,805,226 $ 30,929,588 $ 221,195 (29,324,310) (115,917) (29,440,227) -
Component units:

Total ComMPONENt UNIS.......cceeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee e e e e e e $ 5,793,893 $ 2,974,617 $ 2,362,999 $ 364,990 - - - (91,287)

General revenues:

Taxes:

Personal iINCOME.........oeevuieireiiieeeieeeeeeeee e eaans 9,771,269 - 9,771,269 -
SAlES AN USE.....cveeiieiieiii e e 8,610,603 - 8,610,603 -
Corporation...........eeeeereeeeeeenens . 4,469,094 - 4,469,094 -
Liquid fuels and motor carriers. 2,092,645 - 2,092,645 -
GAMING.ceeteieeeeee e et e e e e e e e e e e e 1,409,388 - 1,409,388 -
INNEIITANCE. ...t 783,824 - 783,824 -
(0110 =Y (=TSRRI 1,104,355 - 1,104,355 -
Realty transfer.........ccoeeveeeiiiiiiiiiiiiieieee e 328,997 - 328,997 -
(01 T PP PPRUPTR 1,167,804 - 1,167,804 -
TOtAl TAXES. . eveiieeee e 29,737,979 - 29,737,979 -
INVEStMENt INCOME.......ccvveiiieeieeeeeeeeeeee e 52,129 - 52,129 -
Total general reVeNUES..........cceevevevviiriiiiianeeeanes 29,790,108 - 29,790,108 -
Transfers—NOte H........oiivniiiiiiiieiieeieee e, 239,925 (239,925) - -
Net general revenues and transfers................ 30,030,033 (239,925) 29,790,108 -
Change in net assets..............euvevvniaieeeenns 705,723 (355,842) 349,881 (91,287)
Net assets, July 1, 2010 (restated)—Note B....... 23,547,577 (1,208,585) 22,338,992 4,875,097
Net assets, June 30, 2011—Note C.........cceeeeeeeee $ 24,253,300 $ (1,564,427) $ 22,688,873 $ 4,783,810

- The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. -
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Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds

June 30, 2011

(Amounts in thousands) Motor Tobacco
General License Settlement Nonmajor
Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
ASSETS
Assets:
Cash—NOte D.....oooeeeiiiiii $ 115,643 $ 6,576 $ - $ 24,384 $ 146,603
Temporary investments—Note D.. 4,725,406 1,823,371 351,579 2,177,865 9,078,221
Long-term investments—Note D...........cooeeviiiiiiinneeens - - 220,375 582,633 803,008
Receivables, net:
TaxesS—NOte G.....oovvvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeieeeeeas 2,923,217 179,721 - 20,000 3,122,938
ACCOUNTS....iiiiieeeeee e 754,372 24,877 162,923 9,809 951,981
Investment income.. 730 65 1,090 4,637 6,522
Loans—Note G.............. 20,566 - - 61,075 81,641
Lease rentals—Note G...... - - - 427 427
Investment sale Proceeds...........ccovvvuiiieereerininnneenens - - 630 4,723 5,353
Other.. .o 72,400 13,904 - 25,250 111,554
Due from other funds—Note H..........cccoiiiiieiiininnnnnn. 44,749 17,996 - 107,073 169,818
Due from pension trust funds—Note H...................... 480 288 - - 768
Due from component units—Note H...... 1,007 7 - 4,635 5,649
Due from Federal government..... 2,052,213 242,278 47,926 28,945 2,371,362
Due from political subdivisions..... 11,712 3,163 - 1,193 16,068
Due from other governments..............eevvvvveevveeveenennns - 599 - - 599
Advances to other funds—Note H..........cccccceeeieeiiennn. 114,475 - - 4,500 118,975
Other @SSETS. .. iiiiiiiiiiie ettt 3,000 - - - 3,000
TOTAL ASSETS. ... $ 10,839,970 $ 2,312,845 $ 784,523 $ 3,057,149 $ 16,994,487
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities..................... $ 4,334,118 $ 593,933 $ 148,939 $ 358,279 $ 5,435,269
Investment purchases payable................ - - 2,603 21,593 24,196
Tax refunds payable.............. 621,910 2,256 - - 624,166
Securities lending obligations. 10,488 67,980 11,774 92,768 183,010
Due to other funds—Note H...........ccccevviiiiiiiiiinnnnnnnn. 121,048 45,412 333 30,879 197,672
Due to component units—Note H...........cccoevviiiennnnnnns 1,741 8,851 - 27 10,619
Due to pension trust funds—Note H...............ccuues 16,616 11,089 1 673 28,379
Due to political subdivisSiONS............cceeevvieiiiieiiineeenn. 1,121,070 60,079 5,549 89,748 1,276,446
Due to other governMeNts.........ccoeuvvuineeeeeeiiiineeeeees 15,567 13,646 1 888 30,102
Unearned reVENUE. .........cceevieiiiiiii e 2,279,483 2,541 162,923 47,120 2,492,067
Advances from other funds—Note H.. 69,000 3,575 - - 72,575
Other liabilities................... 627,494 - - - 627,494
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ..., 9,218,535 809,362 332,123 641,975 11,001,995
Fund balances:
Nonspendable............oouuiiiiiiiiiii e 123,156 - - - 123,156
RESTrCIEd. ...eeviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 756,141 1,503,483 44,261 2,164,250 4,468,135
COMMILEE. ..., 1,063,613 - 408,139 274,472 1,746,224
Unassigned deficit.................... (321,475) - - (23,548) (345,023)
TOTAL FUND BALANCES.........ccoeeevnnnenn 1,621,435 1,503,483 452,400 2,415,174 5,992,492
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES.............. $ 10,839,970 $ 2,312,845 $ 784,523 $ 3,057,149 $ 16,994,487

- The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. -
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Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2011

(Amounts in thousands)

The governmental funds balance sheet reports total fund balance for all governmental funds. In the governmental activities column
in the Statement of Net Assets, amounts are reported for all governmental funds and are adjusted to account for specific items that
are treated differently on the Statement of Net Assets than on the governmental funds balance sheet. Under the modified accrual
basis of accounting, numerous governmental assets are not reported because they may not be "available," (that is, they are not
current financial resources) and, similarly, numerous governmental liabilities are not reported because they are not due and payable
until after fiscal year end. The following reconciliation begins with total governmental funds fund balance and ends with total net
assets for governmental activities. It includes all of the adjustments made to "convert" governmental fund information in the fund

financial statements to governmental activities information in the Statement of Net Assets.

Total Fund Balances--GoVernNmMENTAl FUNAS. .. ... ..ottt e et ettt e e e e e e e e e s e e eneenananns $ 5,992,492

General capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and are therefore not reported in the governmental

funds balance sheet. (Refer to Note E.)

These assets consist of:

Land iMProVEMENTS. ... .ovviee i e e eaae e e
Buildings and building improvements
Machinery and equipment...........cccoeevvvuneeennnnn.

INTraSTIUCTUNE. ...eee e
INEANGIDIE. ...
CONSLIUCLION IN PrOGIESS. .. cievvuieieriieeeiiieeeetiaeeeeiaeeeaieeeerneeeenans
Accumulated depreciation...........ccuuiveeeuieeeeiin e e e

2,513,630
656,324
6,517,338
933,088
33,141,153
113,109
3,537,141
(17,156,318)

Net general Capital @SSETS. .....uuiiiiii e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e n e aanaaas 30,255,465

Certain revenues are earned but not available at fiscal year-end and therefore

are reported as unearned revenues in the governmental funds balance sheet ... 2,375,222

Certain receivables are not reported as governmental fund assets because they
are not collected during the availability period under the modified accrual

[T TR0 - Voot o U 1 1o Vo SRR 93,424
Internal service funds are proprietary in nature and charge the costs of certain goods
and services to governmental funds. Therefore, the assets and liabilities of the
internal service funds are included in the Statement of Net Assets as governmental activities .........c..cccoeeeeeeeennnnn. 88,726
The Statement of Net Assets includes inventories that are not reported in the
governmental funds balance sheet because they are not current financial reSOUrCes............u.eiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeninnnn. 93,712
Certain general long-term liabilities are not due and payable at fiscal year-end and
therefore are not reported in the governmental funds balance sheet. (Refer to Note K.)
These liabilities are:
BONdS payable.........oiiiiiiiiiiie e $ (10,443,190)
Accrued bond interest payable (172,367)
Capital lease and installment purchase obligations (26,510)
Compensated absence liability..............cuuuiiiiiiiiiiiii, (746,756)
Self-insurance liabilities...........coovueiiii i (969,974)
Other post employment benefits (1,333,238)
Other liabilities (953,706)
(14,645,741)
Total Net Assets--GovernmMeENTal ACTIVITIES. ......iui et e e e e e anas $ 24,253,300

- The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. -
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Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

(Amounts in thousands)

REVENUES:
Taxes, net of refunds...............c
Licenses and fees........ccoviviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie
Intergovernmental...
Charges for sales and services
Investment income.................
Lease rental principal and interest.
Interest on notes and loans.

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Direction and supportive services.....
Protection of persons and property...
Health and human services..
Public edUuCAtiON...........uueiiiiiiiiiiii
Recreation and cultural enrichment..............cccccciiiiiiininnne.
Economic development...........oooeveveiiieiieeiiiiiie e
TranSPOITAtION. ......uueeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e
Capital OULIAY.......ccvveiiieiieiiie e
Debt service:
Principal retirement...........ooovveiiiiieeie e
Interest and fiscal Charges. ...........ccocoeeeiiiiiiiniieeee e

TOTAL EXPENDITURES .......coooiiiiiiiiiiiene

EXCESS/(DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES ..........ccooiiiiiiiiiis

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
BONAS ISSUBM. .....evuiieeeiiiiiiie ettt e e e
Premium on bonds/refunding bonds/TANS...........cccoovverinnnnnn.
Discount on bonds iSSUEM.........coevviviviiiieeeieiiiiiee e
Transfers iN—NOte H.......oooiiiiiiiiiiiii e
Transfers out—NOte H........ccoooviiiiiiiiiiiiiie e
Capital lease and installment purchase obligations.................

NET OTHER FINANCING
SOURGCES (USES) w...eveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenens

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES...........cooooiiiiiiii,
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1, 2010 (Restated)—Note B......

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 2011......ccooiiiiiiiieeecciiinnnnn.

Motor Tobacco
General License Settlement Nonmajor

Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
$ 25,883,652 $ 2,092,645 $ - $ 2,031,158 $ 30,007,455
466,089 899,208 - 441,454 1,806,751
23,597,695 1,791,466 169,618 470,511 26,029,290
1,438,536 97,276 - 152,637 1,688,449
50,283 134,442 28,662 112,634 326,021
- - - 44 44
372 - - 1,292 1,664
177,424 3,127 418,586 31,825 630,962
51,614,051 5,018,164 616,866 3,241,555 60,490,636
837,264 50,624 - 734,486 1,622,374
4,161,954 669,213 102,380 373,651 5,307,198
29,861,234 - 474,151 100,125 30,435,510
14,197,883 689 - 638,086 14,836,658
243,606 3,421 - 216,474 463,501
962,010 - 3,263 631,275 1,596,548
48,003 1,840,867 - 1,240,436 3,129,306
285,910 2,548,674 - 413,590 3,248,174
- - - 697,510 697,510
- - - 477,751 477,751
50,597,864 5,113,488 579,794 5,523,384 61,814,530
1,016,187 (95,324) 37,072 (2,281,829) (1,323,894)
- - - 650,000 650,000
- - - 37,739 37,739
- - - (4,724) (4,724)
1,063,293 - - 1,281,503 2,344,796
(1,023,268) (62,725) (411,856) (564,561) (2,062,410)
- 111 - - 111
40,025 (62,614) (411,856) 1,399,957 965,512
1,056,212 (157,938) (374,784) (881,872) (358,382)
565,223 1,661,421 827,184 3,297,046 6,350,874
$ 1,621,435 $ 1,503,483 $ 452,400 $ 2415174 3 5,992,492

- The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. -
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Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances-Governmental Funds to the Statements of Activities

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

(Amounts in thousands)

The governmental funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances reports events and activities that affect, on a
current financial resources basis, fund balance changes during the fiscal year. The governmental activities column on the government-wide
Statement of Activities conveys information on an economic resources basis. In effect, the government-wide statement demonstrates all
expenses and revenues related to the operation of the government for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. Expenses such as depreciation and
certain claims and judgments and revenues that may not be collected for several months after fiscal-year end are included in the government-
wide statement but are not included in the governmental funds statement. This reconciliation reports all economic events during the fiscal year
that appear on the government-wide Statement of Activities but are not included in the governmental funds statement.

Net change in total fund balances of governmental fUNAS........ ... e $ (358,382)
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in governmental funds; however, in the
government-wide statements capital outlays are reported as increases in capital assets
(not expenses) and the cost of general capital assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. All depreciation is reported

as part of functional program expenses. (Refer to Note E) The current amounts were:

Capital asset aCqUISITIONS .........ccouuiiiiiiiiiiii e $ 3,239,798
Depreciation expense and losses on retirement or sale of assets........... (1,331,180)
Capital lease, installment purchase and related payments..................... 5,161
Net excess of capital asset additions/installment purchase
payments OVer dePreCiatioN EXPENSE. ... ... ... et ae et e e et e e eet e e et e e eet e aeaa e aeea e aeeaa e eaesan e aeennaeeennnnss 1,913,779

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds; however, issuing
bonds increases general long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. During the
current fiscal year, proceeds were received from:

General obligation bonds, including a premium of $17,434........coiiiiiiiiiiiie e (667,434)

Repayment of general long-term liabilities is reported as an expenditure in governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces general long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.
During the current fiscal year, these amounts consisted of:

L=To oo I o g T o] o = LI =] A= 44 T=T | U PPPUP 697,510

Internal service funds charge the costs of certain goods and services to
individual funds. The net income of the internal service funds is reported
as part of gOVErNMENTtal ACTIVITIES EXPEINSES. ... .uuuu e eeiieiiiiee ettt e e e et ettt e e e e e eeeataa e e e e eeeatst s e eeeeeetana s eeeeeeeeeeennnaaeeeenenen 6,482

Certain tax and other revenues due by fiscal year end will not be collected for several months
or years after fiscal year end; they are not considered available revenues
in the governmental funds, but they are reported as revenues in the statement of activities..............cooevviiiiieeiiiiiiiiiineeees (388,508)

Certain expense adjustments are reported in the statement of activities because they are not due
and payable and are funded with future economic resources rather than current available

L= g Tol = U =TT T oY PR (497,724)
Net change in governmental net assets in the statement of activities..............cooiiii i, $ 705,723

- The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. -
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Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2011

(Amounts in thousands)

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash-Note D........

Cash with fiscal agents..........coooouiiiiiiiiiiiiie e
Temporary investments—Note D..........ccceeeeiviiiiiinienenn.

Receivables (net):

Unemployment asseSSMENTS.........ccveerveeerueeerieeaneeenns

Accounts ...........
Investment income
Interest on loans
Loans—Note G...

Investment sale proceeds..........oooveuieieiiiieiiiinieeiieees
Due from other funds—Note H..........ccccooiiiiiiiiiiins

Due from pension

trust funds-Note H............c..oeeeeiinis

Due from component units—Note H............ccccooovieeen.
Due from Federal government............c.ccceieiiiiiiiiennnns
Due from political subdiviSions............cccoeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiennnnns
Due from other governments .........ccc.ooiiiiiiiiiiiiinnnnee.
Advances to other funds-Note H...........ccieiiieiiiinninnnnn.

Inventory.............
Prepaid expenses.

Other assets........

Total CUrreNnt aSSetS ......ccuuvieiiiieiiiii e

Noncurrent assets:

Long-term investments-Note D...........ccccovveviiiiiiiiiinennnnns

Receivables (net):

Loans—Note G...

Non-depreciable capital assets—Note E:

CoNStruction iN Progress.......aveueueeeuu e eeeiiaeaeenas
Depreciable or amortizable capital assets—Note E:
Land improvements. ... ... ..o

Buildings and building improvements
Machinery and equipment................
Intangible assets

Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization......
Net depreciable or amortizable capital assets................
Total NONCUIreNnt assets ........coevvvvvveiiiiiiiiiieieieieieeeeeeens

TOTAL ASSETS.

Enterprise Funds

State
Workers'
Unemployment Insurance State Tuition Internal
Compensation Fund Lottery Payment Nonmajor Service
Fund (Dec. 31, 2010) Fund Fund Funds Total Funds
$ 209 $ 5090 $ 1,635 $ 363 $ 17,210 $ 24507 $ 8,702
1,171,682 - - - - 1,171,682 -
5,920 281,517 249,107 293,407 484,205 1,314,156 58,398
587,172 - - - - 587,172 -
72,818 53,161 16,122 - 1,398 143,499 4,325
1 10,423 25 3,938 20 14,407 8
22,022 - - - 785 22,807 -
- - - - 52,910 52,910 -
- - - 10,877 - 10,877 -
6,234 - 38 - 7,396 13,668 26,486
10 - - - - 10 7,130
801 - - - - 801 278
83,978 - 4,270 - 332 88,580 -
15,529 - - - - 15,529 1
30,719 - - - - 30,719 16
- - - - 1,400 1,400 -
- - - - 265,864 265,864 10,982
- - - - 2,336 2,336 -
- 5,361 16,001 - - 21,362 9
1,997,095 355,552 287,198 308,585 833,856 3,782,286 116,335
- 1,440,187 12,158 1,224,006 - 2,676,351 -
- - - - 239,438 239,438 -
- - - - 323 323 -
- - - - 2,886 2,886 -
- - - - - - 1,011
- - - - 48,096 48,096 7,462
- 1,512 56,842 - 82,879 141,233 93,335
- - - - 12,688 12,688 -
- (1,512) (45,093) - (74,556) (121,161) (75,553)
- - 11,749 - 69,107 80,856 26,255
- 1,440,187 23,907 1,224,006 311,754 2,999,854 26,255
$ 1,997,095 $ 1,795,739 $ 311,105 $ 1,532,591 $ 1,145,610 $ 6,782,140 $ 142,590
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Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2011

(Amounts in thousands)

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Investment purchases payable...............ccccoooceeee.
Tuition benefits payable—Note F
Securities lending obligations...........
Due to other funds—Note H............cccovmiiiiiieiiiiiiiieees
Due to pension trust funds—Note H..............cccceeieen
Due to component units—Note H.............ocoiiiiiiiiiiennnn.
Due to political subdivisions..............ccceiviiiiiiiiiiiiiiees
Due to other governments............coevevvveiiineeeeinniinneeeees
Unearned reVENUE.........coeuuuuuiieeeieeiiiee e e eeeeee e e e eeennen
Self insurance liabilities—Note M...........ccoooviiiiiiiiiinieenes
Compensated absences—Note F.......c.c.oooiiiiiiiiiiiiinnee.
Insurance loss liability—Note F...........cccooeiiiiiiiiiiieas
Advances from other funds—Note H..........ccccccoeiiireennn.
Other liabilities........cooevriiiii

Total current liabilities. ..o,

Noncurrent liabilities:

Tuition benefits payable—Note F..........c...ccoiiiiiiinnen.
Insurance loss liability—Note F...........ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiinins
Installment purchase obligation-Note K...............c.........
Compensated absences—Note F........ccoooeiiiiiiiiiiiinnnne.
Self insurance liabilities—Note M...........ccoooeviiiiiiiiineennnns
Other postemployment benefit obligations—Note I........

Total noncurrent liabilities............cccceeiviiiiiiiiieeeee

TOTAL LIABILITIES.......oii

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt................

Restricted for:
Health-related programs
Transportation...................
Economic development.............ccuoeiiiiiiiiiiiiniiiieeeeans
Correctional industries and procurement.....................
EMErgency SUPPOIt........uuueeererurerureinenrnrnenenenenenenenenenes
Higher Education.............ccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e
Other purposes—NOte C........coeievuiiiiiiieeiiiieaeiieaeeanns

DEFICIt. ..
TOTAL NET ASSETS....oiiiiiiiiieiiieeeei et

- The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. -

Enterprise Funds

State
Workers'
Unemployment Insurance State Tuition Internal
Compensation Fund Lottery Payment Nonmajor Service
Fund (Dec. 31, 2010) Fund Fund Funds Total Funds
$ 168,292  $ 7,197 $ 398,207 $ 3,030 $ 265146 $ 841,872 $ 39,661
- - - 23,407 - 23,407 -
- - - 189,878 - 189,878 -
- 193,386 3,448 135,778 13,619 346,231 801
71 - 515 7 8,284 8,877 3,888
- - 66 - 589 655 73
- - - - - - 17
- - 8,096 - 17 8,113 88
3,848,309 - 804 - 660 3,849,773 66
- 67,667 8,200 - 2,350 78,217 -
- 341 360 - 4,320 5,021 376
- 586 609 - 6,162 7,357 494
- 253,964 - - - 253,964 -
- 2,180 - - 113,000 115,180 -
- 41,186 - - - 41,186 -
4,016,672 566,507 420,305 352,100 414,147 5,769,731 45,464
- - - 1,211,044 - 1,211,044 -
- 1,255,850 - - 311 1,256,161 -
- - - - - - 397
- 2,204 2,293 98 23,180 27,775 1,858
- 2,314 2,440 - 29,320 34,074 2,554
- 3,810 4,652 - 39,320 47,782 3,591
- 1,264,178 9,385 1,211,142 92,131 2,576,836 8,400
4,016,672 1,830,685 429,690 1,563,242 506,278 8,346,567 53,864
- - 11,749 - 72,316 84,065 25,858
- - - - 2,323 2,323 -
- - - - 118,938 118,938 -
- - - - 304,767 304,767 -
- - - - - - 62,868
- - - - 144,834 144,834 -
- - - - 94,985 94,985 -
(2,019,577) (34,946) (130,334) (30,651) (98,831) (2,314,339) -
$ (2,019,577) $ (34,946) $ (118,585) $ (30,651) $ 639,332 $ (1,564,427) $ 88,726
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Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
F

or the Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2011

(Amounts in thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES:
Sales aNd SEIVICES......cevierruiiieeeeeeeeeeiiiee e e e e eeeeeeennnes
Interest on loans...

OPERATING REVENUES BEFORE PROVISION
FOR UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS..........eeeeeenns

Provision for uncollectible accounts
NET OPERATING REVENUES............cceiiieannn

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sales and SErviCes.........ccooveeeeveeeerieiineeeeneeennns
Depreciation and amortization..

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES .........cccoiiiiinnnnns
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS).......cccvvvvvviiiiiiinnnnns

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment income...
Investment expense..........
Grants and other revenues............ccoeveveeveeeinineeeinnees
Other eXPENSES. .....cuvuuiiie ettt

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES), NET.

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS.............

TRANSFERS:

Transfers iN—NOte H......cooeeiviiiiiiiiiiiiee e,

Transfers out—NOte H.........ovviiiiieiiiiiiiiiee e,
TRANSFERS, NET...ouiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeiiie e e e eeennne s

INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS...........
TOTAL NET ASSETS, JULY 1, 2010.......ccccevvvrnnenn.
TOTAL NET ASSETS, JUNE 30, 2011............ceeue.ee

Enterprise Funds

- The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. -

State
Workers'

Unemployment Insurance State Tuition Internal

Compensation Fund Lottery Payment Nonmajor Service

Fund (Dec. 31, 2010) Fund Fund Funds Total Funds
2,568,799 $ 173,571 $ 3,206,588 $ 165,157 $ 1,598,364 $ 7,712,479 85,882
- - - - 9,916 9,916 -
10,453 - 345 - 523 11,321 1
2,579,252 173,571 3,206,933 165,157 1,608,803 7,733,716 85,883
- (9,568) - - (5,439) (15,007) -
2,579,252 164,003 3,206,933 165,157 1,603,364 7,718,709 85,883
7,460,707 284,155 3,036,434 252,062 1,508,648 12,542,006 72,172
- 125 2,568 - 14,061 16,754 9,029
- - 116,891 - - 116,891 -
7,460,707 284,280 3,155,893 252,062 1,522,709 12,675,651 81,201
(4,881,455) (120,277) 51,040 (86,905) 80,655 (4,956,942) 4,682
112 131,159 4,681 221,969 35,657 393,578 2,642
- (12,470) - (7,007) - (19,477) -
4,350,657 - 114,241 - 2,040 4,466,938 -
- - (10) - 4 14 (842)
4,350,769 118,689 118,912 214,962 37,693 4,841,025 1,800
(530,686) (1,588) 169,952 128,057 118,348 (115,917) 6,482
- - 165,900 - 48 165,948 -
(6,000) - (288,199) - (111,674) (405,873) -
(6,000) - (122,299) - (111,626) (239,925) -
(536,686) (1,588) 47,653 128,057 6,722 (355,842) 6,482
(1,482,891) (33,358) (166,238) (158,708) 632,610 (1,208,585) 82,244
(2,019,577) $ (34,946) $ (118,585) $ (30,651 $ 639,332 $  (1,564,427) 88,726
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Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

(Amounts in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from employers
Receipts from customers...
Receipts from borrowers
Receipts from participants....
Receipt of premiums
Payments to programs for the elderly..............oueiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e
PayMENTS 1O PriZE WINNEIS. ...ttt
Payments t0 PartiCiPaANTS.........ooiiiiiiiee e
PayMENtS 10 ClAIMANTS. .......eiiieiiiiiieeie ettt
PayMENTS 10 DOTTOWETS. ...
Payments for vendors, employees and Other COSES..............uuuriiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiriieerieeeeeenenee
Other reCeiptS (PAYMENTS). .. ...

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES.........cccccovvvviviiennens

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net borrowings under advances from other fuNdS..............oovviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeee
Transfers in
Transfers out
[eT = Va1 SR T o ) (g LT G YT 01T
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES........

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition and construction of capital @SSets...........coeiiiiiiiiiiiiiii
NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES.

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of INVESTMENTS........coiiiiiiiiei e
Sales and maturities of investments.
INVESTMENT INCOME....eeiiiiiiiieiieieeee ettt ettt e e e eeeeneeseesnnnnnnes
INVESTMENT EXPENSE. ....eeeeeiiiiieieeeeeaattteeeeeesaastaeeeaeesaasssseeaaessaastaseeaesssassseeeaessansssseeeeesanns
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) INVESTING ACTIVITIES.........ccvvviiieeeieiiiinnnns

NET INCREASE IN CASH......ooiiiiiiii e

CASH AT JULY 1, 2010...uuuiiiiiiiiiee ettt e e e e e e e
CASH AT JUNE 30, 2011, ..ottt e

Enterprise Funds

State
Workers'

Unemployment Insurance State Tuition Internal
Compensation Fund Lottery Payment Nonmajor Service

Fund (Dec. 31, 2010) Fund Fund Funds Total Funds

$ 2515899 $ 156,623 $ - $ - - $ 2672522 % -
- - 3,204,073 - 1,607,171 4,811,244 80,073

- - - - 92,375 92,375 -

- - - 165,157 - 165,157 -

- - - - 4,773 4,773 -

- - (898,424) - - (898,424) -

- - (1,953,633) - - (1,953,633) -

- - - (175,056) - (175,056) -
(7,286,517) (255,000) - - (676) (7,542,193) -

- - - - (50,152) (50,152) -
- (75,946) (317,674) (5,308) (1,438,419) (1,837,347) (68,898)

753,220 - 345 - 259 753,824 1
(4,017,398) (174,323) 34,687 (15,207) 215,331 (3,956,910) 11,176
- 119 - - - 119 (14,300)

- - 165,900 - - 165,900 -

(6,000) - (288,199) - (111,050) (405,249) -
4,352,688 - 115,020 - 1,812 4,469,520 -
4,346,688 119 (7,279) - (109,238) 4,230,290 (14,300)
- - (5,751) - (20,204) (25,955) (2,952)
- - (5,751) - (20,204) (25,955) (2,952)
(6,612) (1,419,418) (1,262,614) (1,428,463) (1,489,189) (5,606,296) (393,264)
7,079 1,568,213 1,235,354 1,417,136 1,372,333 5,600,115 401,270

175 39,240 5,655 33,827 36,326 115,223 3,627

- (12,470) - (7,007) - (19,477) -

642 175,565 (21,605) 15,493 (80,530) 89,565 11,633

329,932 1,361 52 286 5,359 336,990 5,557
841,959 3,729 1,583 77 11,851 859,199 3,145

$ 1,171,891 3 5,090 $ 1,635 $ 363 $ 17,210 $ 1,196,189 $ 8,702
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Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

(Amounts in thousands)

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
OpPErating iNCOME (I0SS)....uuvuurrrrrrrrrrrrrtrrarrere e

Depreciation and amOrTiZAtION. ............uuu s
Investment demMUEUALIZALION. .........uuuuieiiiiiiiii e
Provision for uncollectible @CCOUNTS...........uuuuuiiiiiii s
NON-0perating reVeNUES (EXPENSES)......uuuuurrrrrrernnnnernssnnsnerannnssesesssenesnsssrrssrrrerarrerrrrrnennees

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Unemployment asseSSMeNnts reCeivable............uuuvvriiiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieieee e
ACCOUNES reCEIVADIE. ... ..iiiiiiiiiiiiii
Interest on 10ans receivable. ..o
LOANS FECEIVADIE. ...ttt
Other reCeIVADIES. .......c.uviiiiiii i
Due from Other fUNGS..........cooiiiiiiiiii
Due from pension trust FUNAS...........oooiiii i
Due from COMPONENT UNIES.......eeiiiiiiiiiiiieeiieee ettt rnnnnenennes
Due from political SUDAIVISIONS........ccoiiiiiiiiiieiii e
Due from Other QOVEIMMENTS. .. ..o
L1 0YZ=] a1 (o] 2T UPP PPN
Prepaidl EXPENSES. ...ceeeiiiiiiiiiiieeeiee ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt st es et ennesnnnnnnnnnnes
OtNEr CUMTENT @SSEES. ... ..ueiiieeiieiiii et ettt ettt e e e e et e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e eannnnes
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. .............uuuuuuuuuiiiiii e
TUItion DENEFItS PAYADIE. ... ...ueeieiiiiiiiiiitiieet e
Due to other funds......
Due to pension trust funds.
Due to component units..
Due to political subdivisions..
Due to other governments.
UNEAINEMA FEBVEINUE........ettiiiieeiiiitiete e e e ettt e e e ettt e e e e e ettt e e e e e aiban e e e e e e e ian e e e e e e eeannnees
Self insurance iabilities............ocooiiiiiiiiii e
Compensated ADSENCES. ........ciiiiiiiieeie e
Insurance 10Ss iability..........oooiiiiiiii i
Other postemployment benefit 0bligations..............ooooviiiiiiiiiiiiee
Other [IabIlITIES. ... ettt

Increase (decrease) in fair value of investments during the fiscal year..............cccccceeeeees

Enterprise Funds

State
Workers'
Unemployment Insurance State Tuition Internal
Compensation Fund Lottery Payment Nonmajor Service
Fund (Dec. 31, 2010) Fund Fund Funds Total Funds
$ (4,881,455) $ (120,277) $ 51,040 $ (86,905) $ 80,655 $(4,956,942) $ 4,682
- 125 2,568 - 14,061 16,754 9,029
- - (12,157) - - (12,157) -
- 9,568 - - 5,439 15,007 -
- - - - 19 19 -
(38,725) - - - - (38,725) -
68,552 179 (2,812) - 1,639 67,558 (2,815)
18,218 - - - (71) 18,147 -
- - - - 34,266 34,266 -
(1,255) - (37) - (3,007) (4,299) (962)
@ - - - - @ (4,374)
105 - - - - 105 18
(2,697) - - - - (2,697) -
5,872 - - - - 5,872 70
- - - - 38,959 38,959 550
- - - - 2,094 2,094 -
- (4,725) (1,344) - - (6,069) 3
(11,941) (8,421) (5,089) 697 22,200 (2,554) 544
- - - 71,031 - 71,031 -
(54) - 404 1 4,277 4,628 2,456
- - 29 - 219 248 32
(©)) - - - - (©)) 17
- - 1,240 - 10 1,250 88
825,992 - (627) - 13 825,378 7
- (12,402) 297 - (207) (12,312) -
- 268 (33) - 3,948 4,183 651
- 230 (212) (31) (1,830) (1,843) 95
- (44,322) - - (23) (44,345) -
- 1,129 1,420 - 12,670 15,219 1,085
- 4,325 - - - 4,325 -
864,057 (54,046) (16,353) 71,698 134,676 1,000,032 6,494
$ (4,017,398) $ (174,323)  $ 34,687 $ (15,207) $ 215331  $(3,956,910) $ 11,176
$ 63) $ (38,850) $ (956) $ 249,155 $ 12425 $ 221,711 $ (2,567)

There were no other material investing, capital or financing activities that did not result in cash receipts or cash payments during the fiscal year.

- The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. -



Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds

June 30, 2011

(Amounts in thousands) Investment Private Purpose
Trust Trust
Fund Fund
Pension (and INVEST Program Tuition
Other Employee for Local Account
Benefit) Trust Governments Investment Agency
Funds (December 31, 2010) Program Funds
ASSETS
Cash—Note D.... $ 210,948 $ - $ 1,020 $ 22,405
Cash with fiscal agents.. - - - 21,611
Temporary investments—Note D 78,736 595,387 - 1,303,588
Long-term investments—Note D... 176,004 - 974,419 3,056,986
Short-term funds—Note D 5,673,256 - - -
Corporate obligations—Note D... 2,696,630 - - -
Collective trust funds—Note D 14,445,972 - - -
Real estate—Note D 7,625,179 - - -
Alternative—Note D.... 22,848,272 - - -
Securities lending collateral—Note D 1,086,096 - - -
Asset-backed securities—Note D... 1,009,690 - - -
Certificates of deposit—Note D 68,200 - - -
Commercial paper—Note D.. 20,432 - - -
Derivatives—Note D 193,820 - - -
Domestic equities—Note D 6,847,778 - - -
International equities—Note D... 8,065,889 - - -
International private debt securities—Note D.. 793,644 - - -
International public debt securities—Note D. 1,229,184 - - -
Mortgage-backed securities—Note D 2,985,587 - - -
Private placements—Note D 535,782 - - -
Repurchase agreements—Note D.... 74,094 - - -
State and municipal obligations—Note D... 11,853 - - -
U.S. Treasury obligations—Note D......... . 3,444,867 - - -
U.S. government agency debt securities—Note D........... 569,193 - - -
Receivables, net:
Taxes—Note G... - - - 26,562
Accounts........... 34 - 190 49,485
Investment income 361,814 - - 11,610
Interest on notes and loans.. - 6 - -
529,423 - - -
776,342 10,002 - 101,884
14,901 - - 141,729
5,376 - - -
Due from pension trust funds—Note H 10,051 - - -
Due from component units—Note H 5,654 - - -
Due from political subdivisions 5,093 - - -
Due from other governments.... 6,639 - - -
Advances to other funds—Note H................coeeeiiiennnn, - - - 67,500
Depreciable or amortizable capital assets:
Machinery and equipment. 12,319 - - -
Intangible assets 26,918 - - -
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization (18,208) - - -
Net depreciable or amortizable capital assets.... 21,029 - - -
Other assets - - - 3,831,866
TOTAL ASSETS. ..ottt 82,427,462 605,395 975,629 8,635,226
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.... 159,037 57 654 33,537
Investment purchases payable 875,111 10,021 200 238,359
Securities lending obligations.... 1,174,384 - - 18,529
Due to other funds—Note H... 932 - - -
Due to pension trust funds—Note H... 10,079 - - -
Due to political subdivisions.... - - - 565,678
Due to other governments... - - - 14
Interest payable................. - 116 - 13
Compensated absence liability... - - - 457
Self insurance liabilities—Note M............cccccccvvrieeiinnnnns - - - 557
Other postemployment benefit obligations—Note I......... - - - 846
Other liabilities 684,511 - - 7,777,236
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,904,054 10,194 854 8,635,226
NET ASSETS:
Held in trust for:
Pension benefits..........cooeeviiiiiieiiiiiiie e 77,086,096 - - -
Postemployment healthcare benefits 363,882 - - -
Employee salary deferrals 2,073,430 - - -
INVEST Program participants..........cccceueueeeeeeeennnnaeenns - 595,201 - -
Tuition Account Investment Program participants - - 974,775 -
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 79,523,408 $ 595,201 $ 974,775 $ -

- The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. -
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Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

(Amounts in thousands) Private Purpose
Investment Trust Trust
Fund Fund
Pension (and INVEST Program Tuition
Other Employee for Local Account
Benefit) Trust Governments Investment
Funds (December 31, 2010) Program
ADDITIONS:
Pension contributions:
= 10]0] (0 )Y PR $ 1,703,388 $ - $ -
EMPIOYEE. e 1,721,497 - -
Transfer in from other plans.............cooooiviiiiiiiiii s 47,848 - -
Total CONLHBULIONS.....cccvieeiiiee e 3,472,733 - -

Investment income:
Net appreciation in

fair value of investments........cooovviiiiiiii 11,696,988 - 130,599
Interest income 627,479 1,893 20,459
D]}V To 1=Y oo [T g Todo] 1 o 1= TP 434,453 - -
Rental and other iINCOME.........civuuiiiiiiiiei e 524,746 - -

Total investment activity iNCOME..........cccceveiviiiiieeiiieiieeeiee. 13,283,666 1,893 151,058

Less: investment expenses
Investment activity EXPENSE........ccevuviiuieiiieiii e (752,941) (751) -
Net INVESTMENTt EarNINGS. ......evveieiieeiiee e e e e e e e anaas 12,530,725 1,142 151,058
Securities lending activities:
g Tol0] 1 1 TSP 10,823 - -
EXPBINISES. .. ettt ee ittt et (1,285) - -
Total securities lending iNCOME............coeeiviiiiiieiiieiieeeeee, 9,538 - -
Total net investment income 12,540,263 1,142 151,058
Share transactions (at net asset value
of $1.00 per share):
Shares PUrChased..........ccuuviiuiiiinieiiei e e - 1,552,902 169,354
Shares issued in lieu of cash distributions...........c....cccceiviiinnnnn - 953 -
Shares redeemEed. .........civuiiiiiiiiieii e - (1,630,623) (63,577)
Net increase (decrease) in net assets from
share transactions - (76,768) 105,777
TOTAL ADDITIONS. ..o e 16,012,996 (75,626) 256,835
DEDUCTIONS:
Benefit PaymMeNtS.........oiiviiiici e 8,729,697 - -
Refunds of contributions.............oviviiiiiiiiin e 26,702 - -
Transfers to other plans..........ccooveviiiiiie e 68,759 - -
Administrative eXpenses..................... 83,125 - 3,862
Other eXPenSEeS........cevvuveeveiineeeieeannns 2,484 - -
Distributions to participants - 1,142 -
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS. ... 8,910,767 1,142 3,862
CHANGE IN PLAN NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR:
Pension DENETItS.....ccuuiii e 6,825,672 - -
Postemployment healthcare benefits.............ccoeeeiiiiiiiiiiinnn. 20,801 - -
Employee salary deferrals............coooeieiiiiiiiiiiniic e, 255,756 - -
INVEST program participants - (76,768) -
Tuition Account Investment Program participants - - 252,973
TOTAL CHANGE IN PLAN NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST... 7,102,229 (76,768) 252,973
Net assets, July 1, 2010.......ccoiiiiiiiiiiieei e 72,421,179 671,969 721,802
Net assets, June 30, 201 1.......ccceuuiiiieiiiieiieiiee e ee e $ 79,523,408 $ 595,201 $ 974,775
- The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. -
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 61 Governor's Office of the Budget
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Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Statement of Net Assets

Discretely Presented Component Units
June 30, 2011

(Amounts in thousands)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash—Note D
Temporary investments—Note D..
Receivables:
Accounts
Investment income
Interest on notes and loans
Loans—Note G
Lease rentals—Note G
Other ...
Due from primary government—Note H
Due from component units—Note H...
Due from Federal government
Inventory
Prepaid and deferred expenses....
(0] (1= - T PP PPUPTPRN

Total CUMTENt ASSELS ...oeiiiiiiiiiiiieeee e
Noncurrent assets:
Long-term investments—NOte D...........cccoovviiiiiiriiiiiiiiecienennnn,
Receivables (net):
Interest on notes and 10anS............cooovviiiiiiiiiiiiieeieeeee
LOANS—NOLE G....ooeiiiiiiiii e
Non-depreciable capital assets

Construction in progress...
Depreciable or amortizable capital assets
Land improvements
Buildings and building improvements
Machinery and equipment...
Turnpike infrastructure..
Library books
Other capital assets.
Intangible assets
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization
Net depreciable or amortizable capital assets
Other assets
Total noncurrent assets
TOTAL ASSETS...cciiiiiiie ettt

Pennsylvania Nonmajor
Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Higher Pennsylvania Discretely
Turnpike Housing Education Infrastructure State System Presented
Commission Finance Assistance Investment of Higher Component
(May 31, 2011) Agency Agency Authority Education Units Total

$ 596,545 640,268 52,918 31,329 158,367 $ 705,991 $ 2,185,418
249,678 155,834 752,574 619,219 449,659 245,641 2,472,605
31,700 - 38,761 - 124,700 5,062 200,223
7,080 1,698 16 - - 120 8,914
- - 113,199 3,354 - 5,028 121,581
- 121,484 1,024,418 163,156 5,312 63,849 1,378,219
- - - - - 953 953
- - - - 60,835 327 61,162
6,039 - - - 77 1,230 8,046
- 18 - 44 - - 62
- - 35,077 2,233 - 374 37,684
23,549 - - - 12,105 452 36,106
- - 6,634 - 8,755 1,451 16,840
- 91,399 65,848 - 14,957 11,629 183,833
914,591 1,010,701 2,089,445 819,335 835,467 1,042,107 6,711,646
1,182,695 183,806 - - 1,055,794 32,346 2,454,641
- - 16,433 - - - 16,433
- 4,684,126 7,533,109 2,053,460 30,848 695,111 14,996,654
248,011 2,454 2,946 - 49,287 77,513 380,211
1,151,520 - - - 276,951 16,291 1,444,762
92,725 - - - 231,471 40,144 364,340
813,936 29,882 66,873 - 2,471,468 1,033,293 4,415,452
498,255 10,229 36,766 - 444,974 196,968 1,187,192
6,041,749 - - - - - 6,041,749
- - - - 83,810 520 84,330
- - - - - 337 337
- - 34,758 - - 33 34,791
(4,281,338) (10,126) (87,751) - (1,161,942) (291,619) (5,832,776)
3,165,327 29,985 50,646 - 2,069,781 979,676 6,295,415
143,897 140,195 58,136 72 102,890 158,452 603,642
5,891,450 5,040,566 7,661,270 2,053,532 3,585,551 1,959,389 26,191,758
6,806,041 6,051,267 9,750,715 2,872,867 4,421,018 3,001,496 32,903,404

(continued)
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Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Statement of Net Assets

Discretely Presented Component Units
June 30, 2011

(Amounts in thousands)

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Securities lending obligations....
Due to primary government—Note H
Due to component units—Note H.
Due to political subdivisions
Due to other governments
Interest payable
Unearned revenue
Notes payable—Note J..
Bonds payable—Note K...
Revenue bonds payable—Note K..........ccccoviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieenees
Capital lease/installment purchase obligations—Note K............
Self insurance liabilities
Compensated absences
Other financing obligations—Note J
Other postemployment benefit obligations—Note J.. .
Other HabilItIES. .....ueeeeeeieeeeieeie e

Total current liabilities............oveiiiiiiiiiiiiie
Non-current liabilities:

Due to primary government—Note H
Unearned revenue
Student loan auction rate security bonds payable—Note J.......
Notes payable—NOtE J........ccueeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee e
Bonds payable—Note K
Revenue bond payable—Note K .
Capital lease/installment purchase obligations—Note K............
Other financing obligations—Note J.
Compensated absences
Self insurance liabilities
Other postemployment benefit obligations—Note I..................
Other liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES ..oiiiiiieieeii e
NET ASSETS—Note C:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt.........................

Restricted for:
Health-related programs...
Capital projects
Debt service
Economic development
Higher Education
Other purposes....

Unrestricted/(Deficit)
TOTAL NET ASSETS...iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieii et

Pennsylvania Nonmajor
Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Higher Pennsylvania Discretely
Turnpike Housing Education Infrastructure State System Presented
Commission Finance Assistance Investment of Higher Component
(May 31, 2011) Agency Agency Authority Education Units Total

163,853 5,733 123,994 2,591 230,261 17,637 544,069
- - - 26,134 - - 26,134
- 16 202 4,695 2,305 3,986 11,204
- 44 - 18 - - 62
- - - 2,268 - - 2,268
- - - - - 17 17
143,266 44,593 18,213 243 - 15,621 221,936
35,876 - 174 10 53,044 7,316 96,420
- - 135,800 85,000 - 188 220,988
- - - - 41,260 - 41,260
304,540 187,426 - 6,530 - 63,600 562,096
- - - - 3,441 - 3,441
- - - - 4,895 5 4,900
- - 1,308 73 10,269 516 12,166
- - 1,965 - - - 1,965
- - - - 52,604 158 52,762
- 179,485 66,163 - 78,840 724 325,212
647,535 417,297 347,819 127,562 476,919 109,768 2,126,900
- - - 74,663 - - 74,663
- - - - 5,075 - 5,075
- - 6,052,338 - - - 6,052,338
- - 2,538,359 - 251,799 393 2,790,551
- - - - 844,030 - 844,030
7,330,665 4,390,751 - 7,644 755,719 1,760,525 14,245,304
- - - - 60,727 - 60,727
- - 125,717 - - - 125,717
6,000 - 13,945 275 91,559 2,242 114,021
24,907 - - - 14,090 29 39,026
- - - 355 738,848 5,686 744,889
165,072 432,769 49 - 153,568 144,895 896,353
7,526,644 4,823,520 8,730,408 82,937 2,915,415 1,913,770 25,992,694
8,174,179 5,240,817 9,078,227 210,499 3,392,334 2,023,538 28,119,594
1,086,340 12,506 53,228 - 601,613 305,137 2,058,824
- - - - - 5,663 5,663
268,626 - - 2,662,368 27,847 426 2,959,267
39,433 179,589 219,410 - - 4,199 442,631
- - - - - 62,597 62,597
- - 399,850 - 399,224 3,032 802,106
- 618,355 - - - 34,173 652,528
(2,762,537) - - - - 562,731 (2,199,806)
$ (1,368,138) $ 810,450 $ 672,488 $ 2,662,368 $ 1,028,684 $ 977,958 4,783,810

- The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. -

(concluded)
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Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Statement of Activities

Discretely Presented Component Units
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

(Amounts in thousands) Pennsylvania Nonmajor

Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Higher Pennsylvania Discretely

Turnpike Housing Education Infrastructure State System Presented

Commission Finance Assistance Investment of Higher Component

(May 31, 2011) Agency Agency Authority Education Units Total
EXPENSES. ...uiviiiiiiiiiiiiieie ettt $ 1,424,732  $ 712,945  $ 851,603 $ 126,360 $ 2,158,364 $ 519,889 % 5,793,893
Program revenues:

Charges for goods and Services............cccuureeeennnnnns 758,648 270,280 556,445 29,715 1,283,202 76,327 2,974,617
Operating grants and contributions...............cceeeeee. 44,275 482,029 469,200 159,381 964,457 243,657 2,362,999
Capital grants and contributions..................cceeeee. 98,442 - - 113,834 11,918 140,796 364,990
Total program revenues.........cccoeeeeeeeeennneennn. 901,365 752,309 1,025,645 302,930 2,259,577 460,780 5,702,606
Change in net assets.........ccceeeeeieeiiiiieeeeeene. (523,367) 39,364 174,042 176,570 101,213 (59,109) (91,287)
Net assets, July 1, 2010 (restated)—Note B.... (844,771) 771,086 498,446 2,485,798 927,471 1,037,067 4,875,097
Net assets, June 30, 2011........ccccevvvvuneeeeeennnn. $  (1,368,138) $ 810,450 $ 672,488 $ 2,662,368 $ 1,028,684 $ 977,958 % 4,783,810

- The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2011

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The basic financial statements of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States applicable to governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) establishes accounting and financial reporting requirements for governments.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Government-wide financial statements report the financial position and results of activities for the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania as a whole. Separate columns are presented for governmental and business-type activities within the primary
government (defined below) and discretely presented component units. The Statement of Net Assets reports all economic
resources (assets) and all liabilities for the primary government of the Commonwealth. The Statement of Activities reports
the total cost of providing governmental services, by function, net of related program revenues, and after including general
revenues, reports whether the total net assets of the government increased or decreased during the fiscal year ended June
30, 2011. The government-wide financial statements do not include any fiduciary fund assets, liabilities or activities for the
primary government or component units (defined below) that are fiduciary in nature. Governmental activities within
government-wide financial statements include specific balances and transactions related to Internal Service Funds that are
reported as proprietary funds in fund financial statements. Business-type activities include information for all Enterprise
Funds.

Financial Reporting Entity

Government-wide financial statements include separate columns and/or rows for the primary government and discretely
presented component units. Fiduciary component unit balances are reported in the Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets. The
combining statements for all discretely presented component units are presented following the fund financial statements as
a Statement of Net Assets and a Statement of Activities.

Primary Government: For financial reporting purposes, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania is a primary government (PG).
The PG includes all publicly elected members of the executive, legislative, and judicial branches of the Commonwealth. The

PG also includes all Commonwealth departments, agencies, boards, and organizations that are not legally separate.

Component Units: In addition to the PG, the financial reporting entity includes discretely presented component units.
Component units include all legally separate organizations for which the PG is financially accountable, and other
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the PG are such that exclusion would cause the
financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The criteria used to define financial accountability include: appointment
of a voting majority of an organization’s governing body and (1) the ability of the PG to impose its will on that organization or
(2) the potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the PG.
Fiscal dependency is also considered. The State Employees’ Retirement System, the Deferred Compensation Program and the
Public School Employees’ Retirement System are reported as Fiduciary Funds, Pension Trust Funds and the Pennsylvania Life
and Health Insurance Guaranty Association and the Pennsylvania Property and Casualty Insurance Guaranty Association are
reported as Fiduciary Funds, Agency Funds.

State Employees’ Retirement System (SERS) (Fiduciary Fund) - The SERS is a public employee retirement system that covers
Commonwealth employees. The PG appoints all voting board members and, on a very limited basis, imposes its will on the
SERS. The PG uses the SERS to provide pension benefits to PG employees. The PG makes essentially all employer
contributions to the SERS; PG employees make almost all of the employee contributions to the SERS (virtually all PG
employees are required to join the SERS). The PG is responsible for substantially all of the SERS pension obligations. The SERS
provides services and benefits almost exclusively to the PG. The SERS administers both a defined benefit plan and a defined
contribution plan. The defined benefit plan is funded through a combination of employee contributions, employer
contributions and investment earnings. The defined contribution plan is funded by voluntary employee contributions and
investment earnings. The SERS is reported for its fiscal year ended December 31, 2010.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2011

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

State Public School Building Authority (SPSBA) and Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority (PHEFA) - The
SPSBA and the PHEFA issue limited obligation revenue bonds, the proceeds of which are used to finance the construction of
facilities for school districts and public/private colleges and universities. These bonds are repaid solely from lease/loan
payments from the schools. The PG appoints all nine voting members of the SPSBA and the PHEFA governing boards; nine
high-ranking members of the PG serve as ex-officio members of each board. As a result, the PG is able to impose its will. The
PG’s Department of Education approves the SPSBA’s projects (which indicate imposition of will and fiscal dependency).
Neither the PG nor the Authorities are obligated for debt service payments (beyond lease/loan payments from schools).

Ben Franklin Technology Development Authority (BFTDA) - The BFTDA promotes economic development through interaction
of technology development, modernization and training programs. Industrial resource centers and technology centers,
established through the BFTDA, also increase Pennsylvania business competitiveness. The BFTDA works closely with the
Department of Community and Economic Development (DCED) and includes a Revolving Loan Program. The PG appoints all
21 voting members of the governing board. The PG may appropriate funding for the BFTDA from the General Fund.

Port of Pittsburgh Commission (PPC) - The PPC promotes economic development throughout waterways in southwestern
Pennsylvania by constructing and/or financing transportation and recreation facilities. The PG appoints all 15 voting
members of the governing board and can remove board members at will. The PG provides funding for the PPC but is not
required to do so.

Insurance Fraud Prevention Authority (IFPA) - The IFPA assists in the prevention, discovery, investigation and prosecution of
insurance fraud. The IFPA is funded through assessments paid by the insurance industry and through certain criminal and civil
fines, penalties and awards. The PG appoints six of seven voting members of the IFPA governing board; the Attorney General
serves ex-officio as one of these six members. A significant portion of IFPA expenditures funds the Section on Insurance Fraud
in the Office of Attorney General; this indicates a financial benefit/burden. The IFPA is not fiscally dependent on the PG.

Philadelphia Shipyard Development Corporation (PSDC) - The PSDC was created as a nonprofit corporation to assist the PG
and other governmental entities in financing a shipbuilding facility at the former Philadelphia Naval Shipyard. The PSDC
obtains funding from the PG and a variety of other governmental sources to fund development, construction and job
recruitment and training costs. The PG appoints three of five voting board members and provides a significant portion of
funding for the PSDC. The PSDC is reported for its fiscal year ended December 31, 2010.

Philadelphia Regional Port Authority (PRPA) - The PRPA operates a port facility and manages port-related activities to
promote commerce and economic development in southeastern Pennsylvania. The PRPA charges rental and other fees to
port users and obtains other funding from the PG. The PRPA also issues revenue bonds to finance its activities. The PG
appoints all eleven voting board members and can remove board members at will. The PG provides operating and capital
subsidies and pays rent in amounts equal to PRPA debt service requirements. The PRPA is fiscally dependent on the PG, as
the Governor must approve the issuance of its debt.

Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA) - The PHEAA makes grants and loans to students to help fund the
cost of higher education. Through June 30, 2011 lending institutions and post-secondary schools were involved in the loan
program. The PG funds the PHEAA grant program; the PHEAA issues revenue bonds to fund the student loan program.
Revenue bonds are repaid from student loan repayments. The PHEAA also services student loan portfolios for lending
institutions and the federal government. The PG appoints all 20 voting board members but does not significantly impose its
will on the PHEAA. A significant PG financial burden exists through subsidizing the grant program; also, although the PG is not
obligated for the PHEAA revenue bonds, the PG could take certain actions to satisfy bondholders. The PHEAA is fiscally
dependent, as the Governor must approve the issuance of its debt.

Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA) - The PHFA makes loans to eligible individuals and organizations to purchase or
construct housing. The loans benefit older adults, persons with disabilities, and low and moderate-income individuals and
families. The PG appoints all voting board members; four of the fourteen members may be removed at will. The Secretary of
Banking, the Secretary of Community and Economic Development, the Secretary of Public Welfare, and the State Treasurer
serve as ex-officio members. The Governor is required to request an appropriation from the General Assembly for the PHFA
whenever a deficiency exists in the capital reserve account or if additional funds are needed to avoid a default on the PHFA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2011

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

debt. This represents a PG moral obligation for the PHFA debt. The PHFA is fiscally dependent on the PG, as the Governor
must approve the issuance of its debt.

Patient Safety Trust Authority (PSTA) - The PSTA is charged with taking steps to reduce and eliminate medical errors by
identifying problems and recommending solutions that promote patient safety in hospitals, ambulatory surgical facilities and
birthing centers. The Board of Directors has 11 members: the Pennsylvania Physician General, who serves as the Board
chair, six members appointed by the Governor representing specific professional occupations, and four members appointed
by the General Assembly. The Pennsylvania Department of Health determines whether or not PSTA recommendations will be
adopted, establishing PG imposition of will; further, the enabling legislation limits the amount of assessments PSTA charges
medical facilities to fund PSTA activities.

Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority (PIDA) - The PIDA was created to provide employment opportunities
throughout the Commonwealth by attracting businesses and investors to the state and retaining existing businesses. The
PIDA provides low interest rate loans to prospective and existing businesses focusing on areas of the state where
unemployment rates are the highest. Loans are made at lower-than-market interest rates; the interest rates are based on
local unemployment and other economic conditions. The PIDA issues revenue bonds to finance the loan program. Loan
repayments are used for debt service payments. The PIDA works closely with the DCED. The PG appoints all voting board
members and is able to impose its will on the PIDA. The PG has provided capital contributions; “excess” PIDA funds are
transferred to the General Fund. The PG is not obligated for the PIDA debt, but the PG could take certain actions to satisfy
bondholders.

Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (PENNVEST) - The PENNVEST makes grants and low-interest loans to local
governments and authorities, businesses and nonprofit organizations for the construction, improvement, repair or
rehabilitation of drinking and waste water systems. The PENNVEST obtains funds through Commonwealth general obligation
bond proceeds (approved by referendum), revenue bonds, the Federal government and contributed amounts from
Commonwealth funds. Loan repayments finance the PENNVEST debt service costs. The PENNVEST operates closely with the
Department of Environmental Protection. The PG appoints all voting board members; there are limitations on three of the
thirteen appointments. By issuing general obligation debt and providing the proceeds to the PENNVEST as capital
contributions, the PG creates a significant financial burden. The PG is not obligated for the PENNVEST debt, but the PG could
take certain actions to satisfy bondholders. Upon dissolution, the assets of the PENNVEST revert to the Commonwealth.

Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (PTC) - The PTC was created to construct, maintain and operate a turnpike system in the
Commonwealth. Activities are financed through user tolls and the issuance of revenue bonds. Debt service payments are
funded through user tolls.  The PTC works closely with the Department of Transportation. The PG appoints all voting
members. When all the PTC bondholders have been satisfied, the PTC assets revert to the Department of Transportation.
The Governor must approve the issuance of all PTC debt. The PG is not obligated for all PTC debt, but the PG could take
certain actions to satisfy all such bondholders. As further disclosed in Note N to the Financial Statements, the
Commonwealth is contingently liable for $401 million of PTC debt at fiscal year end. The PTC is reported for its fiscal year
ended May 31, 2011.

State System of Higher Education (SSHE) - The SSHE was created to provide instruction for postsecondary students. The
SSHE is composed of fourteen universities and an administrative headquarters. Resources are provided by student tuition,
grants and PG subsidies. The PG appoints all 20 voting board members, which in turn appoint the university presidents and
chancellor. Five of the appointments must be trustees of universities; three must be students. The PG provides significant
operating and capital subsidies to the SSHE. The PG is not obligated for the SSHE debt, but the PG could take certain actions
to satisfy bondholders.

Commonwealth Financing Authority (CFA) - The CFA administers and funds economic stimulus programs; the programs offer
financial assistance through loans, grants, guarantees, sales, leases, investments, lines and letters of credit, and other
authorized financial arrangements. The PG appoints the four voting members of the Board of Directors and may remove
these members at will. The Secretary of Community and Economic Development, Secretary of the Budget, and Secretary of
Banking serve as ex-officio members of the Board. The CFA is authorized to issue limited obligation revenue bonds and other
types of limited obligation revenue financing. The bonds are payable solely from CFA revenues or funds appropriated to the
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2011

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

CFA by the Commonwealth. While the enabling legislation provides that CFA bonds are not a debt or obligation of the
Commonwealth, it is anticipated that General Fund appropriations will be required to support the annual debt service cost
on CFA debt. The CFA is fiscally dependent on the PG, as the Secretary of the Budget must certify that the General Fund will
support any appropriations needed to pay the debt service payments or costs incurred in any bond issuance.

Thaddeus Stevens College of Technology (College) - Founded in the early twentieth century, the College was financially
reported as part of the PG through and including the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003. Legislation effective July 1, 2003
amended the Board of Directors to a body politic and corporate constituting a public corporation, making the College an
entity legally separate from the PG. The Governor, with the advice of the Senate, appoints nine members of the Board, and
the Secretary of Education serves as an ex-officio member. Although the PG selects the members of the Board, the members
have great latitude to manage the College subsequent to their appointment. The PG has some ability to influence the
structure or content of the College’s budget through overview of the Department of Education. The College presents a
financial burden to the PG, as the PG appropriates funds for College operations.

Pennsylvania Life and Health Insurance Guaranty Association (PLHIGA) (Fiduciary Fund) - The PLHIGA was created to
protect insurance policy owners, insured persons, beneficiaries, annuitants, payees and assignees of direct non-group life,
health, annuity and supplemental policies or contracts from potential insurer failure due to the impairment or insolvency of
the insurer. The PLHIGA guarantees the payment of insurance benefits and continuation of coverage by assessing member
insurers. The PLHIGA is also authorized to assist the Pennsylvania Insurance Commissioner in the prevention and detection of
insurer impairments or insolvencies. The PG has appointment approval authority for all governing board members and the
Insurance Commissioner has broad authority to impose will on the PLHIGA. There is a minor financial burden on the PG. The
PLHIGA is reported for its fiscal year ended December 31, 2010.

Pennsylvania Property and Casualty Insurance Guaranty Association (PPCIGA) (Fiduciary Fund) - The PPCIGA was created to
provide for the payment of insured property and casualty policy claim losses and to avoid losses to claimants or policyholders
as a result of insurer insolvency. The PPCIGA guarantees the payment of insurance benefits and continuation of coverage by
assessing member insurers. The PG has appointment approval authority for all governing board members and the Insurance
Commissioner has broad authority to impose will on the PPCIGA. There is a minor financial burden on the PG. The PPCIGA is
reported for its fiscal year ended December 31, 2010.

Public School Employees’ Retirement System (PSERS) (Fiduciary Fund) - The PSERS was created to administer and provide
pension benefits to public school employees in Pennsylvania. The PSERS covers almost all such employees. Covered
elementary and secondary school employers make employer contributions with the PG reimbursing each employer at least
half their required annual contribution. Employer contributions for covered employees of higher education institutions and
state-owned schools are shared equally by covered employers and the PG; all covered public school employees also
contribute. The PG appoints eight of fifteen voting board members; the seven other members are appointed by active or
retired public school employees or are appointed by public school boards. In addition to making significant contributions to
the PSERS, the PG guarantees the payment of all annuities and other pension benefits. This represents a compelling PG
financial burden.

Pennsylvania Convention Center Authority (PCCA) — The PCCA was created to operate the Pennsylvania Convention Center
located in the City of Philadelphia. The PG appoints six of the fifteen voting board members, and may appoint the chairman.
The Secretary of the Budget serves as a nonvoting ex officio member of the board. The PG has final approval authority over
the PCCA operating and capital budget. Additionally, the PCCA may not incur debt without the prior written approval of the
PG. This represents PCCA fiscal dependence on the PG. The PG financed a portion of the PCCA facility in prior fiscal years and
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 and the PG also pays other periodic amounts to the PCCA, thus there is a financial
burden on the PG.

Pennsylvania Economic Development Financing Authority (PEDFA) - The PEDFA was created to lend money primarily to
businesses to promote economic development in the Commonwealth. The PEDFA issues revenue bonds to fund specific
projects only and repayments are derived solely from project revenues. The debt is considered non-recourse, as the PEDFA is
not obligated to bondholders beyond amounts received by the Authority from the funded projects. Financial statement
information for the PEDFA is not reported because its only activity involves conduit debt. The PG appoints all sixteen board
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members; five members are ex-officio. The PG is not obligated for the PEDFA debt, but the PG could take certain actions to
satisfy bondholders. Upon dissolution, the assets of PEDFA revert to the Commonwealth.

Pennsylvania Energy Development Authority (PEDA) - The PEDA was created to promote the development of energy sources
within the Commonwealth. The PEDA issued revenue bonds and lent the proceeds to fund four specific projects. Loan
repayments are derived solely from project revenues. The debt is considered non-recourse, as the PEDA is not obligated to
bondholders beyond amounts received from the funded projects. The PEDA has not issued any debt since 1990. Financial
statement information for the PEDA is not reported because its only significant economic activity involves conduit debt. The
PG appoints all 19 board members; six members are ex-officio. The Governor must approve the issuance of PEDA debt. The
PG is not obligated for the PEDA debt, but the PG could take certain actions to satisfy bondholders.

Financial Statements for Component Units and Investment Trust Fund

Audited financial statements for component units are available by writing to the Commonwealth Chief Accounting Officer,
555 Walnut Street, Ninth Floor, Harrisburg, PA 17101-1921. The Commonwealth sponsors the INVEST Program for Local
Governments, an external investment pool, which is reported as an Investment Trust Fund. Audited financial statements for
that Program are also available through the Chief Accounting Officer.

Related Organizations

The Commonwealth created the Pennsylvania Municipal Retirement System (PMRS). The PG appoints all eleven governing
board members but is not financially accountable, as there is no imposition of will, no financial benefit/burden, nor fiscal
dependency associated with the PMRS. Local governments are the only participants in the PMRS. Participation is voluntary
and there are variations among different municipal pension plans. Local participating governments are financially responsible
only for their own plan obligations. The Commonwealth provides accounting services to the PMRS on a cost reimbursement
basis.

The Commonwealth also created the Automotive Theft Prevention Authority (ATPA). The PG appoints all seven governing
board members but is not financially accountable due to a lack of imposition of will and no financial benefit/burden. The
ATPA is not fiscally dependent on the PG. The operation of the ATPA is funded by an annual assessment paid by companies
providing automobile insurance in the Commonwealth. The PG processes cash receipts and disbursements for the ATPA.

The Philadelphia Parking Authority (Authority) is financially reported as a discretely presented component unit in the City of
Philadelphia’s (City) financial reporting entity. Act 22 of 2001 provided, in part, for the Commonwealth to appoint a voting
majority of the Authority’s governing board. The Act provided for an increase from five to eleven board members; the
Commonwealth appointed six new members by June 30, 2001. Effective June 30, 2006, the terms of board members
appointed prior to June 2001 expired. No replacement appointments for those positions were made, pursuant to the
provisions of the Act. Beginning June 1, 2006, the board consists of the six members appointed in 2001, whose terms expire
in 2011 and 2012. The PG is not financially accountable due to a lack of imposition of will and no financial benefit/burden.

The Philadelphia School District (School District) is financially reported as a discretely presented component unit in the City
of Philadelphia’s (City) financial reporting entity. During 2001, the General Assembly passed Senate Bill 640 that provided, in
part, for several changes to the Public School Code. Among other things, the changes provide for the Commonwealth to
appoint a voting majority of the School Reform Commission that now governs the School District. Despite these changes, the
School District remains fiscally dependent on the City.

Joint Venture

The Commonwealth, through its Office of Administration, created the Pennsylvania Employees’ Benefit Trust Fund (PEBTF)
using a contractual agreement with various Commonwealth employee labor unions. The PEBTF establishes and provides
active Commonwealth employee healthcare benefits and is the Commonwealth’s third-party administrator for the
Commonwealth’s retiree healthcare programs. A governing board administers the PEBTF; one-half of the board is appointed
by the Commonwealth and one-half is appointed by the various unions. Neither the Commonwealth nor the unions control
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the governing board or the PEBTF; administration is jointly and equally shared. The Commonwealth and certain of its
employees pay for the cost of providing benefits. Contribution amounts are based on the terms contained in collective
bargaining agreements. Employee unions are not financially responsible for making contributions. Neither the
Commonwealth nor the employee unions have an equity interest or any ongoing financial interest in the PEBTF. Aside from
its obligation to make periodic, established contributions, the Commonwealth is not responsible for any obligations of the
PEBTF.

Excluded Organizations

School districts, local governments and counties are considered separate, stand-alone primary governments because they are
governed by popularly elected officials. Secondary vocational-technical schools, intermediate units and community colleges
were considered as potential component units, but have been excluded from the financial reporting entity. These schools
may receive significant PG operating and/or capital subsidies, but the PG does not appoint a voting majority of governing
board members, nor does the PG impose its will on these organizations. Although various Commonwealth laws affect or
strongly influence these organizations, the PG does not control day-to-day operating decisions. These organizations are not
fiscally dependent. The PG appoints a portion, but not a voting majority, of the governing boards at the following four
universities (commonly referred to as state related): Pennsylvania State University, University of Pittsburgh, Lincoln
University and Temple University. The PG provides significant subsidies; however, given the absence of PG appointment of a
governing board voting majority and the lack of fiscal dependency, these universities are excluded from the financial
reporting entity.

Primary Government — Fund Structure

Fund Accounting: In governmental accounting, a fund is defined as an independent fiscal and accounting entity, with a self-
balancing set of accounts, recording cash and/or other resources together with all related liabilities and equities which are
segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance with the fund’s
special regulations, restrictions or limitations. In the Commonwealth, funds are established by legislative enactment or, in
certain rare cases, by administrative action.

The fund financial statements include: three major governmental funds and a total of all nonmajor governmental funds; four
major enterprise funds and a total of all nonmajor enterprise funds and internal service funds; and a total of all fiduciary
funds. The Commonwealth uses the following fund categories to account for each fund included in the primary government:

Governmental Funds
General Fund—Accounts for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The General Fund is the Commonwealth’s main operating fund and is reported as a Major Fund. Other Major Funds are
displayed in bold print in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Special Revenue Funds—Account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted or committed
to expenditure for specific purposes other than debt service or capital projects. The Motor License Fund and the Tobacco
Settlement Fund are reported as Major Funds.

The Motor License Fund receives restricted revenues from liquid fuels taxes, licenses and fees on motor vehicle registrations
and operating privileges, aviation fuel taxes, federal aid for highway and aviation purposes, contributions from local
subdivisions for highway projects and other miscellaneous highway revenues. The Fund makes expenditures for highway and
bridge improvement, design, maintenance, and purchases of rights-of-way, as well as aviation activities and transportation
licensing and safety activities. It also finances State Police highway patrol operations and pays subsidies to local subdivisions
for construction and maintenance of roads.

The Tobacco Settlement Fund was originally established to deposit all payments received by the Commonwealth pursuant to
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the Master Settlement Agreement with tobacco product manufacturers. Deposits into this fund include: jurisdictional
payments received by the Commonwealth from the Master Settlement Agreement, strategic contribution payments from the
Master Settlement Agreement, quarterly payments from certain Pennsylvania health insurance companies and earnings from
investments. Expenditures from this fund are determined by the annual budget appropriated to each program. Amounts
received from the Pennsylvania health insurance companies are held in a restricted account and used exclusively for
Department of Insurance initiatives.

Debt Service Funds— Account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed or assigned to expenditure
for principal and interest. There are no major debt service funds.

Capital Projects Funds— Account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed or assigned to
expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other capital assets. There are
no major capital projects funds.

Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Funds—Account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business
enterprises. Costs of providing goods and services to the general public on a continuing basis, including depreciation, are
financed or recovered primarily through user charges. The State Lottery Fund, State Workers’ Insurance Fund,
Unemployment Compensation Fund and Tuition Payment Fund are all reported as Major Funds.

The State Lottery Fund provides for the operation of the Pennsylvania State Lottery and for programs to support older
Pennsylvanians. Revenues are derived from the sale of lottery tickets, interest earned on securities and deposits, unclaimed
prize monies and Federal grants. Fund expenses pay for prizes to holders of winning lottery tickets and commissions to local
lottery agents. Amounts remaining after payment of lottery prizes and commissions are used to fund programs benefiting
older Pennsylvanians including PENNCARE, PACE, PACENET, free mass transit and reduced fare shared-ride programs, and
property tax and rent rebates.

The State Workers’ Insurance Fund (SWIF) was created by legislation on June 2, 1915 and operates within the Department of
Labor and Industry. It is a self-sustaining fund providing workers’ compensation insurance to employers, including those who
are refused policies by private insurance firms. SWIF is subject to underwriting rules, classifications and rates promulgated by
rating bureaus authorized by the Commonwealth Insurance Commissioner. Premium rates are established by the bureaus
based on the history of accidents by industry classification. Revenues are generated by premiums charged to policyholders
plus investment income. Workers’ compensation payments and administration costs are paid from the Fund. The SWIF is
reported for its fiscal year ended December 31, 2010.

The Unemployment Compensation (UC) Fund is comprised of four basic components: the Employer Contribution Fund, the
UC Benefit Payment Fund, the Special Administration Fund, and the UC Trust Fund. The purpose of these funds is to collect
employer assessments for UC and transfer the assessments to the Federal government for deposit in the UC Trust Fund. As
needed, these funds are drawn back to pay unemployment compensation payments to claimants. The Special Administration
Fund is used to isolate penalty and interest charges from employers and claimants. It is used to supplement grant-funding
shortfalls and pay audit disallowances with any remaining amounts over $200 thousand at each June 30 being transferred to
the UC Trust Fund. The UC Benefit Payment Fund also receives funds from the Federal government to reimburse
Pennsylvania for those Federal workers who collected UC benefits from Pennsylvania as well as grants to cover the cost of
extended benefits. Extended benefits are additional UC benefits payable to qualified workers when an “Extended Benefit
Period” (EB) occurs in Pennsylvania. An EB period begins with the third week after the unemployment rate reaches a certain
level prescribed by law and ends the third week after the unemployment rate declines to a certain level prescribed by law.

The Tuition Payment Fund offers a college savings program allowing participants to purchase college credits at the current
year rates. The program is administered by the Tuition Account Program Bureau within the Treasury Department with
oversight by the Tuition Account Program Advisory Board. Revenue is derived primarily from application fees, participant
contributions and investment income. Fund expenses consist mainly of payments to educational institutions and
administrative costs.
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Internal Service Funds—Account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department or agency to other
departments or agencies of the Commonwealth, or to other governmental units, on a cost-reimbursement basis.

The Purchasing Fund is used to purchase materials, supplies, services, and equipment for use by departments, agencies,
boards, and commissions of state government, and to pay costs associated with administering the fund. The fund receives
reimbursements from the various Commonwealth departments, boards, and commissions for the materials, services, and
supplies they obtain from appropriations and periodic loans from the General Fund, from the sale of vehicles and
unserviceable property and from interest earned on securities.

The Manufacturing Fund is a fund that uses inmate labor to produce items for the Department of Corrections and other state
agencies. The revenue source is the sale of items produced or services provided. Expenses are for raw materials, inmate
labor, and general and administrative costs.

Fiduciary Funds

Trust and Agency Funds—Account for assets held by the Commonwealth in a trustee capacity or as an agent for
individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds. These include Pension (and other employee
benefit) Trust Funds, an Investment Trust Fund, a Private Purpose Trust Fund and Agency Funds.

The State Employees' Retirement System, a pension trust fund, is a component unit and accounts for the payment of
retirement, disability and death benefits to members of the State Employees' Retirement System and their beneficiaries. The
Deferred Compensation Fund is a pension trust fund that collects and administers amounts contributed by Commonwealth
employees who defer a portion of their income until future years, in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The
Public School Employees’ Retirement System (PSERS), a pension trust fund, is a component unit and was created to
administer and provide pension benefits to public school employees in Pennsylvania. The PSERS covers almost all such
employees. Covered elementary and secondary school employers make employer contributions with the PG reimbursing
each employer at least half their required annual contribution. Employer contributions for covered employees of higher
education institutions and state-owned schools are shared equally by covered employers and the PG; all covered public
school employees also contribute. The SERS, the Deferred Compensation Fund and PSERS are reported for their fiscal years
ended December 31, 2010.

The INVEST Program for Local Governments is an Investment Trust Fund that invests amounts owned by local governments,
school districts and not for profit entities. The Tuition Account Investment Program is a Private Purpose Trust Fund that
invests amounts on behalf of participants who are saving for college tuition costs. The INVEST Program for Local
Governments is reported for its fiscal year ended December 31, 2010.

The largest Agency Fund, the Statutory Liquidator Fund, converts the remaining assets of insolvent insurance companies to
cash for remittance to policyholders, creditors and stockholders. The order of distribution of the assets is established in
Article V of the Pennsylvania Insurance Department Act of 1921 and on a Commonwealth Court approved percentage of
claim basis. Although not yet determined, the actual amounts to be paid based on the amount of the remaining assets are
expected to be less than the amounts actually claimed by creditors, policyholders and stockholders.

The Underground Storage Tank Indemnification Fund holds assets on behalf of owners and operators of underground storage
tanks who incur a liability for taking corrective actions associated with underground storage tank releases.

The Municipal Pension Aid Fund holds a portion of casualty insurance company tax assessments, which are remitted to
municipalities to help defray municipal police and fire fighter pension costs.
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Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting - Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis
of accounting. This means that the Statement of Net Assets reports all assets (including capital assets, such as heavy trucks,
highways and bridges) and all liabilities regardless of when payment is due. The Statement of Activities includes all revenues
and expenses (regardless of when cash is respectively received or paid). The Statement of Activities reports program
revenues, which are revenues derived directly from a specific governmental function and are reported by the function, which
generates the revenue. Charges for goods or services, most investment income, grant revenues and fines are reported as
program revenues. Neither program revenues nor expenses are reported for donated works of art, historical treasures or
similar assets received during the fiscal year because such donations are not material. All tax revenues, except for
unemployment compensation tax revenues which are reported as charges for sales and services program revenues, are
classified as general revenues in the Statement of Activities. The Statement of Activities also reports governmental activities
expenses that include governmental fund expenditures (those which are not eliminated or reclassified) and current year
depreciation on capital assets, which recognizes the cost of ordinary use of the assets over their estimated useful lives. The
costs of most employee benefits earned during the fiscal year (such as vacation time earned) and increases in self-insurance
liabilities are also reported as expenses in the Statement of Activities, regardless of when the benefits are used or the
liabilities are paid.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting — Fund Financial Statements

Governmental Funds

The General Fund, special revenue, debt service and capital projects funds (governmental funds) are reported using the
current financial resources measurement focus and modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this measurement focus,
only current assets and current liabilities are normally included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds
present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in
net current assets. Unreserved fund balance represents a measure of available, spendable resources. Under the modified
accrual basis of accounting, revenues of governmental funds are recognized in the year that they become susceptible to
accrual (both measurable and available to pay current fiscal year liabilities). The Commonwealth accrues the following major
revenue sources that are both measurable and available (available is defined as being received within 60 days of fiscal year
end for these revenues): sales and use taxes, cigarette taxes, corporation taxes, personal income taxes, liquid fuels taxes,
inheritance taxes, liquor taxes, investment income, institutional revenues and sales of goods and services. Grant revenues,
including Federal government grant revenues, are recognized when earned and available; accrued amounts due from the
Federal government are treated as available in the period in which all applicable eligibility requirements have been met.
Revenues from most other sources are recognized when received.

Expenditures are generally recognized in the fiscal year the goods or services are received and the related fund liability is
incurred. Debt service expenditures for principal and interest on general long-term obligations and other long-term liabilities
are recognized when due. Prepaid items and inventory purchases are reported as current fiscal year expenditures, rather
than allocating a portion of related cost to the fiscal year when the items are actually used. Expenditures are reported for
amounts accrued at fiscal year-end that normally would be liquidated with expendable available financial resources.

Proprietary Funds, Pension (and other employee benefit) Trust Funds and Investment Trust Fund

The enterprise, internal service (proprietary funds), pension (and other employee benefit) trust funds and the investment
trust funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this
measurement focus, all assets and liabilities associated with the operations of these funds are included on the Statement of
Net Assets. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the fiscal year earned and expenses are
recognized in the fiscal year incurred.

Proprietary Funds classify revenues and expenses as either ‘operating’ or ‘nonoperating’, depending on the nature of the
activities reported in the individual fund. The majority of transactions are reported as ‘operating’; however, investment
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income and grants are reported as ‘nonoperating’ revenues by all Proprietary Funds. Under the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board’s (GASB) Statement 20, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental
Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting,” the Commonwealth has elected not to adopt the Financial Accounting
Standards Board pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989.

Agency Funds

Assets and liabilities of agency funds are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Agency funds have no measurement
focus and do not report operating statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

Pooled Cash: In accordance with the Fiscal Code, cash balances of most Commonwealth funds are pooled by the Treasury
Department. Cash balances are segregated by fund, but accounted for centrally for receipt and disbursement purposes. The
law requires that collateral be pledged by banks and other financial institutions to guarantee the Commonwealth’s cash on
deposit.

Cash Equivalents: No investments that could be defined as cash equivalents have been treated as such on the Statement of
Cash Flows; therefore, only net changes in cash are displayed.

Investment Pools: The Fiscal Code provides the Treasury Department with investment control over most Commonwealth
funds. The Treasury Department uses a variety of internal investment pools that seek to provide preservation of principal,
liquidity, diversification and income for Commonwealth funds. All participating funds report amounts invested in such pools
as temporary investments; the pools themselves are not financially reported. The Treasury Department maintains an
external investment pool, the INVEST Program for Local Governments, which separately issues audited financial statements
and is reported as an Investment Trust Fund. Financial statements for the INVEST Program include a Statement of Net Assets
and a Statement of Changes in Net Assets prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis
of accounting.

Temporary Investments: The Treasury Department manages the Commonwealth Investment Program (CIP); practically all
individual funds that are part of primary government are participants in the CIP. Investments purchased by the CIP and
reported as shares by the participants are reported as temporary investments. Temporary investments are reported at fair
value (typically using published market prices) except for nonparticipating interest-bearing contracts, which are reported at
cost. Such investments, which are expected to be realized in cash within twelve months after fiscal year end or less, are
reported as temporary investments. The Treasury Department accounts for each participating fund’s equity (considered
“shares”) in the CIP on a daily basis. “Share” balances of participating funds may fluctuate considerably during the fiscal year,
based on the timing of cash receipts and disbursements in the participating fund. The CIP is considered an internal
investment pool. Periodic CIP earnings are allocated to specific participating funds based on either the weighted daily
average share balance or the net asset value on redemption date combined with share balances on declaration date. In
addition, several individual funds may directly own investments in specific securities.

Long-Term Investments: Investments expected to be realized in cash after more than twelve months from fiscal year end are
reported as long-term investments. Long-term investments are reported at fair value, except for certain nonparticipating
interest-bearing contracts, which are reported at cost. Fair values are based on published market prices, quotations from
national securities exchanges and securities pricing services, or by the respective fund managers for securities that are not
actively traded. Certain pension trust fund investments, including real estate, venture capital, private equity, private
placements and alternative investments are valued based on the net asset value as reported by the investee.

Investment Income: Investment income includes interest, dividends, realized gains and losses and the change in the fair
value of investments, if any, during the fiscal year. If the change in the fair value of investments decreases during any specific
fiscal year such decreases could cause reported overall investment income to be negative within specific funds. Similarly,
realized losses could cause reported overall investment income to be negative within specific funds. Certain investment
income from specific funds’ investments is assigned to another fund and is reported by the receiving fund if the income is
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transferred for legal or contractual reasons; otherwise, the investment income is reported as a transfer by the receiving fund.
Specific fund disclosures for assigned investment income are provided in Note H.

Grant Revenues: Federal grants and assistance awards made on the basis of entitlement periods are recorded as
intergovernmental revenues when entitlement occurs. Federal reimbursement-type grant revenues are recorded when the
related expenditures or expenses are incurred and the revenue is available to pay expenditures.

Inventories and Prepaid Expenses: Inventories of operating materials and supplies are reported by certain governmental
activities and operating and merchandise inventories are reported by Proprietary Funds and the State System of Higher
Education, a discretely presented component unit. Operating materials and supplies inventories are valued at cost (first-in,
first-out) and merchandise inventories are reported at the lower of cost or market. In the governmental fund financial
statements, inventories are accounted for using the purchases method whereby expenditures are reported for current-year
purchases of operating materials and supplies. Also, in governmental fund financial statements, prepaid expenses are not
reported.

Capital Assets and Depreciation: General capital assets (including infrastructure) and other capital assets are reported at
cost or estimated historical cost in the Statement of Net Assets. Donated capital assets are reported at fair market value at
the time of donation. The cost of all land is reported; for other types of capital assets, the following minimum dollar
reporting thresholds are used (in thousands):

Land improvements, buildings and building improvements... ............. S 25
Machinery and equipmMeNnt.......cccoovieriiiiiieniee e 25
Highway and bridge infrastructure .........cccccoeeeeciie e 100
All other INfrastruCtUre......oovveeiiiecee e 25
COMPULET SOFEWAIE ...veeieiiiie et 1,000
Trademarks, patents and copyrights......ccccccceeecieriiieeeecieeccee e 100

Commonwealth agencies maintain inventories of all their respective capital assets, including assets acquired for less than the
above minimum amounts, which are not reported in the Basic Financial Statements. The Pennsylvania Historical and
Museum Commission (PHMC) owns diverse collections of historical, architectural, prehistoric and artistic artifacts, archives
and manuscripts and scientific specimens. The Commonwealth does not capitalize these collections, as they meet the
following criteria: PHMC's mission in acquiring these collections is for the purpose of preservation, education, research and
exhibition; PHMC secures and preserves all collections in order to adequately preserve Commonwealth history; and all
acquisitions and deaccessions must be approved by the PHMC Collections Committee and the PHMC Executive Director. All
amounts received from the deacessioning of artifacts/collections are placed in a restricted account that can only be used for
the purchase of new artifacts/collections. The Commonwealth does not capitalize expenditures to protect farmland under
the Agricultural Area Security Law since participating counties within the Commonwealth play a much greater role in
administering the Law than the Commonwealth. Capital assets (excluding land and construction in progress) are
depreciated/amortized over the estimated useful lives of major capital asset classes using the straight-line method.
Depreciation/amortization expense is reported in the Statement of Activities as part of direct functional expenses; all
depreciation/amortization is allocated to a specific function. Capital assets reported by proprietary funds are reported in
those funds at cost or estimated historical cost. Depreciation/amortization is reported on the straight-line basis over the
capital assets’ estimated useful lives. Depreciation expense associated with capital assets being procured under capital lease
arrangements is reported as part of depreciation expense for other capital assets. The following useful lives are used for
primary government governmental activities:

Buildings and building improvements.........cccceeecveeevcieeeeciee e 40 years
Improvements other than buildings........cccccocvveeviiiiieece e, 30 years
Machinery and equUIPMENT........coccviiiiiiieeece e 10 years
Highway heavy equipment......cc.cceiveeiiieiieiiiieeee e 15 years
Highway infrastructure........occoviiiiiiiie e 25 years
Bridge iNfrastrUCTUre .........ooieuiiiiciee e et 50 years
Dams, dikes and pier infrastructure........cccccoveeeecieeecciee e 50 years
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Other iNfrastrUCtUre ......ccccivee e 20 years
COMPULET SOFtWAIE ...ttt e e e e e 3 —-30vyears
Trademarks, patents and copyrights......cccccceeeceriicieeeccee e, 3 —-40years

Primary government business-type activities report depreciation/amortization expense using useful lives that are very similar
to the above and do not report any infrastructure. Certain land, buildings and improvements owned by the Commonwealth
and used by the State System of Higher Education (SSHE), a discretely presented component unit, which were acquired or
constructed before July 1, 1983 (the inception date for the SSHE), are financially reported as governmental activities general
capital assets. All general capital assets acquired or constructed for the SSHE subsequent to June 30, 1983 without the use of
university funds or incurrence of SSHE debt are also reported as governmental activities general capital assets. This reporting
treatment is based on the title for the SSHE-used real property remaining with the primary government. Based on
agreements between the primary government, through its Department of General Services (DGS), and SSHE universities in
2002, DGS effectively transferred occupancy, custody and control to the SSHE universities and the SSHE universities assumed
financial responsibility and legal liability for the SSHE-used real property. Capital assets reported by the SSHE are stated at
cost. Depreciation of SSHE capital assets is recognized over the estimated useful life of the assets.

Capital Asset Impairments: Through a variety of policies, Commonwealth management requires agencies to perform
periodic assessments of general and other capital assets. Beyond initial reporting (upon acquisition), agencies must adhere
to continuing policies regarding usability, function and condition of reported capital assets. With few exceptions, reported
capital assets are used by Commonwealth agencies on a daily or other periodic basis and agencies must report impairments
promptly. In particular, Commonwealth highways and bridges are inspected on a frequent, scheduled basis. Other capital
assets, such as structures, are used for housing or office space. Many pieces of equipment, including rolling stock, are used
almost daily.

Liabilities: In the Statement of Net Assets, governmental, business-type and proprietary liabilities are presented as either
“current” or “noncurrent.” Liabilities are segregated into these categories by establishing an average maturity for the liability
class and classifying the portion due within one year of the statement date as current and the portion due beyond one year
of the statement date as noncurrent. For liabilities without specific maturity or due dates, estimates are made of maturities.
Liabilities without specific due dates include those related to self-insurance and compensated absences.

Self-Insurance: The Commonwealth is self-insured for property losses and for annuitant medical/hospital benefits, employee
disability and tort claims. Note M provides disclosures for self-insurance liabilities.

Compensated Absences: Employees earn annual leave, depending on length of credited service, from between 2.7 percent to
10 percent of regular hours paid. Generally, a maximum of 45 days may be carried forward at the end of each calendar year.
Employees are paid for accumulated annual leave upon termination or retirement.

Employees earn sick leave based on 5 percent of regular hours paid. Generally, a maximum of 300 days may be carried
forward at the end of each calendar year. Most retiring employees that meet service, age or disability requirements are paid
in accordance with the following schedule:

Days Available Percentage Maximum
at Retirement Payment Days Paid
0-100 30% 30
101-200 40% 80
201-300 50% 150
over 300 (in last year 100% of days
of employment) over 300 13

Accumulated annual and sick leave liabilities payable with expendable available financial resources are reported by
Governmental Funds; all compensated absences payable are reported by governmental and business-type activities and
Proprietary Funds and Pension Trust Funds.
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Pollution Remediation Obligations: In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets, pollution remediation obligations are
reported at the current value of expected outlays to fund remediation costs using the expected cash flow technique. This
technique measures the sum of probability-weighted amounts in a range of possible estimated amounts and uses all
expectations about possible cash flows on a site—specific basis. Such ranges are weighted within ‘most likely’, ‘worst case’
and/or ‘best case’ scenarios and are based on actual remediation cost experience, remediation cost estimates and/or discrete
cost remediation treatment possibilities. All reported obligation amounts are estimates and are subject to change resulting
from price increases or reductions, technology, or changes in applicable laws or regulations. In cases where remediation
activities beyond site investigation/assessment or feasibility studies have not begun, remaining remediation costs are not
reasonably estimable and liabilities for such cases are not reported.

Pension Costs: The Commonwealth’s policy is to fund employer contributions to the State Employees’ Retirement System
(SERS) as required by the SERS board, through its statutory authority, or as required based on other applicable statutory
requirements. Since 2005, established employer contributions have been completely funded but such contributions have
been less than the ‘annual required contributions of the employer’ (ARC) calculated using ‘parameters’ defined by applicable
accounting and financial reporting standards for ‘sole’ and ‘agent’” employer governments. Since the SERS is a cost-sharing,
multiple-employer pension plan, the Commonwealth does not financially report a net pension obligation for the amount by
which the calculated ARC exceeds actual contributions to the SERS. The Commonwealth is a non employer contributor in
relation to the Public School Employees Retirement System with a commitment to fund a minimum of 50% of the required
contributions.

Indirect Expenses: In the Statement of Activities, the full-cost allocation treatment is used, whereby reported program
expenses, by function, include any expenses which could be treated as indirect expenses of another function.

Interest Expense: In the Statement of Activities, no interest expense is reported by direct program costs. No interest
expense was capitalized during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

Intergovernmental Revenues: These amounts represent revenues received principally from the Federal government and
include revenues received from the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (PTC), a discretely presented component unit, based
on Act 44 of 2007 and the related Lease and Funding Agreement between the PTC and the primary government Department
of Transportation.

Restricted Net Assets: These amounts were determined based on enabling legislation, externally restricted by creditors,
grantors, contributions or laws that provide for restrictions on how the resources of special (non-General Fund) funds may be
used. At June 30, 2011, a portion of governmental activities net assets was restricted based on a Federal government
purpose restriction. Practically all reported restricted net assets could become unrestricted based on possible future
legislative changes.

Governmental Funds Fund Balance Categories

Nonspendable: Amounts that are not in spendable form (the long-term portion of loans receivable and advances to other
funds) are reported as nonspendable fund balance.

Spendable Categories:

Restricted: Amounts which may only be spent for 1) expenditures in accordance with grants received from external parties
or 2) expenditures which authorize expenditures for limited, specific purposes through enabling legislation (which also
authorizes the Commonwealth to assess, levy, charge or otherwise mandate payment of resources from external sources) are
reported as restricted fund balance.
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Unrestricted Categories:

Committed: Commonwealth law, enacted by the General Assembly (legislature) and approved by the Governor, is the
Commonwealth’s highest level of decision-making authority. Both legislative enactment and gubernatorial approval on or
prior to fiscal year end are necessary, formal actions to establish, modify and/or rescind amounts committed. Also, within
Governmental Funds, amounts encumbered through contract or purchase order are typically reported as fund balance
commitments to the extent of existing resources.

Assigned: Based on applicable Commonwealth laws, the Governor is responsible for accounting and financial reporting
matters. Through a 1984 Executive Order, the Governor delegates this authority to the Secretary of the Budget. Through
further delegation, amounts assigned are determined jointly, between the Governor’s Budget Office and the Office of
Comptroller Operations.

Unassigned: This is a residual category. Only the General Fund can report a positive unassigned fund balance. The General
Fund can also report a negative amount in the unassigned category and for other governmental funds where amounts
restricted and/or committed exceed total fund balance, such funds report negative amounts in the Unassigned category.

Encumbrances: Among spendable fund balance amounts reported in the financial statements, certain amounts are disclosed
as encumbrances based on purchase orders and other contracts. Such amounts are disclosed in Note C to the Financial
Statements.

Classification among fund balance categories: Commonwealth laws, including annual enacted budgets, include legally
enforceable expenditure restrictions on all funds. Commonwealth laws do not specifically recognize ‘restricted’ or
‘unrestricted’ (committed, assigned or unassigned) fund balance amounts. For financial reporting purposes, fund balance
amounts for individual, specific Commonwealth funds are reported in the first classification for which the amount ‘qualifies’,
in this order: nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned. Amounts are considered to have been spent
from the fund balance classification from which specific expenditures are legally authorized. Within individual, specific
Commonwealth funds, based on applicable law, individual expenditures may be charged to (spent from) only one, specific
appropriation at a time or, possibly, several specific appropriations at a time. Budgetary spending control occurs at the
appropriation level. Since appropriations are not duplicated among the various GAAP-reported fund balance classifications
and state laws do not recognize the various classifications, accounting policies cannot establish that restricted amounts are
spent before or after unrestricted amounts, or, within unrestricted amounts, that committed, assigned or unassigned
amounts are spent in any specific order.

Budget Stabilization Reserve Fund: Act 91 of 2002 provided for this Fund effective July 1, 2002 to gradually provide a
budgetary reserve amounting to 6 percent of the revenues of the General Fund. For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2002
and in any fiscal year thereafter in which the Secretary of the Budget certifies that there is a surplus in the General Fund, 25
percent of the surplus is to be deposited by the end of the next succeeding quarter into this Fund. The last such transfer was
$177 million (based on the June 30, 2007 surplus) during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. Due to July 2008 legislation,
there was no transfer from the General Fund during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. Further, the enacted General Fund
budget for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 provided that nearly the entire balance in this Fund be transferred to the
General Fund; a $755 million transfer occurred on October 15, 2009. Since this Fund is financially reported as part of the
General Fund all transfers between this Fund and the General Fund are eliminated in the basic financial statements. During
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the Commonwealth experienced a significant excess of General Fund revenues above the
official revenue estimate and ended the fiscal year with an unappropriated ending fund balance of $1.07 billion, as calculated
on a budgetary basis. Under the aforementioned provisions of Act 91 of 2002, 25 percent of the ending June 30, 2011
balance was to be transferred from the General Fund to the Budget Stabilization Reserve Fund. However, provisions of the
federal American Recovery and Reinvestment Act, which provided several billion dollars in financial assistance to the
Commonwealth over the past three fiscal years, precluded the Commonwealth from transferring any June 30, 2011 General
Fund fund balance to its Budget Stabilization Reserve Fund.

Tobacco Master Settlement Agreement Proceeds: In 1997, the Pennsylvania Attorney General began litigation in the
Philadelphia court of common pleas against several defendant tobacco product manufacturers to recover specified damages.
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Similar litigation was filed by many other states. In 1998, the Commonwealth joined in the Master Settlement Agreement
which settled litigation against certain defendant manufacturers and 52 governmental entities, including Pennsylvania. As
part of the settlement, the manufacturers agreed to remit periodic payments to the Commonwealth and other states in
perpetuity. The proceeds of the settlement are accounted for in the Tobacco Settlement Fund. Amounts remitted are
calculated based on a variety of specific settlement provisions; actual tobacco product sales are one key factor. The
Agreement contains procedures for resolving disputes over payment or other issues that may arise. A dispute regarding the
amount to be paid for cigarette sales that took place in 2003 is currently being litigated.

Due From Other Governments: This receivable represents amounts due primarily from the Federal government for various
department programs.

Bonds Issued, Premium/Discount on Bonds Issued and Bond Issuance Costs: In governmental fund financial statements, the
face amount of bonds issued and related premium/discount are separately reported as other financing sources/uses. Bond
issuance costs are reported as expenditures. In government-wide financial statements, the face amount of bonds issued is
reported as a liability and related premium/discount is amortized over the life of the outstanding debt and is reported as
interest expense as part of functional governmental activities expenses. Bond issuance costs are reported as expenses.

Interfund Transactions: The Commonwealth has the following types of transactions between funds; between PG
governmental activities and business-type activities; and between PG and discretely presented component units:

Statutory Transfers—Legally required transfers from specific funds that subsidize receiving fund programs are reported when
paid as “Transfers in” by the receiving fund and as “Transfers out” by the disbursing fund. Legally required payments from
the primary government to component unit organizations are reported when paid as governmental activities program
expenses and as either Operating Grants and Contributions or Capital Grants and Contributions by component unit
organizations. Interfund balances (amounts due from/to other funds) are reported for unremitted, due and payable,
transfers at fiscal year end. In the Statement of Activities, only transfers between governmental activities and business-type
activities are reported as transfers.

Transfers of Expenditures (Reimbursements)—Reimbursement of expenditures made by one fund for another that are
recorded as expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as a reduction of expenditures in the reimbursed fund.

Interfund Services Provided and Used—Charges or collections for services provided by one fund to another that are recorded
as revenues of the recipient fund and expenditures or expenses of the disbursing fund are reclassified and treated as
reimbursements (above) in fund financial statements and the Statement of Activities.

Interfund balances: Amounts due from/to other funds are reported for unremitted charges or collections at fiscal year end
that arise in connection with routine, ordinary governmental fund and proprietary fund operations. The composition of the
Commonwealth’s interfund receivables/payables at June 30, 2011 and transfers in/out during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2011 are presented in Note H. Interfund balances between two governmental funds or two proprietary funds are not
reported in the Statement of Net Assets.

New Accounting Pronouncements — Adopted:

In February 2009, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 54, “Fund Balance Reporting
and Governmental Fund Type Definitions.” GASB Statement No. 54 changes the existing categories within governmental
funds fund balances from the former Reserved, Unreserved and, within Unreserved, Designated and Undesignated fund
balances, to the new Nonspendable and Spendable and, within Spendable, Restricted, Committed, Assigned and Unassigned
categories. Also, governmental funds fund type classifications are clarified. As further disclosed in Note B to the Financial
Statements, the Commonwealth’s implementation of GASB Statement No. 54 did not change any individual governmental
fund’s fund balance but did change the categories reported within fund balance and did change fund type classification for 41
former Special Revenue funds.
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

In June 2010, the GASB issued Statement No. 59, “Financial Instruments Omnibus.” GASB Statement No. 59 provides changes
to how unallocated insurance contracts are reported, amending GASB Statement Nos. 25, “Financial Reporting for Defined
Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans” and 43 “Financial Reporting for Postemployment
Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans”; clarifies that interest rate risk should be disclosed only for debt investment pools
that do not meet the requirements to be reported as 2a7-like pools, amended GASB Statement No. 40 “Deposit and
Investment Risk Disclosures (an amendment of GASB Statement No. 3)” and amends very specific, limited portions of GASB
Statement No. 53 “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments”. Implementation did not change how
investments are reported or disclosed in the basic financial statements.

New Accounting Pronouncements — To Be Adopted:

In December 2009, the GASB issued Statement No. 57, “OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-
Employer Plans.” GASB Statement No. 57 amends certain current standards related to: employer accounting and reporting
for OPEB; and OPEB plan reporting. The newer requirements are intended to increase the number of employer governments
which may use the ‘alternative method’ and clarifies that the same frequency and timing of determining OPEB measures are
required for both agent multiple-employer plans and those plans’ participating employer governments. This will not have an
effect on the Commonwealth.

In November 2010, the GASB issued Statement No. 60, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession
Arrangements.” GASB Statement No. 60 provides accounting and financial reporting requirements for reporting service
concession arrangements (SCAs). An SCA is an arrangement between a transferor (a government) and an operator
(governmental or nongovernmental entity) in which (1) the transferor conveys to an operator the right and related obligation
to provide services through the use of infrastructure or another public asset in exchange for significant consideration and (2)
the operator collects and is compensated by fees from third parties. The Commonwealth will determine if there are any
SCA’s and, if so, method of presentation.

In November 2010, the GASB issued Statement No. 61, “The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus”, an amendment of GASB
Statements No. 14 “The Financial Reporting Entity”, and No. 34 “Basic Financial Statements—and Management's Discussion
and Analysis—for State and Local Governments”. GASB Statement No. 61 amends certain requirements for inclusion of
component units in the reporting government’s financial reporting entity. The amendments to the criteria for including
component units allow users of financial statements to better assess the accountability of elected officials by ensuring that
the financial reporting entity includes only organizations for which the elected officials are financially accountable or that are
determined by the government to be misleading to exclude. It also requires consolidation, as a blended component unit,
organizations which serve as financing vehicles for the primary government. The Commonwealth will be reevaluating its
component units and method of presentation.

In December 2010, the GASB issued Statement No. 62, “Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance
Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements.” GASB Statement No. 62 incorporates into the
GASB’s own pronouncements certain accounting and financial reporting guidance that is included in the following
pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, which does not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements:

1. Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and interpretations;

2. Accounting Principles Board Opinions; and,

3. Accounting Research Bulletins of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ (AICPA) Committee on
Accounting Procedure

In June 2011, the GASB issued Statement No. 63, “Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows or Resources, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Net Position.” GASB Statement No. 63 provides accounting and financial reporting requirements for deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources as introduced and defined in GASB’s Concepts Statement No. 4,
“Elements of Financial Statements”. This Statement amends the net asset reporting requirements in Statement No. 34,
“Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments”.
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

In June 2011, the GASB issued Statement No. 64, “Derivative Instruments: Application of Hedge Accounting Termination
Provisions, an amendment of GASB Statement No. 53”. GASB Statement No. 53 clarified whether an effective hedging
relationship continues after the replacement of a swap counterparty or a swap counterparty’s credit support provider. This
Statement sets forth criteria that establish when the effective hedging relationship continues and hedge accounting should
continue to be applied.

The new standards must be adopted as follows:

GASB Statement No. 57  Effective immediately for employer alternative measurement purposes and effective
July 1, 2011 for OPEB plan financial statements for fiscal years ending June 30, 2012.

GASB Statement No. 60  Effective July 1, 2012 for financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.
GASB Statement No. 61 Effective July 1, 2012 for financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.
GASB Statement No. 62  Effective July 1, 2012 for financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.
GASB Statement No. 63  Effective July 1, 2012 for financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

GASB Statement No. 64  Effective July 1, 2011 for financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012.
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June 30, 2011

NOTE B — RESTATEMENTS

Primary Government

Restatement Due to Adoption of New Accounting Standard

Effective July 1, 2010 the Commonwealth implemented the Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s (GASB’s) Statement
No. 54, “Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions”. Total previously-reported governmental funds
fund balance at June 30, 2010 ($6,350,874) did not change. However, as depicted below, implementation did change fund
type classification effective July 1, 2010 for 41 individual funds formerly reported as Special Revenue funds through June 30,
2010. Effective July 1, 2010, these 41 individual funds began to be reported as either: 1) components within the reported
General Fund (38 of the 41 funds) or 2) individual Capital Projects funds (three of the 41 funds). On a fund-by-fund basis,
previously-reported fund balance at June 30, 2010 did not change for any of the 41 aforementioned funds, or for any other
individual governmental fund, except for the reported General Fund fund balance (amounts in thousands).

Governmental Fund Types - Fund Balances by Fund Type Classification

Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Service Projects
Fund Funds Funds Funds

Total
Governmental
Funds

Fund balances by fund type, as previously reported, at June 30 2010 $ 284,803 $5,272,103 $ 46,853 $ 747,115

To apply new Special Revenue fund type definition

Fund balances by fund type, as restated, as of July 1,2010

Special Revenue Funds fund balances,
as previously reported, at June 30 2010:

Major Funds:
Motor License Fund
Tobacco Settlement Fund
Total non-major funds

Total, as previously reported at June 30,2010

Special Revenue Funds fund balances,

as restated, as of July 1, 2010:
Major Funds:
Motor License Fund
Tobacco Settlement Fund
Total non-major funds

Total, as restated as of July 1,2010
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280,420 *  (445,663) - 165243 **

$ 6,350,874

$ 565,223 $4,826,440 $ 46,853 $ 912,358

$ 6,350,874

$1,661,421
827,184
2,783,498
$5,272,103

$1,661,421
827,184
2,337,835
$4,826,440

* Former Special Revenue Funds being reported as General Fund:
Catastrophic Loss Benefits Continuation Fund
Pharmaceutical Assistance Fund
Surface Mining Conservation and Reclamation Fund
Other funds

Total

Former Special Revenue Funds being reported as Capital Projects Funds:
Public Transportation Assistance Fund
Growing Greener Bond Fund
Water Supply and Wastewater Treatment Fund
Total

83

$ 94,831
50,680
45,714
89,195

$ 280,420

S 29,275
53,613
82,355

S 165,243
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NOTE B — RESTATEMENTS (continued)

Discretely Presented Component Units

Restatement Due to Adoption of New Accounting Standard

Effective June 1, 2010 the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (PTC) adopted GASB Statement No 53, “Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments”. Implementation affected previously-reported total assets, total liabilities
and total net assets, as previously reported at May 31, 2010. Total previously-reported assets of $5,919 increased by $121,
to $6,040, total previously-reported liabilities of $6,785 increased by $100, to $6,885, and total previously reported net assets
deficit of $865 decreased by $20, to $845, as of June 1, 2010. The restatement increased previously- reported Net assets
invested in capital assets, net of related debt by $31.2 as of June 1, 2010. Previously-reported Restricted net assets
decreased by $15.9 as of June 1, 2010. Previously-reported Unrestricted net assets deficit was decreased by $5.4 as of June
1, 2010 (amounts in millions).

Restatement Due to Inclusion of Discretely Presented Component Unit

Effective July 1, 2010 the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania’s financial reporting entity’s discretely presented component units
include the Pennsylvania Convention Center Authority (PCCA) based on certain terms within a 2010 Operating Agreement
among the Commonwealth, the City of Philadelphia and the PCCA. The PCCA was formerly reported as a discretely presented
component unit of the City of Philadelphia through June 30, 2010. The PCCA’s previously-reported net assets of $686,863 at
June 30, 2010 have not changed as of July 1, 2010 (amount in thousands).

As a result of the two restatements affecting discretely presented component units, total previously-reported net assets of
the discretely presented component units of $4,167,563 at June 30, 2010 have been restated and increased by $707,534 to
$4,875,097 as of July 1, 2010 (amounts in thousands).
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NOTE C— NET ASSETS AND FUND BALANCE

Governmental Activities and Business-Type Activities Net Assets: Total Net Assets are the difference between Total Assets
and Total Liabilities reported on the Statement of Net Assets. Total Net Assets are reported in three distinct components:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt; Restricted net assets; and Unrestricted net assets.

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt represents total capital assets less accumulated depreciation and the
outstanding liability (excluding unspent proceeds) for debt specifically related to the acquisition of the capital assets. At June
30, 2011, governmental and business-type activities, respectively, reported $25,352,588 and $84,065 of net assets invested in
capital assets, net of related debt (amounts in thousands).

Restricted net assets are reported based on constraints imposed by either 1) creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or
regulations of other governments; or 2) Commonwealth enabling legislation. At June 30, 2011, governmental and business-
type activities, respectively, reported $3,308,306 and $665,847 of restricted net assets. Net assets restricted for other
purposes of $40,078 and $94,985 for governmental activities and business-type activities, respectively, at June 30, 2011
include amounts for a range of dissimilar statutory purposes (amounts in thousands).

Unrestricted net assets represents total net assets less the amounts of net assets invested in capital assets, net of related
debt and restricted net assets. At June 30, 2011, governmental and business-type activities, respectively, reported
unrestricted net assets deficits of $4,407,594 and $2,314,339 (amounts in thousands).

Governmental Funds Fund Balance: Reported fund balance within individual governmental funds is categorized between
nonspendable and spendable categories. At June 30, 2011 nonspendable fund balance is only reported for amounts which
are not in spendable form; no nonspendable fund balance is reported based on either legal or contractual requirements to be
maintained intact. Within the spendable category, fund balance is further categorized among: restricted, committed,
assigned and, within the General Fund only, unassigned categories. At June 30, 2011, spendable governmental funds fund
balance is categorized among all categories except that no assigned fund balance is reported among any of the governmental
funds because, if reported, the assigned fund balance or a portion thereof would cause a negative unassigned fund balance.
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NOTE C— NET ASSETS AND FUND BALANCE (continued)
Motor Tobacco
General License Settlement Nonmajor
Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
Nonspendable:
Not in spendable form:
Advances to other funds........cceceevvevvrereeereneas 114,475 S - S - S - S 114,475
Long-term loans receivable.......cccoevevrrrunnnne. 8,681 - - - 8,681
Total nonspendable 123,156 - - - 123,156
Restricted for:
General government operations.. 756,141 $ - S - S - S 756,141
Health-related programs........cccccevevveveciecenuenens - - 44,261 17,534 61,795
Transportation.......cceveveeenenenieneeceeceeeeeen - 1,503,483 - 135,098 1,638,581
Unemployment/worker's compensation....... - - - 761,476 761,476
Environmental and conservation programs - - - 420,567 420,567
Gaming licensing/regulation.... - - - 731,517 731,517
Emergency SUppOrt......ovevnienccncnicineens - - - 52,083 52,083
Other PUrPOSES....ccceveeicicirieesteeeeee e eevenne - - - 45,975 45,975
Total restricted 756,141 1,503,483 44,261 2,164,250 4,468,135
Committed for:
General government operations................... 790,156 S - S - S - S 790,156
Health-related programs........ccevvvevereccnnnes - - 408,139 - 408,139
Transportation.......c.ceeveevnennenenneneeeneeens - - - 29,867 29,867
Capital Projects.....cceeeeeerneririrererereseeeenenas - - - 209,313 209,313
Debt service......... - - - 17,040 17,040
Elderly programs 37,400 - - - 37,400
Environmental and conservation programs 94,945 - - 18,252 113,197
Economic development.........ccceeevevereeererennnnns 11,565 - - - 11,565
Emergency suppoOrt......cevevenenenenieneecneenen. 217 - - - 217
Higher education.... 3,943 - - - 3,943
Other PUrPOSES.....ccveeeeeeeeeereriseeeeserae e eeseeens 125,387 - - - 125,387
Total committed 1,063,613 - 408,139 274,472 1,746,224
Unassigned:
DEfiCite ittt (321,475) $ - S - S (23,548) S (345,023)
Total fund balances. 1,621,435 $ 1,503,483 S 452,400 $ 2,415,174 S 5,992,492

A portion of the nonspendable fund balance reported by the General Fund, $114.5 million, is applicable to advances to other
funds at June 30, 2011, as follows; $2.3 million to the State Workers’ Insurance Fund and $110.0 million to the State Stores
Fund, both Enterprise Funds; and $2.2 million to the Motor License Fund, a Special Revenue fund.

Encumbrances: Fund balance amounts related to encumbrances based on outstanding purchase orders and other contracts

are as follows (amounts in thousands):

General Fund S 810,825
Motor License Fund........ccccecveveueene 437,952
Tobacco Settlement Fund.............. 510
Capital Facilities Fund................... 1,841,716
Other nonmajor funds 315,625
o] 7 | F O $3,406,628
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NOTE C — NET ASSETS AND FUND BALANCE (continued)

Governmental Funds Fund Balance Deficits: The State Racing Fund and Uninsured Employers Guaranty Fund, both Special
Revenue Funds, reported fund balance deficits of $2,791 and $46, respectively, at June 30, 2011. The Capital Facilities Fund,
a Capital Projects fund, reported a total fund balance deficit of $20,711 at June 30, 2011 (amounts in thousands).

Proprietary Funds Net Assets: Nonmajor Enterprise funds reported total restricted net assets for “other purposes” of
$94,985 at June 30, 2011 for the following programs: mine subsidence insurance, $84,833; vocational rehabilitation, $2,249;
and $7,903 for other programs (amounts in thousands).

Proprietary Funds Net Assets Deficits: In addition to deficits reported in four major funds (Unemployment Compensation
Fund, State Workers’ Insurance Fund, State Lottery Fund and Tuition Payment Fund), one nonmajor Enterprise fund has
reported a net asset deficit in the proprietary statement of net assets. The State Stores Fund reported a net assets deficit of
$98,831 at June 30, 2011 (amount in thousands).

Component Unit Net Assets: Net assets of most component units are restricted, consistent with enabling legislation for
component units. Net assets are restricted for purposes specifically identified by the legislation that created the component
unit entity. At June 30, 2011 the Philadelphia Regional Port Authority and the Commonwealth Financing Authority reported
deficit unrestricted net assets of $806 and $455,695, respectively (amounts in thousands).
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NOTE D — DEPOSITS, INVESTMENTS AND FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK

Authority for Deposits and Investments
Treasury Department

The deposit and investment policies of the Treasury Department are governed by Sections 301, 301.1 and 505 of the Pennsylvania
Fiscal Code (Act of 1929, P.L. 343), and Section 321.1 of the Pennsylvania Administrative Code (Act of 1929, P.L. 177, No. 175).

Treasury deposits must be held in insured depositories approved by the Board of Finance and Revenue and must be fully
collateralized. The Fiscal Code grants the Treasury Department the authority to invest in any deposits and investments. This
authority is subject, however, to the exercise of that degree of judgment and care under the circumstances then prevailing which
persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence who are familiar with such matters exercise in the management of their own affairs
not in regard to speculation but in regard to the permanent disposition of the funds considering the probable income to be derived
there from as well as the probable safety of their capital. Treasury Department deposits and investments may include equity
securities and mutual funds.

As of June 30, 2011, the Treasury Department manages the Commonwealth Investment Program (CIP). Practically all
Commonwealth Funds of the primary government are invested on a temporary basis in the CIP. Treasury is required to exercise
careful judgment in determining those investments that are appropriate for each Commonwealth fund based upon distinct
investment criteria such as income needs, cash flow requirements, investment time horizons, and risk tolerance. All investments
are made in accordance with the statutory authority described in the preceding paragraph. The CIP investment pool structure
invests in both equity securities and fixed income securities to achieve the investment objectives of the funds of the CIP. Asset
allocation targets among cash, equity securities, fixed income securities and alternative investments are established in order to
meet these overall objectives.

Treasury has created two separate Pools within the CIP, each with its own distinct investment strategies, goals, and holdings that
reflect the differing needs of Commonwealth funds for income, cash flows, and investment risk tolerance. A highly liquid vehicle,
Pool 99, consists of short-term fixed income and cash and provides a high degree of liquidity and security but only modest returns.
A less liquid vehicle, Pool 198, allows for investment in assets that offer potentially higher returns with commensurate risk.

Other Investing Organizations

Certain investing organizations have statutory authority, which is comparable to the Treasury Department ‘prudent person’
authority above. The investments of such organizations are accounted for in the following funds: Workers Compensation Fund,
Tobacco Settlement, Workers Compensation Security Trust, State Workers’ Insurance, Tuition Payment, Tuition Account
Investment Program, INVEST Program for Local Governments (INVEST), and Underground Storage Tank Indemnification (collectively,
other investing organizations). Among other things, the other investing organizations typically invest for longer periods of time than
the CIP. Therefore, the other investing organizations own, in relative terms, more intermediate or long-term investments than the
CIP. Most of the other investing organizations establish contractual arrangements with investment managers, which identify
investment objectives without providing strict limitations on ‘allowable’ investment purchases. Most of the other investing
organizations prohibit investing in certain assets, such as commodities and futures contracts, private placements (except Section
144), limited partnerships, and corporations that are engaged in the tobacco industry. Several of the organizations also prohibit
short selling and marginal transactions. One notable exception is Tobacco Settlement; this organization permits some or all of the
previously mentioned prohibited assets and transactions as well as foreign investments.

Pension Trust Funds

The State Employees’ Retirement System (SERS), the Deferred Compensation Program (DCP), the Public School Employees’
Retirement System (PSERS) and the Other Post Employment Benefit Investment Pool constitute combined Pension (and Other
Employee Benefit) Trust Funds (Pension Trust Funds) reported in the basic financial statements. Pension Trust Funds avoid deposit
risks; as such deposits must be authorized by the Treasury Department. Several state laws govern investment authority for the SERS
and the PSERS, such laws provide ‘prudent person’ investing authority. Allowable DCP investment options are established by the
SERS under its applicable statutory authority. A very large portion of total Pension Trust Fund investments consists of equity
securities, real estate and a wide variety of mutual funds.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2011

NOTE D — DEPOSITS, INVESTMENTS AND FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK (continued)

Statutory Liquidator Fund

The Statutory Liquidator Fund investments are primarily managed by the affected insurance companies pursuant to
Liquidation Orders issued by the PA Insurance Commissioner. Other investments are managed by the Insurance
Department’s Office of Liquidations, Rehabilitations and Special Funds. Also, a portion of Statutory Liquidator holdings is
invested in the Commonwealth Investment Program.

Deposit Risks

At June 30, 2011, Treasury Department bank balances of $6,555 were subject to custodial risk because they were uninsured
and uncollateralized. In addition, $21,097 of Statutory Liquidator Fund deposits were subject to custodial credit risk because
they were uninsured and uncollateralized. The PSERS had deposits at M&T Bank (which has a credit rating of A-/A3) totaling
$57,924 at June 30, 2011 that were not required to be collateralized by statute or policy. None of the other investing
organizations or the Pension Trust Funds were exposed to either custodial credit risk or foreign currency risk for its deposits
at June 30, 2011 (December 31, 2010 for the State Workers’ Insurance Fund, SERS, INVEST and DCP) (amounts in thousands).

Investment Risks

Risk Management Policies: The Treasury Department, which is responsible for the CIP, Tuition Payment and INVEST
Program, has formally adopted a written investment policy. Provisions of the written investment policy and current
management of the investments address custodial credit risk, concentration of credit risk, credit risk, interest rate risk, and
foreign currency risk. Most of the other investing organizations have adopted investment policies intended to reduce the
various risks or, in the case of foreign currency risk, to avoid it entirely. Pension Trust Fund policies avoid custodial credit risk
entirely but are exposed to credit risk, interest rate, and foreign currency risk. To a large degree, credit risk is mitigated by
following policies to purchase only ‘investment grade’ securities (Baa/BBB/BBB or better). Where interest rate risk policies
have been adopted, risk is mitigated by establishing maximum maturities. To a degree, the establishment of policies limiting
investment purchases from a single issuer mitigated concentration risk. The individual risk policies and related disclosures
are discussed in greater detail below. Based on the long-term nature of Pension Trust Fund investments, those Funds are
exposed to interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and, to a smaller degree, credit risk.

Investments by Type

At June 30, 2011, the Treasury and other investing organizations reported a total of $17,757,585 in investments. Cash
equivalents and certificates of deposit, amounting to $849,708, which are held in the Commonwealth Investment Pool and
other portfolios, are reported as investments but are not included as part of fixed income investment disclosures. Excluding
cash equivalents and certificates of deposits, total investments disclosed amount to $16,907,877; of this amount, excluding
equities and private equity holdings (51,875,656 and $792,494, respectively), fixed income investments disclosed amount to
$14,239,727. The investment types and related amounts are as follows (amounts in thousands):
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2011

NOTE D — DEPOSITS, INVESTMENTS AND FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK (continued)

Investment Type Amount
AL EINATIVE .ottt ee e et e et e e e e e e e e aaeaas S (10)
Asset backed SECUNITIOS...couiuuuiiiiiiee e 150,594
COMMETCIAl PP ettt e e e et e e e e aabeeeeaaaans 2,887,301
Convertible SECUNITIES. ..ot 1,266
Corporate obligatioNS...... .o 1,294,983
EQUIties...cccoevveeieeiieiieeee 1,875,656
Money market mutual funds.. 1,905,364
Mortgage-backed securities... 539,777
IMUTUAT FUNAS . e e 38,716
Preferred SECUNITIES ..ttt et e e e e e e e aaeeen 2,145
Private @QUITY. ..o e 792,494
Private pPlaCcements. ... e 252,102
REPUIChase agreemMeNTS. ... iiiiiieeeiii et ee et e e e eeens 212,625
Sovereign debt 0bligations......coviiiiiiiiiiiiiic e 35,116
State and municipal 0bligations......cccuuviiiiiiiiiiiiiieie 215,543
U.S. GOVernNmMeENt @8eNCIeS . ..iuuiiiieii ettt 44,296
U.S. Government sponsored enterprises... 5,536,985
U.S. Treasury obligations. 1,122,924
TOtal iNVESTMENTS .cieeeiieeeeiiiiiiiieerreeeeiceeeeese s e e e e s e e e eennnnassssssssnnnes S 16,907,877
Cash equivalents and certificates of deposit.......cccceeeveiiiieiiiiiiiieennnnnns 849,708
Total investments, cash equivalents and certificates of deposit........ $ 17,757,585

In addition, at June 30, 2011, all reported investments of the Tuition Account Investment Program, amounting to $974,419,
consist entirely of mutual funds ($921,687) and money market mutual funds ($52,732).

Custodial Credit Risk: Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event a counterparty fails to uphold its
agreement to a transaction, with either the Treasury Department, the other investing organizations or the Pension Trust
Funds, they would not be able to recover the value of investment or collateral securities in the possession of an outside party.
In accordance with a contractual relationship between the Treasury Department and its custodial agents, substantially all
investments, where securities are used as evidence of the investment, are held by the custodians in book entry form in the
name of the Commonwealth or the custodian. The CIP, Tuition Payment and INVEST investments are insured or registered;
and the securities are held by the Treasury Department or its agent. Similarly, investments of the other investing
organizations and the Pension Trust Funds are almost always registered in the name of the Commonwealth, as the Treasury
Department is the statutory custodian for such investments. At June 30, 2011, only the Statutory Liquidator Fund, an Agency
Fund, owned investment securities subject to custodial credit risk, in the amount of $2,376,122. Such securities are neither
insured nor registered and are either held by the counterparty or the counterparty’s trust department or agent but not in the
name of the Commonwealth. The investment types and related amounts are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Investment Type Amount
Asset backed securities.......ccoeeeeiviveeeiiiiiieeeiiiieeees S 218,982
Commercial PaPer...ccccceieiiiieeeieee e 74,256
Corporate obligations..........eeeeeeveieeiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeee, 627,532
DErIVATIVES ..ottt e e (333)
Mortgage-backed securities........ccceeeeiiiiieiiriniinnnnnnn. 702,079
Private placements...cccveeeeeieciiiiieieeee e 36,620
Repurchase agreements.......occcvvvvrreeeeeeeeeessesinnnnns 71,041
Sovereign debt obligations.. 12,859
U.S. Government agenCiesS......uueveerreereeeireerennnnnennns 243,951
U.S. Treasury obligations........ccccueviiieeeeeeeinnnniniiiines 389,135
L] | S 2,376,122
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2011

NOTE D — DEPOSITS, INVESTMENTS AND FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK (continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk: Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the government’s
investment in a single issuer. The Treasury Department places a 10 percent limit on the concentration of investments in any
one fixed income issuer within the CIP, Tuition Payment and INVEST. This limitation excludes government-sponsored
enterprises (GSEs), direct obligations of the U.S. Treasury or U.S. agencies, and repurchase agreements. The Treasury
Department also places a 5 percent limit on the concentration of investments in one equity issuer within the Common
Investment Pool. Similarly, to a degree, the five other investing organizations limit exposure to concentration of credit risk.
Several other investing organizations have adopted policies, which allow greater than 5 percent of portfolios to consist of
securities issued by the U.S. Treasury. Among Treasury and other investing organizations, based on total portfolio value of
$16,907,877, the following concentrations existed as of June 30, 2011 (December 31, 2010 for the State Workers’ Insurance
Fund (SWIF) and INVEST) (amounts in thousands):

% of Treasury and
Other Investing
Organizations

Issuer Name Amount Portfolio
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation.......... S 2,935,212 17.36%
Federal National Mortgage Association............... 2,194,989 12.98
Dreyfus Institutional Money Market.................... 1,527,737 9.04

The concentration of credit risk for the Statutory Liquidator Fund is as follows:

% of Treasury and
Other Investing
Organizations

Issuer Name Amount Portfolio
Federal National Mortgage Association.... S 473,922 14.64%
United States Treasury...cccccceeeeeeeeeevivnnennns 395,341 12.21
Western Asset........ccoeeee. 247,204 7.64
Federated Prime 223,072 6.89
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation.......... 196,724 6.08

Credit Risk: Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. The
credit risk of a debt instrument is measured by Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Agencies (NRSRA) such as Moody's
Investors Service (Moody’s), Standard & Poor’s (S&P), and Fitch Ratings (Fitch). The Treasury Department requires purchases
of CIP assets to be investment grade (Baa/BBB/BBB or better) at the time of purchase. The fixed income portfolio includes a
provision for the asset allocation to allow up to 10 percent of the portfolio to be in high yield investments. These
investments, by definition, are not restricted to the investment grade requirements and include investments rated at
Ba/BB/BB or below. Generally, the other investing organizations limit exposure to credit risk through policies, which prevents
purchasing below investment grade (Ba/BBB/BBB or better).

At June 30, 2011, approximately $14,239,727 of total Treasury and other investing organization investments of $17,757,585
are fixed income investments, susceptible to credit quality rating; the remainder is primarily equities ($1,875,656), private
equities ($792,494), cash equivalents and certificates of deposit (5849,708). Of the amount susceptible to credit quality
rating, $5,082,196 is rated; ratings are not available for $9,157,531 of fixed income investments. The following tables
disclose aggregate fair value, by the lowest rating obtained by credit quality rating category, at June 30, 2011 for the Treasury
Department and the other investing organizations fixed income investments (amounts in thousands):
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2011

NOTE D — DEPOSITS, INVESTMENTS AND FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK (continued)

Moody's Investors Service Amount
S 393,825
102,365
264,240
253,440
127,499
213,266
43,419
9,647
745
548,007
$ 1,956,453

Amount
S 30,749
73,155
1,918,096
84,074

2,058
$ 2,228,319

Amount
S 708
7,815
19,571
11,237
2,955
2,484
15,380
2,951
10,959
392
822,972
S 897,424

Ratings subtotal........ccceceeveeeeieecccnneneenneccnnnnne $ 5,082,196
Unrated subtotal......cccccoeeerieeenniiiinieeeeenneennns 9,157,531

Total fixed income investments..................... $ 14,239,727

At June 30, 2011, 11 percent ($551,942) of rated fixed income investments of $5,082,196 are rated below investment grade.
Approximately 64 percent ($9,157,531) of the fixed income portfolio in Treasury and other investing organizations are not
rated by any of the NRSRA. Unrated Fixed Income Investments include securities that did not have a credit rating available
from a NRSRA at June 30, 2011 (December 31, 2010 for the SWIF and INVEST). These unrated items include U.S. Treasury
Obligations ($1,122,924). They are negotiable debt obligations of the U.S. Treasury secured by the full faith and credit of the
U.S. Government. Also included in the Unrated subtotal are U.S. Government Sponsored Enterprises (GSEs) ($5,536,985)
securities. GSE securities are not explicitly backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government and are subject to credit
risk. Among the Tuition Account Investment Program’s mutual funds within its portfolios, certain mutual funds hold fixed
income investments susceptible to credit quality ratings and all such investments are rated Baa or higher by Moody’s or BBB
or higher by S&P.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2011

NOTE D — DEPOSITS, INVESTMENTS AND FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK (continued)

The Pension Trust Funds may expose themselves to greater credit risk than the Treasury Department or other investing
organizations to meet specific investment objectives. SERS and DCP fixed income securities (at December 31, 2010), which
are exposed to credit risk, are rated as follows (amounts in thousands):

Moody's Investors Service® SERS DCP
¥ I TP PO PPPPPRRRUPPPPRI S 31,306 $138,650
A e 56,135 41,583
NPT PPPPINN 188,147 156,402
BAA M uuttiiiieiee e e e e e e e 443,208 46,580
B 354,211 974
Bl e 452,252 -
(O - TP 174,065 964
[ USRS UUPPPT PR 14,202 -
[P ORI TPPPINN 10,580 14
[0 TP PP UPPTRPRPPPTPPRIN 9,258 -
UNFBEEA vt s 127,067 402,481
Commonwealth Investment Program................... 932,783 53,397
TOtalcoeiiiiieieiiccneeeerree e ee s s $2,793,214 $ 841,045

a.  The Moody’s rating represents all of the securities that fall within subcategories of the ratings shown in this table. For example, a security
with a rating of Bal is shown as a rating of Ba in this table.

b.  ‘Unrated’ represents securities that were either not rated or had a withdrawn rating ($88,851 for SERS and $0 for DCP). Also, ‘Unrated’
represents securities for GSEs, which were not rated by a NRSRA ($38,216 for SERS and $402,481 for DCP). Such GSEs are not explicitly
backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government and are subject to credit risk (amounts in thousands).

PSERS fixed income securities, which are subject to credit risk rating, are listed below using the rating (expressed as S&P
equivalent), available from Fitch, Moody’s, and/or S&P that indicates the greatest degree of risk at June 30, 2011 (amounts in
thousands):

Standard and Poor's Equivalent’ Amount
AAA. ..o S 2,749,362
5,070,392
1,063,433
844,735
. 1,222,225
UNTAEEA oo eee e e 5,183,904
U.S. Government guara nteed . e, 2,409,837
TOtalueeeeeeereriiieerirnnnnreeeeeeeeeesesssssansnnnnnnnnes $18,543,888

a. The S & P rating represents all the securities that fall within subcategories of the ratings shown in this table. For example, a security with a
rating of A+ is shown as a rating of A in this table.

b. Unrated represents securities that were not rated by S&P; $4,202,834 in collective trust funds and $981,070 in other investments.

c. Represents securities issued by the U.S. Government and agency obligations explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. Government and not
considered to have credit risk.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2011

NOTE D — DEPOSITS, INVESTMENTS AND FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK (continued)

The Statutory Liquidator Fund fixed income securities at June 30, 2011, which are exposed to credit risk, are rated as follows:

Moody's Investors Service Amount
$ 1,356,940
83,055
196,985
73,439
21,549
24,690
3,855
1
46,480
$ 1,806,994

Amount
AAA ...t S 90,468
AA e e ae e 45,790
A 153,392
212 - PSP 134,127
BBt 8,617
0 PR 2,455
Gttt 22
Standard and Poor's subtotal.........ccccceeeeennnnee S 434,871
Fitch Ratings Amount
6,044
2,122
104
Fitch Ratings subtotal........ccccoceervueerecreeencnnnns S 8,270
Ratings subtotal.........ccceevueeecveeecieereneeneenes $ 2,250,133
Unrated subtotal.........ccccceveevrvcrrrccrrnnnnnennnnns 902,682
Commonwealth Investment Program............ 84,562
Total fixed income investments..................... $ 3,237,377

Interest Rate Risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that an investment’s value will change, advantageously or adversely, due to a
change in the absolute value of interest rates. The Treasury Department measures interest rate risk using duration. To limit
Treasury’s exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, Treasury’s long-term asset allocation diversifies its
fixed income core segment between intermediate duration and longer duration strategies. Duration is a measure of an
investment’s sensitivity to changes in interest rates. The higher the duration, the greater the changes in fair value when
interest rates change. Treasury measures interest rate risk using option-adjusted duration, which takes into account
embedded options affecting cash flows. Other investing organizations use less sophisticated measurements to manage
interest rate risk; several limit the maximum term-to-maturity of investment purchases. Further, to avoid interest rate risk,
many other organizations deliberately hold a given percentage of total investments in very short-term securities to avoid the
potential need to sell such securities at a loss. At June 30, 2011, Treasury and other investing organizations’ fixed income
portfolio, excluding Statutory Liquidator Fund and Tuition Account Investment Program, had the following option-adjusted
durations (in years) by investment type (amounts in thousands):
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2011

NOTE D — DEPOSITS, INVESTMENTS AND FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK (continued)

Amount of Option- Amount of
Securities with Adjusted Securities with

Investment Type Duration Duration no Duration Total

AILEINATIVE..eeiiiieeiiie ettt S (10) S - S (10)
Asset backed securities........cccevvvvvieeeeeeeieiiiiiinnnns 71,436 1.300 79,158 150,594
Commercial Paper...ccccceeiieeiieeiiecccccis 2,887,301 0.090 - 2,887,301
Convertible securities......cccoeeeeeeeiiieeiiiiieeeeeeeeeiinn, 1,266 0.120 - 1,266
Corporate obligations.......ccceevvvvvieeeieeiiiiiieeeeee 1,152,779 5.100 142,204 1,294,983
Money market mutual funds........ccoeeeveeieiinnnnnnnnn. - - 1,905,364 1,905,364
Mortgage-backed securities......cccccovvveveeirnnnnnnnn. 511,822 3.320 27,955 539,777
Mutual fuNdS......eeeeiiiiiiiiiee e - - 38,716 38,716
Preferred securities.. 365 4.690 1,780 2,145
Private placements......ccceeveiviiiiieeeinniiiiee e 243,155 4,960 8,947 252,102
Repurchase agreements.....ccovveveeeeeniieeeeeennnnnnns 212,625 0.010 - 212,625
Sovereign debt obligations.......... 15,116 8.700 20,000 35,116
State and municipal obligations.......cccccoeevvvveeennn. 79,743 8.930 135,800 215,543
U.S. Government agenCiesS........ueueveerrveeeeeeeeeereeenens 39,788 3.060 4,508 44,296
U.S. Government sponsored enterprises.... 5,536,985 0.630 - 5,536,985
U.S. Treasury obligations.......cccvvveeeviniiiieeeinniinnns 1,122,924 5.500 - 1,122,924

$ 11,875,295

$ 2,364,432

S 14,239,727

Neither the Statutory Liquidator Fund nor the Tuition Account Investment Program use option-adjusted duration as a means
of managing interest rate risk; the following provides segmented time distribution for the Statutory Liquidator Fund (amounts

in thousands):

Maturesin Maturesin Matures  Maturesin  Maturesin ~ Matures
lessthanl  Maturesin 1 6to10 in11to20 21to30 31to40 after40  No Maturity

Investment Type Year to 5 Years Years Years Years Years Years Date Total
ALErNAtiVe....cveveeeeeeeiieec s S - S - S - S - S - S - S - S 48,739 S 48,739
Annuities - - - - - - - 1,319 1,319
Asset backed securities........coeevveenenne 5,104 176,108 8,669 10,276 18,007 818 - - 218,982
Commercial Paper....cocovevenveceniniens 74,256 - - - - - - - 74,256
Corporate obligations 62,128 449,630 97,147 837 2,744 13,028 2,018 - 627,532
Derivatives............ (325) - (54) - 46 - - - (333)
Money market mutual funds 6,815 530 - - 36,484 - - 554,183 598,012
Mortgage-backed securities. 12,172 34,193 67,198 65,912 370,432 128,076 24,096 - 702,079
Mutual funds - - - - - - - 115,275 115,275
Private placements.......c.ccoceveneennenne. 1,102 20,220 5,683 - 4,988 4,122 505 - 36,620
Repurchase agreements........ccoeevnes 71,041 - - - - - - - 71,041
Sovereign debt obligations.................. - 12,724 135 - - - - - 12,859
State and municipal obligations.......... - 4,491 987 2,727 2,578 2,563 - - 13,346
U.S. Government agency.......ccceevevnee. 64,905 163,659 8,344 - 3,212 3,833 - - 243,953
U.S. Treasury obligations.........c.cccce.... 73,608 251,973 53,658 7,310 2,586 - - - 389,135
Commonwealth Investment Program.. - - - - - - - 84,562 84,562

Total $ 370,806 $1,113,528 $241,767 $ 87,062 $441,077 $152,440 $ 26,619 $ 804,078 $3,237,377

Within the Tuition Account Investment Program, the following mutual funds are exposed to interest rate risk, as follows

(amounts in thousands):

Vanguard Total Bond Market Il IndexFund Institutional Shares..............
Vanguard Inflation-Protected Securities Fund Institutional Shares........

Vanguard Prime Money Market Fund Institutional Shares

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
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Average

Average Effective

Amount Duration Maturity

S 294,136 5.2 years 7.4 years

27,406 7.7 years 8.9 years
52,732 N/A 58 days
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2011

NOTE D — DEPOSITS, INVESTMENTS AND FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK (continued)

Based on specific investment objectives, the Pension Trust Funds may expose themselves to greater interest rate risk than
Treasury or other investing organizations. Several investment choices, which may be selected by the DCP participants,
including the Short-Term Money Market Fund, the Stable Value Account and the Aggregate Bond Index Fund, include a
variety of fixed income securities. Each Pension Trust Fund uses option-adjusted duration (in years) as a measure of interest
rate risk, as follows (amounts in thousands):

SERS DCP

Option- Option-

SERS DCP Adjusted Adjusted

Investment Type Amount Amount Duration Duration
Asset backed SECUNTIOS...cceieeieeeeeeeeeeeeee e e e e e e eeeeeaeeeee S 49,484 $ 38,033 1.10 0.90
Corporate obligations........covvvviiiiiiiiieenieeeeeceiieicee e 693,812 277,995 4.80 4.80
Mortgage-backed SECUNItIeS...cccceeeeeriiiiciiiiiiiieeeee e 132,329 356,735 3.00 3.00
Other iNVEStMENTS ... .ecve e iev oo er et s er s et s et s 51,116 - N/A N/A
Sovereigndebt.....ccccceveviiiiiiiiiiiiennns 396,334 10,983 6.40 4.00
Commonwealth Investment Program...........ccoecuvvvvvvvennnns 932,783 53,397 0.10 0.10
U.S. Treasury obligationsS.....cccceevveviiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeee e 1,159,131 331,002 2.40 3.50
U.S. Government sponsored enterprises......cocccveeereeeennn. 141,688 18,421 4.20 3.60
U.S. private placements.......ceeeeeeeeiiiniiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeee e 532,139 3,643 3.40 3.10

Total...eiiiiiiii $4,088,816 $1,090,209

a.  Other Investments represents certain SERS securities with maturities ranging through 2019 and the value of swap agreements as of
December 31, 2010.

PSERS:
Option-Adjusted
Investment Type Amount Duration
Domestic asset-backed and mortgage-backed securities. S 3,418,696 1.3
U.S. Government and agency obligations......................... 1,773,700 5.7
Domestic corporate and taxable municipal bonds........... 1,724,004 3.4
Collective trust funds........cvceeeeeieiiiiiiieeceeee e, 1,131,686 3.8
International fixed iINCOME......ccuvvvieiiiiiiiiiiieiee s 1,611,233 4.3
PSERS Short-Term Investment FUNd............ooovveeeeeiivinnnnnns. 4,587,180 0.1
B 1 N S 14,246,499

Fixed income investment managers enter into futures contracts to adjust the durations of their portfolios as a whole.
In total, futures contracts have adjusted PSERS’ total fixed income and Short-Term Investment Fund portfolio
duration upward by 0.1 at June 30, 2011.

Foreign Currency Risk: Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment. The Treasury Department’s policy requires all investments to be denominated in U.S. dollars, issued under
U.S. laws and regulations, designed for U.S. investors, and traded in U.S. markets. Among the other investing organizations,
the Tobacco Settlement Fund and the Tuition Payment Fund are authorized to purchase securities denominated in a foreign
currency. At June 30, 2011, the Tobacco Settlement Fund reported $4.1 million and the Tuition Payment Fund reported
$47.3 million of foreign currency-denominated holdings. The foreign currency holdings make up nearly 3.4 percent of the
Tuition Payment Fund’s total investment portfolio and nearly .75 percent of the Tobacco Settlement Fund’s total investment
portfolio. The amounts invested, by currency, are as follows :
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Short Term Preferred Private

Foreign Currency Holdings Equities Securities Equity Total
Australiandollar.....ccccceeeeienennnnnnn, S - S 1,142 S - S - S 1,142
Brazilreal....cccooeevveeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiin, - 1,307 - - 1,307
British pound sterling..................... - 8,108 - - 8,108
Canadiandollar 2 3,184 - - 3,186
Danish krone........ccccoevvevvvivvinvnnnnnnn. - 1,348 - - 1,348
EUFO. i - 13,043 1,519 4,104 18,666
Hong Kongdollar.......cccceeeeeeevnnnnnns - 5,247 - - 5,247
Japanese yen....coooveeeiieeiiiiinnininnnnn, - 6,364 - - 6,364
Norwegian krone.. - 548 - - 548
Mexican new peso - 807 - - 807
Swedish Krona.......ccoeeeeeeviiieeeeinnnnn.. - 1,643 - - 1,643
SWISS franC.....cuvvvvveieieieeeeeeeeeeneeeennns 36 3,710 - - 3,746

Totaleeeeeeereeiiiiiriceccnnneerereeeeenes S 38 $ 46,451 S 1,519 $ 4,104 $ 52,112

Within the Tuition Account Investment Program, the Vanguard Total International Stock Index Fund ($60,350) is exposed to

foreign currency risk (amounts in thousands).

Each Pension Trust Fund is exposed to foreign currency risk as part of meeting specific investing objectives or allocations

among different classes of investments.
December 31, 2010 as follows (amounts in thousands):

The SERS is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily for equity securities at

Short Term Alternative

Foreign Currency Investments’  Fixed income Equity Real Estate Investments Total
EUPO. ettt S 2,604 S 5,879 S 437,097 S 17,759 S 495,161 S 958,500
British pound sterling...........c......... 812 - 329,393 14,657 - 344,862
Japaneseyen.... (298) 1,216 294,063 37,426 - 332,407
Hong Kongdollar.....ccccuveeeriiieeennnee (145) - 204,074 36,803 210 240,942
SWISS franC...ccvuveeeiiiiiiieeeiiieeeeeeiins 1,535 - 147,800 1,782 - 151,117
Australiandollar.....cccccccovveeeiiiinnnn. (383) - 75,896 26,939 - 102,452
Brazil real.....cccoocviveiviiieeiiiieeees 2,171 25,157 34,739 - - 62,067
South Korean won.........coceuvveveeeens 30 - 59,483 - - 59,513
Singapore dollar........ccccovvvvveeennnnn. (53) - 37,508 16,021 - 53,476
New Taiwandollar......ccccoeeevvvns 1,013 - 36,087 - - 37,100
Mexican new peso......... 626 22,554 10,139 - - 33,319
South African comm rand............... 1,059 16,530 17,854 - - 35,443
Swedish krona........ccovveeeiviiienennnn, (340) - 19,585 2,064 6,364 27,673
Indian rupee.....occceeeeveeeeeeeeeeninns 162 - 31,195 - - 31,357
Indonesian rupiah........ccccevvvvvnnnnnn. 1,103 17,442 12,439 - - 30,984
Danish krone........... 143 - 20,759 - - 20,902
Norwegian krone (330) - 22,457 900 - 23,027
Thailand baht.......cccoeeieieiniiiiinnns 486 12,203 7,403 - - 20,092
Polish zIoty....ccoouveeeniiieeiiiieeces 664 18,849 2,350 - - 21,863
Canadiandollar......ccccocvveeennnneenn. 86 6,333 20,906 5,553 - 32,878
Other currencies (15).....cccceeeeereennnns 2,038 37,663 32,069 - 2 71,772

L] - | N $ 12,983 $ 163,826 $ 1,853,296 $ 159,904 $ 501,737 $ 2,691,746

a.  Includes receivables and payables as of December 31, 2010 for securities sold and purchased.

One of several investing choices that may be selected by the DCP participants is the European, Australian and Far East (EAFE)
Equity Index Fund, which owns international equities and is managed by an external manager. The EAFE Equity Index Fund
within the DCP seeks to track the more than 1,000 foreign stocks representing established companies in 21 countries located
in Western Europe and the Pacific Rim that are a part of the Morgan Stanley Capital International EAFE Index. At December
31, 2010, the DCP had the following currency exposures related to equity securities (amounts in thousands):
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Foreign Currency Fair Value
[T g YT S 31,011
British pound sterling......ccccoevvviiiiiiieeiieininiine 22,613
JapPanese YeN..cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 23,543
Australiandollar.......cc.cooiiiiiiiiiiinciiee e 9,296
SWISS fraNCu.iiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeree e e eeeeens 8,519
SWedish Krona........ceveeeeiieeieeiiieeeeeeee e 3,416
Hong Kongdollar.. 3,040
Singapore dollar....cccooveviiiiiiiiiiiee e 1,791
DaniSN KrONE.....iiiiiiieiiie e 1,073
NOrwWegian Krone.........ceeeveeeriniiiiiiiiiieeeeee e 887
Israeli New Sheqel......ccooveiiviniiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeee 810
New Zealand dollar.. 116
L | N $ 106,115

The PSERS is exposed to foreign currency risk for equity and other securities as follows (amounts in thousands):

Alternative
Investments
Foreign Currency Equity Fixed income and Real Estate Short-term* Total
EUFO.iiiieeeece e S 869,631 S 283,457 S 2,700,941 S (42,624) S 3,811,405
British pound sterling. 1,037,285 28,124 7,905 (83,210) 990,104
Japanese yeN.....eeeeeeeiiiieeceeiins 888,939 59,028 - 19,296 967,263
Canadiandollar......cccocveveeeeeeennnnns 570,515 17,855 2,163 (32,757) 557,776
Australiandollar.......cccccvvviveennn... 387,318 6,982 - 130,042 524,342
Brazilreal.....ccooeveivvieeiiiiiiiieiiiiin, 103,195 57,054 - 145,027 305,276
Hong Kongdollar.. . 254,608 - - 176 254,784
SWISS franC....uvueeeeeeeeeeeeeiiciiiireeeens 334,961 - - (96,720) 238,241
South Africanrand........coeevvuennnenens 65,946 49,997 - 116,948 232,891
Indian rupee.....ccoeeeeeeieeeveieiiiiiiienn, 67,743 - - 138,855 206,598
Indonesian rupiah........ccccevvvvinnnnnn. 39,246 47,443 - 80,196 166,885
Norwegian Krone.........cccceeeeeeeeennne 30,641 3,808 - 131,625 166,074
South Korean won.........cccccvvvvvenenns 102,798 7,550 - 53,188 163,536
558,614 331,305 - 14,558 904,477

$ 5,311,440 S 892,603 $ 2,711,009 $ 574,600 $ 9,489,652

*Includes investment receivables and payables.

Securities Lending Program

The Treasury Department provides a securities lending program in which the various investments under custody of the
Treasury Department participate. A contract between the Treasury department and its custodian, acting as a lending agent,
provides that the custodian lends securities owned by the participants to independent brokers, dealers and banks, acting as
borrowers in exchange for collateral.

Lending agreements between the custodian and the borrowers require that the custodian receive collateral from the
borrowers in exchange for the securities lent. Securities lent consist of both domestic and foreign equity securities and U.S.
Treasury and foreign debt obligations. For securities lent which are not denominated in U.S. dollars or whose primary trading
market is located outside the U.S., the fair value of collateral received must be at least 105 percent of the fair value of the
securities lent. For all other securities lent, the fair value of the collateral received must be at least 102 percent. Practically
all collateral received consists of cash. A small portion of collateral received consists of letters of credit, U.S. Treasury,
corporate and/or foreign debt obligations. Collateral is marked to market daily. Additional collateral from borrowers is
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required if the fair value of the collateral received declines below lending agreement requirements. The lending agent
cannot pledge or sell collateral securities received unless the borrower defaults. Accordingly, neither collateral securities
received from borrowers nor the related obligation to borrowers are reported.

To the extent collateral received consists of cash, the lending agent may use or invest the cash in accordance with
reinvestment guidelines approved by the Treasury Department. At June 30, 2011, 100 percent of the collateral was invested
in repurchase agreements. Either the participant or the borrower may terminate lending agreements on demand. Lending
agreements are typically of very short duration — usually overnight. Therefore, the duration of lending agreements do not
generally match the maturities of the investments made with the cash collateral. The resulting rate risk is mitigated by the
lending agent’s ability to reallocate lending agreements among program participants.

The program requires that the lending agent indemnify the Treasury Department for all claims, liabilities and costs resulting
from the lending agent’s negligence or intentional misconduct. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 (December 31,
2010 for the SWIF, SERS and DCP), there were no failures by any borrower to return securities lent or pay distributions
thereon. Also, there were no losses resulting from a lending agent or borrower default and there were no Treasury
Department restrictions on the amount of the loans that could be made.

At June 30, 2011 (December 31, 2010 for the SWIF, the SERS and the DCP), the total fair value of the securities lent, along
with the type of investments lent, were as follows (amounts in thousands):

u.s.
Total u.s. Government

Securities Treasury Sponsored Corporate Sovereign  Exchange
Fund/Organization Lent Obligations  Enterprises  Obligations Equities Debt Traded
Deferred Compensation Program.........c.cccceeeuveennen. $ 37,339 S - S 32,890 S 4,449 S - S - S -
State Lottery Fund.........ccceevueeiiineeiiinneciiinecicsnennns 762 762 - - - - -
State Employees'Retirement System..........ccccee.... 224,816 6,021 236 39,553 167,571 9,435 -
Public School Employees' Retirement System......... 1,293,630 267,074 467 24,344 954,961 23,084 23,699
Underground Storage Tank Indemnification............ 11,701 6,177 3,209 1,111 107 - 1,097
Workers' Compensation Security Trust 61,271 49,755 5,590 4,183 705 - 1,038
State Workers' Insurance Fund..........cccccceeeeeeeeenennee. 190,163 140,939 17,708 26,147 5,368 - -
Other Postemployment Benefits Investment Pool.. 70,247 - - - 358 - 69,889
Commonwealth Investment Program........c....c...... 159,221 55,950 10,129 30,234 21,551 - 41,358
Tobacco Settlement Fund..........ccoeeveeeeeeeeeneneennnennnnns 11,495 9,753 1,742 - - - -
Tuition Payment Fund........cccccevvveeieniinennnnsnennnnnnnnns 133,284 20,212 9,460 4,040 14,369 - 85,203

Derivative and Other Similar Investments
State Employees’ Retirement System (SERS)

The SERS enters into certain derivative and structured financial instruments primarily to enhance the performance and
reduce the volatility of its investment portfolio. It enters into foreign exchange contracts to make payment for international
investments, futures contracts to gain exposure to certain equity markets and to manage interest rate risk and swaps to gain
equity exposure.

Foreign exchange contracts are agreements to exchange the currency of one country for the currency of another country at
an agreed-upon price and settlement date. The SERS uses these contracts primarily for its international investments to settle
pending trades that occur more than two business days after trade date. To reduce the risk of counterparty
nonperformance, the SERS generally enters into these contracts with institutions regarded as meeting high standards of
credit worthiness. The unrealized gain/loss on contracts is included in the SERS’ net assets and represents the fair value of
the contracts on December 31. At December 31, 2010, the SERS had contracts to purchase and sell, by major foreign
currency, as follows (amounts in thousands):
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Purchase Unrealized Sell Unrealized

Foreign Currency Contracts Gain/(Loss) Contracts Gain/(Loss)
Chinese yuan renminbi.................. S 15,704 S 233 S 5,966 S (80)
EUFO. it 13,224 287 10,576 (117)
Malaysian ringgit........ccccevvvvvvvnnnnnn. 12,894 163 430 -
MeXiCan NEW PESO......ueveereeeeeeerrnnns 8,805 324 8,594 (70)
Hong Kongdollar.......ccccceveeeeeerennns 5,171 (4) 2,459 -
New Turkish lira...... 4,989 (240) 568 37
South Korean won 4,710 (18) 100 (3)
Singapore dollar......ccoeevviiviveennnnnn. 4,377 140 1,534 (63)
Columbian peso........uueeeeeiieereeennns 4,339 34 8,017 332
Russianruble........ccccoviiiiiiiiiinnnnnnn. 3,226 26 - -
Philippines peso........ccccevvvvvvvvnnnnnnn 2,473 27 21 -
Hungarian forint........ccccccceeeeeeennnnn. 1,940 (16) 3,065 (92)
Chilean peso........... 1,894 73 3,639 (175)
Peruvian nuevo sol.......cccceeeeevvennne 1,628 (14) 1,153 (13)
Japanese YeN..ooouueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeniee 1,033 5 39,087 (1,518)
Australiandollar....cccceeveeeeiennennnn, 764 5 10,737 (738)
Brazilreal.....cooeciiiiiiiiiieiiieienie 441 19 7,581 (110)
South African comm rand............... 398 19 5,083 (239)
Indonsian rupiah.....cccccceeveeeeenennnnn, 311 2 1,959 9)
Polish zIoty...ccooeeveeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii, 216 10 6,634 197
SWISS franC...ueeeeeeeeeeiiiccciiiiieeeeeeen. - - 15,328 (1,250)
Other currencies (5)... 2,074 43 1,005 (22)

Total..oooiiiiiiiiiiiiinnnneeereneeienennns $ 90,611 S 1,118 $ 133,536 $ (3,933)

Futures contracts are standardized, exchange-traded contracts to purchase or sell a specific financial instrument at a
predetermined price. Gains and losses on futures contracts are settled daily based on a notional (underlying) principal value
and do not involve an actual transfer of the specific instrument. Because of daily settlement, the futures contracts have no
fair value.

The SERS has entered into certain futures contracts maturing through December 17, 2012. The notional value of these
contracts at December 31, 2010 is as follows (amounts in thousands):

Purchase Sell
Futures Contract Type Contracts Contracts
EUrodollar...ooocceceeeeeiieeeee e S 22,098 S -

The exchange on which futures contracts are traded assumes the counterparty risk and generally requires margin payments
to minimize such risk. The SERS pledges investment securities to provide the initial margin requirements on the futures
contracts it buys.

Swap agreements provide for periodic payments between parties based on the change in value of underlying assets, indexes,
rates, or credit worthiness. During 2010, the SERS used contracts with multiple counterparties as well as collateral posting
requirements to manage its counterparty credit risk. Credit default swaps are agreements with counterparties to either
purchase or sell credit protection. The SERS uses credit default swaps to either increase or decrease credit exposure to
certain credit markets. Interest rate swaps are over-the-counter contracts that allow counterparties to exchange a fixed rate
liability for a floating rate liability. The SERS used interest rate swaps as a cost-effective way of gaining exposure to certain
sectors of the fixed income market.
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The table below presents the SERS’ swap exposure at December 31, 2010 (amounts in thousands):

Swap Type Notional Value  Receivable/(Payable)
INEEreSt rate..eeeneeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenns S 144,253 S 292
Credit default 30,300 161

The SERS mitigates its legal risk on investment holdings, including the previously discussed instruments, by carefully selecting
investment advisors and extensively reviewing their documentation. It manages its exposure to market risk within risk limits
set by management.

The SERS also indirectly holds foreign exchange contracts, futures contracts, and certain swap contracts through its
investments in collective trust funds and absolute return funds-of-hedge funds. Those collective trust funds invest in those
investments directly and indirectly (through a securities lending collateral poll), to gain foreign exchange exposure, to
synthetically create equity-like returns, and to manage interest rate risk by altering the average life of the investment
portfolio.

Deferred Compensation Program (DCP)

The DCP, through the BlackRock Institutional Trust Company (BTC) managed accounts, indirectly holds certain derivative
financial instruments. Certain accounts directly participate in futures contracts, which are standardized, exchange-traded
contracts to purchase or sell a specific financial instrument at a predetermined price on a future date. The accounts may
enter into future contracts to gain exposure to certain equity markets. In those accounts where the use of futures contracts
is permitted, BTC limits the account’s positions to a small amount of the account’s total assets, subject to each account’s
investment and credit risk guidelines. The exchange on which the futures are traded assumes counterparty risk and generally
requires margin payments to minimize such risk.

Counterparty credit risk exposure may be controlled through regular credit evaluations and approvals, counterparty credit
limits and exposure monitoring procedures undertaken by BTC with respect to accounts it manages.

The BTC-managed accounts may also indirectly hold foreign exchange contracts, futures contracts, and certain swap
contracts through a securities lending collateral pool. Those instruments are held to create “synthetic cash transactions”.
Generally, synthetic cash transactions involve investing in one or more instruments that taken either individually or together
have an interest rate, credit or liquidity exposure similar to that of a conventional money market instrument. This may be so
even though none of the individual instruments themselves have a money market risk profile. Foreign exchange contracts
are agreements to exchange the currency of one country for the currency of another country at an agreed-upon price and
settlement date. Swap agreements provide for periodic payments between parties based on the net difference in the cash
flows of underlying assets, indices, or rates. To reduce the risk of counterparty nonperformance, the collateral pool generally
enters into these contracts with institutions regarded as meeting high standards of credit worthiness.

BTC seeks to mitigate its legal risk related to derivative financial instruments by using them only in the accounts for which
they are authorized. BTC manages its exposure to market risk within risk limits set for the accounts by buying or selling
instruments or entering into offsetting positions. The following table discloses the futures contracts held and the derivatives
held indirectly in the security lending collateral pool, as of December 31, 2010 (amounts in thousands):

Equity Index Fund Notional Value
Futures directly held.........cocveeevieiiiiecececeeee e S 4,166
Extended Market Fund
Futures directly held.......cooiiiiieiiie e 3,856
EAFE Equity Index Fund
Futures directly held.......coouviiiiiniiie e 3,284
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Public School Employees’ Retirement System (PSERS)

The PSERS enters into a variety of financial contracts, which include options and futures. The PSERS also enters into foreign
exchange positions, such as forward and spot contracts to obtain or hedge foreign currency exposure; swap agreements to
gain exposure to certain sectors of the equity and fixed income markets; collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOs); other
forward contracts, and U.S. Treasury STRIPS. The PSERS is not a dealer, but an end-user of these instruments. The contracts
are used primarily to enhance investment performance and reduce the volatility of the investment portfolio. The PSERS is
exposed to credit risk in the event of non-performance by counterparties to financial instruments. The PSERS generally
enters into transactions only with high quality institutions. Legal risk is mitigated through selection of executing brokers and
review of all documentation. The PSERS is exposed to market risk, the risk that future changes in market condition may make
an instrument less valuable. Exposure to market risk is managed in accordance with risk limits set by senior management,
through buying or selling instruments or entering into offsetting positions.

The notional or contractual amounts of derivatives indicate the extent of PSERS’ involvement in the various types and uses of
derivative financial instruments and do not measure the PSERS’ exposure to credit or market risks and do not necessarily
represent amounts exchanged by the parties. The amounts exchanged are determined by reference to the notional amounts
and the other terms of the derivatives.

The following table summarizes the aggregate notional or contractual amounts for the PSERS’ derivative financial instruments
at June 30, 2011 (amounts in thousands):

Type of Derivative Notional Value
Futures contracts -1oNg.....ceeveevevviiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeee e S 3,239,904
Futures contracts - Short.....ccceeeereeeeie i 618,656
Foreign exchange forward and spot contracts, gross...... 9,941,182
Options -calls purchased.........cccoovvviiiiiiiiciiiiinee e 4,336,538
Options -puts purchased........cccevvviiiiiiiiiiiineeeeeeeeeeeeeeinns 4,708,379
Options -calls SOId.......c.uuuviiiiieieeeiiiicee e 4,673,491
Options -puts sold................ 5,024,008

Swaps -total return type 2,931,449

Futures contracts are contracts in which the buyer agrees to purchase and the seller agrees to make delivery of a specific
financial instrument at a predetermined date and price. Gains and losses on futures contracts are settled daily based on a
notional (underlying) principal value and do not involve an actual transfer of the specific instrument. Futures contracts are
standardized and are traded on exchanges. The exchange assumes the risk that a counterparty will not pay and generally
requires margin payments to minimize such risk. In addition, the PSERS enters into short sales, sales of securities it does not
presently own, to neutralize the market risk of certain equity positions. Initial margin requirements on futures contracts and
collateral for short sales are provided by investment securities pledged as collateral and by cash held by various brokers.
Although the PSERS has the right to access individual pledged securities, it must maintain the amount pledged by substituting
other securities for those accessed. The value of securities pledged and the amount of cash held at June 30, 2011 represent a
restriction on the amount of assets available as of fiscal year-end to use for other purposes.

Option contracts provide the option purchaser with the right, but not the obligation, to buy or sell the underlying security at a
set price during a period or at a specified date. The option writer is obligated to buy or sell the underlying security if the
option purchaser chooses to exercise the option. The PSERS generally uses exchange listed currency, index, stock, and future
options. The PSERS has authorized an investment manager to write covered call stock index option spreads up to a notional
amount of $1.5 billion. The program terminated during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

Foreign exchange contracts involve an agreement to exchange the currency of one country for the currency of another
country at an agreed-upon price and settlement date. The $9,941 million of foreign currency contracts outstanding at
June 30, 2011 consist of “buy” contracts, which represent the U.S. dollar equivalents of commitments to purchase foreign
currencies of $5,343 million and “sell” contracts, which represent the U.S. dollar equivalents of commitments to sell foreign
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currencies of $4,598 million. The unrealized gain on contracts of $4 million at June 30, 2011 is included in the PSERS’
Statement of Plan Net Assets and represents the fair value of the contracts.

Swap agreements provide for periodic payments at predetermined future dates between parties based on the change in
value of underlying securities, indexes or interest rates. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the PSERS entered into
total return type swaps. Under the total return type swap arrangements, the PSERS receives the net return of certain equity
securities or indices in exchange for a short-term rate minus a spread or a predetermined fixed charge. The receivable on the
total return type swap contracts of $29 million at June 30, 2011 is included in the Statement of Plan Net Assets and
represents the fair value of the contracts. The contracts have varying maturity dates which range from August 9, 2011 to
May 17, 2012.

The PSERS also invests in mortgage-backed securities (MBS) such as CMOs and MBS forward contracts to maximize yields.
These securities are sensitive to prepayments of mortgages, which may result from a decrease in interest rates. The MBS
forward contracts are subject to credit risk in the event of nonperformance by counterparties. The fair value of CMOs at
June 30, 2011 is $1.7 billion.

The PSERS invests in U.S. Treasury STRIPS, which essentially act as zero coupon bonds and are subject to market volatility
from an increase or decrease in interest rates.

Through certain collective trust funds, the PSERS also indirectly holds various derivative financial instruments. The collective
trust funds invest in futures and options thereon; forward foreign currency contracts; options; interest rate, currency, equity,
index, and total return swaps; interest-only STRIPS; and CMOs, to enhance the performance and reduce the volatility of their
investment portfolios.

Discretely Presented Component Units
Authority for Deposits and Investments

Component unit organizations typically control receipt and disbursement of their own deposits, often through a trustee.
Enabling legislation provides varying authority for investments; several component unit organizations participate in the CIP.

Deposit Risks

At June 30, 2011, the Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA) held $63,500 of deposits with financial
institutions in excess of federal depository insurance limits that were uninsured and collateralized following an agreement to
pledge assets on a pooled basis to secure public deposits in Pennsylvania. All collateral on deposits is held by the
participating financial institution’s trust department and is not held in the PHEAA’s name. The Pennsylvania Housing Finance
Agency (PHFA) held $47,653 of cash deposits that were uninsured and collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial institution, its trust department or agent, but not in the PHFA’s name. The State System of Higher Education (SSHE)
held $2,295 of uninsured and uncollateralized deposits; and $16,285 of uninsured and uncollateralized deposits, but covered
under the collateralization provisions of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Act 72 of 1971, as amended. The Philadelphia
Regional Port Authority held $304 of deposits uninsured but collateralized by the financial institution and $1 in deposits that
were uncollateralized. The Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (PENNVEST) held $20,748 in deposits that were
uninsured and collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent but not in
the PENNVEST name. The Insurance Fraud Prevention Authority held deposits of $3,695 that were uncollateralized (amounts
in thousands).

Investment Risks

Risk Management Policies: At June 30, 2011, component unit policies for certain risks are established by governing boards;
policies for the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission are established by its bond indentures. Most of the organizations’ policies
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address credit quality risk by establishing minimum NRSRA ratings for allowable investment purchases. Concentration of
credit risk is also avoided by most of the organizations by limiting the concentration of investments in any one issuer. Some
organizations have policies in place that prohibit a certain percent of the overall portfolio, whereas others determine
concentration limits based on security type. Custodial credit risk is typically avoided through registration. The PHEAA
investment policy does not include requirements that limit its exposure to custodial credit risk.

Investments by Type

At June 30, 2011, the discretely presently component units reported total temporary investments of $2,472,605 and long-
term investments of $2,454,641, including securities lending collateral of $26,154, amounting to $4,927,246. Total
investments disclosed amount to $4,599,508, in addition SSHE component units reported $327,738, for total investments
reported of $4,927,246. Nearly 100 percent of this amount represents fixed income investments. The investment types and
related amounts are as follows (in thousands):

Investment Type Amount

Commonwealth Investment Program................... $ 1,029,594
U.S. Government agency obligations.... . 1,020,923
State and municipal bonds........ccccceeveiniiiiiinineeen. 449,741
Corporate obligations.......ccceeveevieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiin, 428,267
Money market mutual funds..........ccovvveveeeeeenennnnn. 397,318
Mortgage-backed securities.........ccccvvveeeeeeeeenennn. 387,784
Commercial PaPer..ccccceiriieiieieee e 337,967
U.S. Treasury obligations.......cccccvveveveeeeeeeeninncnnnns 196,022
Guaranteed investment contracts............ccoeeeneen. 123,756
Asset backed securities.........cccovvvvvvvirviviiiiiiineennens 90,578
Equity/balanced mutual funds 25,960
Securities lending collateral......cccccvvuiiiiiiiennennnns 26,154
Repurchase agreements........uueeeceieeineeeeeeneennennnnns 22,933
Derivatives. ..o 20,142
GNMA 0bligations......cuvvveiieeeeeieiiiiiieeeee e 19,213
Fixed income mutual funds..........cooevivvviieiiiiinnnnens 4,512
ComMmMON SEOCK.....uviiiiiieeiciee e 1,081
Domestic preferred equities... 40
Total INVESEMENTS.....cuuveeeeeeeerereeeeieirrnnnnnnerneeeeeeenens $ 4,581,985
Certificates of deposit.......ccccceeveviviiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeen, 17,523
Total investments and certificates of deposits........ $ 4,599,508

Concentration of Credit Risk: Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the organizations’
investment in a single issuer. Several of the organizations limit concentration to five percent or more of their total
investments, with the exception of U.S. Treasury and U.S. Government Agencies. The SSHE has policies that do not limit the
concentration in any single issuer for corporate bonds, collateralized mortgage obligations, and asset-backed securities. The
following concentrations existed as of June 30, 2011 (May 31, 2011 for the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission) (amounts in
thousands):

PA Higher
Education PA Industrial
PA Turnpike Assistance Development
Issuer Name Commission Agency Authority
Federal Home Loan BanK.........ooovevevveveveeeeeeeeeniennnne S 240,106 S - S -
Federal National Mortgage Association................... 111,925 - -
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation.... . 163,182 - -
Federated Fund Cash Manager.......cccceveeeeeeeeennnnnnne - 125,873 -
Trinity Plus FUNAIiNg CO...ccovvviviiiiiiiciieee e - 123,756 -
First American Government........c.ccceevevieiiieiiieeennnnn, - - 204,015
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2011

NOTE D — DEPOSITS, INVESTMENTS AND FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK (continued)

Credit Risk: At June 30, 2011, $4,456,273 of total discretely presented component unit investments of $4,573,354 are fixed
income investments, susceptible to credit risk. Of the amount of fixed income securities susceptible to credit risk, $2,740,700
are rated and $1,805,573 of fixed income investments do not have ratings available. The following table discloses aggregate
fair value, by Moody’s or Standard and Poor’s credit quality rating category, at June 30, 2011 (May 31, 2011 for Pennsylvania
Turnpike Commission) (amounts in thousands):

Amount Unrated Amount
S 706,765 Corporate obligations..........cccecevvievieeneeennne. S 28,247
217,660 Commonwealth Investment Program............ 1,029,594
10,021 Money market mutual funds 209,618
- U.S. Treasury obligations.......cccceeeeeeeiiieiinnnnnn. 196,022
3,572 U.S. Government agency obligations............. 257,769
8,218 Repurchase agreements.....ccccceeevvevvvvinnennnns 22,933
334,515 Certificates of deposit......cccccveeeeeeeviiiinniinnnns 17,523
$ 1,280,751 DErIVATIVES . .eeetieeteeeeeeeeeee e e e 20,142
GNMA 0bligations........uvvviieiiieeiiiiiiiiiiieeeeens 19,213
Fixed income mutual funds............cceevvvvennnnne 4,512
S 658,166 Unrated subtotal........cccceeeeeeeerecceirinnnnnneeeeenens $ 1,805,573
451,026
336,120 Total fixed income investments............cceeeue... $ 4,546,273
14,637
$ 1,459,949
Equity/balanced mutual funds.........cccccuveee. 25,960
$ 2,740,700 ComMmMON STOCK......covvvveenrriieeenns 1,081
Domestic preferred equities 40
Total iINVeStMENtS....ccuveeeeirneeeriiieneeressnneeeenns $ 4,573,354

U.S. Government agency obligations include all securities issued by the U.S. Treasury, U.S. Government agencies, and U.S.
Government Sponsored Enterprises (GSEs). These include securities that are both explicitly and implicitly guaranteed by the
full faith and credit of the U.S. Government. Many of these securities are not usually rated by a NRSRA and have an implied
rating of Aaa/AAA.

Interest Rate Risk: Interest rate risk is managed using different techniques: weighted average maturity, maximum maturity
dates, effective duration, modified duration or operational cash needs. The following table discloses option-adjusted
duration (in years) by investment type for the fixed income portfolio of the discretely presented component units, excluding
the PHEAA, the PHFA, the PENNVEST and the Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority (PIDA) at June 30, 2011 (May
31, 2011 for the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission) (amounts in thousands):
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2011

NOTE D — DEPOSITS, INVESTMENTS AND FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK (continued)

Option- Securities

Adjusted with no
Investment Type Amount Duration Duration
Asset backed securities........ccvevvvereeiinnnnne $ 90,578 0.480 S -
Certificates of deposit......cccccevvviiiiiiiieeennn. 17,500 0.002 23
Commercial Paper...cccccvvveeeeeeeeeiiiiiiieeee e, 312,882 0.070 -
Corporate obligations.....ccccccovvviiiiiiiieeeeennnnn, 423,669 1.442 -
DerivatiVesS ..o 20,142 12.590 -
Mortgage-backed securities........cccccceeeernnes 169,873 3.680 -
Mutual funds........eeeeeieeiiiiiiiiee 25,231 3.390 -
State and municipal obligations................... 449,741 1.490 -
U.S. Government agency obligations............. 984,880 2.451 -
U.S. Treasury obligations.........ccccceeenneeennnes 120,632 3.860 -
TORAlcurereeeeceseeese ettt $2,615,128 $ 23

The PHEAA, the PHFA, the PENNVEST and the Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority do not use option-adjusted
duration as a means of managing interest rate risk; the following provides segmented time distribution for those
organizations at June 30, 2011 (amounts in thousands):

Maturesin Maturesin
Maturesin less 1to10 more than
Investment Type than 1 Year Years 10 years Total

Commercial Paper....ccceecvieeiieeeireeenieeenee. S 25,085 S - S - S 25,085
Corporate obligations......ccceeeveevieiiiieiennnnn, 1,011 3,572 - 4,583
Guaranteed investment contracts.... 123,756 - - 123,756
Money market mutual funds..................... 397,318 - - 397,318
Mortgage-backed securities.............c....... 6,063 10,001 221,060 237,124
Repurchase agreements.....ccccoeevvvuienenenene 15,527 - - 15,527
U.S. Government agency obligations......... 291 678 48,574 49,543
U.S. Treasury obligations.........ccceeeeevieenes 7,041 54,849 - 61,890
B o | RS S 576,092 $ 69,100 $ 269,634 $ 914,826

At June 30, 2011, discretely presented component units reported investments including CIP holdings amounting to
$1,029,594 and, for the PA Treasury securities lending program, collateral held of $26,154 (amounts in thousands).

Foreign Currency Risk: Foreign currency risk is the risk of an investment’s value changing, advantageously or adversely, due
to changes in currency exchange rates. The SSHE disclosed that $12 of its local investments was exposed to foreign currency
risk. The amounts invested, by currency, at June 30, 2011 are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Derivatives

Foreign Currency Amount

British pound sterling............cccc...... S 11

EUIO..ceieiiiieieiieeeees 1
Total S 12

As of June 30, 2011, the PHFA, in its separately-issued financial statements, reported a noncurrent hedging derivative
instrument liability of $101,607. Such amounts were reported as deferred outflows of resources ($101,607). Changes in the
fair value of the hedging derivatives ($38,588) were deferred. To obtain further information regarding the nature and
notional value of the financial instruments refer to their separately audited and issued financial statements.

As of May 31, 2011, the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (PTC), in its separately-issued financial statements, reported
noncurrent hedging derivative instrument liabilities of $67,155 which were offset by reported deferred outflow of resources
of $67,155. Also, the PTC reported noncurrent hedging derivative instrument liabilities of $(17,664) which were offset by
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2011

NOTE D — DEPOSITS, INVESTMENTS AND FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK (continued)

reported deferred inflow of resources of $17,664. Changes in the fair value of the hedging derivative instruments during the
fiscal year ended May 31, 2011 ($35,032) were deferred (amounts in thousands).

Further information regarding the nature and notional value of the hedging and investment derivative instruments of the
PHFA (as of June 30, 2011) and the PTC (as of May 31, 2011) is available within their separately audited and issued financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2011

NOTE E — CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of capital assets by category at June 30, 2011 is as follows (amounts in thousands):

Primary Government Discretely Presented _
Governmental Business-Type || Component Units
Activities Activities
Internal Total
General Service Governmental Enterprise
Capital Assets Funds Activities Funds
LaNGd. et nens S 543,447 S - S 543,447 S 323 S 380,211
Highway right-of-way......cccccecevvvveeennnnae 1,970,183 - 1,970,183 - -
Buildings and building improvements. 6,517,338 7,462 6,524,800 48,096 4,415,452
Improvements other than
DUITAINGS . 656,324 1,011 657,335 - 364,340
Machinery and equipment.........cccoeue.ee. 933,088 93,335 1,026,423 141,233 1,187,192
Library books and other.........cccccceveuenee. - - - - 84,667
Turnpike infrastructure.......ccoccceevevenenee. - - - - 6,041,749
Bridge infrastructure.......cccoeevcnineenee. 10,137,372 - 10,137,372 - -
Highway infrastructure........ccccoeeenennnns 22,801,439 - 22,801,439 - -
Waterway infrastructure........ccceueueuenee 23,158 - 23,158 - -
Other infrastructure........oeceeeeverecceennne 179,184 - 179,184 - -
General construction in progress......... 783,857 - 783,857 2,886 293,242
Highway and bridge
construction in progress.......c.ccceeeuee. 2,753,284 - 2,753,284 - 1,151,520
SOFEWAT ..t 112,909 - 112,909 12,688 34,758
Other intangibles......cccocevvevevecevereeene. 200 - 200 - 33
TOtal e S 47,411,783 S 101,808 $47,513,591 $ 205,226 $ 13,953,164

Changes in general capital assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 are as follows (amounts in thousands).

Balance Balance
June 30, 2010 Increases Decreases June 30, 2011
Non-Depreciable General Capital Assets:

171 Yo 1T TR S 510,509 S 33,011 S 73 S 543,447
Highway right-of-way.....cccoeeeeieieeeececeeeeeens 1,886,890 83,293 - 1,970,183
General construction in Progress.......ccceeeeveceevereenenna. 838,126 507,459 561,728 783,857
Transportation construction in progress.........c.c....... 2,631,773 2,429,210 2,307,699 2,753,284
SUBTOLAL vttt 5,867,298 3,052,973 2,869,500 6,050,771

Depreciable and Amortizable General Capital Assets:
Buildings and building improvements.........cccccvvnne 6,318,099 244,264 45,025 6,517,338
Improvements other than buildings.......ccoceevevvenennnee. 602,674 55,353 1,703 656,324
Machinery and equipment........ccccceeveeereeenevenescesennens 879,673 77,744 24,329 933,088
Bridge infrastructure....... 8,984,353 1,153,019 - 10,137,372
Highway infrastructure 21,646,760 1,154,679 - 22,801,439
Waterway infrastructure.......cococceeeeevieceeeceeeceeeeienens 22,065 1,093 - 23,158
Other infrastructure . 164,949 14,235 - 179,184
SOFEWATE vttt 13,119 99,790 - 112,909
Other intangibles......ccovviriniieee e 200 - - 200
Subtotal ..o, 38,631,892 2,800,177 71,057 41,361,012
Total general capital @ssets......ocevevieerereeeeereeeeererenenns $ 44,499,190 $5,853,150 S 2,940,557 $47,411,783
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2011

NOTE E — CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Changes in general capital assets accumulated depreciation and amortization for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 are as
follows (amounts in thousands):

Balance Balance

June 30,2010 Increases Decreases June 30, 2011
Buildings and building improvements S 2,437,003 S 143,606 S 29,838 S 2,550,771
Improvements other than buildings.......cccccoeeveenvenenneee. 265,025 18,919 1,380 282,564
Machinery and equipment.........cccoeoeveeeeneieneeceeeseereine. 459,742 63,158 19,354 503,546
Bridge infrastructure.......oceeeeeecieeccececeeeee e 2,181,228 204,963 - 2,386,191
Highway infrastructure.......cocoeceeveeecceeecenececee e 10,540,538 838,702 - 11,379,240
Waterway infrastructure 1,390 455 - 1,845
Other infrastruCture.. ... 8,439 8,901 - 17,340
o] TV L= T 442 34,296 - 34,738
Other intangibles......cocverienecineee e 70 13 - 83

Total accumulated depreciation and amortization.. $15,893,877 $1,313,013 S 50,572 $17,156,318

Depreciation and amortization expense, by function, related to governmental activities capital assets for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2011 is as follows (amounts in thousands):

General Capital Internal

Assets Service
Direction and SUPPOIrtiVE SEIVICES.....cccweeeeiereeeee ettt s S 41,881 S 6,626
Protection of persons and Property......cerernnsseneseessesesesessesessessesees 88,799 2,403
Public education......cccoeeeeecceciecveinnnne 26,066 -
Health and human services 44,456 -
ECONOMIC dEVEIOPMENT....c.civieiieeeretrecee et st ranees 201 -
TraNSPOITATION ..ttt s s e e s e be e e e e e e enaene s 1,094,218 -
Recreation and cultural enrichment. ... 17,392 -
Total depreciation and amortization EXPENSE.......cccccveceeereeeeeeeeeresreeee e S 1,313,013 S 9,029

Changes in Internal Service funds capital assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Balance Balance
June 30, 2010 Increases Decreases June 30, 2011
Buildings and building improvements v S 7,237 S 225 S - S 7,462
Improvements other than buildings........ccoecvernennnene. 667 344 - 1,011
Machinery and equipmeNnt.......ccccceveveveveneneneneseseenens 96,465 2,384 5,514 93,335
Total Internal Service fund capital assets.......ccoeue..... S 104,369 S 2,953 S 5,514 S 101,808
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2011

NOTE E — CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Changes in Internal Service fund capital assets accumulated depreciation for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 are as
follows (amounts in thousands):

Balance Balance
June 30,2010 Increases Decreases June 30, 2011
Buildings and building improvements........cccccoeeevueunnns S 1,815 S 119 S - S 1,934
Improvements other than buildings 78 59 - 137
Machinery and equUipmMeNnt........ccoevveceerneseeeeeseeenne 69,302 8,851 4,671 73,482
Total accumulated depreciation........eeeeceveeeeeereennnns S 71,195 S 9,029 S 4,671 S 75,553

Changes in Enterprise fund capital assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Balance Balance
June 30,2010 Increases Decreases June 30, 2011
Non-Depreciable Capital Assets:

(121 o o FO OO S 323 S - S - S 323
General construction in Progress......ceeeevecerereeennns 2,886 - - 2,886
SUDBTOTAl.uecereeeicrereee et 3,209 - - 3,209

Depreciable and Amortizable Capital Assets:
Buildings and building improvements..........cccceeueunn. 47,501 15,215 14,620 48,096
Machinery and equipment.........cccccoceeeeeeeeeeeceseccreennns 123,441 20,245 2,453 141,233
SOFEWATE vttt 7,599 5,089 - 12,688
SUBTOLAl et 178,541 40,549 17,073 202,017
Total Enterprise fund capital assets......ccecvveerirenns S 181,750 S 40,549 S 17,073 S 205,226

Changes in Enterprise fund capital assets accumulated depreciation and amortization for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011
are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Balance Balance
June 30,2010 Increases Decreases June 30, 2011
Buildings and building improvements.........ccccccceeueneeee. S 25,678 S 2,873 S 429 S 28,122
Machinery and equipment.......ccoceveveeerceeeeveeeeceeeeceennn 80,707 4,315 2,522 82,500
SOFEWAT ..ttt st ebens 973 9,566 - 10,539
Total accumulated depreciation and amortization..... S 107,358 S 16,754 S 2,951 S 121,161
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2011

NOTE E — CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Construction in progress included in general capital assets at June 30, 2011 includes project information as follows (amounts
in thousands):

Project Amounts Expended Authorization
Authorization at June 30,2011 Available

General Construction in Progress:
(07 Y o1 (oY I 00T o 1T =3 S 378,321 S 156,485 S 221,836
Department of Corrections Institutions 371,949 171,553 200,396
Educational INStitUtioNS.....ccveeveeeiieiceeceecececee e 874,211 113,773 760,438
Environmental ProteCtion.......ccceeveeeeveececcececeeeeeseeeeeenns 39,809 166 39,643
State Parks and FOr@StS.....uuiiinineneneeeneceeeeeeeessessessensens 177,983 21,236 156,747
Veterans Homes and Military Armories 119,533 46,011 73,522
Dept of Public Welfare Institutions..........ccceeeeveeceeveieeeciecennns 23,441 16,675 6,766
Transportation Facilities......cooeeveccecenecececeeceee e 53,084 40,172 12,912
Historical and Museum Commission Facilities......ccceeueu.... 51,949 22,615 29,334
State Police Facilities 40,946 1,224 39,722
Agriculture Facilities............... 19,388 11,131 8,257
Labor & Industry Software 161,160 145,865 15,295
[0 1 o = OSSOSO 278,434 36,951 241,483
Total general construction in Progress......cceeeeeeevveesvenne. 2,590,208 783,857 1,806,351
Highway and Bridge Construction in Progress:.......cccceceeene. 5,070,938 2,753,284 2,317,654
Total conStruction iN ProgreSs.... v eeveieeeereeeseessesesenns S 7,661,146 S 3,537,141 S 4,124,005

The Commonwealth’s initial valuation of general capital assets was made as of June 30, 1986 using appraisal and historical
cost reconstruction techniques. Subsequent to June 30, 1986, general capital asset acquisitions are reported at cost or, for
donations or confiscations, at fair market value. At June 30, 2011 the amount of general capital assets related to the initial
1986 valuation amounted to $1,694 million and did not include highway, bridge or waterway infrastructure. The
infrastructure was retro-actively added in 1989.
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NOTE F — LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS - BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES AND PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Due to Other Governments

During 2009, pursuant to a Commonwealth request, the Federal government began advancing the Commonwealth amounts to
assist the Commonwealth in financing the payment of unemployment compensation benefits to qualifying individuals. The
amount owed to the Federal government through June 30, 2011 amounts to $3,848,309. Changes in the amount owed during
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 follow (amounts in thousands):

Balance at Balance at
July 1, 2010 Additions Reductions June 30, 2011
$ 3,022,317 S 825,992 S - S 3,848,309

Tuition Benefits Payable

The reported liability for tuition benefits payable of $1,400,922 of the Tuition Payment Fund, an Enterprise Fund, at June 30, 2011 is
based on several actuarial assumptions, including those related to future sales of tuition credits, tuition cost increases, administrative
charges, investment experience and program expenses for the Pennsylvania 529 Guaranteed Savings Plan (GSP). The June 30, 2011
actuarial analysis includes two changes in assumptions to reflect updated expense projections and changes in investment returns.
The change in expense assumptions reflects a decrease in authorized expenses. The assumed rate of return on long-term
investments decreased from 8.25% to 8.0%. The current portion of the total liability is $189,878 and the noncurrent portion is
$1,211,044 (in thousands).

Changes in tuition benefits payable are as follows:

Current Non Current
Balance at Balance at Due within Due after
July 1, 2010 Additions Reductions June 30, 2011 One Year One Year
$1,329,891 S 235,982 S 164,951 S 1,400,922 S 189,878 $1,211,044

Insurance Loss Liability

The reported insurance loss liability of the State Workers’ Insurance Fund (SWIF), an Enterprise Fund, is primarily based on historical
claims experience. One of the assumptions used to determine the reported liability amount includes using a discount rate of 3.25
percent at December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009. There is uncertainty as to whether the reported liability will be supported by
future claim experience, including payments; this uncertainty must be considered when evaluating the reported insurance loss
liability.

For the calendar years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, the following summary provides information on prior year reported
insurance loss liability, incurred claims and payments, and current year reported insurance loss liability (amounts in thousands).

Year Ended Prior Year Incurred Claims Payments Current Year
December 31 Liability Current Prior Current Prior Liability
2010 $1,554,136 $226,197 $31,327 $43,747 $258,099 $1,509,814
2009 1,635,237 248,059 29,934 55,039 304,055 1,554,136

The current portion of the total SWIF insurance loss liability is $253,964 and the noncurrent portion is $1,255,850. Additionally,
nonmajor Enterprise funds reported a noncurrent insurance loss liability of $311 at June 30, 2011. Total reported current insurance
loss liability amounts to $253,964 and total noncurrent insurance loss liability amounts to $1,256,161 (in thousands) at June 30, 2011.
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NOTE F — LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS - BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES AND PROPRIETARY FUNDS (continued)
Compensated Absences Liability

The reported compensated absences liability for the Enterprise Funds totaled $35,132 at June 30, 2011. Of that amount, the liability
is primarily owed by the State Stores Fund ($27,240), the State Worker’s Insurance Fund ($2,790), and the State Lottery Fund
(52,902). The following summary provides aggregated information reported for June 30, 2011 compensated absence liabilities;
additions and reductions during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 and reported compensated absences liabilities at June 30, 2010
(amounts in thousands):

Liability at Liability at
June 30, 2010 Additions Reductions June 30, 2011
S 36,975 S 24,124 S 25,967 $ 35,132

The current portion of the total compensated absences liability for Enterprise Funds is $7,357 and the noncurrent portion is $27,775
(in thousands).
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June 30, 2011

NOTE G - TAXES, LOANS AND LEASE RENTALS RECEIVABLE

Taxes Receivable: Taxes receivable, by tax type, reported on the Statement of Net Assets at June 30, 2011 consisted of the
following (amounts in thousands):

Statement of Net Assets
Governmental Activities

Current Noncurrent Total

Sales and use..... S 656,210 S 203,351 S 859,561
Personal income 430,464 376,359 806,823
Corporation......... 249,576 520,444 770,020
Liquid fuels......... 179,721 - 179,721
Inheritance......... 314,141 105,624 419,765
Cigarette.............. 66,667 - 66,667
Other...cccovveeennenn. 20,381 - 20,381

Total.cveeeiiiens $ 1,917,160 S 1,205,778 $ 3,122,938

Taxes receivable reported on the Balance Sheet for Governmental Funds at June 30, 2011 consisted of the following
(amounts in thousands):

Fund Balance Sheets

General Fund

Expected to be Collected: Motor Nonmajor
From License Governmental Fiduciary
September 1, 2011 Fund Funds Funds

By through After Collected by Collected by Collected by

August 31, 2011 June 30, 2012 June 30, 2012 Total August 31, 2011 August 31,2011 August 31,2011

Sales and use.... $ 551,306 S 104,904 S 203,351 S 859,561 S - S - S 24,431
Personal income 240,609 189,855 376,359 806,823 - - -
Corporation......... 27,745 221,831 520,444 770,020 - - -
Liquid fuels........ - - - - 179,721 - -
Inheritance......... 126,760 187,381 105,624 419,765 - - -
Cigarette.............. 66,667 - - 66,667 - - -
Other....ccoeneee. 381 - - 381 - 20,000 2,131
Total..cooeeeeennee. $ 1,013,468 S 703,971 S 1,205,778 $2,923)217 S 179,721 S 20,000 S 26,562

On the governmental funds balance sheet, the General Fund taxes receivable of $1,909,749 expected to be collected after
August 31, 2011 is reported as an unearned revenue liability. The total amount of taxes receivable reported on the
governmental funds balance sheet, $1,917,160 (51,717,439 reported in the General Fund, $179,721 reported in the Motor
License Fund, and $20,000 reported in nonmajor governmental funds), expected to be collected from July 1, 2011 through
June 30, 2012 is also reported as current taxes receivable in governmental activities on the Statement of Net Assets. The
remaining General Fund taxes receivable of $1,205,778 reported on the governmental funds balance sheet expected to be
collected after June 30, 2012 is reported as noncurrent taxes receivable in governmental activities on the Statement of Net
Assets. All of the revenue associated with the taxes receivable reported in governmental activities on the Statement of Net
Assets is reported as tax revenue in governmental activities on the Statement of Activities (amounts in thousands).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2011

NOTE G - TAXES, LOANS AND LEASE RENTALS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Loans Receivable: Loans receivable at June 30, 2011 consisted of the following (amounts in thousands):

Primary Government

Business
Governmental Type

Activities Activities Discretely

Capital Presented

General Projects Enterprise Component

Fund Funds Funds Units

MOFAEE [0ANS cuvievceieeereeeeceectece ettt e ee v e eaeens S - S - S - ' $ 5,028,512
StUAENT I0ANS i e - - - 8,615,131
Economic development [0ans..ccccceecieviieiniiencieeecee e, 27,298 - 230,179 773,606
Drinking water, storm water and sewer system loans. - 65,440 - 2,263,050
Volunteer fire company l0ans......ccccevveenviienieeciieessieenns - - 97,138 -
Environmental program 10ans.....cccceveeveeeenieneenenseennens 8,413 - - -
Other notes and 10aNS ..., 110 - - 8,837

35,821 65,440 327,317 16,689,136

Less:allowance foruncollectible amounts.................. 15,255 4,365 34,969 314,263
Loans receivable, Net. et S 20,566 S 61,075 S 292,348 S 16,374,873

The General Fund reported $16,256 in loans due after June 30, 2012, Capital Projects funds reported $58,268 in loans due
after June 30, 2012 and the Enterprise funds reported $239,438 in loans due after June 30, 2012. Discretely presented
component units reported $14,996,654 in loans receivable due after June 30, 2012 (amounts in thousands).

Lease Rentals Receivable: The Capital Facilities Fund, a Capital Projects fund, reports expenditure amounts related to
construction projects for educational institutions funded through the issuance of general obligation bonds, the principal and
interest of which are paid through the collection of lease rental payments and deposited in the Capital Debt Fund, a Debt
Service fund. At the conclusion of the lease terms, the project facilities are conveyed to the educational institutions.
Accordingly, these lease arrangements are classified as direct financing leases. Lease rental receivables and associated
unearned revenue equal to the principal lease payments to be received are recorded in the Capital Debt Fund. At June 30,
2011 the total remaining minimum lease payments to be received were $493, consisting of principal present value of $427
and interest of $66 (amounts in thousands).

The Philadelphia Regional Port Authority, a discretely presented component unit, reported a lease rental receivable of $953
at June 30, 2011 (amounts in thousands).

Minimum lease payments receivable from prior years and for the fiscal year succeeding June 30, 2011 are as follows
(amounts in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ending Primary Discretely Presented
June 30 Government Component Units
Prior years ............. S 493 S -
2012 - 953

All amounts receivable are due by June 30, 2012.

Governmental Funds Unearned Revenue: The General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and Debt Service Funds reported
unearned revenue at June 30, 2011. The following chart provides the portion of total unearned revenue which was 1)
unavailable or 2) not yet earned as of June 30, 2011 (amounts in thousands):
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2011

NOTE G - TAXES, LOANS AND LEASE RENTALS RECEIVABLE (continued)

General Special Revenue Debt Service

Unavailable.. e, S 2,212,299 S 162,923 S -

Unearned.......eeeeeeveceeeeeeeeereenenn 67,184 46,012 3,649

Total unearned revenue................... S 2,279,483 S 208,935 S 3,649
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2011

NOTE H — INTERNAL/INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

Statement of Net Assets

Internal Balances

In the Statement of Net Assets, reported internal balances of (5108,644)/5108,989 for governmental activities/business-type
activities differ by $345 because the State Workers’ Insurance Fund, an Enterprise Fund, reports for its fiscal year ended
December 31, 2010 (amounts in thousands).

Fund Financial Statements

Interfund Balances

The composition of governmental and proprietary funds interfund balances reported at June 30, 2011 is as follows, with
Major Fund titles in bold. Aggregate nonmajor governmental funds receivables from other funds and from component units,
respectively, amount to $107,073 and $4,635; aggregate nonmajor enterprise funds receivables amount to $7,396 and $0;
aggregate internal service funds receivables amount to $33,616 and $278 (amounts in thousands):

DUE FROM DUETO
FUND TYPE/FUND OTHER COMPONENT OTHER COMPONENT
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT FUNDS UNITS FUNDS UNITS
GeNEral FUN.....ccovviiiiiiinrnrrereeeeeeeesssssssnsssssneseessesesssssnsnnes S 45,229 S 1,007 S 137,664 S 1,741
Special Revenue:
Motor License FUNd.........cceveeuecerreenncirieenncenneenneeeeenneesnenns 18,284 7 56,501 8,851
Tobacco Settlement Fund........ccocvumemeeeeeeriiiiniiiiininneneneeens - - 334 -
Public Transportation Trust FUNd..........ccceeieeiiininiiiiiiiienes 46,644 - 10 -
GamMING FUN..cooiiiiiiiie e 2 3,334 982 -
Vocational Rehabilitation Fund..........ccoovveiiiiiiiieiiiinen, - - 7,419 -
Emergency Medical Services Operating Fund.................... 2,225 - - -
Agricultural Conservation Easement Purchase Fund......... 12,934 - - -
Fishand Boat FUNd............uuviiiieeeeeiiieeeeeecceeeee e 1,712 - 2,633 13
Other FUNAS. .. 2,890 - 2,609 14
84,691 3,341 70,488 8,878
Capital Projects:
Capital Facilities FUNd.......ccoovvieiiiiiiiiiiece e, 25,734 1,301 17,023 -
Keystone Recreation, Parkand Conservation Fund 5,075 - 28 -
Public Transportation Assistance Fund.............cccceuvvvvnnnes 9,857 - 848 -
40,666 1,301 17,899 -
Enterprise:
Unemployment Compensation Fund.........c.ccccceeeeiciiinininnnnns 6,244 801 71 -
State Lottery FUNd.........cooviiinnnenenieiininininsiinnnneneeneneenens 38 - 581 -
TUItion PAyment.......eeeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinneeeeeenes e ssssssnssseseeneens - - 7 -
State Stores Fund 24 - 8,782 -
Rehabilitation Center FUNd..........ccoeeiiiiiieeiiiiieeeieiiee e, 7,181 - 48 -
Other FUNAS.....cooiiiiieeieecee e 191 - 43 -
13,678 801 9,532 -
Internal Service:
Purchasing FUNd.........oooiiiiiiiiiiieee e 26,997 275 3,747 17
Manufacturing FUNd.......coooeiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee e 6,619 3 214 -
33,616 278 3,961 17
Fiduciary - Pension Trust:
State Employees'Retirement System.... 8,614 5,654 - -
Deferred Compensation FUNd..........ccvveveeeieeeeeneniiciiiiienes - - 124 -
Public School Employees'Retirement System.................. 6,813 - 10,887 -
15,427 5,654 11,011 -
Total primary goVernment......c..cccveeeveeecieeeeneeesiee e S 233,307 S 12,382 S 250,555 S 10,636
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2011

NOTE H — INTERNAL/INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS (continued)

DUE FROM DUE TO
DISCRETELY PRESENTED PRIMARY COMPONENT PRIMARY COMPONENT
COMPONENT UNITS GOVERNMENT UNITS GOVERNMENT UNITS

Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission...........ccccueeeiieeeivneeenns S 6,039 S - S - S -
Pennsylvania Housing Finance AgeNncy......cccccoevvveeeevnnvennn. - 18 16 44
Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency... - - 202 -
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority... - 44 79,358 18
State System of Higher Education.........ccccvvvevevviiiieeeeeniinnens 777 - 2,305 -
Commonwealth Financing Authority.........ccccoocvieiniiinnnnene 1,230 - 612 -
Pennsylvania Convention Center Authority....................... - - 3,334 -
Other componNeNnt UNItS.....uuvieeeerciiereeeeiiiieeeeeriree e e e - - 40 -
Total COMPONENt UNItS....viiiieiiecrieceeeie et eee e S 8,046 S 62 S 85,867 S 62

The amount of total reported interfund receivables of $253,797 does not agree with total reported interfund payables of
$347,120 at June 30, 2011 due to different fiscal year ends and reporting differences for certain Funds included in the Fund
Financial Statements at June 30, 2011. The amount reported for the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission, a discretely
presented component unit, is reported at its fiscal year ended May 31, 2011; the amounts reported as interfund balances for
the State Employees’ Retirement System and Deferred Compensation Fund, Pension Trust Funds, the INVEST Program for
Local Governments, an Investment Trust Fund, and the State Workers’ Insurance Fund, an Enterprise Fund, are reported at
their fiscal years ended December 31, 2010. The following presents a reconciliation of interfund balances reported at June
30, 2011 and those amounts that would have been reported if all Funds reported at the same fiscal year end (amounts in
thousands):

Governmental Proprietary Fiduciary Component
Funds Funds Funds Units Total

Due from other funds................... S 169,818 S 40,154 S 5376 S - § 215,348

Due from pension trust funds....... 768 7,140 10,051 - 17,959

Due from component units........... 5,649 1,079 5,654 62 12,444

Due from primary government..... - - - 8,046 8,046

TOtaleeeeveee S 176,235 S 48,373 S 21,081 S 8,108 S 253,797

Reported Interfund Receivables...... . . . . . rerreeeeneeenreeeennees S 253,797
State Employees' Retirement System decrease in receivables from January 1, 2011 through June, 30,2011 (3,278)
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission increase in receivables from June 1, 2011 through June 30, 2011......ccccccvevvervennnnne 2,589
State Workers' Insurance Fund increase in receivablesfrom January 1, 2011 through June 30, 2011........ccccceveurrccnerrennnnne 628
Interfund receivables reported as taxes receivable and accounts receivable by fiduciary funds.........cccocnvininnnnnne. 9,422
Payroll accrual atJune 30,2011 -receivables attributable to State Employees'Retirement System........cccccevveevveeverenne 16,316
General Fund receivable from Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (full accrual) SRR 79,208

Reconciled Interfund Receivables... . . . reerreeeesesarreeesans S 358,682
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2011

NOTE H — INTERNAL/INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS (continued)

Governmental Proprietary Fiduciary Component
Funds Funds Funds Units Total
Due to otherfunds.......ccovevvennn. $ 197,672 S 12,765 S 932 § - $ 211,369
Due to pension trust funds........... 28,379 728 10,079 - 39,186
Due to component units............... 10,619 17 - 62 10,698
Due to primary government......... - - - 85,867 85,867
Totaleeoeonieieiceceee S 236,670 S 13,510 S 11,011 S 85,929 $ 347,120
Reported Interfund Payables. . . . . . S 347,120
State Employees' Retirement System increase in payables from January 1, 2011 through June, 30, 2011..........ccveeenneee. 4,929
Deferred Compensation Fund decrease in payables from January 1, 2011 through June,30, 2011.......cccccvvevvieenreennnen. (117)
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission increase in payables fromJune 1, 2011 through June 30,2011... 90
State Workers' Insurance Fund increase in payables from January 1, 2011 through June 30, 2011........cccceevrrrcrnenccnnescnnnns 164
INVEST Program for Local Governments increase in payables fromJanuary 1, 2011 through June 30, 2011.............c....... 33
Interfund payables reported as accounts payable by component units 2
Interfund payables reported as accounts payable by fiduciary funds. ..o 6,461
Reconciled Interfund Payables . . . . eeeeeeeeeeeennnnnns S 358,682

Advances — Fund Financial Statements

At June 30, 2011 the General Fund reported Advances to Other Funds of $114,475. Specifically, this amount has been
advanced as follows: $2,300 to the State Workers’ Insurance Fund and $110,000 to the State Stores Fund, Enterprise Funds;
and, $2,175 to the Motor License Fund, a Special Revenue Fund. These amounts have been reported by the respective owing
Funds as Advances from Other Funds, except for the State Workers’ Insurance Fund, which reported an advance of $2,180 at
its fiscal year ended December 31, 2010. At June 30, 2011 the Workers’ Compensation Security Fund and the Hazardous Sites
Cleanup Fund, Special Revenue Funds, reported Advances to Other Funds of $1,500 and $3,000, respectively; these amounts
were advanced to the General Fund and the Small Business First Fund, an Enterprise Fund. Additionally, the Pennsylvania
Infrastructure Bank Fund, an Enterprise Fund, reported an advance of $1,400; the amount was advanced to the Motor
License Fund, a Special Revenue Fund. All amounts advanced, with exception to a $493 repayment from the Motor License
Fund to the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Bank Fund, are expected to be repaid subsequent to June 30, 2012. The
Underground Storage Tank Indemnification Fund, an Agency Fund, reported a $67,500 statutory advance to the General
Fund at June 30, 2011; no repayment is expected to occur during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012 (amounts in
thousands).

General Appropriation Act 1-A and Act 46 of 2010

During July 2010, the General Appropriation Act 1-A (Act 1-A) and Act 46 of 2010 (Act 46) included routine, annual
amendments to the Fiscal Code and amended other laws to implement the General Fund budget for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2011, which was adopted during July 2010. Act 46 mandated several non-routine transfers to the General Fund,
following, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 (amounts in thousands):

TODACCO SEIIEMENT FUN ...ttt et e e et e e e et e saeee e s seeesesaaeessaneeesasneeesans S 371,000
(O 11 BT Te R T T K=t LY =3 LU T oL N 180,000
Keystone Recreation, Park and Conservation FUNd...........cccccviiiiiiieinciin e 9,227
Emergency Medical Services Operating FUNG..........cooiiiiiiiriiniie et 5,000
Small Business First FUNd..........eevvevevevevevevevenennns 4,000
Local Government Capital Project Loan Fund.... 1,000
IMOTON LICENSE FUN ...ttt e et e e e e s eabbb e e e e e e e sesbbareeeeeesan 800

$ 571,027

Transfers

A summary of transfers reported for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 is as follows, with Major Fund titles in bold.
Aggregate nonmajor governmental fund transfers from other funds amounted to $1,281,503 during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2011; aggregate nonmajor governmental fund transfers to other funds amounted to $564,561. Aggregate nonmajor
proprietary fund transfers from other funds amounted to $48, while aggregate nonmajor proprietary fund transfers to other
funds amounted to $111,674 (amounts in thousands).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2011

NOTE H — INTERNAL/INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS (continued)

TRANSFERS TRANSFERS
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT IN ouT
General Fund . S 1,063,293 S 1,023,268
Special Revenue:
Motor License Fund - 62,725
Tobacco Settlement Fund - 411,856
Workers' Compensation Administration Fund - 2,200
Environmental Stewardship FUNG........coouiiiiiiiiiieeitecceee et e - 41,814
Public Transportation TrUST FUNG.........eeeuiieiiieeiie et sae et seae e nee e seaee e 109,679 -
[ Taa 11 o= SV T T TSP PPPRN - 286,216
Vocational Rehabilitation FUNG.........coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt 40,473 -
Agricultural Conservation Easement PUrchase FUNG........c.cuvvevieeriiieniiieeniee e 4,645 -
State Farm Products SNOW FUNG........cccvviiiiiiiiiec ettt e e naaraeeeeen 2,605 -
Self-Insurance GUAraNty FUNG.......ooviiiiiieiiieeeee ettt s st 2,200 -
RECYCHNG FUNG. .ttt et et e et e et e e sab e e st e e sabeeessbeeesaeeenbeeennns 1,000 1,250
Oil aNA GaS LEASE FUNG...uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeseeaaaaaes - 197,575
Hazardous Sites Cleanup Fund................... . - 5,000
Emergency Medical Services Operating Fund.. - 5,000
(0] 4 o1 ol 2T Yo KU PP TP USROS 1,543 122
162,145 1,013,758
Debt Service:
Disaster Relief Redemption FUNG.......c.uiiiiiiriiieniie ettt e 163 -
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority Redemption Fund.........c.ccccoveeeivveennnn. 5,122 -
Capital DEDE FUNG ...ttt ettt et st et e st e e st e e b eesabseesnbeesnnes 1,049,927 -
Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization Sinking Fund. 503 -
Water Facilities Loan Redemption Fund.................. . 1,852 -
Land and Water Development Sinking FUNd..........ooooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiecc e 241 -
Growing Greener Bond SINKING FUNG........cooiiiiiiiieiiie et 37,169 -
Water Supply and Wastewater Treatment Sinking Fund...........ccoovveeeiiiiiiee i, 13,920 -
Water and Sewer Assistance Bond Sinking FUNG..........ccveviiieiiieiiieeniie e 9,207 -
(0] 4 T gl VT Yo E U U TR RURRRPPPPIRN 1,254 -
1,119,358 -
Capital Projects:
Keystone Recreation, Parkand Conservation FUNG..........ccceevveevieenniieeiieenieeenieeeieee e - 9,227
Local Criminal JUSTICe FUNG.....cccueiiiiiiiieiee e - 1
Public Transportation Assistance FUNG........ccuvieiveeiiieiiiee et reee e s eae e - 16,156
- 25,384
Enterprise:
Unemployment Compensation Fund - 6,000
State Lottery Fund 165,900 288,199
State Stores Fund - 106,674
SMall BUSTNESS FIrSt FUNG....uuuviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeceee e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e - 4,000
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Bank FUN...........cooviiiiiiieiiiieiie e 48 -
Local Government Capital Project Loan FUNG........oovveiviiieniieiiiee e - 1,000
165948 — 405873
Total transfers, fund financial StatemMeNntS........ccceeeviiiiiiii e 2,510,744 2,468,283
Less: net elimination of governmental fund transfers........cccocvevveeiiieeniicncie e, 2,228,358 2,228,358
Less: Medical Care Availability and Reduction of Error Fund transfers to General Fund....... 42,461 -
Total transfers, StatemMent Of ACHIVITIES....c..cciiirieireecreccie ettt ere s S 239,925 S 239,925
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2011

NOTE H — INTERNAL/INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS (continued)

Assigned Investment Income: During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, certain assigning funds, as follows, receive but do
not financially report investment income that is assigned to (and reported by) another fund for legal or contractual reasons.
Investment income and related interfund transfers are reported by those funds which assign/receive investment income for
other than legal/contractual reasons (amounts in thousands):

Assigning Fund Receiving Fund Reason Amount
Liquor License Fund ........cccccevvevvenicnnennnene General Fund .........c.ccoceiiiiiiiiniiiniiiicecc s Legal/contractual ........ccooveeerieennennns S 6
Liquid Fuels Tax Fund..........cceeueee. .... MotorLicense Fund...........c...cccvvvrerinieennnnn. Legal/contractual ..... 28
Land and Water Development Fund ........... Land and Water Development Sinking Fund ... Legal/contractual .......cccevveneene 2
Remining Financial Assurance Fund............ Land and Water Development Sinking Fund ... . Other than legal/contractual... 367
Fire Insurance Tax Fund ..........c...... ... State Insurance Fund........ccccceevevviiricnicnnncnnne. Legal/contractual .......cccceueune 103
Fire Insurance Tax FUNd ......c.cccecveevveeiveniene Municipal Pension Aid FUNd .........cccevvienieniienieeieniee Legal/contractual ........cccevvvrerereennnns 30

Primary Government Transactions with Discretely Presented Component Units

Financial Support Provided to:
Major Discretely Presented Component Units
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 (May 31, 2011 for PA Turnpike Commission), the Commonwealth provided

financial support to major discretely presented component units, reported by the component units as follows (amounts in
thousands):

State System of Higher Education (appropriations, grants and contracts, ARRA state fiscal stabilization funds) ................. S 605,728
PA Higher Education AsSiStance AENCY (SIaNTS)......ccuererieriirieiiereeieste et e ste st e testeetesteeste s bt saaestesae e besbeesbesbeestesbesasensesneensenaes 450,661
PA Turnpike Commission (Capital CONTIIDULIONS) ....ccueiiieeiiieiieie sttt te e st e e e e sseesrte e neesnseenseessseeseenneas 88,996
PA Infrastructure Investment Authority (capital cCONtribULIONS) .....cccuiiiiiiiiiiiece e e e 50,673

PA Housing Finance Agency (program inComMe and fEES)......ccuiiuiiiieriiieieeieeeteeeee e eee et e steesteesteesbeesteesaseenseesaseeseesaseenses 10,476

Nonmajor Discretely Presented Component Units

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the Commonwealth provided financial support to nonmajor component units by
appropriations, as follows (amounts in thousands):

Ben Franklin Technology Development AULNOKILY......coiiieiieiee ettt e te et e s te et e e st e e e e s eessaeenseesnaeenseesnseeseesseas S 16,861
Thaddeus Stevens College of Technology (includes ARRA state fiscal stabilization funds) ..........ccccoeeviiiiiiiiiiiiiicce e 10,876
POrt Of PittShUIZN COMMISSION......iiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e e st e e e s tb e e e abeeeabbeeesabeeesabeeesssseessbaeeen sesnntaeaanssees 724

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the Commonwealth provided financial support in the amount $156,945 to the
Commonwealth Financing Authority; the support included $78,480 in General Fund appropriations and $78,465 from the
Gaming Fund for payment of debt service and approved project funding. The Commonwealth provided $86,028 to the PA
Convention Center Authority, under a delegation agreement, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. Additionally, the
Commonwealth provided financial support to the Philadelphia Regional Port Authority during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2011; the Philadelphia Regional Port Authority categorized the support among governmental appropriations, capital
appropriations and contributions, and transfers in. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the Philadelphia Regional Port
Authority’s reported revenues include about $30,000 of financial support from the Commonwealth (amounts in thousands).

Financial Support Provided to the Commonwealth

During its fiscal year ended May 31, 2011, the PA Turnpike Commission incurred additional debt in order to provide $200,000
to the Motor License Fund and $250,000 to the Public Transportation Trust Fund under the statutory provisions of Act 44 of
2007 and the related Lease and Funding Agreement between the PA Turnpike Commission and the Commonwealth.
Additionally, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the Commonwealth Financing Authority provided $25,000 to the
General Fund under the provisions of Act 1 of Special Session 1 of 2008 (amounts in thousands).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2011

NOTE | - PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Pension Systems

Commonwealth laws established contributory defined benefit pension plans covering substantially all Commonwealth and
public school employees. Generally, Commonwealth employees are members of the State Employees’ Retirement System
(SERS) and public school employees are members of the Public School Employees’ Retirement System (PSERS). Both the SERS
and the PSERS are reported as Pension Trust Funds, Fiduciary Funds. The SERS and the PSERS issue stand-alone, audited
financial statements are available at www.sers.state.pa.us and www.psers.state.pa.us. Written requests for SERS or PSERS
financial statements should be directed to the following addresses:

State Employees’ Retirement System Public School Employees’ Retirement System
30 North Third Street, Suite 150 Bureau of Communications
Harrisburg, PA 17101-1716 P.O. Box 125

Harrisburg, PA 17108-0125

State Employees’ Retirement System

Plan Description: The SERS is the administrator of a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit retirement plan
established to provide pension benefits for Commonwealth employees and certain other organizations. At December 31,
2010 there were 108 employer state agencies and other organizations participating in the SERS.

Retirement Benefits: Article Il of the Pennsylvania Constitution provides the General Assembly the authority to establish and
amend plan benefit provisions. The SERS provides retirement, death, and disability benefits. Retirement benefits generally
vest after five years of credited service. Employees who retire at age 60 with three years of service, or with 35 years of
service if under age 60, are entitled to a normal (unreduced) annual retirement benefit. Members of the General Assembly
and certain employees classified in hazardous duty positions can retire with full benefits at age 50 with at least three years of
service.

Most members of the SERS, and all covered employees hired after June 30, 2001 (except State Police officers and certain
members of the judiciary and legislators), are Class AA members, pursuant to Act 2001-9 (Act 9), signed into law on May 17,
2001. Among other things, Act 9 provides for general annual retirement benefits of 2.5 percent of the member’s highest
three-year average salary (final average salary) multiplied by years of service. State police troopers are entitled to an annual
benefit equal to a percentage of their highest annual salary (excluding their year of retirement). The annual benefit is 75
percent of salary for 25 or more years of service and 50 percent of salary for 20-24 years of service. Judges are entitled to a
benefit of 4 percent of final average salary for each of the first 10 years of service and 3 percent for subsequent years.
District Justices are entitled to a benefit of 3 percent of final average salary for each year of service. For legislators in office
on May 17, 2001 Act 9 established Class D-4 membership whereby the general annual benefit is 3 percent of final average
salary for each year of service. The general annual benefit for full retirement for Class A members is 2 percent of the
member’s highest three-year salary multiplied by years of service.

Funding Policy: Commonwealth law establishes all member contribution rates. The active plan member contribution rate is
6.25 percent of covered payroll for employees in Class AA; for Class A members, the contribution rate is 5 percent. Higher
contributions are required for certain members of the General Assembly and judges and district justices who elect higher
contribution rates. The SERS Board has the authority to establish or amend periodic employer contributions at actuarially
determined rates, expressed as a percentage of annual covered payroll. The employer contribution rates are established on a
periodic basis and are intended to provide employer contributions which, when combined with member contributions and
investment returns, are adequate to accumulate assets to pay benefits when due.

Act 9 provided that new benefits arising therefrom were to be funded over a ten-year period, with level dollar funding,
beginning July 1, 2002. Act 9 also provided that all the existing actuarial assets and liabilities be combined and amortized
over a ten-year period using level dollar funding and future actuarial gains and losses were to be amortized using ten-year
level dollar funding. On December 10, 2003, Act 2003-40 (Act 40) was signed into law. The significant provisions of the law
were to change certain actuarial methods and periods used to amortize actuarial assets and liabilities, as follows: Pre-Act 9
funding credit, ten years; Act 9 liability, 30 years; post-2000 gains and losses, 30 years; and, existing and future cost of living
adjustments, ten years.
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NOTE I - PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Also, pursuant to Act 40, beginning July 1, 2005, the SERS established employer contribution rates which resulted in total
2005 through 2010 employer contributions which were lower than the minimum annual required contribution as defined by
GASB Statement No. 25. Since the SERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit retirement system and all SERS-
required employer contributions were made, no unfunded pension liability is reported by the Commonwealth as of June 30,
2011. Act 8 of 2007 established a permanent, minimum employer contribution rate ‘floor’ of 4 percent. Act 120 of 2010
established a fresh start amortization of the December 31, 2009 unfunded liability over a 30-year period beginning July 1,
2010 and ending June 30, 2040.

During each of the three years ended December 31, the annual required employer contribution and the related percentage
of that amount (in thousands) actually contributed are as follows:

Year ended December 31 Annual Required Contribution Percentage Contributed
2010 S 866,822 314
2009 S 643,861 39.1
2008 S 584,248 39.9

At December 31, 2010, the SERS disclosed no long-term contracts for contributions to the plan.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: The SERS financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting,
whereby expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred, revenues are recorded in the accounting period in which they
are earned and become measurable, and investment purchases and sales are recorded as of the related trade date. Member
and employer contributions are recognized in the period in which employee salaries are reported. Benefits and refunds are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.

Investment Valuation: Investments are reported at fair value, which is the amount that the SERS can reasonably expect to
receive for an investment in a current sale between a willing buyer and a willing seller, that is, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. The investments in short-term funds, including those managed by the State Treasurer, are reported at cost
plus allocated interest, which approximates fair value. The securities lending collateral pool, which is a fund operated by the
securities lending agent, also is reported at cost plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value. U.S. government
securities, corporate and foreign bonds and notes, common and preferred stocks, and the underlying holdings in funds-of-
hedge funds (reported as part of alternative investments), are generally valued based on published market prices and
quotations from national security exchanges and securities pricing services. Securities that are not traded on a national
security exchange are valued by the asset manager or third parties based on similar sales. Foreign exchange and futures
contracts are marked-to-market daily with changes in fair value recognized as part of investments and investment income.
Real estate investments, which are subject to annual independent audits, are primarily valued based on independent
appraisals. Properties that have not been appraised are valued using the present value of the projected future net income
stream. Alternative investments, which are subject to an annual independent audit, include interests in limited partnerships
invested in venture capital, leveraged buyouts, private equities, and other investments, are valued based on estimated fair
value established by valuation committees.

The collective trust funds (CTF) consist primarily of domestic and international institutional mutual and index funds. The
funds do not pay interest or dividends to shareholders, and reinvest all income earned on securities held by the fund. The
fair value of CTF is based on the reported share value of the respective fund. The CTF is subject to an annual independent
audit.

Unsettled investment sales are reported as investment proceeds receivable and unsettled investment purchases are reported
as investment purchases payable. Investment expenses consist of investment managers’ fees and those expenses directly
related to the SERS’ investment operations.
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NOTE I - PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Public School Employees’ Retirement System

Plan Description: The PSERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit retirement system established to provide
pension and other benefits for public school employee members. At June 30, 2011 there were 756 participating employers,
generally school districts. In relation to the PSERS, the Commonwealth is a non-employer contributor organization.

Benefits: The PSERS provides retirement, disability retirement, death and health care benefits. In most cases, retirement
benefits vest after 5 years of credited service. Members are eligible for full monthly retirement benefits upon reaching (a)
age 62 with at least one year of service, (b) age 60 with 30 or more years of service, or (c) 35 or more years of service
regardless of age. Benefits for full retirement are generally equal to 2 percent (Membership Class T-C) or 2.5 percent
(Membership Class T-D) of the member’s final average salary multiplied by the member’s number of years of credited service.
The Commonwealth has the authority to establish or amend benefit provisions.

Funding Policy: The Public School Employees’ Retirement Code provides that the PSERS Board has the authority to establish
or amend periodic employer contributions at actuarially determined rates, expressed as a percentage of annual covered
payroll. The active plan member contribution rates for employees in Membership Class T-C and T-D hired before July 22,
1983 are 5.25 and 6.50 percent of covered payroll, respectively; for employees in Membership Class T-C and T-D hired after
July 21, 1983, the rates are 6.25 and 7.50 percent, respectively. The increased member contribution rates for Class T-D
became effective January 1, 2002. Commonwealth law determines member contribution rates.

Since 1995, employers defined as school entities (school districts, charter schools, area vocational-technical schools, and
intermediate units) are required to pay the entire employer contribution. The Commonwealth partially reimburses school
entities in accordance with Act 29 of 1994. The amount of reimbursement is at least one half of the total employer
contribution. For employers that are not school entities, the employer and the Commonwealth pay the employer
contribution equally to the PSERS; no Commonwealth reimbursement occurs.

Act 40 of 2003 amended the actuarial cost method in three areas that affect employer contribution rates. Act 40 changed
the amortization period from 10 years to 30 years for: unfunded liabilities accrued as a result of Act 9 of 2001; outstanding
balances of net actuarial losses during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2001 and 2002; and net gains and losses in future years.
Act 40 continued a 10-year amortization period for unfunded liabilities accrued prior to Act 9 of 2001; any future active
member improvements; and any retiree cost-of-living adjustments. Finally, Act 40 established an employer contribution rate
‘floor’ of 4 percent, exclusive of the premium assistance contribution rate, beginning July 1, 2004. Act 120 of 2010
suppressed the employer contribution rate by using rate caps in future years to keep the rate from rising too high, too fast for
budgetary purposes. The rate caps limit the amount the pension component of the employer contribution rate can increase
over the prior years’ rates as follows:

FY 2012 — not more than 3% plus the premium assistance contribution rate
FY 2013 — not more than 3.5% plus the premium assistance contribution rate
FY 2014 — not more than 4.5% plus the premium assistance contribution rate

During each of the three fiscal years ended June 30, the annual required employer contribution and the related percentage of
that amount (in thousands) actually contributed are as follows:

Fiscal year Annual Required Percentage
Ended June 30 Contribution Contributed
2011 S 2,436,602 27
2010 S 1,928,278 27
2009 S 1,761,295 29

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: The PSERS financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting,
whereby expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred, revenues are recorded in the accounting period in which they
are earned and become measurable, and investment purchases and sales are recorded as of the related trade date. Member
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NOTE I - PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

and employer contributions are recognized in the period for which employees’ salaries are reported. Benefits and refunds are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.

Investment Valuation: Investments are reported at fair value, which is the amount that the PSERS can reasonably expect to
receive for an investment in a current sale between a willing buyer and a willing seller, that is, other than in a forced or
liguidation sale. Short-term securities are reported at cost, which approximates fair value, unless they have published market
prices or quotations from national security exchanges or securities pricing services, in which case they are reported at the
published market price. Fixed income securities and common and preferred stocks are generally valued based on published
market prices and quotations from national security exchanges or securities pricing services. Securities that are not traded
on a national security exchange are valued by the respective fund manager or other third parties based on similar sales.

Directly-owned real estate investments are primarily valued based on appraisals performed by independent appraisers and,
for properties not appraised, the present value of the projected future net income. Real estate owned investments are
reported net of related debt borrowed against the market value of the property. As of June 30, 2011 line of credits advances
amounting to $132 million were netted against the related property valuation.

Alternative investments, which include private equity, private debt, venture capital and equity real estate, are primarily
valued based on amounts established by valuation committees; such amounts include cash flow activity through fiscal year-
end. Futures contracts, foreign exchange contracts, and options are marked-to-market daily; changes in market value are
recognized as part of net appreciation/depreciation in the fair value of investments. Initial margin requirements for such
financial instruments are provided by investment securities pledged as collateral or by cash.

Collective trust fund investments (CTF) consist primarily of domestic and international institutional funds. The funds do not
pay interest or dividends to shareholders and reinvest all income earned on securities held by the fund. The fair value of CTF
is based on the reported share value of the respective fund. CTF are managed by state chartered banks for which various
state banking departments have regulatory oversight and investment advisors for which the Securities and Exchange
Commission has regulatory oversight. Investments that are not subject to this oversight are subject to annual independent
audits.

Other Postemployment Benefits

Primary Government

The Commonwealth established and sponsors two primary plans which provide postemployment benefits other than
pensions (OPEB). These two plans are the Retired Employees Health Program (REHP) and the Retired Pennsylvania State
Police Program (RPSPP). These two plans are administered by the Pennsylvania Employee Benefits Trust Fund (PEBTF), which
acts as a third-party administrator and administers the REHP and RPSPP under an administrative agreement with the
Commonwealth. Both plans are single employer defined benefit OPEB plans. Nearly all Commonwealth agencies and several
discretely presented component units participate in the REHP. The Pennsylvania Judiciary (Judiciary), Pennsylvania House of
Representatives (House), and the Pennsylvania Senate (Senate) have established and sponsor their own OPEB plans. All OPEB
plans and benefit provisions therein have been established under pertinent statutory authority. The REHP is provided, in
part, as a part of collective bargaining agreements with most Commonwealth labor unions. The RPSPP is provided as a part of
collective bargaining agreements with certain Commonwealth labor unions.

Benefit provisions included in the REHP, RPSPP, Judiciary, House, and Senate plans are established and may be amended by
the establishing sponsor of the given OPEB plan. Each OPEB plan provides postemployment healthcare benefits and, to
varying degrees, some of the non-REHP OPEB plans provide specific dental, hearing, vision, life insurance, long term disability
and long term care benefits. Among the different OPEB plans, the REHP is the largest of such plans and provides only
postemployment healthcare benefits. None of the OPEB plans 1) issues a stand-alone financial report nor 2) is included in the
financial statements of a public employee retirement system.
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NOTE I - PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

REHP contribution requirements are established by the Office of Administration and the Governor’s Budget Office. All
employing agencies and certain plan members must contribute specified amounts to the REHP. During the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2011, almost all employing agencies contributed $200 (whole dollars) for each current, active employee per
biweekly pay period to fund the REHP. Several employing agencies contribute under comparable payment arrangements.
Effective July 1, 2003 certain changes to prescription formulary and certain member co-payment costs were made. Beginning
July 1, 2004 other periodic changes to both member contributions and REHP benefits were made. Starting July 1, 2005, REHP
plan members with membership dates after June 30, 2004 contribute between 1.0 percent and 2.0 percent of their final
salary, based on REHP enrollment date. In February 2008 a three tiered prescription REHP member copayment was
introduced and in May 2008 a Medicare Private Fee-For-Service plan for REHP was started. In January 2011, the majority of
REHP Medicare-eligible members were enrolled in Medicare HMO or Medicare PPO medical plans.

RPSPP contribution requirements are established within collective bargaining agreements. During the fiscal year ended June
30, 2011 employing agencies contributed $600 (whole dollars) for each current, active employee per biweekly pay period to
fund the RPSPP. RPSPP plan members are not required to make contributions.

The REHP and RPSPP funding rates needed to fund ongoing annuitant health care costs are established as part of the
Commonwealth’s annual budgeting process. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the Commonwealth funded $598.34
million and $66.35 million of annuitant health care claims and administrative costs for the REHP and RPSPP, respectively. Any
additional contributions to advance fund annuitant health care costs are determined annually by the Commonwealth. During
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, advance funding of $60 million for the REHP and $50.8 million for the RPSPP was
contributed to the Other Postemployment Benefits Investment Pool, a Pension (and Other Employee Benefit) Trust Fund. No
such additional, advance contributions were made during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011, 2010 or 2009.

Annual OPEB cost and actual contributions — primary government OPEB plans:

As of and for the fiscal year ended

June 30, 2011 REHP RPSPP Judiciary House Senate Total
Annual required contributions......cccoceeceeenenee. $879.210 $158.330 $35.958 $41.327 $17.698  $1,132.523
Interest on net OPEB obligation......ccccoecuvennnn. 32.400 9.200 2.846 3.768 2.375 50.589
Adjustment to annual required contribution.. -28.450 -8.080 -2.521 -5.140 -2.015 -46.206
Annual OPEB cost (eXpense)....ccccevveeeeereenenne. 883.160 159.450 36.283 39.955 18.058 1,136.906
Qualifying contributions....c..ccceeceverinencnenennns -598.340 -66.350 -21.190 -12.009 -6.171 -704.060
Increase in net OPEB obligation......c.cccecueennne 284.820 93.100 15.093 27.946 11.887 432.846
Net OPEB obligation, July 1, 2010.........ccccvvenen.. 647.956 184.030 56.917 83.729 52.778 1,025.410
Net OPEB obligation, June 30, 2011..........cccceveeuenee $932.776 $277.130 $72.010 $111.675 $64.665  $1,458.256

(amounts in millions)

For the primary government, for all OPEB plans, total qualifying contributions of $704.06 during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2011 in relation to the total annual OPEB cost of $1,136.91 for the fiscal year, resulted in an increase in prior year OPEB
obligations of $432.85 and an unfunded OPEB liability of $1,458.26 (in millions) is reported as of June 30, 2011. The net OPEB
obligation attributable to REHP at June 30, 2011 is allocated among all REHP-participating employers. Several REHP-
participating employer organizations are not financially reported as part of the Commonwealth’s financial reporting entity or
are reported as discretely presented component units. Percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed during the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 (transition year) is as follows (dollar amounts in millions):
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NOTE I - PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

REHP RPSPP Judiciary House Senate Total

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011

ANNnUal OPEB COST.uiiiiiiiiiieiiieiee et $883.160 $159.450 $36.283 $39.955 $18.058 $1,136.906

Percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed 67.750 41.612 58.402 30.056 34.173 61.928

Net OPEB 0obligation.....ccccovvevienennienieienieieneieeee $932.776 $277.130 $72.010 $111.675 $64.665 $1,458.256
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010

ANNUal OPEB COST..uiiiiiiiiiiiiiecie et $850.440 $151.730 $34.482 $37.305 $17.217 $1,091.174

Percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed.......... 60.608 40.875 52.288 27.021 32.869 56.015

Net OPEB obligation $647.956 $184.030 $56.917 $83.729 $52.778 $1,025.410
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009

ANNUAT OPEB COStuuiiiiniiiiiieiiriiereseereeeeie et seees $818.510 $143.390 $38.598 $37.778 $26.443 $1,064.719

Percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed . 61.766 38.057 47.570 23.654 19.661 55.660

Net OPEB 0bligation....cccceevievcieeveeeieecie e $312.950 $94.320 $40.465 $56.504 $41.220 $545.459

Funded status of the OPEB plans as of the most recent valuation is as follows (dollar amounts in millions):

OPEB Plan Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Funded Ratio Estimated UAAL as a
Valuation Date Value of Accrued Actuarial (assetsas %  Annual Covered Percentage of
Assets Liability Accrued Liability of AAL) Payroll Annual Covered
(AAL) (UAAL) Payroll

July 1, 2011 $70.740 $12,907.790 $12,837.050 0.548 $3,839.000 3344
. July 1, 2011 59.900 2,492.280 2,432.380 2.403 447.000 544.2
July 1, 2010 - 442.300 442.300 - 196.300 2253
July 1, 2010 - 352.269 352.269 - 96.164 366.3
July 1, 2010 - 222.167 222.167 - 48.446 458.6
$130.640 $16,416.806 $16,286.166 0.796 $4,626.910 352.0

The REHP and RPSPP data in the preceding charts was obtained from an actuarial valuation, prepared by an independent
actuary, as of July 1, 2011 using census data collected as of December 2010 and health care claims costs for calendar year
2010. The valuation measurements result, in part, from estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about
the probability of events far into the future and such actuarially determined estimates are subject to continual revision as
actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Also, the valuation
measurements are based, in part, on the types of benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan at the time of
the valuation and on the pattern of sharing of costs between the Commonwealth and its employing agencies and the plan
members through July 1, 2011. Inherently, the projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes does not explicitly
incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual funding limitations on the pattern of cost sharing between the
employer and plan members in the future. The actuarial measurements were made using a long-term perspective and,
consistent with that perspective, the different actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed
to reduce short-term volatility in both actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets.

Specific actuarial assumptions for the REHP and RPSPP:

Actuarial cost method: Projected Unit Credit
Method used to determine actuarial value of assets: Fair Value
Investment returns: 4.75 percent
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 127 Governor's Office of the Budget

WWW.pa.gov www.budget.state.pa.us



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2011

NOTE I - PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Healthcare cost trend increases: Initial Rate Ultimate Rate

REHP RPSPP REHP  RPSPP
Medicare-Retiree
Medical Benefits (REHP) 10.0 -- 4.75 --
Non-Medicare Retiree
Medical Benefits (REHP) 7.5 -- 4.75 --
Medical Benefits (RPSPP) -- 7.0 -- 4.75
Pharmacy Benefits 6.0 6.0 4.75 4.75
Dental Benefits (RPSPP) -- 6.0 -- 4.75
Part B Premiums -- 3.7 -- 4.75
Amortization method: Level percent of payroll
Amortization period: 30 year open amortization (fresh start each year)

Schedules of Funding Progress and Employer Contributions for primary government OPEB plans are included in Required
Supplementary Information, immediately following the Notes to the Financial Statements, and include three fiscal years of
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing in relation to the actuarial accrued
liability for benefits.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Each discretely presently component unit with employees participates in the Commonwealth’s REHP except for the
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (PTC) and the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency, which have both established and
sponsor their own, separate OPEB plans. The State System of Higher Education (SSHE), another discretely presented
component unit, participates in the REHP, for certain employees, as well as its own, separate SSHE OPEB plan. All separate,
non-REHP plans, have been established under pertinent statutory authority. All benefit provisions and contributions are

established by the plan sponsors. Net OPEB obligations (assets) are reported at June 30, 2011 (May 31, 2011 for the PTC) as
follows:

As of and for the fiscal year ended PA Turnpike PA Housing State System of Total
June 30, 2011 Commission Finance Agency  Higher Education
Annual required contributions........cccceeuvvenee. $25.676 $4.318 $109.339 $139.333
Interest on net OPEB obligation 1.027 0.417 32.516 33.960
Adjustment to annual required contribution. 0.027 (0.569) (35.732) (36.274)
Annual OPEB cost (eXPense)....ccceeeeeecreecreennenne 26.730 4.166 106.123 137.019
Qualifying contributions.......cccccceevenee (28.505) (0.564) (37.245) (66.314)
Increase in net OPEB obligation/(asset)................ (1.775) 3.602 68.878 70.705
Net OPEB obligation/(asset), July 1, 2010........ (1.764) 9.686 722.574 730.496
Net OPEB obligation/(asset), June 30, 2011.... ($3.539) $13.288 $791.452 $801.201
(amounts in millions)
As of and for the fiscal year ended Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Funded Estimated UAAL as a
June 30, 2011 Value of Accrued Actuarial Ratio Covered Percentage of
Assets Liability Accrued Liability (assets as Payroll Covered
(AAL) (UAAL) % of AAL) Payroll
State System of Higher Education............ - $1,315.116 $1,315.116 - $554.213 237.3
PA Turnpike Commission (May 31, 2011). $66.436 263.398 196.962 25.223 123.754 159.2
PA Housing Finance Agency.......ccccevenunene 44.969 61.750 16.781 72.824 15.566 107.8
($ amounts in millions)
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NOTE I - PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Additional disclosures for the three OPEB plans are available from the separately-issued audited financial statements of the
three discretely presented component unit plan sponsors.
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NOTE J - SHORT-TERM DEBT, STUDENT LOAN AUCTION RATE SECURITY BONDS PAYABLE, NOTES PAYABLE AND
OTHER FINANCING OBLIGATIONS

Primary Government
Short-Term Debt

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 the Commonwealth issued $1 billion of tax anticipation notes (TANs) in October
2010 to provide cash to the General Fund to permit disbursements in accordance with statutory payment dates and to allow
the timely payment of payrolls, vendor invoices and other General Fund disbursements in advance of the receipt of tax
revenues to the General Fund. The Commonwealth retired the TANs on June 30, 2011. A schedule of changes in TANs
balances follows (amounts in millions):

Balance Balance
July 1, 2010 Additions Reductions June 30, 2011
Principal S - S 1,000 S 1,000 S -

On August 4, 2011, the Commonwealth initiated a temporary interfund advance of $500 million from the Treasury
Department’s Short Term Investment Pool to the Capital Facilities Fund, a Capital Projects Fund. As disclosed in Note R to the
Financial Statements, repayment was made on October 27, 2011.

Other Financing Obligation

Pursuant to applicable Commonwealth laws, the Underground Storage Tank Indemnification Fund (USTIF), an Agency Fund,
advanced $67,500 to the General Fund. There were no borrowings from, or repayments to, the USTIF during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2011, as follows (amounts in thousands):

Balance Balance
July 1, 2010 Additions Reductions June 30, 2011
Principal S 67,500 S - S - S 67,500

Discretely Presented Component Units

In December 2010, the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (PENNVEST), a discretely presented component
unit, issued the first series of short term obligations to finance the issuance of loans to program participants. These
obligations were issued at interest rates ranging from 0.16 percent to 0.32 percent, with the interest due at maturity. During
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 PENNVEST issued 13 such obligations in the aggregate principal amount of $275 million
and repaid eight of these in the aggregate principal amount of $190 million. As of June 30, 2011, $85 million of these
obligations remained outstanding. PENNVEST used a letter of credit to finance the $190 million repayment and repaid all
balances owed for the letter of credit during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. A schedule of changes in the short-term
obligations and the letter of credit follows (amounts in millions):

Balance Balance
July 1, 2010 Additions Reductions June 30, 2011
Notes Payable S - S 275 S 190 S 85
Letter of Credit S - S 190 S 190 S -
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June 30, 2011

NOTE J — SHORT-TERM DEBT, STUDENT LOAN AUCTION RATE SECURITY BONDS PAYABLE, NOTES PAYABLE AND

OTHER FINANCING OBLIGATIONS (continued)

The Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA), a discretely presented component unit, has reported
$6,052,338 of auction rate security bonds payable, $2,674,159 of notes payable (consisting of student loan financings of
$135,800, student loan floating rate notes of $1,414,811 and student loan variable rate notes of $1,123,548), and $127,682
of other obligations (consisting of capital financings of $62,610 and term financings of $65,459) at June 30, 2011 as follows

(amounts in thousands):

Balance Balance
June 30,2010 Additions Reductions June 30,2011

Bonds payable:

Student loan auction rate security bonds,

due 2022-2047, at weighted-average rates

of 1.23 percent as of June 30,2011 and 1.28 percent as

JUNE 30, 2000 it S 6,695,900 S - 641,425 6,054,475
Less: deferred amount on current refunding

of student loan auction rate security bonds................... 2,340 - 203 2,137
Total auction rate security bonds payable..................... S 6,693,560 S - 641,222 6,052,338
Notes payable:

Student loan variable rate funding notes, due 2014-

2015, atan estimated weighted-average rate of0.75

percent as of June 30,2011 and 0.63 percent as of

JUNE 30,2000 ciiiieiii e S 1,316,485 S - 188,841 1,127,644
Less: deferred amount on current refunding

of student loan variable rate funding notes................. 5,681 - 1,585 4,096
SUBTOLAL e S 1,310,804 $ - 187,256 1,123,548
Student loan floating rate notes, due 2016-2038

at weighted average rates of 0.57 percent as of

June 30,2011 and 0.62 percent as of June 30, 2010....... S 1,595,532 S - 176,708 1,418,824
Less: deferred amount on current refundings

of student loan floatingrate notes.........oeeeevevvvvivveeennnns 4,696 - 683 4,013

Subtotal S 1,590,836 S - 176,025 1,414,811
Student loan financings, due on demand

at weighted-average rates of 0.78 percent as of

June 30,2011 and 1.07 percent as of June 30,2010 ...... S 144,000 S - 8,200 135,800
Total notes payable.....eeeeeeiiiiiiiii e, S 3,045,640 S - 371,481 2,674,159
Capital and other financing obligations:

Capital acquisition bonds, due 2010 at weighted-

average rates of 6.25 percent as of June 30, 2010.......... S 61,120 S - 61,120 -
Capital acquisition refunding bonds, due 2011-2030,

at weighted-average rates of 5.09 percent as of

June 30,2011aNnd 2010 uuucuieieeeeieeiiiieiiiiiiee e 64,545 - 1,935 62,610
Term financing, due 2029-2030, at zero percent

interestas ofJune 30,2011 and 2010...........ccvvvvvvvennnnn.. 72,874 - 7,415 65,459
Line of credit, due 2010, at weighted-average

rates of 2.76 percent as of June 30, 2010...........ccccuuunee. 26,000 - 26,000 -
U] o] o] - | S UEUUPR PPN S 224,539 S - 96,470 128,069
Less:unamortized discount........cooveiiiiiiiieeieeeniiniiins 441 - 54 387
Total capital and other financing obligations................. S 224,098 $ - 96,416 127,682

The note and bond indentures, among other things, require the PHEAA to comply with various covenants. Student loans and
investments collateralize all student loan financings, student loan floating rate notes, and student loan demand revenue
bonds and auction rate notes. As of June 30, 2011, $8.6 billion of student loan principal and related interest receivable and
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NOTE J — SHORT-TERM DEBT, STUDENT LOAN AUCTION RATE SECURITY BONDS PAYABLE, NOTES PAYABLE AND
OTHER FINANCING OBLIGATIONS (continued)

$281.6 million of cash equivalents and related interest receivable collateralized the $8.9 billion of student loan financings and
notes and bond payable.

The student loan auction rate security bonds, floating rate notes, variable rate funding notes and other term financings are
non-recourse obligations to the PHEAA’s unrestricted net assets and to the Commonwealth.

Debt service requirements subsequent to June 30, 2011, based upon stated maturities for student loan bonds and estimated
interest payments for variable-rate debt after considering terms renegotiated after June 30, 2011 are as follows (amounts in
thousands):

Student Loan Bonds and Notes Other Financing Obligations
Year of
Maturity Principal Interest Principal Interest
S 135,800 S 84,564 S 1,965 S 3,133
- 84,564 2,040 3,031
634,482 84,537 2,125 2,924
493,161 77,932 2,220 2,814
- 76,139 2,315 2,698
305,979 377,747 13,320 11,561
252,600 368,507 16,970 7,719
358,273 352,615 87,114 2,816
2032-36 171,500 341,738 - -
203741 1,581,597 317,012 - -
2042-46 3,915,501 200,308 - -
2047-51 887,850 9,142 - -
o] % | SR S 8,736,743 S 2,374,805 S 128,069 S 36,696
Reported as:
Auction rate security bonds payable.............. S 6,052,338 S -
Add: Deferred amount on current refundings 2,137 -
Total principal owed on student loan
auction rate security bonds payable..........cccccceeeeerennnn. 6,054,475 -
Notes payable -current.......cccceeveveieiniieee e 135,800 -
Notes payable - non-current...........ccccvvvvveeenens 2,538,359 -
Add: Deferred amount on current refundings.. 8,109 -
Other financing obligations, current........cccccevvvveeinnneenn. - 1,965
Other financing obligations, non-current............cccccuve.... - 125,717
Add: Unamortized discount - 387
Total PrinCipal .oc.eceeceeeiecieceeceeeeeese e S 8,736,743 S 128,069

The PHEAA reported $8.7 billion of its total $8.9 billion of student loan bonds, notes, and financings as variable-rate debt, of
which $5.4 billion resets based upon auctions every 28 days, $643.1 million resets based upon auctions every 35 days, $1.5
billion is indexed to the one-month or three-month LIBOR, $13.8 million is indexed to three-month financial commercial
paper and $1.1 billion is conduit financing. PHEAA notes and bonds payable, as well as all other debt, are limited obligations
of the PHEAA payable only from related pledged assets.

In addition to the PHEAA’s reported current notes payable of $135,800 at June 30, 2011, the Pennsylvania Infrastructure
Investment Authority (PENNVEST) reported current notes payable of $85,000 and the Philadelphia Regional Port Authority
(PRPA) reported current notes payable of $188. Also, in addition to the PHEAA’s reported non-current notes payable of
$2,538,359 at June 30, 2011, component unit organizations of the State System of Higher Education reported non-current
notes payable of $251,799 and the PRPA reported non-current notes payable of $393. Total reported notes payable, current
and non-current, for all discretely presented component units totaled $220,988 and $2,790,551, respectively, at June 30,
2011 (amounts in thousands).
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NOTE K — GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS -
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES AND COMPONENT UNITS

Long-term obligations of the Commonwealth’s governmental activities at June 30, 2011 and changes therein during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2011 are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Maturity Bonds

Issue Interest Dates  Authorized Balance Balance
GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS Dates Rates Through But Unissued July1,2010 Additions Reductions  June 30,2011
General Obligation Bonds Payable From
TaxRevenues:
Capital Facilities....coovverververireiniennns 1992-10 3.45-6.25% 2030 $86,441,560 S 5,781,060 $ 560,825 $ 380,235 $ 5,961,650
Disaster Relief......cccovveeeienininirieieeene 2001 5.00% 2011 105,908 155 - 155 -
Land and Water Development................. 1992 6.25% 2012 300 695 - 220 475
Nursing Home Loan Development........... - - - 31,000 - - - -
Volunteer Companies Loan........coceevvvenene 1992 6.25% 2012 50,000 225 - 70 155
Vietnam Conflict Veterans
Compensation.......ccoeeveeneeneenieenieeiennns - - - 3,000 - - - -
Water Facilities Loan 1992 6.25% 2012 11,500 5,060 - 1,585 3,475
Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization..... 1992 6.25% 2012 14,000 1,380 - 430 950
Pennsylvania Infrastructure
Investment AUthority.......cocevevvireieniens 1992-10 3.75-6.25% 2030 357,600 237,370 49,400 8,585 278,185
Agricultural Conservation Easement
PUIChase. ..o 1992 6.25% 2012 - 1,835 - 575 1,260
Local Criminal Justice......cccvvevvevrvenreennenn 2001-08 4.00-5.25% 2028 3,000 4,035 - 335 3,700
Water Supply and Wastewater
Treatment..... ... 2005-10 .60-5.85% 2030 38,725 158,830 20,275 6,550 172,555
GroWiNg GreENEr.c.ccveeieerieririereereiereeenes 2005-10 3.45-5.85% 2030 121,000 410,380 19,500 17,240 412,640
Persian Gulf Conflict Veterans
Compensation.......ccoceeveeneeneenieenieeiennns 2008 4.00-5.00% 2028 13,000 5,810 - 220 5,590
Refunding Bonds.......coevvvveerieerieerieennns 2002-09 3.00-5.50% 2021 - 3,317,740 - 281,310 3,036,430
Total principal.....cccceevveevieeereeerecerennn, 87,190,593 9,924,575 650,000 697,510 9,877,065
Unamortized premium on bonds issued.. 789,018 17,435 51,081 755,372
Unamortized deferred net refunded loss. (214,799) - (25,552) (189,247)
Total general obligation bonds payable.. 87,190,593 10,498,794 667,435 723,039 10,443,190
Other General Long-Term Obligations
Payable From Taxand Other Revenues:
Installment Purchase Obligations........... 5,332 - 1,364 3,968
Capital Lease Obligations...........cecevenene. 26,626 110 3,797 22,939
Self-Insurance—Note M*........c..ccoevvevrnene 883,144 686,502 596,742 972,904
Compensated Absences *.........cccccvvnene. 769,065 486,562 506,519 749,108
Pollution Remediation Obligations* 265,682 11,573 41,424 235,831
Other® .o 1,324,749 295,288 274,676 1,345,361
Subtotal....ccveieiniiisie 3,274,598 1,480,035 1,424,522 3,330,111
TOTAL GENERAL LONG-
TERM OBLIGATIONS $87,190,593  $13,773,392 $2,147,470 $2,147,561 S 13,773,301

*The reported current liability portion of: Self-Insurance is $147,222; Compensated Absences is $160,997; Pollution Remediation Obligation is $15,905 and
Other liabilities is $161,219 (amounts in thousands).

Total principal ‘Additions’ above, amounting to $650,000, are equal to Bonds Issued of $650,000 reported in the
Governmental Funds ‘Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances’ for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2011 (amounts in thousands).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2011

NOTE K- GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES AND COMPONENT UNITS (continued)

Revenue bond obligations of discretely presented component units at June 30, 2011 (May 31, 2011 for the Pennsylvania
Turnpike Commission (PTC)) and changes during the fiscal year then ended are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Maturity  Bonds

Issue  Interest Dates Authorized Balance Balance
REVENUE BONDS PAYABLE Dates Rates Through ButUnissued July1,2010 Additions Reductions  June 30,2011
Philadelphia Regional Port Authority.........cccccuvnene. 2008 3.00-5.00 2021 - S 39,220 $ - S 2,835 § 36,385
Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency..........c.c.eu... 1993-11 various 2041 - 4,833,385 595,590 823,636 4,605,339
Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority..... 2002-08 4.00-5.50 2024 - 363,395 - 23,305 340,090
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission..........ccecevvvenne 2001-11 various 2049 - 6,429,971 2,249,852 960,225 7,719,598
Commonwealth Financing Authority..........ccccovevvinene 2005-10 0.93-6.40 2040 - 1,313,455 150,000 36,180 1,427,275
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority.. 1998-05 4.25-5.00 2014 - 23,120 - 9,080 14,040
Total principal obligations.........ccceevvrvrvsreeirinnne 13,002,546 2,995,442 1,855,261 14,142,727
Less: unamortized bond discount..........cccccvvverenenee (26,824) 600 (4,018) (22,206)
Add: unamortized bond premium.........cccoeevriennnnn 117,610 16,818 8,213 126,215
Less: deferred net refunded 10ss........cccovvvrrivevnenes (168,798) (48,729) (20,472) (197,055)
TOTAL $12,924,534 S 2,964,131 $ 1,838,984 § 14,049,681

Additionally, the Port of Pittsburgh Commission and component unit organizations of the State System of Higher Education
reported non-current revenue bonds payable of $2,000 and $755,719, respectively, at June 30, 2011 for total revenue bonds
payable for all discretely presented component units of $14,807,400. Total reported current and non-current revenue bonds
payable were $562,096 and $14,245,304, respectively, at June 30, 2011 (May 31, 2011 for the PTC) (amounts in thousands).

Primary Government

The Commonwealth has pledged its full faith and credit for the payment of principal and interest on its general obligation
bonds. The General Fund, the Motor License Fund and the PA Gaming Economic Development and Tourism Fund transferred
amounts to Debt Service funds for general obligation bond principal and interest payments. During the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2011, these three funds transferred $942,604, $59,335 and $47,987, respectively, to the Capital Debt Fund, which
reported $1,099,980 (nearly 94 percent) of total Debt Service funds principal and interest expenditures of $1,175,261
(amounts in thousands). Typically, except for Catastrophic Loss Benefits Claims, which are funded by motorist violation fines,
general long-term obligations other than general obligation bonds are mostly funded by the General Fund and/or the Motor
License Fund. In specific, limited instances, a variety of individual funds will fund some obligations; such instances include
capital assets being procured using long-term vendor or other financing; Commonwealth employees earning compensated
absences; or self-insurance claims originating.

The total “Additions” of $667,435 for General Obligation Bonds Payable at June 30, 2011 consists of total bonds issued of
$650,000 and a bond premium of $17,435, for Governmental Funds during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 (amounts in
thousands).

The total “Reductions” of $723,039 for General Obligation Bonds Payable at June 30, 2011 consists of total principal
repayments of $697,510, plus $51,081 of bond premium that was amortized and credited to bond interest expense in the
Statement of Activities (unamortized premium in the Statement of Net Assets at June 30, 2011 is $755,372), less $25,552 of
deferred net refunded loss that was amortized and charged to bond interest expense in the Statement of Activities
(unamortized deferred net refunded loss in the Statement of Net Assets at June 30, 2011 is $189,247) (amounts in
thousands):
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2011

NOTE K- GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES AND COMPONENT UNITS (continued)

Additions Reductions
Bonds/refunding bonds issued/repaid......c.ccccoeveeeeereeveeeenenereenen. S 650,000 S 697,510
Net principal accretion - -
Total PrinCiPal. e 650,000 697,510
Unamortized premium on bonds/refunding bonds issued............... 17,435 51,081
Unamortized deferred net refunded 10SS......ccoeveeveeevccrincerereseene - (25,552)
Changes in general obligation bonds payable S 667,435 S 723,039

Pollution remediation obligations generally involve groundwater, surface water and/or soil at or adjacent to former
manufacturing/industrial locations. Also, affected landfills have either received specific contaminants and/or are the source
of leachate, either on-site or affecting adjacent properties. Typical contaminants include petroleum, chlorinated and/or
polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons; also, priority pollutant and/or target analyte list metals or lead. Financial responsibility is
often coordinated between the Commonwealth, the Federal Environmental Protection Agency and, from time to time, either
private responsible or potentially responsible parties. Reported obligation amounts do not include instances, or portions of
instances, where specific components of a potential remediation effort are not reasonably estimable as of June 30, 2011. The
nature of the remediation activities in such instances is often site assessment, investigation or feasibility studies.
Remediation efforts are typically funded through the Hazardous Sites Cleanup Fund or the Motor License Fund, both special
revenue funds.

Included in “Other” for Other General Long-Term Obligations payable from workers’ compensation insurance carrier
assessments, General Fund, Motor License Fund, Hazardous Sites Cleanup Fund and/or other governmental fund tax
revenues, investment income and/or escheated property are the following at June 30, 2011 (amounts in thousands):

Workers' Compensation Security Trust claims......ccccoceeeeeeeiecenieceenne S 379,353
Catastrophic Loss Benefits claims......cccoeceeeeeeeenecenreceeececee e 82,623
Public Utility Realty Tax Act (PURTA) liability....ccccovivreerrrrrceririrneene 30,259
Litigation liability - NOte Nu.cccooeeiierieeceeeieeereec e 110,250
State Insurance FUNA ClaimS ... 5,614
Foster Care litigation liability - NOte N...ccocooveevecereieereeereeeieeseeea 109,768
Restricted receipts liability...oceecneneierecceeeeere e 4,038
Escheated property liability.....coooeenereineeeeee e 623,456
Total $1,345,361

The Workers’” Compensation Security Trust Fund provides for payment of valid claims under the Workers’ Compensation Law
to individuals whose employers are insured by insolvent insurance carriers. The Catastrophic Loss Benefits Continuation Fund
provides specific benefits to qualifying claimants who sustained severe injuries in motor vehicle accidents. The Public Utility
Realty Tax Act (PURTA) provides for a tax on utility realty property whereby amounts received during the fiscal year are used
as a General Fund revenue source. The Act also provides for payment of a majority of the PURTA revenues as a distribution
to local taxing authorities during the following fiscal year (normally in October). Such payments are appropriated for
expenditure in the following fiscal year and are, therefore, not expendable during the fiscal year the related revenue is
received. Escheated property is held in perpetuity for the rightful owner. This property may be claimed at any time without
the appropriation process. None of the ‘Other’ amounts included in General Long-Term Obligations at June 30, 2011 are
payable with currently expendable available financial resources.

The Commonwealth’s constitutional debt limit, which allows for the incurrence of debt to be used for capital projects without
electorate approval as specifically itemized in a capital budget, was $58.1 billion as of August 31, 2011, with net debt
outstanding of $8.52 billion.
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NOTE K- GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES AND COMPONENT UNITS (continued)

Discretely Presented Component Units

The Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA), the Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority, the Pennsylvania
Turnpike Commission (PTC), the Philadelphia Regional Port Authority (PRPA), the Commonwealth Financing Authority (CFA)
and the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (PENNVEST), discretely presented component units, have pledged
substantially all of their revenues for the redemption of revenue bonds outstanding. Revenue bonds outstanding at June 30,
2011 (May 31, 2011 for the PTC) include unamortized bond discount, unamortized bond premium, and deferred net refunded
loss of $22 million, $126 million, and $197 million, respectively.

The following tables present annual principal and interest payments for long-term debt outstanding for the primary

government and discretely presented component units at June 30, 2011 (May 31, 2011 for the Pennsylvania Turnpike
Commission) (amounts in thousands):

Primary Government

012 01 2014 2015 2016 2017-21 2022-26

jw

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS:

S 654,277 S 617,735 S 583,718 $ 523,639 $494269 $ 2,226,433 $ 2,550,275
Disaster Relief......coovevvvvccicceec - - - - - - -
Land and Water Development..........ccceverenne. 253 253 - - - - -
Nursing Home Loan Development................... - - - - - - -

Capital Facilities...

Volunteer Companies Loan.......ccceuvveerrrvenennns 82 83 - - - . _
Vietnam Conflict Veterans

Compensation . - - - - - - -

Water Facilities Loan... 1,850 1,846 - - - - -

Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization............ 505 505 - - - - -

Pennsylvania Infrastructure

Investment AUthority.......coveeererecinsieenn, 22,462 22,244 20,267 20,214 20,165 91,061 155,487

Agricultural Conservation Easement

Purchase . 670 670 - - - - -

Local Criminal Justice......coevvevirivivriiireiennn 420 369 364 238 233 1,672 1,622

Water Supply and Wastewater

TrEAtMENT. . 14,868 15,274 15,279 15,281 15,294 62,913 82,142

GrOWING GrEENE .....vvvviecietireseieiseeieeencieieins 37,988 37,835 37,734 37,664 37,617 159,601 189,705

Persian Gulf Conflict Veterans

Compensation 499 498 506 503 499 1,845 2,863

Refunding Bonds.........coeveieverireennniienininineas 449,636 464,458 426,176 401,038 371,347 1,581,342 111,880

Total Principal and Interest........couvevvverienne 1,183,510 1,161,770 1,084,044 998,577 939,424 4,124,867 3,093,974

Less: Interest Payments.......ccovcevneeeennenees 481,367 442,575 405,939 373,352 342,509 1,284,062 656,354

Total General Obligation Bonds...........cceune. 702,143 719,195 678,105 625,225 596,915 2,840,805 2,437,620

Other General Long-Term Obligations 485,343 183,151 193,311 202,778 197,899 913,111 592,484
TOTAL GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS S 1,187,486 S 902,346 S 871,416 § 828,003 $794,814 S 3,753,916 S 3,030,104

The portion of Total General Long-Term Obligations due by June 30, 2012 is $1,187,486 (in thousands).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2011

NOTE K- GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES AND COMPONENT UNITS (continued)

Primary Government (continued)

2027-31 Total

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS:

Capital Facilities...ccccuvveeeiriiie e S 1,208,391 S 8,858,737
Disaster Relief......ccoiiiiiiiiiiicec e - -
Land and Water Development........cccccvvveeeeeeeeennnnne - 506
Nursing Home Loan Development.........cccccevvvvvnnnee. - -
Volunteer Companies Loan.....ccccccveeevenniiieneneeeeenn. - 165
Vietnam Conflict Veterans

ComMPENSAtION....cciiiiiiiiiiiiiier e - -
Water Facilities Loan...........c.ceevvvvvvnnnee . - 3,696
Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization.. - 1,010
Pennsylvania Infrastructure

Investment AUthOFitY.....cccovvviiiiiiiiiieieeeee e 99,673 451,573
Agricultural Conservation Easement

PUIChASE. . - 1,340
Local Criminal JUStiCe......cuvvvuiuiiiiieiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeiiiiae, 318 5,236
Water Supply and Wastewater Treatment............. 32,509 253,560
GrOWINE GrEENET .cciviiiiiiiiereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeiiirne s e e 81,614 619,758
Persian Gulf Conflict Veterans

Compensation.... 1,145 8,358
Refunding Bonds.. - 3,805,877

Total Principal and Interest.......ccccceeeeeeeeevcinnvennnnns 1,423,650 14,009,816

Less:Interest Payments......cccocoviiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnenennnnns 146,593 4,132,751

Total General Obligation Bonds......cccceeeeeeeveeeeenenns 1,277,057 9,877,065
Other General Long-Term Obligations..........ccc........ 562,034 3,330,111
TOTAL GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS............... S 1,839,091 $ 13,207,176
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NOTE K- GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES AND COMPONENT UNITS (continued)

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017-21 2022-26

Philadelphia Regional Port Authority.. $ 4,604 S 4,604 S 4,604 S 4,608 S 4,607 S 25,014 S -

Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency 320,875 240,206 226,028 235,373 263,857 1,344,626 1,236,601
Pennsylvania Industrial Development
AULhOFItY. ..o 39,318 38,304 39,156 40,418 38,680 173,737 97,814
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission.... 605,140 403,967 464,676 448,507 398,322 2,238,722 2,476,379
Commonwealth Financing Authority... 115,817 125,036 125,244 125,156 125,079 623,379 599,972
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment
Authority. 7,054 3,913 2,419 1,608 - - -
Total Principal and Interest................ 1,092,808 816,030 862,127 855,670 830,545 4,405,478 4,410,766
Less: Interest Payments........ccccevvenee 530,712 522,721 513,350 502,118 490,602 2,486,484 2,101,132
TOTAL PRINCIPAL OBLIGATIONS............. S 562,096 S 293,309 S 348,777 $353,552 S 339,943 $1,918,994 $2,309,634
2027-31 2032-36 2037-41 2042-46 Total
Philadelphia Regional Port Authority.. $ - S - S - S - S 48,041
Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency 1,249,114 1,099,693 534,340 3,891 6,754,604
Pennsylvania Industrial Development
AULhOTItY..ccvveeiiiecee e, - - - - 467,427
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission.... 2,438,134 2,663,721 2,079,895 905,280 15,122,743
Commonwealth Financing Authority... 305,150 194,156 111,815 - 2,450,804
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment
AULNOTILY.covviiieeieerecee e - - - - 14,994
Total Principal and Interest............... 3,992,398 3,957,570 2,726,050 909,171 24,858,613
Less: Interest Payments.......cccccevveneeee 1,666,313 1,187,803 546,230 168,421 10,715,886
TOTAL PRINCIPAL OBLIGATIONS............. $2,326,085 $2,769,767 $2,179,820 $740,750 $14,142,727

The Commonwealth has entered into certain agreements to lease various facilities and equipment. Such agreements are in-
substance purchases (capital leases) and are reported as Capital Lease Obligations. In addition, the Commonwealth also
makes purchases using installment purchase arrangements. The following is a schedule by fiscal year of future minimum
payments under capital leases and installment purchase obligations, together with the present value of the net minimum
lease payments as of June 30, 2011 (amounts in thousands):

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 138 Governor's Office of the Budget
WWW.pa.gov www.budget.state.pa.us



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2011

NOTE K- GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES AND COMPONENT UNITS (continued)

Primary Government Discretely Presented

Component Unit
State System

Capital Installment of Higher
Lease Purchase Education
Obligations Obligations Bonds Payable
Fiscal Year Ending June 30
S 6,304 S 1,282 §$ 82,829
6,234 1,145 82,958
6,216 956 87,560
6,192 490 91,848
6,178 243 89,638
2001720 e - 363 413,587
202226 - - 268,362
2027-3Lu i - - 112,724
2032-36 - - 53,311
2037-41 - - 5,697
Total minimum lease payments.......cccceeeeeeereinnnnnns 31,124 4,479 1,288,514
Less:amount representing estimated
executory costincludedin
minimum lease payments.......cccovvvvevviiviiiiiinnenenens 4,051 - -
Net minimum lease payments and
installment purchases 27,073 4,479 1,288,514
Less:amountrepresentinginterest.......cccceuvueeee. 4,134 512 403,224
Total Capital Lease and Installment Purchase
Obligations and Bonds Payable..........c.cccceereeuveenees S 22,939 S 3,967 S 885,290

At June 30, 2011, general capital assets included $89.7 million of buildings and $7.3 million of equipment being procured by
capital leases. A total of $18.1 million in general capital assets is being procured by vendor-financed installment purchase
arrangements.

Capital lease obligations outstanding as of June 30, 2011 reported by the State System of Higher Education (SSHE), a
discretely presented component unit as bonds payable, relate to various capital projects currently under construction for
which a related public financing authority is the lessor. Revenue bonds were issued by the public financing authority to
provide funding for these capital projects. SSHE capital assets include $175 million of construction in progress related to
capital leases at June 30, 2011. Further, the SSHE, along with its component unit organizations, reported total capital lease
obligations of $64.2 million at June 30, 2011.

Conduit Debt

The State Public School Building Authority (SPSBA), a discretely presented component unit, finances construction and
improvement projects for public schools through the issuance of tax-exempt instruments (bonds, notes or other obligations)
for the purpose of making lower cost tax-exempt financing available to school districts and community colleges. The debt
instruments issued by the SPSBA represent limited obligations payable solely from lease/loan payments made by the
borrowing institutions and related assets held by trustees. At June 30, 2011, the SPSBA had $2.88 billion of debt outstanding.
Neither the SPSBA nor the Commonwealth has any obligation for this debt. Therefore, neither the financed assets nor the
bonds are reported in the accompanying financial statements.
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NOTE K- GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES AND COMPONENT UNITS (continued)

The Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority (PHEFA), a discretely presented component unit, finances projects
through the issuance of tax-exempt instruments (bonds, notes or other obligations) to provide a source of tax-exempt
financing for colleges and universities. The debt instruments issued by the PHEFA represent limited obligations payable solely
from payments made by the related borrowing institutions and related assets held by the trustees. At June 30, 2011, the
PHEFA had $6.53 billion of debt outstanding. Neither the PHEFA nor the Commonwealth has any obligation for this debt.
Therefore, neither the financed assets nor the bonds are reported in the accompanying financial statements.

The Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA), a discretely presented component unit, is financing a portion of housing
projects through the issuance of limited obligation or special limited obligation bonds to provide more affordable housing in
the Commonwealth. These bonds are secured solely by the specific housing properties and related revenues or by
appropriations to be paid by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. At June 30, 2011 the PHFA had $90
million of such bonds outstanding. Neither the PHFA nor the Commonwealth has any obligation for this debt. Therefore,
neither the financed assets nor the bonds payable are reported in the accompanying financial statements.

The Pittsburgh Port Commission (PPC), a discretely presented component unit, is financing an economic development project
in its port district through the issuance of tax-exempt bonds for the purpose of making lower cost tax-exempt financing
available to the enterprise engaging in the development project. The tax exempt bonds issued by the PPC represent limited
obligations and are payable solely from lease payments made by the enterprise and related assets held by trustees. At
June 30, 2011, the Commission had $32.3 million of such bonds outstanding. Neither the PPC nor the Commonwealth has
any obligation for this debt. Therefore, neither the financed assets nor the bonds payable are reported in the accompanying
financial statements.

The Pennsylvania Economic Development Financing Authority (PEDFA) finances projects on behalf of local industrial and
commercial development authorities to promote economic growth within the Commonwealth. Revenue bonds issued by the
PEDFA represent limited obligations payable solely from PEDFA financed project revenues. At June 30, 2011, the PEDFA had
$1.248 billion of debt outstanding. Neither the PEDFA nor the Commonwealth has any obligation for this debt. Therefore,
neither the financed assets nor the bonds are reported in the accompanying financial statements.

The Pennsylvania Energy Development Authority (PEDA) finances projects related to energy conservation and research. Fees
are assessed to recover related processing and application costs incurred. The bonds issued by the Authority represent
limited obligations payable solely from payments made by the borrowing entities. The majority of the bonds are secured by
the property financed. Upon repayment of a bond, ownership of acquired property transfers from the trustees to the entity
served by the bond issuance. At June 30, 2011, the PEDA had $14.3 million of revenue bonds outstanding. Neither the PEDA
nor the Commonwealth has any obligation for this debt. Therefore, neither the financed assets nor the bonds are reported in
the accompanying financial statements.
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NOTE L - REFUNDED DEBT

Primary Government

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the Commonwealth did not issue any general obligation refunding bonds. In prior
years, the Commonwealth defeased certain general obligation bonds by placing the proceeds of refunding bonds in
irrevocable trusts to provide for all future debt service payments on the refunded bonds. At June 30, 2011, $1,375.7 million
of general obligation bonds outstanding that were previously accounted for in the Commonwealth’s financial statements
were defeased through advance refundings.

Discretely Presented Component Units

In July 2010 the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (PTC) issued Series A Motor License Fund-Enhanced (MLF) Subordinate
Special Revenue Bonds; the proceeds of the Series A MLF were used primarily to finance the costs of refunding a portion of
the Subordinate Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes and the 2010 Sub Series A-1 bonds. In July 2010 the PTC issued 2010 Series
A Multi-Modal Revenue Refunding Bonds primarily to refund the 2008 A-1, A-2 and A-3 bonds. The refunding increased the
PTC’s total debt service payments by approximately $5.61 million and resulted in an economic loss of approximately $2
million. In July 2010 Series B Subordinate Revenue Bonds were issued primarily to finance the costs of refunding a portion of
the 2010 Series A-1 Subordinate Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes. In April 2011 the PTC issued 2011 Series B Senior Turnpike
Revenue Bonds primarily to current refund the 2001 Series S bonds. The refunding allowed the PTC to reduce its debt service
payments by approximately $4.33 million and resulted in an economic gain of approximately $3.13 million. In April 2011 the
PTC issued Series A Senior Revenue Bonds primarily to partially advance refund the 2001 Series R Bonds which reduced debt
service payments by approximately $6.45 million but actual savings will vary based on the SIFMA rate resets during the term
of the 2011 Series Bonds. In May 2011 the PTC issued Series C Multi-Modal Revenue Bonds primarily to refund the 2008 Sub-
Series B-2, B-3, B-4, B-5 and B-6 bonds. The refunding did not change the PTC’s debt service payments. The transaction
resulted in an economic loss of $.27 million.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 using new debt proceeds, the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA)
refunded the principal amount of certain Single Family Mortgage Loan Program bonds totaling approximately $378 million.
The PHFA realized an economic gain of $11 million, and a deferred loss on refunding of $870 thousand and decreased its
aggregate debt service payments by $34 million over the next 30 years. The PHFA also refunded the principal amount of
certain Single Family Mortgage Loan Program bonds totaling approximately $215 million resulting in an economic loss of $8
million, a deferred loss of $1 million and increased its aggregate debt service payments by $19 million. In prior years, the
PHFA defeased Multifamily Residential Development Bonds, Issue H. The result was an in-substance defeasance allowing the
Agency to purchase securities, which were deposited into an irrevocable trust. The defeased principal outstanding was $3
million as of June 30, 2011.

In July 2010 the State System of Higher Education issued Series AL bonds totaling $135.4 million. A portion of the proceeds
($31.2 million) was used to advance refund Series T revenue bonds. The refunding was completed to reduce debt service
payments by approximately $2.6 million and resulted in an economic gain of approximately $2.6 million.

The Pennsylvania Convention Center Authority (PCCA) fully defeased Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series A of 2005 in April
2010. The bonds were issued in October 2005 primarily to refund outstanding Revenue Bonds Series A of 1994. The proceeds
of the 1994 bonds were deposited in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the 1989 bonds.
As of June 30, 2011 the outstanding balance of the defeased 1989 bonds was $157 million.

At June 30, 2010, $22.4 million of bonds that were previously reported by the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment
Authority have been defeased through refundings. At June 30, 2011 the amount of defeased debt was $16 million.

In prior years the Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority defeased revenue bonds and placed the proceeds in an
irrevocable trust to provide for future debt service payments. At June 30, 2011 the balance of the defeased bond outstanding
was $3.4 million.

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 141 Governor's Office of the Budget
WWW.pa.gov www.budget.state.pa.us



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2011

NOTE M - SELF-INSURANCE LIABILITIES

The Commonwealth is self-insured for statutory workers’ compensation, which includes indemnity and medical benefits
(employee disability), for its employees injured on the job. The Commonwealth is also self-insured for annuitant
medical/hospital claims and for tort liability claims. Major tort risks include automobile, employee and general torts. For
property losses, the Commonwealth has $1 million retention with excess commercial insurance coverage up to $500 million
per occurrence, as of September 19, 2010. The Commonwealth is also self-insured for claims against the Department of
Transportation (transportation claims). The Commonwealth has established various administrative policies that are intended
to avoid or limit the aforementioned risks. Accrued liabilities for statutory workers’ compensation and annuitant
medical/hospital claims are established based on reserves computed from the Commonwealth’s claim experience; such
claims are not discounted and do not include non-incremental claims adjustment expenses.

There were no reductions in commercial insurance coverage during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. No settlements
exceeded commercial insurance coverage during any of the past three fiscal years.

Accrued liabilities for tort and transportation claims are established based on reserves computed from the Commonwealth’s
claim experience; such claims are not discounted and do not include non-incremental claims adjustment expenses. These
liabilities include liabilities for allocated claim adjustment expenditures/expenses and include salvage and subrogation.
Salvage and subrogation were not material for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. No accrued liability has been reported for
property losses under self-insurance.

At June 30, 2011, none of the accrued liabilities for governmental activities were payable from current expendable available
financial resources. It is anticipated that the General Fund and the Motor License Fund, respectively, will fund governmental
activities liabilities of $705,228 and $232,774. Business-type activities liabilities are primarily owed by the State Lottery Fund
(52,799), the State Workers’ Insurance Fund ($2,655) and the State Stores Fund ($31,732), all Enterprise Funds. All accrued
self-insurance liabilities at June 30, 2011 are summarized as follows (amounts in thousands):

I Governmental Activities L Business Type Activities L Fiduciary Fund Types I

Current Non-Current Current Non-Current Current Non-Current

Employee disability................ S 87,818 $ 595,866 S 5,021 S 34,074 S 72 S 485
Annuitant medical/hospital. 37,404 - - - - -
Automobile tort.........ccoeeueneee. 3,250 12,794 - - - -
Employee tort........cccceeveeeuenenee. 5,750 55,336 - - - -
General tort.....ceeeeeeecvenenen. 500 38,394 - - - -
Transportation.......ccceceeeenene. 12,500 123,292 - - - -
o] 7 | K $147,222 $ 825,682 $ 5,021 S 34,074 S 72 S 485

The following summary provides aggregated information on June 30, 2010 reported self-insurance liabilities; incurred claims
and payments during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 and reported self-insurance liabilities at June 30, 2011 (amounts in
thousands):

June 30, Incurred June 30,
2010 I Claims . Payments | 2011

Liability Current Prior Current Prior Liability
Employee disability................ S 634,497 S 92,204 S 79,326 S 10,240 S 72,417 S 723,370
Annuitant medical/hospital. 30,712 493,929 - 456,525 30,712 37,404
Automobile tort.......ccceevenne. 19,059 2,649 (1,769) 1,199 2,696 16,044
Employee tort......cccceveeeeeenenee. 58,731 1,457 5,071 6 4,167 61,086
General tort.....cccveceeerenreeenne 35,973 808 2,902 30 759 38,894
Transportation........ccceeeeuenene. 139,640 6,394 (3,662) 626 6,454 135,792

Totals

$ 918,612 $ 597,941 $ 81,868 $ 468,626 $ 117,205 $ 1,012,590
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2011

NOTE M — SELF-INSURANCE LIABILITIES (continued)

The following summary provides aggregated information on June 30, 2009 self-insurance liabilities; incurred claims and
payments during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 and reported self-insurance liabilities at June 30, 2010 (amounts in
thousands):

June 30, Incurred June 30,
2009 I Claims - Payments I 2010

Liability Current Prior Current Prior Liability

Employee disability......cc.c..... S 501,886 S 93,836 S 122,119 S 11,155 S 72,189 $634,497
Annuitant medical/hospital. 31,351 446,293 - 415,581 31,351 30,712
Automobile tort 19,353 4,378 (1,793) 1,591 1,288 19,059
Employee tort............ 57,583 5,090 1,305 519 4,728 58,731
General tort....ocoveveeeeeeennn, 35,784 1,192 75 100 978 35,973
Transportation.........cceeeeee. 141,258 8,390 (6,288) 521 3,199 139,640
TotalS . S 787,215 $ 559,179 $ 115,418 S 429,467 S 113,733 $918,612
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2011

NOTE N — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Construction and Other Commitments: At June 30, 2011, the Department of Transportation (DOT) had contractual
commitments of approximately $1.1 billion, for various DOT highway construction and mass transit projects. Financing for
these future expenditures will be primarily from approved Federal grants and general obligation bond proceeds. In addition,
the Commonwealth has a variety of contractual and other commitments for future subsidies and purchases of goods and
services for approximately $5.1 billion at June 30, 2011. Actual expenditures are contingent upon approved spending
authority and/or availability of financial resources. Also, at May 31, 2011 the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission, a discretely
presented component unit, had open purchase order commitments of $694 million.

Investment Commitments: At December 31, 2010, the State Employees Retirement System (SERS) had contractual
commitments totaling approximately $2.3 billion to fund future alternative investments and $203 million to fund future real
estate investments. At June 30, 2011, the Treasury Commonwealth Investment Program had capital commitments of $75
million to fund alternative investments, of which $33.9 million was unfunded. At June 30, 2011, the Tuition Payment Fund
had capital commitments of $135 million to fund alternative investments, of which $78 million was unfunded. At June 30,
2011, the Tobacco Settlement Fund had capital commitments of $290.9 million to fund private equity investments, of which
$82.1 million was unfunded.

Loan Commitments: At June 30, 2011, primary government funds had approved $56.6 million in loans that had not been
disbursed. Also at June 30, 2011, the following discretely presented component units had approved loans that had not been
disbursed (amounts in millions):

Pennsylvania Housing Finance AZENCY ......cccevveeeeecveececeeee s S 25
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority........ccccceeeeennee 412
Commonwealth Financing Authority .......cccecceiiiiieiiniiiiiec e, 48
Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority ..........cccceeeeveeeen. 71

Operating Lease Commitments: As of June 30, 2011, the Commonwealth has commitments to lease certain buildings and
equipment. Future minimum rental commitments for non-cancelable operating leases as of June 30, 2011 were as follows
(amounts in thousands):

Fiscal year endingJune 30: Amount
20072 et e a et e e aaaas 270,514
2022-26... 136,484
2027-31Lu e e 82,392
2032537 et e e e 23,901
Total Minimum Lease PaymMeNntS.......cccecceeceeeeeeseeerineireire e eeeeeeesennnns S 1,211,944

Rental expenditures/expenses for all operating leases for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 amounted to $312.1 million.

Child Support Payments: At June 30, 2011, the Commonwealth was contingently liable for approximately $21 million in
payments received by a contractor to be used for child support payments.

Litigation: The Commonwealth is a defendant in numerous legal proceedings pertaining to matters normally incidental to
routine operations. Such litigation includes, but is not limited to, claims asserted against the Commonwealth arising from
alleged torts, alleged breaches of contracts, condemnation proceedings and other alleged violations of Commonwealth and
Federal laws. The Commonwealth has reported accrued liabilities at June 30, 2011 with respect to torts as described in Note
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2011

NOTE N - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

M for probable losses, and, separately, other General Long-Term Obligations with respect to litigation cases in the amount of
$220 million for which the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome is probable.

Additionally, the Commonwealth is currently involved in certain legal proceedings for which the likelihood of an unfavorable
outcome is reasonably possible, for which liabilities have not been recorded as of June 30, 2011. Unfavorable outcomes for
such cases, which the Commonwealth is vigorously contesting, could range from approximately $98 million to $1.9 billion for
the General Fund; 51 million to $186 million for the Motor License Fund, a Special Revenue Fund; and $.1 million to $1.1
billion of possible additional liabilities for the State Employees’ Retirement System, a fiduciary fund. The range of potential
liability for governmental activities is from $99 million to $2.1 billion.

Among the General Fund cases for which an unfavorable outcome is reasonably possible, the Commonwealth is defendant
against plaintiff organizations’ claims which seek the repayment of funds paid from the Healthcare Providers Retention
Account and the Medical Care Availability and Reduction of Error Fund (amounting to $800 million) to the General Fund
through October 2009, in accordance with Act 50 of 2009 (Act 50). Plaintiff organizations allege, among other things, that the
sections of Act 50 which mandated that the amounts be paid to the General Fund are unconstitutional. On September 14,
2011, oral arguments were presented to the Pennsylvania Supreme Court. A decision is pending. It is the Commonwealth’s
best judgment, including that of outside counsel, based on the latest available information to the Commonwealth that it will
ultimately prevail in this matter. The Commonwealth cannot, and does not, assure or guarantee that it will ultimately prevail
in this matter.

Federal Grants: The Commonwealth receives significant financial assistance from the Federal government in the form of
grants and entitlements, including several non-cash programs (which are not included in the basic financial statements).
Receipt of grants is generally conditioned upon compliance with terms and conditions of the grant agreements and applicable
Federal regulations, including the expenditure of resources for eligible purposes. Substantially all grants are subject to either
the Federal Single Audit Act or to financial and compliance audits by the grantor agencies of the Federal government or their
designees. Disallowances and sanctions as a result of these audits may become liabilities of the Commonwealth. The
Commonwealth is currently involved in administrative and legal proceedings, with certain Federal agencies, contesting
various disallowances and sanctions related to Federal Assistance Programs ranging from $18 million to $1.2 billion at June
30, 2011. The Commonwealth’s management believes ultimate disallowances and sanctions, if any, will not have a material
effect on the basic financial statements.

Loan Guarantees: The Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA), a discretely presented component unit,
guarantees Federal Stafford, PLUS and consolidation loans which were originated prior to July 1, 2010. Total original principal
of outstanding guarantees issued by PHEAA approximated $45.1 billion at June 30, 2011. Under the Federal Family Education
Loan Program, as amended, PHEAA has entered into agreements with the U.S. Department of Education (DOE) for
reinsurance of death, disability, bankruptcy, default, school closure and borrower ineligibility claims paid to lenders. Pursuant
to these agreements, PHEAA receives reimbursement of claims paid to lenders, provided that PHEAA is in compliance with
numerous Federal requirements. Reinsurance rates vary from 75 percent to 100 percent depending upon default rates in the
portfolio guaranteed by PHEAA and upon the time period when specific loans were guaranteed by PHEAA.

The Commonwealth Financing Agency (CFA), a discretely presented component unit, through various economic development
programs, provided loan guarantees as of June 30, 2011 as follows (amounts in thousands):

First Industries loan guarantees...........ccccveeeueeee. S 47,994
Tax increment financing guarantees 48,412
Second stage loan guarantees.............. 3,360
Venture capital guarantees................... 197,500

Total loan guarantees ..........cccccoooeeviienieeneenne S 297,266

Through June 30, 2011 the CFA has been required, from time to time with respect to loan guarantees, to make principal or
interest payments on behalf of the ultimate borrowers. Accordingly, expenses totaling $482 have been reported in the CFA’s
financial statements during its fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 (amount in thousands).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2011

NOTE N - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

Lottery Prizes: The State Lottery Fund, an Enterprise Fund, awards a variety of prizes, including immediate, lump-sum cash
prizes and certain large prizes, which provide for periodic payments to winners for specific periods of time (in some cases
throughout the winners’ lifetimes, and to designated beneficiaries). At June 30, 2011, the amount of future payments owed
to prizewinners was $848 million. To satisfy its financial obligation to these prizewinners, the Fund purchases annuity
contracts from insurance companies whereby the insurance companies make periodic payments to prizewinners. Generally,
in the event of insurance company default, the Fund is liable for the related annuity payments. However, certain
prizewinners voluntarily assign their annuity rights to other parties and receive lump-sum payments in return. In the event of
insurance company default where annuity rights have been voluntarily assigned by prizewinners, the Fund is not liable for the
related annuity payments. At June 30, 2011, prizewinners had voluntarily assigned future payments of $518 million.

Primary Government Contingent Liability for Certain Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission Revenue Bonds Payable: In July
2007, Act 44 was signed into law creating a “public-public partnership” between the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (PTC)
and the Pennsylvania Department of Transportation (PennDOT) to provide funding for roads, bridges and transit throughout
the Commonwealth. Under Act 44 a 50 year Lease and Funding Agreement (Agreement) was entered into by the PTC and
PennDOT. Act 44 requires the PTC to make scheduled annual payment to PennDOT in quarterly installments. In the four
years ended June 30, 2011 the PTC transferred $3.0 billion to PennDOT.

As part of its operating plan, the PTC plans to continue to increase toll rates to meet its obligations. However, because of the
significance of the quarterly payments that are due to PennDOT, and insufficient sources of cash flows from current
operations, the PTC plans to issue debt for the foreseeable future to finance its required payments.

Under Act 44 the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (PTC) is authorized to issue Special Revenue Bonds up to an aggregate
principal amount of $5 billion (not to exceed $600 million per year). In the event the PTC does not make a required deposit
for debt service on the Special Revenue Bonds with the bond Trustee, such deposit is to be made from funds available for
such purpose on deposit in the Commonwealth’s Motor License Fund (MLF). In order to clarify the requirements of Act 44,
the Department of Transportation (DOT), Office of the Budget (OB), and the State Treasurer entered into a Memorandum of
Agreement (MOA) that went into effect on July 28, 2010. The MOA established a special account in the MLF and the State
Treasurer agreed to use its best efforts to maintain in such account an amount equal to the maximum annual debt service on
outstanding Special Revenue Bonds. The account has not been legally pledged to secure the bonds, but the account is
intended to be available to allow the Commonwealth to issue payment in the event that the PTC fails to make its monthly
deposit for debt service on the Special Revenue Bonds with the bond Trustee and there are no other funds available in the
MLF. The special account cannot be used for any other purpose unless there are no other funds available for the operations
of the MLF. If utilized the account must be restored with first available designated MLF funds. The PTC is also required under
its subordinate bond indenture to repay the MLF for such payments to the extent that PTC payments are available. As of May
31, 2011, the PTC’s fiscal year end, the PTC issued an amount of $401 million of Special Revenue Bonds that are outstanding
and are subject to the provisions of the MOA and for which payment the Commonwealth is contingently liable as of June 30,
2011. Further, as disclosed in Note R to the Financial Statements, the PTC issued Special Revenue Bonds on October 27, 2011
in the amount of $98.9 million, for which payment the Commonwealth is also contingently liable.

Primary Government Commitment for the Pennsylvania Convention Center Authority: According to a contractual
arrangement (Operating Agreement) among the Commonwealth, the City of Philadelphia, and the Pennsylvania Convention
Center Authority (PCCA), a discretely presented component unit, the Commonwealth is required to make payments to PCCA
to finance PCCA operating deficits. Such payments are to be primarily financed using the Gaming Fund. The Gaming Fund is
used to finance a variety of programs and/or projects and the Gaming Fund itself may be unable to finance all PCCA operating
deficits during the term of the Operating Agreement, which expires in 2039. In that event, primary government payments to
PCCA based on the Operating Agreement must be financed using funds separate from the Gaming Fund; such amounts are
subject to annual appropriation by the General Assembly.

Primary Government Commitment for the Commonwealth Financing Authority: According to a contractual arrangement
(Service Agreement) among the Department of Community and Economic Development, the Office of the Budget and the
Commonwealth Financing Authority (CFA), a discretely presented component unit, the primary government is required to
request sufficient annual appropriations from the General Assembly (to be funded by the General Fund and the Gaming
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NOTE N - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

Fund) to finance the Service Fee established in the Service Agreement. The service fee is the only significant source of funds
the CFA has to pay its debt service obligations. The amount of such Service Fee is to be requested by October 1, each year,
for the succeeding fiscal year budget effective July 1 of the following year. During the term of the Service Agreement, there
can be no assurance that 1) the General Assembly will annually appropriate sufficient amounts to fund the annual Service
Fee, or 2) funds will be available to finance such annual appropriations. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 the
primary government paid a Service Fee in the amount of $109 million; also, during the fiscal year the CFA used $38 million of
proceeds from bonds it issued during the fiscal year (amounting to approximately $150 million) to pay the Department of
Environmental Protection ($25 million) and the Ben Franklin Technology Development Authority ($13 million), a discretely
presented component unit, as prescribed by applicable legislation. Disclosures related to the CFA’s $1.4 billion revenue
bonds payable are provided in Note K to the basic financial statements.
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NOTE O - CERTAIN AGENCY FUND CLAIMS LIABILITIES

The Pennsylvania Medical Care Availability and Reduction of Error Fund, an Agency Fund, acts as a service agent to facilitate
the payment of medical malpractice claims to claimants which exceed basic liability coverage carried by healthcare providers
practicing in the Commonwealth. The Fund collects statutory healthcare provider surcharges, as a percentage of insurance
premiums for basic liability coverage, and collects certain statutory motorist moving vehicle violation assessment surcharges;
in turn, the Fund pays claimants on behalf of healthcare providers. The Fund has assets of $.20 billion at June 30, 2011. The
actuarially computed liability for outstanding claims for injuries caused by alleged negligence by certain healthcare providers
totaled $1.23 billion at June 30, 2011. The claims will be funded exclusively through statutory surcharge assessments in
future years as claims are settled and paid.

The Underground Storage Tank Indemnification Fund (the Fund), an Agency Fund, is used to collect fees from underground
storage tank owners and operators sufficient to pay owners and operators for costs associated with corrective actions or for
bodily injury or property damage caused by underground tank leaks and other releases. Owners and operators are assessed
actuarially determined amounts to accumulate sufficient assets to pay claims. The estimated actuarial liability for existing
and potential future claims totaled $1.9 billion at June 30, 2011. There are statutory limits on the extent of the Fund’s
liability to participating owners and operators; the Fund is not obligated beyond assets held at June 30, 2011. The fund has
assets of S.2 billion at June 30, 2011. Owners and operators will be assessed for any claims exceeding Fund assets and no
financial liability is reported for those claims.
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NOTE P - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The Commonwealth sponsors a deferred compensation plan (the Deferred Compensation Program) for its employees, which
is a defined contribution benefit plan, created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, which is
administered by the State Employees’ Retirement System, permits participants to defer a portion of their salary until future
years. Amounts deferred under the plan are not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable
emergency. The Commonwealth makes no contributions to the plan; contributions are limited to voluntary, participating
employee salary deferrals, and/or employee transfers from other plans.

Of the $2,073 million in net assets reported in the Deferred Compensation Fund, a Pension Trust Fund, at December 31,
2010, $1,968 million relates to primary government employees and $95 million relates to employees of discretely presented
component units. The remaining balance of $10 million relates to organizations not included in the Commonwealth’s financial
reporting entity.
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NOTE Q - JOINT VENTURE

The Commonwealth and various labor unions representing Commonwealth collective bargaining employees participate in a
joint venture, the Pennsylvania Employees Benefit Trust Fund (PEBTF). The PEBTF was established in 1988 through an
Agreement and Declaration of Trust (Agreement), which has been modified from time to time. The PEBTF establishes and
provides healthcare benefits for active Commonwealth employees and is the Commonwealth’s third party administrator for
paying retiree healthcare benefits for the Commonwealth Retired Employee Health Program and the Retired Pennsylvania
State Police Plan. The Commonwealth has, in its collective bargaining agreements with unions participating in the Agreement,
obligated itself to provide certain contributions on behalf of nearly all active collective bargaining employees. The
Commonwealth also remits contractually established contributions on behalf of active non-union employees and other active
employees covered by contracts between the Commonwealth and other unions. Effective July 1, 2007 nearly all active
employees contribute established percentages of their salaries and wages received, constituting an ‘employee share,” to
finance active employee benefits. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, total employer contributions for active
employees amounted to approximately $897 million; active employee contributions amounted to approximately $89 million.
Neither the Commonwealth nor the unions have an equity interest in the PEBTF.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 the Commonwealth and nearly all of its various labor unions, through
negotiations, agreed that all previously deferred amounts otherwise payable from the Commonwealth to the PEBTF, based
on previous Memoranda of Agreement, at both June 30, 2010 and June 30, 2011 (amounting to $158 million and $223 million
at June 30, 2010 and 2011, respectively), were no longer owed and payable to the PEBTF. These newer terms were agreed-to
by 97 percent of the labor unions by June 30, 2011 and made part of collective bargaining agreements between the
Commonwealth and the various affected labor unions which became effective July 1, 2011. In its June 30, 2011 financial
statements, the PEBTF has reduced reported Commonwealth deferred contributions and Commonwealth deferred amounts
owed to the PEBTF by $152 million, 97 percent of what was previously owed by the Commonwealth to the PEBTF at June 30,
2010. Also, the PEBTF has not reported Commonwealth deferred amounts owed or Commonwealth deferred contributions
to the PEBTF based on the Memoranda of Understanding, amounting to $47 million, as of and for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2011. As of June 30, 2011, the Commonwealth has reduced its June 30, 2010 previously-reported liability to the PEBTF
and reported expenditures during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 in the amount of $152 million.

At June 30, 2011, for the active employees benefit program, the PEBTF reported total assets of over $430 million, total
liabilities of more than $1.6 million, total benefit obligations of $83 million, and an excess of net assets over benefit
obligations $346 million. The financial status of the PEBTF is monitored on a continuing basis; financial stress is not evident.
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 the PEBTF reported a decrease in net assets over benefit obligations of over $63
million for the active employees benefit program.

Audited financial statements for the active employee healthcare plans are available, by request, from:

Pennsylvania Employees Benefit Trust Fund
150 South 43rd Street
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17111-5700
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NOTE R — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Debt Issuances
Primary Government

On August 4, 2011, the Commonwealth initiated a temporary interfund advance of $500 million from the PA Treasury
Department’s Short Term Investment pool to the Capital Facilities Fund. This advance was made to remedy cash flow
imbalances and so work can continue on state-supported construction and improvement projects. Repayment was made on
October 27, 2011, following the issuance of an $811.6 million general obligation bond issue.

On October 27, 2011, the Commonwealth issued $811.6 million of general obligation bonds consisting of $650 million First
Series of 2011 and $161.6 million of First Refunding Series Bonds. The First Series Bonds are being issued to finance various
Commonwealth capital projects and voter approved projects. The First Refund Series Bonds are being issued to refund
certain outstanding bond issues of the Commonwealth.

Discretely Presented Component Units

In July 2011 the Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority (PHEFA) issued Series AM tax-exempt revenue bonds in
the amount of $119 million. The net proceeds were used to finance various capital projects at certain PA State System of
Higher Education (SSHE) Universities. In connection with the bond issuance, the SSHE entered into a loan agreement with the
PHEFA under which SSHE pledged its full faith and credit for repayment of the PHEFA bonds.

On July 14 2011 the Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA) purchased and cancelled $1.9 billion of
taxable auction rate security bonds and $433.6 million of tax-exempt auction rate security bonds from the 1997 Master Trust
for $2.1 billion that resulted in a $221.1 million deferred gain on tender. PHEAA also issued $1.7 billion of floating rate notes
with a final maturity date of June 25, 2038. The notes were secured by cash and a pool of student loans that were originated
under the FFEL program and the Federal Health Education Assistance Loan Program. PHEAA sold $462.9 million of student
loans to a financial institution for $452.8 million that resulted in a loss on sale of approximately $10.1 million.

The Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA) issued $82 million Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, Series 2011-13
to refund Series 2011-11 in September 2011. The bonds have a final maturity date of October 1, 2041. HEMAP, a fund of the
PHFA received an appropriation of $2 million in the State budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012. The PHFA has
determined that this is insufficient for continued full operation of HEMAP. A “Notice of Unavailability of Funds” was
published in the Pennsylvania Bulletin announcing that HEMAP would be unable to approve any more loans under the
HEMAP program effective July 1, 2011. HEMAP will continue to process loan assistance to approved homeowners and review
annual recertification’s to establish repayments schedules as required. Cash flows from Commonwealth appropriations,
repayment and prepayments of emergency assistance loans and other government grants are expected to fund HEMAP
operations into the foreseeable future.

On September 30, 2011 by Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release Regarding Lease Payments, PennDOT and the Office of
the Budget, each acting individually and on behalf of the Commonwealth with regards to the Act 44 payments required by
the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (PTC) to the PennDOT: (1) agreed that the amounts previously paid to the PTC for
fiscal year 2010-11 on account of its Funding Agreement obligation constituted full payment of that obligation; (2) agreed
that the PTC payment obligation under the Funding Agreement for fiscal year 2010-11 had been fully discharged; and (3)
released the PTC of any further payment obligation under the Funding Agreement with respect to fiscal year 2010-11.

On October 24, 2011 the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (PTC) issued $98.9 million Motor License Fund-Enhanced
Turnpike Subordinate Special Revenue Bonds Series B of 2011. The bonds will bear interest at fixed rates from 3% to 5% and
will mature on December 1, 2041. The bonds were issued to make payments to the Pennsylvania Department of
Transportation in accordance with Act 44. The Commission also reported that on September 21, 2011 Moody’s Investors
Service, Inc, lowered the long-term issuer rating and long-term senior unsecured debt rating of Merrill Lynch & Co., Inc. from
A2 to Baal.
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Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Schedules of Funding Progress and Employer Contributions

Retired Employees Health Plan (REHP)

Retired Pennsylvania State Police Program (RPSPP)
PA Judiciary

PA House of Representatives

PA Senate

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

('$ amounts in millions)

Funding Progress:

As of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011

Actuarial Valuation Date
Actuarial Value of Assets
Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL)
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL)....
Funded Ratio (assets as % of AAL)..
Estimated Annual Covered Payroll...
UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroll..

As of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010

Actuarial Valuation Date..
Actuarial Value of Asset:
Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL)
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL).
Funded Ratio (assets as % of AAL)..
Estimated Annual Covered Payroll...
UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroll.....

As of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009

Actuarial Valuation Date..
Actuarial Value of Assets.
Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL)...
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL).
Funded Ratio (assets as % of AAL)..
Estimated Annual Covered Payroll
UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroll..

Employer Contributions:
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011
Annual required contribution..
Percentage contributed

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010

Annual required contribUtion............coocvviieeeeeeriiiiiiieaeeen

Percentage contributed

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009
Annual required contribution..
Percentage contributed

- The notes to required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule. -

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
WWW.pa.gov

154

Total
PA House of Primary
REHP RPSPP PA Judiciary Representatives _PA Senate Government
July 1, 2011 July 1, 2011 July 1, 2010 July 1, 2010 July 1, 2010
$ 70.740 $ 59.900 $ - $ - $ - $ 130.640
$ 12,907.790 $ 2,492.280 $ 442300 $ 352.269 $ 222.167 $ 16,416.806
$ 12,837.050 $ 2,432.380 $ 442300 $ 352.269 $ 222.167 $ 16,286.166
0.548% 2.403% 0.000% 0.000% 0.000% 0.796%
$ 3,839.000 $ 447.000 $ 196.300 $ 96.164 $  48.446 $ 4,626.910
334.4% 544.2% 225.3% 366.3% 458.6% 352.0%
July 1, 2008 July 1, 2008 July 1, 2010 July 1, 2008 July 1, 2009
$ 47.920 $ 40570 $ - - $ - $ 88.490
$ 13,257.570 $ 2,104.240 $ 423300 $ 308.459 $ 210.048 $ 16,303.617
$ 13,209.650 $ 2,063.670 $ 423300 $ 308.459 $ 210.048 $ 16,215.127
0.361% 1.928% 0.000% 0.000% 0.000% 0.543%
$ 4,093.000 $ 337.000 $ 189.600 $ 102.701 $  49.712 $ 4,772.013
322.7% 612.4% 223.3% 300.3% 422.5% 339.8%
July 1, 2008 July 1, 2008  December 31, 2007 July 1, 2008 July 1, 2007
$ 47.920 $ 40570 $ - $ - $ - $ 88.490
$ 13,257.570 $ 2,104.240 $ 426.700 $ 308.459 $ 252.329 $ 16,349.298
$ 13,209.650 $ 2,063.670 $ 426.700 $ 308.459 $ 252.329 $ 16,260.808
0.361% 1.928% 0.000% 0.000% 0.000% 0.541%
4,093.000 $ 337.000 $ 185.300 $ 102.701 $  49.712 $ 4,767.713
322.7% 612.4% 230.3% 300.3% 507.6% 341.1%
Total
PA House of Primary
REHP RPSPP PA Judiciary Representatives _PA Senate Government
879.210 $ 158330 $ 35958 $ 41327 $ 17.698 $ 1,132.523
0.000% 0.000% 0.000% 0.000% 0.000% 0.000%
848530 $ 151.150 $ 34252 % 38.231 $ 16.834 $ 1,088.997
0.000% 0.000% 0.000% 0.000% 0.000% 0.000%
818.510 $ 143350 $ 38483 $ 38.231 $ 26206 $ 1,064.780
0.000% 0.000% 0.000% 0.000% 0.000% 0.000%

Governor's Office of the Budget
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Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Budgeted Major Funds

General Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

(Amounts in thousands) Actual
Original Final (Budgetary
Budget Difference Budget Difference Basis)
REVENUES:

State Programs:

Taxes, net of refunds . $ 24,561,300 $ (25,000) $ 24,536,300 $ 774,321 $ 25,310,621

Liquor store profits transfer. 105,000 - 105,000 - 105,000
Licenses and fees.. 139,200 (8,815) 130,385 (5,013) 125,372
Fines, penalties and interest.. 20,200 (2,848) 17,352 (1,619) 15,733
Investment income... (15,600) - (15,600) 50,640 35,040
Unclaimed property .. 118,300 (7,287) 111,013 (4,143) 106,870
Departmental services.. 2,685,174 302,983 2,988,157 - 2,988,157
Miscellaneovus.............. 658,300 (6,196) 652,104 (3,523) 648,581
TOTAL STATE PROGRAMS 28,271,874 252,837 28,524,711 810,663 29,335,374
Federal Programs 25,141,987 618,177 25,760,164 (1,101,908) 24,658,256
TOTAL REVENUES. 53,413,861 871,014 54,284,875 (291,245) 53,993,630
EXPENDITURES:
State Programs:
Direction and supportive services 1,004,360 20,244 1,024,604 (8,968) 1,015,636
Protection of persons and property 3,125,660 514,190 3,639,850 (43,767) 3,596,083
Health and human services 10,855,969 50,575 10,906,544 (66,980) 10,839,564
Public education 11,290,637 (276,716) 11,013,921 (19,725) 10,994,196
Recreation and cultural enrichment.... 249,133 (5,058) 244,075 (3,674) 240,401
Debt service 977,564 (2,620) 974,944 - 974,944
Economic development... 459,904 (22,183) 437,721 (38,240) 399,481
Transportation 2,379 (345) 2,034 (111) 1,923
TOTAL STATE PROGRAMS.. 27,965,606 278,087 28,243,693 (181,465) 28,062,228
Federal Programs . 25,141,987 618,177 25,760,164 (1,101,908) 24,658,256
TOTAL EXPENDITURES. ..ottt 53,107,593 896,264 54,003,857 (1,283,373) 52,720,484
REVENUES OVER/(UNDER)
EXPENDITURES 306,268 (25,250) 281,018 992,128 1,273,146
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
PriOT YA APSES. ...eeeeeeeiiiiieee ettt - 93,700 93,700 - 93,700
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES.........cociiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeaenes 306,268 68,450 374,718 992,128 1,366,846
UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES
(BUDGETARY BASIS), JUNE 30, 2010, REVISED.... (293,983) - (293,983) - (293,983)
UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES
(BUDGETARY BASIS), JUNE 30, 2011....ccceeiiiiiiiiiiiiiaiiiieieeeeeeeens $ 12,285  $ 68,450 $ 80,735 $ 992,128 $ 1,072,863

Budgetary Compliance
A separately available budgetary report, the “Status of Appropriations ” (General Fund), demonstrates budgetary expenditure compliance for the General

Fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 and is available at the following web address:
www.portal.state.pa.us/portal/server.pt?open=512&0bjlD=4574&&PagelD=473531&mode=2 (At the website, click on June 2011.)

Traceability from the " Status of Appropriations ** Column Totals:

General Fund
"Status of
Appropriations”
Report Page
Total State Programs-Actual (Budgetary Basis) Expenditures Reference
Appropriations (COlUMN A)..........ocoiiiiiiiiiii e 7' $ 25255536
plus Actual Augmentations (Column B)... . 7! 2,988,157
less Lapses (Column C) 7! 181,465
TOTAL STATE PROGRAMS Actual (Budgetary Basis) Expenditure: $ 28,062,228

Total Federal Programs-Actual (Budgetary Basis) Expenditures

Appropriations (Column A) 227% $ 25,760,164
less Expirations (Column C).... 2277 1,101,908
TOTAL FEDERAL PROGRAMS Actual (Budgetary Basis) Expenditures $ 24,658,256

1Page no. 7, June 30, 2011 “Status of Appropriations” -Fund 001-General Fund -Summary of All Current State Ledgers by Character of Expenditure - Column Totals before
"Tax Refunds"
2Page no. 227, June 30, 2011 “Status of Appropriations” -Fund 001-General Fund -Summary of All Current Federal Ledgers by Character of Expenditure

- The notes to required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule. -
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Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Budgeted Major Funds

Special Revenue Fund-Motor License
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

(Amounts in thousands)

REVENUES:

State Programs:
Taxes, net of refunds..
Licenses and fees
Fines, penalties and interest.
Investment income
Departmental services.
Act 44 Receipts *....
Miscellaneous....
TOTAL STATE PROGRAMS.
Federal Programs...
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
State Programs:

Direction and SUPPOrtiVe SErVICES..........cccuiiiuieiiiieiiiie e

Protection of persons and property.
Public education
Recreation and cultural enrichment.
Debt service
Transportation
TOTAL STATE PROGRAMS.
Federal Programs
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
REVENUES OVER/(UNDER)
EXPENDITURES......coiiiiiiiieiiii i

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

PriOr YEAr JaPSES.....eiiiiieiriieiie ettt
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES.........cccoiiiiiiiiieiiiie e

UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES
(BUDGETARY BASIS), JUNE 30, 2010......cccccoovuiieuiiraiieenne

UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES
(BUDGETARY BASIS), JUNE 30, 2011......cccceviiieiiieaiieenne

Actual
Original Final (Budgetary

Budget Difference Budget Difference Basis)
1,181,510 $ - $ 1,181,510 $ 37,125 $ 1,218,635
855,650 - 855,650 35,901 891,551
30,740 - 30,740 174 30,914
30,890 - 30,890 128,002 158,892
268,636 (217,785) 50,851 - 50,851
200,000 - 200,000 - 200,000
24,850 - 24,850 (3,567) 21,283
2,592,276 (217,785) 2,374,491 197,635 2,572,126
1,932,183 29,563 1,961,746 (594,135) 1,367,611
4,524,459 (188,222) 4,336,237 (396,500) 3,939,737
75,806 (5,885) 69,921 (2,844) 67,077
697,498 (1,656) 695,842 (18,373) 677,469
1,103 - 1,103 - 1,103
1,000 - 1,000 - 1,000
24,998 - 24,998 - 24,998
1,893,699 (210,244) 1,683,455 (1,400) 1,682,055
2,694,104 (217,785) 2,476,319 (22,617) 2,453,702
1,932,183 29,563 1,961,746 (594,135) 1,367,611
4,626,287 (188,222) 4,438,065 (616,752) 3,821,313
(101,828) - (101,828) 220,252 118,424
- 34,427 34,427 - 34,427
(101,828) 34,427 (67,401) 220,252 152,851
165,145 - 165,145 - 165,145
63,317 $ 34,427 $ 97,744 $ 220,252 $ 317,996

* Act 44 receipts were received from the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (PTC) for the first time during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. Such receipts were received pursuant to Act

44 of 2007 and the related Lease and Funding Agreement between the PTC and the PA Department of Transportation.

Budgetary Compliance

A separately available budgetary report, the “Status of Appropriations” (Special Funds), demonstrates budgetary expenditure compliance for the Motor License Fund
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 and is available at the following web address:
http://www.portal.state.pa.us/portal/server.pt?open=512&0objlD=4574&&Pagel D=473560&mode=2 (At the website, click on June 2011.)

A separately available revenue report, the “Report of Revenue and Receipts ™ for the Motor License Fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 and is available at the
following web address: http://www.portal.state.pa.us/portal/server.pt/community/revenue receipts_reports/14825/FY%6202009-10/993360( At the website,

click on June 2011 and go to page 94)

(continued)
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Traceability to the " Status of Appropriations "' Column Totals

Special Funds
“Status of
Appropriations”
Report Page

Total State Programs-Actual (Budgetary Basis) Expenditures Reference

Column: Appropriations or Balance Carried Forward. 56"
less 010-78-571-10-16 Airport Development 59?2
less 010-78-572-10-16 Real Estate Tax Rebate.............c.cccceceeernen. 592

less 010-78-579-10-16 Aviation Operations 59?2
less 010-73-132-10-26 Capital Bridge Debt Service.. . 61°
less 010-38-226-10-26 Forestry Bridges-EXcise TaX.........ccccveuveenenen. 61°
less 010-78-172-10-26 Annual Maint Payments-Highway Transfer.... 62°
less 010-78-173-10-26 Payment to Municipalities. 62°
less 010-78-174-10-26 Highway Maintenance Enhancement. 62°
less 010-78-177-10-26 Highway Capital Projects-Excise Tax. 62°
less 010-78-178-10-26 Bridges-Excise Tax 62°
less 010-78-179-10-26 County Bridges Excise Tax... 62°
less 010-78-180-10-26 Local Road Payments-Excise Tax... 62°
less 010-78-181-10-26 Highway Maintenance-Excise Tax.. 62°
less 010-78-182-10-26 Toll Roads-Excise Tax 62°
less 010-78-183-10-26 Local Grants for Bridge Projects. 63°
less 010-78-184-10-26 Restoration Projects-Highway Transfer. 63°
less 010-78-185-10-26 Highway Bridge Projects... 63°
Total Appropriations or Balance Carried Forward..

plus Column: Actual Augmentations... 56 *
less 010-78-579-10-16 Aviation Operations. 59?2
less 010-78-179-10-26 County Bridges Excise Tax 62°
less 010-78-183-10-26 Local Grants for Bridge Projects.... 63°

less 010-78-185-10-26 Highway Bridge Projects..........ccccceeviueeanennn. 63°
less Report of Revenues and Receipts °
Total Actual Augmentations

less Column: Lapses. 56"
less 010-78-571-10-16 Airport Development.. 59?2
less 010-73-132-10-26 Capital Bridge Debt Service.. . 61°
Total Lapses

TOTAL STATE PROGRAMS Actual (Budgetary Basis) Expenditures

Total Federal Programs-Actual (Budgetary Basis) Expenditures

Column: Commitments (COlUMN D)......cccueeiiiiiiiieiiieeiee e 864
plus Column: Expenditures (Column E).... 864

plus Column: Appropriations Balance....
plus Report of Revenues and Receipts °
TOTAL FEDERAL PROGRAMS Actual (Budgetary Basis) Expenditures

PA|R P D|AD P A P BO AR|RD PP DB PP D PP D PP DH P PP

3,304,256
8,500
250

4,134
42,574
7,000
18,752
36,523
264,928
74,127
56,685
10,000
51,823
179,496
60,996
25,000
8,000
30,000
2,425,468
1,559,565
493

44

1,133
527,378
979,666
50,851
32,303
1,500
8,186
22,617
2,453,702

2,861
19,119
11,336

1,334,295
1,367,611

LPage no. 56, June 30, 2011 “Status of Appropriations” -Special Fund -Fund Summary of State Ledgers by Type
2Page no. 59, June 30, 2011 “Status of Appropriations” -Special Fund -Current State Appropriations Ledger

3Page no. 61-63, June 30, 2011 “Status of Appropriations” -Special Fund -Current State Executive Authorizations Ledger
4Page no. 86, June 30, 2011 “Status of Appropriations” -Special Fund -Fund Summary of Federal Ledgers by Type

Caption: Total All Current State Ledgers

Caption: Total All Current State Ledgers

Caption: Total All Current State Ledgers

Caption: Total All Current Federal Ledgers

5The amount of $1,334,295 is found in the Year-to-Date column for “Total Federal Revenue Augmenting Current State Expenditure Symbols” on page 94 of the June 30, 2011 “Report of
Revenues and Receipts”. This amount, less $354,629 (for Commitment Items (Cl) 4850020; (Cl) 4850021; (Cl) 4850024; and (Cl) 4850025) equals $979,666, the net reduction of federal

funds from Motor License Fund Actual Augmentations.

(concluded)

- The notes to required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule. -



NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Note 1 - Budget Preparation Process

The process of preparing the General Fund Budget for the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania begins nearly one year before the
new budget is enacted and takes effect on July 1 each year. The budget process begins in August of the year previous to the
budget year with the distribution of both the Budget Instructions and Program Policy Guidelines by the Office of the Budget
and the Governor’s Office, respectively. These provide detailed guidelines and define major policy issues to be considered
when agencies complete their budget requests. As required by statute, agencies must prepare budgets that indicate the cost
of supporting activities at the level expected in the immediate budget year and the ensuing four budget years. The five-year
horizon does not include future program changes but considers the requirements and demands of current law, regulation,
policy and program decisions.

Agencies submit budget requests to the Secretary of the Budget beginning in early October. From October through January,
the Office of the Budget reviews these requests for accuracy and adherence to policy guidelines and prepares funding
recommendations for the Secretary of the Budget and the Governor.

During December, the Governor meets with leaders of the General Assembly to inform them of anticipated spending and
revenue levels and to discuss related budgetary issues. The Governor then conducts reviews to make the final budget
decisions. The Governor’s Executive Budget is finalized in January and is submitted to the General Assembly in early
February.

After receiving the budget document, the appropriations committees of both houses of the legislature hold hearings to
review agency funding requests. The General Assembly passes the budget in the form of a General Appropriations Bill and
individual appropriations bills. At the time of passage of these bills and their presentation to the Governor, the official
revised revenue estimates for the budget year are issued. If the combined appropriations bills passed by the legislature
exceed the revenue estimates, the Governor is required and has the authority to either veto entire appropriations bills or to
reduce the amount of appropriations in order to produce a budget that is in balance. The Governor also has the power to
reduce or veto any specific appropriation even if the total appropriations do not exceed estimated revenues. The Governor’s
signing of the appropriations bills and any revenue bills is the last step in the approval stage of the budget.

Additional information regarding Pennsylvania’s budgeting process may be located at: http://www.budget.state.pa.us/ and
click on Current and Proposed Commonwealth Budgets.

Note 2 — Basis of Budgeting

On the budgetary basis, certain estimated tax revenue accruals are recorded at fiscal year end for the General Fund and the
Motor License Fund, a Special Revenue Fund. Accruals include sales and use taxes and personal income taxes, both
applicable to the General Fund, and liquid fuels taxes applicable to the Motor License Fund. These taxes are estimated to be
owed to the Commonwealth but are not collected by fiscal year end. Actual budgetary federal program revenues are
recorded in amounts equal to federal expenditures. Also, estimated encumbrances and unspent appropriation balances are
available for all funds at fiscal year end to pay certain direct expenditures for salaries, wages, travel, and utility costs payable
against current year appropriation authority but paid in the subsequent year. Over-estimates of prior year encumbrances and
available appropriation balances are lapsed in the subsequent year and under-estimates are charged to subsequent year
appropriation authority.

Budgeted revenues in the Budgetary Comparison Schedules represent official estimates while expenditures represent
amounts originally adopted or legally amended. Actual amounts are presented on the budgetary basis. Because the
budgetary basis differs from the modified accrual basis of accounting for governmental funds, a reconciliation of the
differences between budgetary basis and the modified accrual basis of reporting is presented.

Note 3 - Reconciliation of Budgetary to GAAP Basis Amounts

The Commonwealth adopts formal annual budgets for two major governmental funds (General Fund and Motor License
Fund, a Special Revenue Fund) and three nonmajor governmental funds (Workers” Compensation Administration, Banking
Department, and Milk Marketing Special Revenue funds). The Budgetary Comparison Schedules for Budgeted Major and
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NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Nonmajor Funds present comparisons of the legally adopted budget, as amended, with actual data on a budgetary basis,
which differs from governmental fund statement information primarily by the omission of certain revenue and expenditure
accruals.

The following presents a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of reporting for the major
budgeted funds (amounts in thousands):

General Fund

General
General Fund Motor
Fund Components License

—
=}

+
2

(Budgeted) (Nonbudgeted)

Fund

Budgetary basis —revenues and other
sources under expenditures
AN Other USES e S 1,366,846 S

$ 1,366,846 $ 152,851

Adjustments:
Basis differences
To adjust revenues, other financing
sources and related receivables
and deferred revenue..........ccocecveevieceeenans (2,021,677)

(2,021,677) 1,044,111

To adjust expenditures, other financing
uses and related accounts payable
and accrued liabilities......ccoevvvevvreennnne. 1,672,730 - 1,672,730 (1,354,900)

Basis difference adjustments.................. (348,947) - (348,947) (310,789)

Perspective differences
Nonbudgeted statutory funds which are

financially reported as part of the
General Fund.

Revenues......... - 611,691 611,691 -

Expenditures - (573,378) (573,378) -

Perspective difference adjustments... - 38,313 38,313 -

Net adjustments (348,947) 38,313 (310,634) (310,789)
Modified accrual basis — net changein

governmental fund balance.........ccceuuee.e. S 1,017,899 S 38,313 S 1,056,212 S (157,938)

The above revenue adjustments include net revenue accruals/deferrals, amounts to recognize certain pass-through grants,
and amounts to recognize certain intergovernmental revenues that are not reported for budgetary reporting purposes.
Likewise, the above expenditure adjustments include net expenditure accruals, amounts to recognize certain pass-through
grants, and amounts to recognize certain expenditures related to Federal and other grants that are not reported for
budgetary reporting purposes.

Note 4 — Budgetary Compliance — Legal Level of Budgetary Control

The General Assembly passes, and the Governor approves (or reduces or vetoes), individual appropriations as part of the
annual budget adoption process. Budgetary expenditure control occurs at the appropriation level; this is the lowest level of
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NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

legislative spending control. Encumbrances and expenditures within individual appropriations may not exceed total amounts
appropriated plus actual augmentations (certain revenues credited to specific appropriations). Also, appropriation transfers
between or within departments and any supplemental appropriations require both legislative and gubernatorial approval.
The legislatively adopted budget for the General Fund includes $25.1 million in appropriations decreases approved during the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

A separately available report, the “Status of Appropriations” (General Fund), demonstrates budgetary expenditure compliance
for the General Fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. This report includes a variety of detail information and
summaries related to individual appropriations. A second “Status of Appropriations” report (for Special Funds) demonstrates
compliance for the four budgeted Special Revenue funds: Motor License, Workers’ Compensation Administration, Banking
Department and Milk Marketing. Both “Status” reports are available online at the Office of the Budget internet site:
http://www.budget.state.pa.us and click on Financial Reports. The Governor controls spending by using executive
authorizations for Special Revenue funds not controlled by legislatively adopted budgets.

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 160 Governor's Office of the Budget
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Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Combining Balance Sheet-Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30, 2011

(Amounts in thousands) Special Debt Capital
Revenue Service Projects
Funds Funds Funds Total
ASSETS
CaSN. et $ 12,249 % 11,888 $ 247 % 24,384
Temporary investments..........cooeeeiiiiiiieiieeenns 1,804,932 5,151 367,782 2,177,865
Long-term investments...........ccceevevnveveneeennennn. 582,633 - - 582,633
Receivables, net:
LI G T - - 20,000 20,000
ACCOUNTS. ...uieiiiieiiee e e 6,531 3,222 56 9,809
Investment iINCOME........ccuuiviiiiiiiiieiiiiee e 4,577 1 59 4,637
0= g - - 61,075 61,075
Lease rentalS.......ccuvveeeeiiiieiiiiiiecc e - 427 - 427
Investment sale proceeds..........cccoeveuieennaennnn. 4,723 - - 4,723
Other ..o 25,250 - - 25,250
Due from other funds............ccoooiiiiiiiinnnn, 66,407 - 40,666 107,073
Due from component Units.........c.ccceveevnveennnnnne. 3,334 - 1,301 4,635
Due from Federal government........................... 28,945 - - 28,945
Due from political subdivisions.............c.c.cc.u..... - - 1,193 1,193
Advances to other funds.............ccoooviiiinnnn. 4,500 - - 4,500
TOTAL ASSETS. ... $ 2,544,081 $ 20,689 $ 492,379 $ 3,057,149
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities............. $ 144,289 $ -8 213,990 $ 358,279
Investment purchases payable.......................... 21,593 - - 21,593
Securities lending obligations............cccceceeunnen. 88,762 - 4,006 92,768
Due to other funds.........ccoooiiiiiiiiii e, 12,980 - 17,899 30,879
Due to component UNitS.........ccuvevenievenneeenneennnn. 27 - - 27
Due to pension trust funds.............ccooeeeieiinnen. 673 - - 673
Due to political subdivisions...............ccceeevunnnenn. 51,733 - 38,015 89,748
Due to other governments............cccceveveeinennnns 888 - - 888
Unearned reVeNUE...........ovvveevuiieieiineeeeiieeeeeenn 43,471 3,649 - 47,120
TOTAL LIABILITIES......cciiiiiieeieeeee 364,416 3,649 273,910 641,975
Fund balances:
ReStricted. .. ..ouvniieiiie e 2,164,250 - - 2,164,250
(001001 14111 (= To F 18,252 17,040 239,180 274,472
Unassigned defiCit.........ccooeeviiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeen, (2,837) - (20,711) (23,548)
TOTAL FUND BALANCES.........ccevveeenn. 2,179,665 17,040 218,469 2,415,174
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES....... $ 2,544,081 $ 20,689 $ 492,379 $ 3,057,149
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 162 Governor's Office of the Budget
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Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances-Nonmajor Governmental Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

(Amounts in thousands)

REVENUES:

Intergovernmental.........c.ocoovveiiiiiiiiiieeiie e
Charges for sales and Services...........cccovvveuneennnnns
Investment iNCOMEe.........ccooiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeee,
Lease rental principal and interest.......................
Interest on notes and loans............cc.ccceeieenneennee.

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Direction and supportive Services..........cccceeeuuaenn..
Protection of persons and property........c.c.cc........
Health and human services.........c..cccoeveeiieennnn.
Public education............ccoiiiiiiiiiiiicii e
Recreation and cultural enrichment......................
Economic development..........cccoeevviiiiiiieiiieeiies
Transportation...........cceveeeieieiieeii e
Capital outlay.........cooeveveeiiiieiie e,
Debt service:
Principal retirement..........c...cccoveiiiiii e,
Interest and fiscal charges..........ccccceeeviiiiiinnennnss
TOTAL EXPENDITURES ......cciiiiiiiiieeeen,
EXCESS/(DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES ...............

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
BONAS iSSUEM. ... ..viviiiiiei e
Premium on bonds/refunding bonds/TANS issued.
Discount on bonds issued............coceviiiiiniinnnn.n.
Transfers iN......cce e
Transfers OUL........coveniiiiiieeeeee e
NET OTHER FINANCING
SOURRCES. ...t
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES................
FUND BALANCES JULY 1, 2010 (restated)......

FUND BALANCES JUNE 30, 2011...........ccu......

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
WWW.pa.gov

Special Debt Capital
Revenue Service Projects
Funds Funds Funds Total
$1,810,313 $ - $ 220,845 $2,031,158
441,454 - - 441,454
450,324 20,187 - 470,511
136,194 246 16,197 152,637
107,638 428 4,568 112,634
- 44 - 44
- - 1,292 1,292
26,505 5,320 - 31,825
2,972,428 26,225 242,902 3,241,555
435,348 15,715 283,423 734,486
363,231 - 10,420 373,651
100,125 - - 100,125
627,772 - 10,314 638,086
152,929 - 63,545 216,474
313,689 - 317,586 631,275
755,845 - 484,591 1,240,436
4,627 - 408,963 413,590
- 697,510 - 697,510
- 477,751 - 477,751
2,753,566 1,190,976 1,578,842 5,523,384
218,862 (1,164,751)  (1,335,940) (2,281,829)
- - 650,000 650,000
- 15,580 22,159 37,739
- - (4,724) (4,724)
162,145 1,119,358 - 1,281,503
(539,177) - (25,384) (564,561)
(377,032) 1,134,938 642,051 1,399,957
(158,170) (29,813) (693,889) (881,872)
2,337,835 46,853 912,358 3,297,046
$2,179,665 $ 17,040 $ 218,469 $ 2,415,174
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
DESCRIPTION
NONMAJOR FUNDS

Account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted or
committed to expenditure for specific purposes other than debt service or capital projects.

Banking Department Fund — to account for the administration of the Department of Banking and regulation of financial
institutions. Revenue is received from fees, assessments, charges, and penalties collected or recovered from persons, firms,
corporations, or associations regulated by the Department of Banking.

Milk Marketing Fund — to account for the operation of the Milk Marketing Board and to serve as a depository for amounts due to
dairy farmers from underpayments by dealers. Revenue is received from license fees, fines, penalties, and permits relating to the
milk industry.

Workers’ Compensation Administration Fund — to account for the administration of the Pennsylvania Workers’ Compensation
Act and the Pennsylvania Occupational Disease Act. Insurance companies and self-insured businesses are assessed a periodic fee
for costs incurred in administering these acts.

Workers’ Compensation Security Fund — to account for the payment of workers’ compensation claims to individuals who are
insured by an insolvent insurance company and for the costs to administer the program. Funds are derived from an annual
assessment on all insurance carriers authorized to transact and provide workers’ compensation insurance in the Commonwealth.

Environmental Stewardship Fund — to account for revenues from certain landfill fees and expenditures for farmland
preservation projects, open space protection, abandoned mine reclamation, watershed protection and restoration, water and
sewer infrastructure, and the improvement of conservation of Commonwealth and community parks and recreational facilities.

Public Transportation Trust Fund — to provide dedicated funding for public transportation in the Commonwealth. Revenues
come from scheduled payments by the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission, a portion of the Sales and Use Tax, and transfers from
the Public Transportation Assistance Fund and the Lottery Fund. Monies in this fund are disbursed as grants to public transit
agencies for operating costs (including Shared Ride and Free Transit for Older Pennsylvanians), capital and asset improvements,
and programs of statewide significance.

Gaming Fund — to account for the administration of the Race Horse Development and Gaming Act. Revenue is received from
license fees and a percentage of the gross terminal revenue (GTR) generated by licensed gaming facilities.

Other — to account for programs related to restoration, conservation, protection, and management of natural resources; the
payment of prescription drugs for eligible citizens 65 years or older; the preservation of historical landmarks; vocational
rehabilitation services; administrative and regulatory activities of various departmental programs; and miscellaneous
Commonwealth activities. This “Other” category is an aggregation of thirty-four individual special revenue funds.

There are a total of forty-three individual special revenue funds; Motor License and Tobacco Settlement special revenue funds
are reported as Major Funds in the basic financial statements.

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 166 Governor's Office of the Budget
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Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Combining Balance Sheet-Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

June 30, 2011

(Amounts in thousands)

ASSETS

Temporary investments
Long-term investments
Receivables, net:
Accounts..............
Investment income
Investment sale proceeds....
Due from other funds
Due from component units
Due from Federal government...
Advances to other funds
TOTAL ASSETS............

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.......
Investment purchases payable....................

Securities lending obligations
Due to other funds
Due to component units
Due to pension trust funds

Due to political subdivisions........................

Due to other governments
Unearned revenue
TOTAL LIABILITIES

Fund balances:

Restricted...............
Committed.............
Unassigned deficit

TOTAL FUND BALANCES.............ouue....
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES..

Budgeted Funds

Workers' Workers' Public
Banking Milk Compensation Compensation Environmental Transportation

Department Marketing Admin. Security Stewardship Trust Gaming Other Total
$ 4 % 396 $ - % 7 $ - % 143 % 8,694 % 3,006 $ 12,249
15,641 3,511 119,226 100,880 71,792 118,746 802,427 572,709 1,804,932
- - - 582,633 - - - - 582,633
6,428 - 6 1 - - 5 91 6,531
1 - - 4,397 1 11 131 36 4,577
- - - 4,723 - - - - 4,723
- - - - - - - 25,250 25,250
2 1 - - - 46,644 2 19,758 66,407
- - - - - - 3,334 - 3,334
- - - - - - - 28,945 28,945
- - - 1,500 - - - 3,000 4,500
$ 22,076 $ 3,908 % 119,232 % 694,141  $ 71,793 $ 165,544 $ 814593 $ 652,794 $ 2,544,081
$ 1,191 $ 136 $ 4,867 $ 1,905 $ 11,260 $ 9,162 $ 30,762 % 85,006 $ 144,289
- - - 21,593 - - - - 21,593
534 - - 63,225 3,205 4,006 - 17,792 88,762
28 73 85 322 - 4 849 11,619 12,980
- - - - 12 - - 15 27
24 4 63 1 - 6 133 442 673
- - - - 852 17,261 24,703 8,917 51,733
26 5 129 1 - 7 63 657 888
- 1,142 - - - - 26,566 15,763 43,471
1,803 1,360 5,144 87,047 15,329 30,446 83,076 140,211 364,416
20,273 2,548 114,088 607,094 56,464 135,098 731,517 497,168 2,164,250
- - - - - - - 18,252 18,252
- - - - - - - (2,837) (2,837)
20,273 2,548 114,088 607,094 56,464 135,098 731,517 512,583 2,179,665
$ 22076 $ 3,908 % 119,232 % 694,141  $ 71,793 $ 165,544 $ 814593 $ 652,794 $ 2,544,081
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(Amounts in thousands) Budgeted Funds
Workers' Workers' Public
Banking Milk Compensation Compensation Environmental Transportation
Department Marketing Admin. Security Stewardship Trust Gaming Other Total
REVENUES:
TAXES . et eeete e e et e et e e et e e $ - % - $ -0 % - $ -8 398,778 $1,340,714 % 70,821 $ 1,810,313
Licenses and fees........ 6,440 2,823 - 28,665 63,736 - 69,046 270,744 441,454
Intergovernmental - - - - - 250,000 9,497 190,827 450,324
Charges for sales and services........................ 12,548 - 53,083 - - - - 70,563 136,194
Investment income 1,606 218 362 42,436 7,816 8,784 1,538 44,878 107,638
Other....ccooviiiiiiiiiiiiie, 17 - 104 1,029 - - - 25,355 26,505
TOTAL REVENUES 20,611 3,041 53,549 72,130 71,552 657,562 1,420,795 673,188 2,972,428
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Direction and supportive services................... - - 4 - - - 434,857 487 435,348
Protection of persons and property................. 18,043 2,354 - 34,318 12,084 - 3,518 292,914 363,231
Health and human services.............ccccoeeevunnnee. - - 52,434 - - - 4,101 43,590 100,125
Public education - - - - - - 616,500 11,272 627,772
Recreation and cultural enrichment................. - - - - 8,735 - 9,320 134,874 152,929
Economic development.........c.cccceeevieinnennnnnen. - - 120 - 7,439 - 116,172 189,958 313,689
Transportation - - - - - 755,845 - - 755,845
Capital outlay..........ccoeeevieienieennnnnn. - - - - 1,004 - - 3,623 4,627
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 18,043 2,354 52,558 34,318 29,262 755,845 1,184,468 676,718 2,753,566
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES ............ 2,568 687 991 37,812 42,290 (98,283) 236,327 (3,530) 218,862
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers iN.......oooeeeeii e - - - - - 109,679 - 52,466 162,145
Transfers OUt.........ccoeeveiiiiiiiiiiiieieee e - - (2,200) - (41,814) - (286,216) (208,947) (539,177)
NET OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) ..ccvuiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeieeeeis - - (2,200) - (41,814) 109,679 (286,216) (156,481) (377,032)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 2,568 687 (1,209) 37,812 476 11,396 (49,889) (160,011) (158,170)
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1, 2010 (restated). 17,705 1,861 115,297 569,282 55,988 123,702 781,406 672,594 2,337,835
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 2011................ $ 20,273 $ 2,548 $ 114,088 $ 607,094 $ 56,464 $ 135,098 $ 731,517 $ 512,583 $ 2,179,665




Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Budgeted Nonmajor Funds

Special Revenue Fund-Banking Department
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

(Amounts in thousands) Actual
Original Final (Budgetary
Budget Difference Budget Difference Basis)
REVENUES:
State Programs:
Licenses and fees ) 15320 $ 850 $ 16,170 $ 732 $ 16,902
Fines, penalties and interest... 750 750 1,500 334 1,834
Investment income 350 1,270 1,620 49 1,669
TOTAL REVENUES 16,420 2,870 19,290 1,115 20,405
EXPENDITURES:
State Programs:
Direction and supportive services 5 - 5 - 5
Protection of persons and property. . 20,833 - 20,833 - 20,833
TOTAL EXPENDITURES.............. 20,838 - 20,838 - 20,838
REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES... (4,418) 2,870 (1,548) 1,115 (433)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
PriOr YEar apSEeS. ....cuviiiiiiiiiiiei i - 2,698 2,698 5 2,703
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES. ...t (4,418) 5,568 1,150 1,120 2,270
UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES
(BUDGETARY BASIS), JUNE 30, 2010.......cccevvieirieieieieieeeeeiennenns 8,681 - 8,681 - 8,681
UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES
(BUDGETARY BASIS), JUNE 30, 2011......ccovviuiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeieiinns $ 4,263 $ 5,568 $ 9,831 $ 1,120 $ 10,951

Budgetary Compliance

A separately available budgetary report, the “Status of Appropriations ” (Special Funds), demonstrates budgetary expenditure compliance for the Banking Department for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 and is available at the following web address:
http://www.portal.state.pa.us/portal/server.pt?open=512&0objlD=4574&&PagelD=473560&mode=2 (At the website, click on June 2011.)

Total Actual (Budgetary Basis) Expenditures of $20,838 are traceable from page 104, Column A 'Appropriations' in the June 30, 2011 "Status of Appropriations™ (Special
Funds).

Reconciliation of Budgetary to GAAP Basis Amounts

The Commonwealth adopts a formal annual budget for the Banking Department Fund. The Budgetary Comparison Schedule presented above presents a comparison of the legally
adopted budget, as amended, with actual data on a budgetary basis, which differs from governmental fund statement information primarily by the omission of certain revenue and
expenditure accruals. The following presents a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of reporting (amounts in thousands):

Budgetary basis — revenues and other sources under

expenditures (from Actual column above).............cccoooiiiiiii i $ 2,270
Adjustments:
To adjust revenues, other financing sources and related
receivables and deferred revenue.............cccooiiiiiii i (2,497)
To adjust expenditures, other financing uses and related
accounts payable and accrued labilities............ccooruuiiiiiiiiie s 2,795
INET AJUSTMENTS. ....eeiiiiiiti ettt e e e et e e e e e ibaraeeeaenes 298
Modified accrual basis — net change in
governmental fund balanCe.............cocviiiiiiiiiiiii s $ 2,568

The above revenue adjustments include net revenue accruals/deferrals, amounts to recognize certain pass-through grants and amounts to recognize certain intergovernmental
revenues that are not reported for budgetary reporting purposes. Likewise, the above expenditure adjustments include net expenditure accruals, amounts to recognize certain
pass-through grants, and amounts to recognize certain expenditures related to Federal and other grants that are not reported for budgetary reporting purposes.

- The notes on pages 158 to 160 are an integral part of this schedule. -
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Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Budgeted Nonmajor Funds

Special Revenue Fund-Milk Marketing
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

(Amounts in thousands) Actual
Original Final (Budgetary
Budget Difference Budget Difference Basis)
REVENUES:
State Programs:
LICENSES AN TEES. ...vuverererireririeieisieieiessseaeaesesseeesesassnseseaesssnsnsnsnsnnnsnsnnnes $ 2,450 $ 125 $ 2575  $ 241 $ 2,816
Fines, penalties and interest.. 50 (40) 10 3) 7
Investment income 10 321 331 (44) 287
TOTAL REVENUES. ..o 2,510 406 2,916 194 3,110
EXPENDITURES:
State Programs:
Direction and supportive services... 5 - 5 - 5
Protection of persons and property. . 2,836 - 2,836 - 2,836
TOTAL EXPENDITURES. ....ouiiiiiiiiiiee e 2,841 - 2,841 - 2,841
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES. ....coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii s (331) 406 75 194 269
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
PriOr YEAr laPSES. ... verereverireietetetetete ettt - 372 372 - 372
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES. ... (331) 778 447 194 641
UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES
(BUDGETARY BASIS), JUNE 30, 2010.......cccuuummmriiiinninnnnnnnnenennneenees 1,422 - 1,422 - 1,422
UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES
(BUDGETARY BASIS), JUNE 30, 201 1......cccvvvviiiiieiiiiiiinieeereiiiies $ 1,091 % 778 $ 1,869 % 194  $ 2,063

A separately available report, the “Status of Appropriations” (Special Funds), demonstrates budgetary expenditure compliance for the Milk Marketing
Fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 and is available at the following web address:
http://www.portal.state.pa.us/portal/server.pt?open=512&0bjlD=4574&&PagelD=473560&mode=2 (At the website, click on June 2011.)

Total Actual (Budgetary Basis) Expenditures of $2,841 are traceable from page 111, Column A ‘Appropriations' in the June 30, 2011 "Status of Appropriations"
(Special Funds).
Reconciliation of Budgetary to GAAP Basis Amounts

The Commonwealth adopts a formal annual budget for the Milk Marketing Fund. The Budgetary Comparison Schedule presented above presents a comparison of the
legally adopted budget, as amended, with actual data on a budgetary basis, which differs from governmental fund statement information primarily by the omission of
certain revenue and expenditure accruals. The following presents a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of reporting (amounts in thousands):

Budgetary basis — revenues and other sources over

expenditures (from Actual COIUMN @DOVE).......cccoeieiiieieiee e $ 641
Adjustments:
To adjust revenues, other financing sources and related
receivables and deferred reVENUE............oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii (441)

To adjust expenditures, other financing uses and related
accounts payable and accrued labilities. ... 487

NET AOJUSTMENTS. ...ttt e 46

Modified accrual basis — net change in
governmental fuNd DalanCe...........oviiiiiiiiiiiii $ 687

The above revenue adjustments include net revenue accruals/deferrals, amounts to recognize certain pass-through grants, and amounts to recognize certain
intergovernmental revenues that are not reported for budgetary reporting purposes. Likewise, the above expenditure adjustments include net expenditure accruals,
amounts to recognize certain pass-through grants, and amounts to recognize certain expenditures related to Federal and other grants that are not reported for budgetary
reporting purposes.

- The notes on pages 158 to 160 are an integral part of this schedule. -

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 170 Governor's Office of the Budget

WWW.pa.gov www.budget.state.pa.us



Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Budgeted Nonmajor Funds

Special Revenue Fund-Workers' Compensation Administration
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

(Amounts in thousands) Actual
Original Final (Budgetary
Budget Difference Budget Difference Basis)
REVENUES:
State Programs:
Taxes, net of refunds $ 72,615 $ (15,093) $ 57,522 $ 40 $ 57,562
Fines, penalties and interest. 25 5) 20 67 87
Investment income.. 600 (290) 310 52 362
Departmental services. 190 - 190 - 190
Miscellaneous.... 260 (100) 160 (54) 106
TOTAL REVENUES... 73,690 (15,488) 58,202 105 58,307
EXPENDITURES:
State Programs:
Health and humM@an SEIVICES. ........cuuuuieiiiiiie e e e e e eeaaen 74,951 285 75,236 - 75,236
Economic development. 190 - 190 - 190
TOTAL EXPENDITURES. 75,141 285 75,426 - 75,426
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES.....c.ovteieieee e (1,451) (15,773) (17,224) 105 (17,119)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
PrIOT YEAI [APSES. ...eeeiiiiiiieee ettt e e - 20,372 20,372 - 20,372
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES. .....ciitiiieeieiiiiie e e (1,451) 4,599 3,148 105 3,253
UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES
(BUDGETARY BASIS), JUNE 30, 2010........uumiieeeiiiiieeeeeeaiieeeeeeeseineeee e eeneees 92,592 - 92,592 - 92,592
UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES
(BUDGETARY BASIS), JUNE 30, 2011.....cuuiiiiieeiiiiiieeee e e snree e e eeneees $ 91,141 $ 4,599 $ 95,740 $ 105 $ 95,845

Budgetary Compliance

A separately available budgetary report, the “Status of Appropriations ” (Special Funds), demonstrates budgetary expenditure compliance for the Workers' Compensation Administration
Fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 and is available at the following web address:
http://www.portal.state.pa.us/portal/server.pt?open=512&objlD=4574&&PagelD=473560&mode=2 (At the website, click on June 2011.)

Special Funds
"Status of
Appropriations"
Traceability to the " Status of Appropriations " Column Totals Report Page
Total State Programs-Actual (Budgetary Basis) Expenditures Reference
Appropriations (Column A) 281 $ 74,951
plus Actual Augmentations (Column B 281 475
less Lapses (Column C) . 281 -
TOTAL STATE PROGRAMS Actual (Budgetary Basis) Expenditures $ 75,426

Reconciliation of Budgetary to GAAP Basis Amounts

The Commonwealth adopts a formal annual budget for the Workers' Compensation Administration Fund. The Budgetary Comparison Schedule presented above presents a comparison of the
legally adopted budget, as amended, with actual data on a budgetary basis, which differs from governmental fund statement information primarily by the omission of certain revenue and
expenditure accruals. The following presents a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of reporting (amounts in thousands):

Budgetary basis — revenues and other sources under

expenditures (from Actual COlUMN @DOVE)........coiuiiiiiiiiiiii e $ 3,253
Adjustments:
To adjust revenues, other financing sources and related
receivables and deferred FEVENUE. ..........oouuiiiiiiiie et e e e (25,130)

To adjust expenditures, other financing uses and related

accounts payable and accrued labilities...............oooiuiiiiiiiiiiie e 20,668
NET AOJUSTMENTS. ..ottt e s e e e e e e e e e e e e e e sn e e e e e eneneeeeas (4,462)

Modified accrual basis — net change in

governmental fUNd DAIANCE. ...........uiiiiiiii et $ (1,209)

The above revenue adjustments include net revenue accruals/deferrals, amounts to recognize certain pass-through grants, and amounts to recognize certain intergovernmental revenues that are
not reported for budgetary reporting purposes. Likewise, the above expenditure adjustments include net expenditure accruals, amounts to recognize certain pass-through grants, and amounts to
recognize certain expenditures related to Federal and other grants that are not reported for budgetary reporting purposes.

- The notes on pages 158 to 160 are an integral part of this schedule. -
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PENNSYLVANIA

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Debt Service Funds

I
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
DESCRIPTION
NONMAIJOR FUNDS

Debt service funds account for the accumulation of resources, principally from transfers from
other Funds, for the payment of general long-term debt principal and interest.

Disaster Relief Redemption Fund — these funds account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued for the
rehabilitation of areas of the Commonwealth affected by the floods of 1971, 1972, and 1977. Funding consists of transfers
from the General Fund and investment income.

Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (PENNVEST) Redemption Fund — to account for the payment of
principal and interest on bonds issued for loans to local water companies for the repair, construction, extension, and
improvement of water supply systems, dams, port facilities, and water control systems. Funding consists of transfers from
the General Fund and the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority Fund and investment income.

Capital Debt Fund — to account for the payment of principal and interest related to general obligation bonds issued for
capital projects authorized by Capital Budget Acts. Funding consists of transfers from the General Fund and the Motor
License Fund, facility rental, and investment income.

Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization Sinking Fund — to account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued
for the promotion of economic redevelopment throughout Pennsylvania for grants and loans for industrial and small
business development. Funding consists of transfers from the General Fund and the Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization
Fund and investment income.

Water Facilities Loan Redemption Fund — to account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued for the
implementation of the water project loan referendum to provide loans to local water companies for repair, construction,
and improvement to water supply systems. Funding consists of transfers from the General Fund and the Water Facilities
Loan Fund, investment income, and proceeds from the sale, lease, or disposal of loan collateral.

Land and Water Development Sinking Fund — to account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued for the
acquisition, development, and improvements to Commonwealth land and water facilities. Funding consists of transfers
from the General Fund, the Land and Water Development Fund, and investment income.

Other — these funds account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued for loans to nursing homes and
volunteer fire companies, compensation to Vietnam conflict veterans, finance of various environmental initiatives, and for
water and wastewater infrastructure projects related to economic development. Funding consists of transfers from the
General Fund, Environmental Stewardship Fund, and investment income. This other category is an aggregation of thirteen
individual debt service funds.

There are a total of nineteen individual debt service funds; all are reported as nonmajor funds.

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 174 Governor's Office of the Budget
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Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Combining Balance Sheet-Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Debt Service Funds

June 30, 2011

(Amounts in thousands) Pennsylvania
Infrastructure Pennsylvania Water Land and
Disaster Investment Economic Facilities Water
Relief Authority Capital Revitalization Loan Development
Redemption Redemption Debt Sinking Redemption Sinking Other Total
ASSETS
CaSh. e $ - % - $ 11888 % - % -8 - - $ 11,888
Temporary investments...........c.ccceeeeueeevneennns - 1,786 1,543 - - 354 1,468 5,151
Receivables, net:
ACCOUNTS. ...uiiiieiee e - - 3,222 - - - - 3,222
Investment iNCOMe.........c.ccoeveeinieiiieeineeennnen, - - 1 - - - - 1
Lease rentals - - 427 - - - - 427
TOTAL ASSETS ...ttt $ - $ 1,786 $ 17,081 % - $ - $ 354 1,468 $ 20,689
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Unearned revenuUEe...........ccceeeeeeeeevvveneeeeeeeeennn, $ - $ - $ 3649 % - $ - $ - - $ 3,649
TOTAL LIABILITIES - - 3,649 - - - - 3,649
Fund balances:
Committed........cccuiiiiiiiiieinnnnns - 1,786 13,432 - - 354 1,468 17,040
TOTAL FUND BALANCES - 1,786 13,432 - - 354 1,468 17,040
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES..... $ - $ 1,786 $ 17,081 $ - $ - $ 354 1,468 $ 20,689
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Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Debt Service Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

(Amounts in thousands)

REVENUES:
Intergovernmental............ccccoveveeineiineennnnn.
Charges for sales and services...................
Investment inCOme.........c.ccoeveeviiiinneennnnn.

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Direction and supportive services...............
Debt service:
Principal retirement............cocoeevviiiiiiennn..
Interest and fiscal charges..........c.ccoeevvennee.
TOTAL EXPENDITURES ..........eevnneee.

EXCESS/(DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES ........

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Premium on refunding bonds/TANS............
Transfers iN......ooeeeveeeeeee e,

NET OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES....... i

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES........
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1, 2010..............

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 2011...........

Pennsylvania

Infrastructure Pennsylvania Water Land and
Disaster Investment Economic Facilities Water
Relief Authority Capital Revitalization Loan Development
Redemption Redemption Debt Sinking Redemption Sinking Other Total

- $ - $ 20,187 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 20,187

- - 246 - - - - 246

- 2 8 - - 369 49 428

- - 44 - - - - 44

- 5,320 - - - - - 5,320

- 5,322 20,485 - - 369 49 26,225

- - - - - - 15,715 15,715

155 6,065 661,545 430 1,585 220 27,510 697,510

8 4,369 438,435 73 267 37 34,562 477,751

163 10,434 1,099,980 503 1,852 257 77,787 1,190,976
(163) (5,112) (1,079,495) (503) (1,852) 112 (77,738) (1,164,751)

- - - - - - 15,580 15,580

163 5,122 1,049,927 503 1,852 241 61,550 1,119,358
163 5,122 1,049,927 503 1,852 241 77,130 1,134,938
- 10 (29,568) - - 353 (608) (29,813)

- 1,776 43,000 - - 1 2,076 46,853

- $ 1,786 $ 13,432 $ - $ - $ 354 $ 1,468 $ 17,040
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
DESCRIPTION
NONMAIJOR FUNDS

Capital projects funds account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities, including those provided to political subdivisions or
other public organizations.

Capital Facilities Fund — to account for general obligation bond proceeds used to fund capital projects specifically itemized
and authorized by Capital Budget Acts. Projects fall within six broad categories: public improvements, public Improvement-
original furniture and equipment, transportation assistance, redevelopment assistance, flood control and highway projects.
Such projects include those of the primary government and also grants to non-primary government recipients.

Keystone Recreation, Park and Conservation Fund — to account for bond proceeds and a percentage of the state realty
transfer tax. The amounts are used to acquire, improve and expand Commonwealth and community parks, recreation
facilities, historic sites, zoos, public libraries, nature preserves and wildlife habitats and other recreational areas and
facilities.

Local Criminal Justice Fund — to account for the proceeds of bonds issued for grants to counties and multi-county
authorities for the repair, expansion, construction, rehabilitation and improvement of local correctional facilities or multi-
county regional prison facilities.

Growing Greener Bond Fund — to account for the proceeds of bonds issued. The money will be used to finance various
environmental projects such watershed protection, mine drainage remediation, advanced energy, flood protection and
various capital improvement projects including county environmental initiatives.

Water Supply and Wastewater Treatment Fund — funding for this program is generated from the $250 million bond issue
approved by the electorate in April of 2004. Funds are allocated to the Commonwealth Financing Authority and the
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (PennVest) to be used for grants and loans for new and existing water
supply and wastewater system projects in the Commonwealth.

Land and Water Development Fund — to account for the proceeds of bonds issued for pollution remediation; grants to
local governments for sewage treatment facilities; the development of public outdoor recreation areas; and, acquisition
and development of park and recreation lands and related studies to determine such needs.

Public Transportation Assistance Fund — This fund was established to help provide for the capital asset maintenance and
certain other transportation needs of the Commonwealth’s transit entities. Act 44 of 2007 revised the purpose of this fund

by transferring programs to the new Public Transportation Trust Fund.

There are a total of seven individual capital projects funds; all are reported as nonmajor funds.
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Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

Combining Balance Sheet-Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Capital Project Funds

June 30, 2011

(Amounts in thousands) Keystone Water
Recreation, Local Growing Supply and Land and Public
Capital Park and Criminal Greener Wastewate! Water Transportation
Facilities  Conservation Justice Bond Treatment Development Assistance Total
ASSETS
CaSh. .. $ - % 217 $ -8 -8 23 % - 8 7 % 247
Temporary inVestments............cccceevvcuvnenns 202,979 95,719 - 28,652 32,924 522 6,986 367,782

Receivables, net:

- - - - - - 20,000 20,000
56 - - - - - - 56
41 4 - 5 6 - 3 59
- - - - 61,075 - - 61,075
Due from other funds. 25,734 5,075 - - - - 9,857 40,666
Due from component units.. 1,301 - - - - - - 1,301
Due from political subdivisions 1,193 - - - - - - 1,193
TOTAL ASSETS $ 231,304 $ 101,015  $ - $28,657 $94,028 $ 522 $ 36,853 $ 492,379
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities....... $ 200,038 $ 4268 $ - $302 $ 444 % 80 $ 6,138 $ 213,990
Securities lending obligations.... - 4,006 - - - - - 4,006
Due to other funds............. 17,023 28 - - - - 848 17,899
Due to political subdivisions........................ 34,954 1,298 - - 1,763 - - 38,015
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ... 252,015 9,600 - 3,022 2,207 80 6,986 273,910
Fund balances:
Committed.........cooouviiiiiiiiiiiec e - 91,415 - 25,635 91,821 442 29,867 239,180
Unassigned deficit..............ccoeviiiiiiiiiiinnnnnn. (20,711) - - - - - - (20,711)
TOTAL FUND BALANCES.........ccvuues (20,711) 91,415 - 25,635 91,821 442 29,867 218,469
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES. $ 231,304 $ 101,015 $ - $28,657 $94,028 $ 522 $ 36,853 $ 492,379
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 179 Governor's Office of the Budget
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Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Capital Projects Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

(Amounts in thousands)

REVENUES:

Charges for sales and Services......................
Investment iNCOME.............uuumeememmeeneniinnnnnnns

Interest on notes and loans..

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Direction and supportive services..................

Protection of persons and
Public education..............

property

Recreation and cultural enrichment...............

Economic development....
Transportation.........

Capital outlay....................

TOTAL EXPENDITURES ....

EXCESS/(DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER/(UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Bonds issued..................
Premium on bonds issued
Discount on bonds issued

Transfers OUL..........coveiveeiiiiiieiiiii e,
NET OTHER FINANCING

NET CHANGE IN FUND

BALANCES..........

FUND BALANCES JULY 1, 2010 (restated)

FUND BALANCES JUNE 30, 2011...............

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

WWW.pa.gov

Keystone Water
Recreation, Local Growing Supply and Land and Public
Capital Park and Criminal Greener Wastewater Water Transportation
Facilities Conservation Justice Bond Treatment Development Assistance Total

$ - $ 49,136 $ - 8 - $ - 8 - 0% 171,709 $ 220,845
16,197 - - - - - - 16,197
1,455 2,871 1 124 75 - 42 4,568

- - - 1 1,291 - - 1,292

17,652 52,007 1 125 1,366 - 171,751 242,902
283,394 - - 16 13 - - 283,423

- - - 10,209 - 211 - 10,420

- - - 10,314 - - - 10,314

7,869 47,372 - 8,304 - - - 63,545
298,487 - - 6,995 12,104 - - 317,586
329,588 - - - - - 155,003 484,591
393,499 3,898 - 11,566 - - - 408,963
1,312,837 51,270 - 47,404 12,117 211 155,003 1,578,842
(1,295,185) 737 1 (47,279)  (10,751) (211) 16,748 (1,335,940)
610,225 - - 19,500 20,275 - - 650,000
22,128 - - - 31 - - 22,159
(4,436) - - (199) (89) - - (4,724)
- (9,227) 1) - - - (16,156) (25,384)

627,917 (9,227) (1) 19,301 20,217 - (16,156) 642,051
(667,268) (8,490) - (27,978) 9,466 (211) 592 (693,889)
646,557 99,905 - 53,613 82,355 653 29,275 912,358

$ (20,711) $ 91,415 $ - $25635 $ 91821 % 442 $ 29,867 $ 218,469
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS
DESCRIPTION
NONMAIJOR FUNDS

Enterprise funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises. Costs of providing goods and services to the general public on a
continuing basis, including depreciation, are financed or recovered primarily through user
charges.

State Stores Fund — to account for the general operations of the Pennsylvania Liquor Control Board. Expenses include all
costs associated with the operation and administration of the liquor store system and enforcement of the Liquor Control
Law.

Small Business First Fund — to account for and provide loans to eligible small businesses for capital development projects
which will create or preserve employment opportunities and which will enhance business development in Pennsylvania.
Sources of revenue and financing include loan principal and interest payments, transfers from the General Fund, Federal
funds, and investment income.

Volunteer Companies Loan Fund — to account for and provide low-interest loans for acquisition and replacement of
volunteer fire, ambulance and rescue company equipment and facilities.

Machinery and Equipment Loan Fund — to account for and provide low-interest loans to finance machinery and
equipment purchases for eligible Pennsylvania businesses to facilitate their growth, competitiveness, and value-added
capacity. Sources of revenue and financing include loan principal and interest payments, transfers from the General Fund,
and investment income.

Coal and Clay Mine Subsidence Insurance Fund — to account for and provide insurance coverage to homeowners in mining
areas against damages resulting from mine subsidence.

Pennsylvania Infrastructure Bank Fund (P1B)— to account for and provide low-interest loans to, or enter into leases with,
qualified borrowers to finance the costs of construction and capital transportation projects within Pennsylvania. Acts 165
and 7A of 2004 expanded this program to include financing of rail freight infrastructure. Eligible borrowers include local
governments, transportation authorities, economic development agencies, not-for-profit organizations, and private
corporations. The interest rate on PIB loans is fixed at one-half the prime lending rate with terms up to 10 years.

Minority Business Development Fund — to account for and provide low-interest and short-term loans, loan and bond
guarantees and other financial and technical assistance, to eligible minority business enterprises and for operating
expenses of the Pennsylvania Minority Business Development Authority. Sources of revenue and financing include loan
principal and interest payments, transfers from the General Fund, and investment income.

Other — to account for enterprise operations including activities associated with low interest loans to manufacturers,
vocational rehabilitation services, and loans and grants provided to attract industrial, manufacturing or research and
development enterprises to the Commonwealth. This other category is an aggregation of five individual enterprise funds.

There are a total of sixteen individual enterprise funds; Unemployment Compensation, State Workers’ Insurance, State
Lottery an